
 

 

Arun District Council 
Civic Centre 
Maltravers Road 
Littlehampton 
West Sussex 
BN17 5LF 
 
Tel: (01903 737500) 
Fax: (01903) 730442 
DX: 57406 Littlehampton 
Minicom: 01903 732765 
 
e-mail: committees@arun.gov.uk 
 

 
 
Committee Manager Carley Lavender Extn (37547) 

5 January 2024 
 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 
A meeting of the Planning Committee will be held in the Council Chamber, at Arun Civic 
Centre, Maltravers Road, Littlehampton, BN17 5LF on Wednesday 17 January 2024 at 
2.00 pm and you are requested to attend. 
 
 
Members:  Councillors Hamilton (Chair), Wallsgrove (Vice-Chair), Blanchard-

Cooper, Bower, Kelly, Lury, McDougall, Northeast, Partridge, Patel and 
Woodman 
 

 
PLEASE NOTE: Where a member of the public wishes to attend the meeting or has 
registered a request to take part in Public Speaking physically at the Planning Committee, 
they are to enter the Civic Centre via the front reception and then make their way up to the 
Council Chamber on the second floor and take a seat in the Public Gallery [the Blue Room]. 
 
For further information on the items to be discussed, please contact 
Committees@arun.gov.uk. 
 
PLEASE NOTE THAT THE ORDER OF THE AGENDA MAY BE ALTERED AT THE 
DISCRETION OF THE CHAIRMAN AND SUBJECT TO THE AGREEMENT OF THE 
MEMBERS OF THE COMMITTEE 
 
PLEASE ALSO NOTE THAT PLANS OF THE APPLICATIONS DETAILED IN THE 
AGENDA ARE AVAILABLE FOR INSPECTION ONLINE AT www.arun.gov.uk/planning 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack

http://www.arun.gov.uk/planning


 
 

A G E N D A 
  
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
 

 
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 Members and Officers are reminded to make any declarations 

of pecuniary, personal and/or prejudicial interests that they 
may have in relation to items on this agenda and are 
reminded that they should re-declare their interest before 
consideration of the item or as soon as the interest becomes 
apparent. 
 
Members and officer should make their declaration by stating: 
a) the application they have the interest in 
b) whether it is a pecuniary, personal and/or prejudicial  
c) the nature of the interest 
d) if it is a prejudicial or pecuniary interest, whether they will 
be exercising their right to speak to the application 
 

 

 
3. VOTING PROCEDURES   
 Members and Officers are reminded that voting at this 

Committee will operate in accordance with the Committee 
Process as set out in the Council’s adopted Planning Local 
Code of Conduct for Members and Officers at Part 8 of the 
Constitution.  A copy of the Planning Local Code of Conduct 
can be obtained from Planning Services’ Reception and is 
available for inspection in the Members’ Room. 
  
 

 

 
4. MINUTES  (Pages 1 - 16) 
 To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the meetings 

held on 13 and 14 December 2023. 
 

 

 
5. ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA WHICH THE CHAIRMAN OF 

THE MEETING IS OF THE OPINION SHOULD BE 
CONSIDERED AS A MATTER OF URGENCY BY REASON 
OF SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCES  
 

 

DEFERRED ITEM 
  
6. P/139/22/RES CHURCH BARTON HOUSE, HORNS LANE, 

PAGHAM  
 

(Pages 17 - 40) 

 
7. P/153/21/RES LAND SOUTH OF SUMMER LANE AND 

WEST OF PAGHAM ROAD, PAGHAM  
 
 
 

(Pages 41 - 68) 



 
 

PLANNING APPLICATIONS 
  
8. LU/278/23/HH 19 DAVITS DRIVE, LITTLEHAMPTON BN17 

6RU  
 

(Pages 69 - 74) 

 
9. WA/111/23/PL BROOKFIELD FARM, EASTERGATE LANE, 

WALBERTON BN18 0BA  
 

(Pages 75 - 92) 

 
10. COMMITTEE REPORT RAMPION 2 JANUARY 2024  

 
(Pages 93 - 168) 

PLANNING APPEALS 
 
OFFICER REPORT UPDATES 
Will be circulated ahead of the meeting if there are any. 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
In the case of each report relating to a planning application, or related matter, the 
background papers are contained in the planning application file.  Such files are available 
for inspection/discussion with officers by arrangement prior to the meeting. 
  
Members and the public are reminded that the plans printed in the Agenda are purely for 
the purpose of locating the site and do not form part of the application submitted. 
  
Contact Officers: 
  
Neil Crowther  (Ext 37839) email neil.crowther@arun.gov.uk  
Daniel Vick     (Ext 37771) email Daniel.Vick@arun.gov.uk  
David Easton   (Ext 37698) email david.easton@arun.gov.uk 
  
  
  
 
Note:  Reports are attached for all Members of the Committee only and the press 

(excluding exempt items).  Copies of reports can be obtained on request from the 
Committee Manager. 

 
Note:   Members are reminded that if they have any detailed questions would they please 

inform the Chairman and/or relevant Director in advance of the meeting. 
 
Note: Filming, Photography and Recording at Council Meetings - The District Council 

supports the principles of openness and transparency in its decision making and 
permits filming, recording and the taking of photographs at its meetings that are open 
to the public. This meeting may therefore be recorded, filmed or broadcast by video 
or audio, by third parties. Arrangements for these activities should operate in 
accordance with guidelines agreed by the Council and as available via the following 
link – PART 8 - CP - Section 5 Filming Photographic Protocol 

 
These meetings are webcast live.  
To watch recorded webcasts use the following link – Planning Committee Webcast Page 

mailto:neil.crowther@arun.gov.uk
mailto:Daniel.Vick@arun.gov.uk
mailto:david.easton@arun.gov.uk
https://democracy.arun.gov.uk/documents/s8256/PART%208%20-%20CP%20-%20Section%205%20Filming%20Photographic%20Protocol.pdf
https://democracy.arun.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=137


This page is intentionally left blank



Subject to approval at the next Planning Committee meeting 
 

349 
 

 
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

13 December 2023 at 2.00 pm 
 
Present: Councillors Hamilton (Chair), Wallsgrove (Vice-Chair), Blanchard-

Cooper, Bicknell (Substitute for Bower), Kelly, Long (Substitute for 
Woodman), Lury, McDougall, Northeast, Partridge and Patel 
 
 

 Councillors   were also in attendance for all or part of the meeting. 
 
Apologies: Councillors   
 
 
460. APOLOGIES  
 

Apologies were received from Councillors Bower and Woodman. 
  
 
461. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 

Councillor Bicknell declared a personal interest in Item 10 [A/39/23/PL LAND 
WEST OF BROOK LAND AND SOUTH OF A259, ANGMERING, BN16 3JL] as a 
resident of Angmering.  

  
          Councillor Long declared a personal interest in Item 10 [A/39/23/PL LAND WEST 
OF BROOK LAND AND SOUTH OF A259, ANGMERING, BN16 3JL] as a member of 
Littlehampton Town Council and its Planning and Transportation Committee who had 
previously considered this application. She then stated that she would be keeping an 
open mind when considering this application.  
  
 
462. MINUTES  
 

The minutes of the previous meeting held on 15 November 2023 were approved 
and signed by the Chair. 
  
 
463. ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA WHICH THE CHAIRMAN OF THE MEETING IS 

OF THE OPINION SHOULD BE CONSIDERED AS A MATTER OF URGENCY 
BY REASON OF SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCES  

 
There were no urgent items for this meeting. 

  
 
 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



Subject to approval at the next Planning Committee meeting 
 

350 
 
Planning Committee - 13.12.23 
 
 
464. CM/48/21/RES - LAND TO THE WEST OF CHURCH LANE AND SOUTH OF 

HORSEMERE GREEN LANE, CLIMPING  
 

No Public Speakers. 
  
Approval of reserved matters following the grant of CM/1/17/OUT for the erection 
of 300 No dwellings & a building within use class E, together with public open 
space, LAPs, LEAP & ancillary works, including car parking & drainage 
arrangements, with access off Church Lane & Horsemere Green Lane. This 
application may affect the setting of listed buildings & is in CIL Zone 4 (HSP2) & 
is not CIL Liable. 

  
The Strategic Development Team Leader presented the report with updates. 
  

          Members raised the following points during debate, concern regarding ensuring 
delivery of the Fitness Trail, were there commuted sums within the S106 agreement set 
aside for the inside of the Community Centre building and drainage concerns.  
  
          Officers provided answers and advice to all points raised during the debate and 
the recommendation was then proposed by Councillor McDougall and seconded by 
Councillor Bicknell. 
  
          The Committee  
  
                     RESOLVED  
  
                     That the application be APPROVED CONDITIONALLY. 
  
 
465. P/153/21/RES - LAND SOUTH OF SUMMER LANE AND WEST OF PAGHAM 

ROAD, PAGHAM  
 

4 Public Speakers  
  
Councillor Peter Atkins, Pagham Parish Council  
James Weston, Objector  
Jon Gateley, Agent  
Councillor David Huntley, Ward Member  
  
Approval of reserved matters (appearance, layout, landscaping and scale) 
following outline planning Permission P/140/16/OUT for the erection of 350 No. 
dwellings, together with public open space, play space, drainage, parking and 
associated infrastructure, landscape, ancillary and site preparation works, with 
access off Pagham Road. This site may affect a Public Right of Way. 
  

Page 2



Subject to approval at the next Planning Committee meeting 
 

351 
 

Planning Committee - 13.12.23 
 

 
 

The Principal Planning Officer presented the report with updates that detailed a 
number of minor changes that had been made to the layout and landscaping details in 
accordance with comments received by West Sussex County Highways. 

  
After public speakers had been heard the Principal Planning Officer was invited 

by the Chair to address any comments made by those who had spoken, where it was 
confirmed that drainage controls and mitigations were still needed to be known at this 
stage. The Strategic Development Team Leader confirmed that the design of the main 
spine road had been agreed as acceptable access for the Primary School and in 
addressing the comments made in relation to animals being able to go through the dry 
SUDS features and out onto the agricultural fields to disturb the Brent Geese habitat the 
officer confirmed that these had been discussed in detail, however this matter was not 
material to the consideration of a reserved matters application.  

  
Members raised the following points during debate, the application was stated 

not to be in keeping with the Pagham Design statement, the location of the site was in 
flood zone one, concerns regarding the height of the development so as not to dwarf 
the Church and the views that were currently available. It was noted that the developers 
had made some changes however, they were not deemed to be enough. Flooding 
concerns were discussed in detail where it was confirmed that the council’s drainage 
engineers would require additional information at the next stage (through a discharge of 
condition application), however at the outline stage of the application the details they 
had were deemed satisfactory. It was also confirmed that the developers would require 
a drainage design to be approved before any building commenced for the development. 
In addressing the concern that no mitigation land had been provided it was stated that 
this had been identified through the S106 agreement, however the developer would 
need to submit evidence in order to address the matter. It was also acknowledged that 
that whilst the Brent Geese mitigation site chosen did flood, it was the developer’s 
responsibility to address and resolve these concerns ahead of commencing. Officers 
confirmed that they would require evidence showing the site could be sufficiently 
drained and that reassurance and a deliverability plan needed to be provided to ensure 
it met the requirements.  

  
          The discussion then returned to the concerns raised regarding the height of the 
buildings where it was asked if officers could confirm they had been reduced as had 
been requested during the consultation stages and by how much they had been 
reduced. It was confirmed that this information would need to be provided outside of the 
meeting given the number of individual house types and variations in height, however 
specifically relating to the listed buildings to the south of the development the outline 
permissions were assessed that that the harm identified was less than substantial. The 
Principal Planning Officer explained that this application dealt with the specific harm 
identified and ensures that any harm established was then dealt with at outline stage. It 
was confirmed that for this application the harm established had not exceeded the initial 
assessment. Members continued to debate this matter before putting the officer 
recommendation to the vote. 
            

Page 3



Subject to approval at the next Planning Committee meeting 
 

352 
 
Planning Committee - 13.12.23 
 
 
          The recommendation was proposed by Councillor Wallsgrove and seconded by 
Councillor Northeast, upon the vote being taken the recommendation was not 
approved. 
  
          Members then turned to discussing reasons for refusal specifically relating to not 
knowing the specific height of the buildings within the development. Councillor Lury 
then proposed that the application be DEFERED until the impact of the height of the 
buildings could be confirmed. This was seconded by Councillor McDougal. 
  
           As members continued their debate on the deferral reason, it was also 
suggested that additional reasons for deferral be added to the proposal, these were 
drainage concerns and the lack of additional infrastructure in place to prevent future 
flooding and further mitigations needed in relation to the Brent Geese. The Group Head 
of Planning provided strong advice to members that these were already addressed by 
planning conditions imposed on the outline and therefore were not required to be 
specifically outlined in their deferral reasoning.    
  
  
          The Committee  
  
                     RESOLVED  
  

That the application be DEFERRED until the clarification of the impact of 
the height of the buildings on the St Thomas a Becket Church could be 
understood. 

  
          Those voting FOR were Councillors Blanchard-Cooper, Hamilton, Long, Lury, 
McDougall, Northeast and Wallsgrove. No Councillors voted AGAINST. Those voting to 
ABSTAIN were Councillors Bicknell, Kelly, Partridge and Patel. 

  
Due to the decision to defer this application it was suggested by the Group Head 

of Planning that a short adjournment was taken to allow officers to speak with the 
applicant as the next application was inextricably linked to this application. Members 
agreed and the meeting was adjourned at 15:20.  
  
 
466. P/139/22/RES - CHURCH BARTON HOUSE, HORNS LANE, PAGHAM, PO21 

4NZ  
 

(The meeting readjourned at 15:31.) 
  

Public Speaking on this item was deferred.  
  
Approval of reserved matters following P/25/17/OUT for the provision of 65 
dwellings, access roads, landscaping, open space and associated works. This 
application affects a Public Right of Way. 
  

Page 4



Subject to approval at the next Planning Committee meeting 
 

353 
 

Planning Committee - 13.12.23 
 

 
 

The Group Head of Planning confirmed that officers would now be 
recommending that the application be deferred due to its linkage to the last application. 
He advised and recommended that Members still may want to make comments on the 
application in order to assist officers in resolving these concerns when both applications 
are brought back to another meeting of the Committee. 

  
The Chair then confirmed with Officers and the Public Speakers in attendance at 

the meeting that public speaking on this item would be deferred until the application is 
brought back to the committee. The Principal Planning Officer provided members with a 
shortened presentation and Members were then invited to make any comments that 
they would like officers to consider before the application returned.  

  
Upon a short discussion it was agreed that the height of the development was 

the main concern for the committee.  
  

          The recommendation was proposed by Councillor Wallsgrove and seconded by 
Councillor Lury. The Committee unanimously then voted to;  
  
          The Committee  
  
                     RESOLVED  
  
                     That the application be DEFERRED. 
  
 
467. AL/102/23/PL - LAND NORTH OF NORTHFIELD FARMHOUSE, FONTWELL 

AVENUE, EASTERGATE  
 

1 Public Speaker  
  
          Sarah Hocking, Agent  
  

Development of 3 dwellings with associated landscaping and infrastructure. This 
application is a Departure from the Development plan, is in CIL Zone 3 and CIL 
Liable as new dwellings, and a dual parish application with Barnham & 
Eastergate Parish Council. 
  
The Principal Planning Officer presented the report with updates. 
  
Members raised the following points during a short debate, given the outline 

approval for the site next door to this application it was commented that a reason for 
refusal could not be considered. The Vice-Chair asked officers for clarification regarding 
the access to the site and was the access road a private road where it was confirmed it 
was unknown if the road was private, however there was a right to pass. 

  
          The recommendation was proposed by Councillor Lury and seconded by 
Councillor Bicknell. 

Page 5



Subject to approval at the next Planning Committee meeting 
 

354 
 
Planning Committee - 13.12.23 
 
 
  
          The Committee  
  
                     RESOLVED  
  
                     That the application be APPROVED CONDITIONALLY. 
  
 
468. A/39/23/PL - LAND WEST OF BROOK LANE AND SOUTH OF A259, 

ANGMERING, BN16 3JL  
 

(Councillors Bicknell and Long redeclared their personal interests in the item.)  
  
2 Public Speakers  

  
          Simon Ulrich, Objector  

Charlie Merry, Agent   
  

Demolition of existing structures on site and the erection of an employment park 
for Use Class E(g)(ii) and B8 floorspace with ancillary offices and structures, 
delivering the enabling works phase, public right of way diversion, associated 
access, reptile re-location, drainage and landscaping scheme, followed by the 
delivery of each development parcel via severable phases. This application is in 
CIL Zone 4 (zero rated) as other development. 
  
The Strategic Development Team Leader presented the report with updates and 

confirmed that the recommendation was now requesting delegated authority to approve 
the application subject to no objection being received from the Council’s Drainage 
Engineers. He confirmed that should any comments require additional conditions these 
would be added, and this would be done in consultation with the Chair or Vice-Chair.  

  
During the debate initial comments of support for the application were 

expressed. The Chair then invited non-committee member Councillor Gunner to 
address the committee where he raised concerns regarding the pedestrian crossing, he 
stated that he was not in agreement with the figure of 5 that had been documented, he 
believed that it only accounted for assumed employee movement. He also made 
reference to the lost appeal regarding Rusting Golf Course and one of the reasons was 
due to the crossing.   The Strategic Development Team Leader advised that all work 
had been completed by the developer in consultation with Network Rail and the Council 
had no reason to dispute the information provided. In response to a query raised 
regarding the dual carriage way speed limit he confirmed that comments had been 
received from West Sussex County Council Highways where it was stated there was no 
objection and the design was considered to be acceptable. It was then asked if the 
Group Head of Planning would provide members with any additional advice, where it 
was confirmed, his advice was documented within the report. 
  

Page 6



Subject to approval at the next Planning Committee meeting 
 

355 
 

Planning Committee - 13.12.23 
 

 
 

           The recommendation was proposed by Councillor Bicknell and seconded by 
Councillor Partridge. 
  
  
          The Committee  
  
                     RESOLVED  
  

That the application that delegated authority be given to approve the 
application subject to no objection being received from the Council’s 
Drainage Engineers. 

  
 
 
 

(The meeting concluded at 4.17 pm) 
 
 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Subject to approval at the next Planning Committee meeting 
 

357 
 

 
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

14 December 2023 at 2.00 pm 
 
Present: Councillors Hamilton (Chair), Wallsgrove (Vice-Chair), Bicknell 

(Substitute for Bower), Gunner (Substitute for Patel), Kelly, Long 
(Substitute for Woodman), Lury, McDougall, Northeast, Partridge 
and Warr (Substitute for Blanchard-Cooper) 
 
 

 
 
 
 
469. APOLOGIES  
 

Apologies were received from Councillors Bower, Blanchard-Cooper, Patel and 
Woodman. 
  
 
470. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 

Councillor Long declared a personal interest in Item 5 [LU/246/23/PL - 
LITTLEHAMPTON SEAFRONT, EAST OF HARBOUR PARK AND SOUTH OF SOUTH 
TERRACE, LITTLEHAMPTON, BN17 5LH] as a member of Littlehampton Town 
Council and its Planning and Transportation Committee who had previously considered 
this application. She then stated that she would be keeping an open mind when 
considering this application.        
 
471. ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA WHICH THE CHAIRMAN OF THE MEETING IS 

OF THE OPINION SHOULD BE CONSIDERED AS A MATTER OF URGENCY 
BY REASON OF SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCES  

 
There were no urgent items to be discussed at the meeting. 

  
 
472. LU/246/23/PL - LITTLEHAMPTON SEAFRONT, EAST OF HARBOUR PARK 

AND SOUTH OF SOUTH TERRACE, LITTLEHAMPTON, BN17 5LH  
 

(Councillor Long redeclared a personal interest in Item 5 [LU/246/23/PL - 
LITTLEHAMPTON SEAFRONT, EAST OF HARBOUR PARK AND SOUTH OF SOUTH 
TERRACE, LITTLEHAMPTON, BN17 5LH] as a member of Littlehampton Town 
Council and its Planning and Transportation Committee who had previously considered 
this application. She then stated that she would be keeping an open mind when 
considering this application.) 

           
3 Public Speakers  

  

Page 9



Subject to approval at the next Planning Committee meeting 
 

358 
 
Planning Committee - 14.12.23 
 
 
          Richard Groom, Objector 
          Mrs Lees, Objector  
          Helen Kent, Agent  
  

Application under Regulation 3 of the Town & Country Planning Act (General 
Regulations) 1992 for the regeneration and transformation of Littlehampton 
Seafront to provide improved facilities and spaces for sport, arts and recreation. 
This application may affect the setting of listed buildings, may affect the 
character and appearance of the Littlehampton Seafront conservation area and 
is in CIL Zone 5 (Zero Rated) as other development. 
  

          The Interim Head of Development Management present the report with updates. 
After public speaking the officer was invited to respond to any points raised where he 
addressed the comments made regarding a ‘loss of open space’, explaining that there 
would still be large areas of open space available. In addressing comments made 
regarding the viewpoint, it was stated that the enhancement of the facilities the 
application would bring would encourage more and new visitors to the area. In summing 
up it was confirmed that there would be specific coach parking spaces that would be 
allocated. 
  
          Members raised the following points during the debate, additional comments 
were made regarding Coach Parking specifically the configuration of the road layout on 
Banjo Road and the number of parking spaces that would be available. Drainage and 
flooding concerns were raised. Statements were made regarding the importance of 
ensuing that maintenance of trees planted were kept in high standard to ensure that a 
‘green screen’ was not created that would inhibit the sea views for any residents or 
business owners. The Interim Head of Development Management then provided 
detailed responses to each point raised.  
  
          The recommendation was then proposed by Councillor Gunner and seconded by 
Councillor Bicknell. 
  
          The Committee  
  
                     RESOLVED 
  
                     That the application be APPROVED CONDITIONALLY. 
  
 
473. WA/67/23/PL - LAND AT WEST WALBERTON LANE, WALBERTON, 

ARUNDEL, BN18 0QF  
 

2 Public Speakers  
  
Matt Allsopp, Applicant  
Jeremy Gardiner, Agent  
  

Page 10



Subject to approval at the next Planning Committee meeting 
 

359 
 

Planning Committee - 14.12.23 
 

 
 

Construction of 25 No dwellings together with associated access from 
Eastergate Lane, parking, public open space and landscaping (resubmission 
following WA/32/21/PL). This application may affect the setting of listed 
buildings, may affect the character and appearance of the Walberton Green 
Conservation Area, is a Departure from the Development Plan and is in CIL 
Zone 3 and is CIL Liable as new dwellings. 
  
The Interim Head of Development Management presented the report with 

updates.  
  
          Members raised the following points during the debate, a request was made that 
a ‘Grampian Condition’ be attached to the application, to ensure that all off-site work 
was completed prior to any new development being undertaken. This was requested as 
a direct result of the drainage and flooding concerns raised. Discussion was had 
regarding the conservation officers comments detailed on page 27 of the report. It was 
asked who owned the open spaces to the east of the green, where it was advised that 
the space would be managed through a management company. Concern was raised 
that comments from Southern Water were missing and it was commented that this 
made it difficult for some to come to a determination on the application. 
  
          It was then proposed by Councillor McDougall that the application be deferred in 
order to wait for a full response back from Southern Water regarding the sewage 
provisions and connections. This was seconded by Councillor Gunner. 
            
          The Committee  
  
                     RESOLVED 
  

That the application be DEFERRED until a full response from Southern 
Water had been received and could be considered by the Committee.  

  
 
474. APPEALS LIST  
 

Members noted the appeals list. 
  
 
475. SCHEME OF DELEGATION  
 

The Group Head of Planning presented the report, he outlined that the changes 
detailed in the report were a ‘tidying up’ process that would impact a small number of 
applications, which would no longer be required to be brought before Committee.  
  

There was a short debate where it was made clear by the committee, that they 
were not in favour of approving the changes detailed in the report.  

  

Page 11



Subject to approval at the next Planning Committee meeting 
 

360 
 
Planning Committee - 14.12.23 
 
 

The recommendations were proposed by Councillor Wallsgrove and seconded 
by Councillor McDougall. Upon the vote being taken, members voted against the 
recommendations in the report.  

  
The Group Head of Planning then asked members to provide a clear narrative as 

to why they were unhappy to approve the changes as detailed in the report.  It was 
confirmed that members did not want to increase delegations to officers, this was 
because as elected members they should be the decision makers. It was stated that 
public perception was that members ‘don’t do enough’ and approving the changes in 
this instance was felt to feed that narrative. The Group Head of Planning responded to 
the comments made, where he stated that the report was first presented to Committee 
at its November 2023 meeting and since then members had, had two briefings where it 
had been outlined the changes were minor and would impact a small number of 
applications. However, the concerns expressed at the meeting had not been raised 
previously. In summing up he confirmed that members would need to consider that not 
approving the changes detailed would mean that these instances would continue to 
impact officer and member time, finances and impact the timeframe to make decisions 
on these applications.  
  
 
476. DECISION ON Y/52/23/PL  
 

The Group Head of Planning presented the report, where he outlined that there 
was a need for members to consider the additional wording that had been detailed in 
the report in order to strengthen their refusal reasoning for the application in order to 
ensure the decision of the committee could be defended should the applicant appeal 
the decision of the committee.  

  
          Members were in agreement with the proposed changes detailed within the 
report. There was a request from one member to split the vote out due to the member 
participating in this meeting as substitute and having not attended the original meeting 
where the decision had originally been made. Advice was then sought from the Legal 
Services Manager regarding the vote, where it was advised that anyone acting as a 
substitute at the meeting could abstain. Discussion on this matter continued as there 
was contention in relation to advice received therefore a 10-minute adjournment was 
agreed and taken at 16:05. 
  
          The meeting was readjourned at 16:20, where the Chair explained that members 
were now clear on the advice that had been given and were now ready to move to the 
vote on the item.  
  
          The recommendations were proposed by Councillor McDougall and seconded by 
Councillor Lury. The vote was taken in three parts as requested with recommendations 
(i), being voted on first, then recommendation (ii), and finally recommendation (iii).  
  
 
 

Page 12



Subject to approval at the next Planning Committee meeting 
 

361 
 

Planning Committee - 14.12.23 
 

 
 

          The Committee 
  
                     RESOLVED 

  
2.1 That Planning Committee confirm the following by way of clarification 
in respect of the decision made on Y/52/23/PL.  

  
i. Reasons for refusal 1 & 2 are withdrawn.  
ii. Reason for refusal 3 is withdrawn.  
iii. Reason 4 should have read.  
  
The design of the proposed houses would be incongruous with the 
established character of this semi-rural edge of settlement location which 
forms a buffer to the hamlet of Bilsham. They would introduce an urban 
built form to the edge of settlement location and not reflect the establish 
character of the area. This would result in substantial harm to local 
character in conflict with Arun Local Plan policies D DM1 & LAN DM1, and 
policy H4 of the Yapton Neighbourhood Development Plan 2011-2031. 
The harm identified clearly and demonstrably outweighs the benefits of 
the application including its contribution to the Councils Housing Land 
Supply shortfall.  
  
iv. Additional reasons for refusal should have included In the absence of a 
signed Section 106 agreement, the development fails to make any 
affordable housing provision and is thereby contrary to the aims and 
objectives of the NPPF and policy AH SP2 of the Arun Local Plan.  
  
In the absence of a signed Section 106 agreement, the development will 
not provide the highway improvements necessary to deliver the 
development & mitigate any residual harm to the local and strategic road 
network and is thereby contrary to ALP policies T SP1, T DM1 and the 
NPPF.  
  
In the absence of a signed Section 106 agreement, the development will 
not provide the contribution required to mitigate the additional cost of 
transporting to secondary school pupils to the nearest school and is 
thereby contrary to ALP policy INF SP1 and the NPPF. 

  
 
477. BUTLINS - LOCAL DEVELOPMENT ORDER  
 

The Group Head of Planning asked members if given the current time members 
would be minded for items 10 and 11 to be taken together as they were the same 
decision. Members were in agreement, so he then presented the reports this item and 
the University of Chichester. 
  

Page 13



Subject to approval at the next Planning Committee meeting 
 

362 
 
Planning Committee - 14.12.23 
 
 
          The recommendations were proposed by Councillor McDougall and seconded by 
Councillor Lury. 
  
          The Committee 
  
                     RECOMMENDED TO FULL COUNCIL that  
  

2.1 the amended Local Development Order for the Butlins Complex, 
Bognor Regis be adopted. 

  
 
478. UNIVERSITY OF CHICHESTER - LOCAL DEVELOPMENT ORDER  
 

The recommendations were proposed by Councillor McDougall and seconded by 
Councillor Lury. 
  
          The Committee 
  
                     RECOMMENDED TO FULL COUNCIL that  

  
2.1 the amended Local Development Order for the University of 
Chichester, Bognor Regis Campus be adopted. 

  
 
479. FITZALAN ACOUSTIC BARRIER  
 

The Group Head of Planning presented the report. 
  
          Members raised the following points during their debate, clarity was sought as to 
why the recommendation was to defer the item and what had prompted the report to be 
presented to members at this time. It was confirmed that the previous report presented 
to Committee recommended that the Council ceased exploring options, however 
members did not accept this recommendation at the time. As officers had not be able to 
progress matters further since then, its felt that given the work due to be completed for 
the Lyminster Bypass this could provide a change in circumstances and it was therefore 
worth members being provided the opportunity to re-review once this new section of 
road had been opened for a period of time. There was agreement expressed stating 
that should a decision be made now to lower the acoustic barrier without considering 
the potential future noise impacts that could be in place once the road had been opened 
would be a mistake.  
  
          The recommendations were proposed by Councillor Wallsgrove and seconded by 
Councillor Long. 
  
 
 

Page 14



Subject to approval at the next Planning Committee meeting 
 

363 
 

Planning Committee - 14.12.23 
 

 
 

          The Committee 
  
                     RESOLVED  
  

2.1 That the Committee resolve to defer further consideration of this 
matter until the northern section of the Fitzalan Link Road is opened 
(currently scheduled for Autumn 2024). 

  
 
480. Q2 PERFORMANCE REPORT FOR THE KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 

(KPI'S) WHICH FORM PART OF THE COUNCIL'S VISION 2022-2026  
 

Members raised the following points on the report, CP33 what steps were being 
taken to improve this indicator, it was explained that one application, Land North of the 
Academy in Littlehampton had been with the council a long time due to ongoing work 
with S106 agreements for affordable housing. The Group Head of Planning explained 
that any application that was received by the council with a s106 agreement attached to 
it, would not be completed within the 13-week timeframe due to the level of work 
involved with these specifically. A further question was raised regarding why the target 
was showing as significantly worse in quarter 2 and would considering a change to the 
process for applications with s106’s attached help improve this. It was confirmed that 
the second appendix to the report, detailed ‘rolling’ figures and that these needed to be 
considered over a 6-month timeframe to truly see if there were trends due to specific 
variations. In addressing the process change suggested it was stated that there had 
been a number of applications that had been deferred previously and more recently in 
order to wait for s106 agreement to be received and reviewed prior to any determination 
being made. However, the last thing that anyone wants as an outcome would be 
abortive work being completed, if officers spent months working on the s106 agreement 
and the application was then refused, the work and time put into this has been wasted. 
  

The recommendations were proposed by Councillor McDougall and seconded by 
Councillor Wallsgrove. 
  
          The Committee 
  
                     RESOLVED  

  
2.1. that the Committee notes the contents of this report and provides any 
questions or comments on the indicators relevant to this Committee to the 
Policy and Finance Committee on 8 February 2024. 

  
 
 
 

(The meeting concluded at 4.45 pm) 
 
 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



 

!"#$%" &'$()* +)#,-

+)$*, .'*-

/'0"'1

233$)4'5 )6 $-,-$4-7 1'((-$, 6)55)89*0 /:;<:=>:?@A 6)$ ("- 3$)49,9)* )6 B<

78-559*0,C '%%-,, $)'7,C 5'*7,%'39*0C )3-* ,3'%- '*7 ',,)%9'(-7 8)$D,E A"9,

'3359%'(9)* '66-%(, ' /#F59% G90"( )6 H'IE

A"9, '3359%'(9)* 8', 3$-,-*(-7 () ("- /5'**9*0 !)119((-- )* =J K-%-1F-$ ;L;JC '*7 1-1F-$, '0$--7

() 7-6-$ ("- '3359%'(9)* '( $-M#-,( 6$)1 ("- N$)#3 +-'7 )6 /5'**9*0 7#$9*0 ("- 1--(9*0E A"9, 8', 7#- ()

("- 6'%( ("'( ("- 3$)3),-7 '%%-,, $-59-, )* ' %)**-%(9)* () ("- 9*(-$*'5 -,('(- $)'7 3$)497-7 )* '*

'7O'%-*( '3359%'(9)* ,9(- P/:=<J:;=:GQRC R#11-$ .'*-S 8"9%" 8', 7-6-$$-7 7#$9*0 ("- /5'**9*0

!)119((-- 1--(9*0E

T-1F-$, F$9-65I 7-F'(-7 ("9, '3359%'(9)* '*7 7--1-7 ("'( ("- )4-$'55 "-90"( )6 ("- 7-4-5)31-*( 8', ("-

3$91'$I %)*%-$*E K8-559*0 "-90"(, '$- $-6-$-*%-7 '*7 ',,-,,-7 89("9* ("- )669%-$, $-3)$(C ")8-4-$C 6)$

$-6-$-*%- '55 78-559*0 $970-, '$- F-(8--* <EJ1 () UEJ1E .)8-$ "-90"( F#9579*0,C 3'$(9%#5'$5I F#*0'5)8,C

'$- 5)%'(-7 ()8'$7, ("- F)#*7'$I )6 ("- 7-4-5)31-*( 9* )$7-$ () 3$)497- ' ($'*,9(9)* 89(" ("-

%)#*($I,97-E

R9*%- ("- '3359%'(9)* 8', 3$-,-*(-7 () %)119((--C ("- V//W R-3(-1F-$ ;L;J "', *)8 F--* $-49,-7 ()

V//W K-%-1F-$ ;L;JC '*7 ("-$-6)$- ,)1- 3'$'0$'3" *#1F-$, 89("9* ("- )669%-$ $-3)$( "'4- %"'*0-7E

H"-$- $-6-$-*%- 9, 1'7- () ("- V//W ', ' 8")5- )$ ', ' 3'$(9%#5'$ 3'$'0$'3"C ("- $-5-4'*( 8)$79*0 9,

#*%"'*0-7 )$ 7)-, *)( 913'%( #3)* ("- $-%)11-*7'(9)* FI )669%-$,E

Page 17

Agenda Item 6



 

 

 

!""#$%&'$() *(+ ,-./0-11-234

25&6() 7(8 '95 :";&'5 - <9&)=56

>95 &""#$%&)' "8(?$;5; &@5);5; "#&)6 '( &;;8566 %(@@5)'6 78(@ 3%(#(=A 85=&8;$)= '95 #&%B (7 4:C6

"#&)'$)= ;5'&$#6D &@5);@5)'6 '( '95 %()6$6'5)%A (7 '95 E(F);&8A '85&'@5)'6G ! )F@E58 (7 9(F65 'A"5

"#&)6 H585 &#6( &@5);5; '( 5)6F85 '9&' 9&E$'&E#5 8((@6 H$);(H6 H585 85#(%&'5; '( &?($; (?58#((B$)=G

.G :,C!>3C <I*4:J>!>KI* 234,I*434+

*&'F8&# 3)=#&);+ *( (EL5%'$()G !;?$65; '9&' '95A %()%F8 H$'9 '95 %()%#F6$()6 (7 '95 !""8("8$&'5

!66566@5)' F);58'&B5) EA '95 <(F)%$#G

3%(#(=A+ *( (EL5%'$()G !;?$65; '9&' '95 "#&)' 6"5%$56 7(8 '95 H5'#&); &85&6 9&6 E55) "8(?$;5; &); $6

&%%5"'&E#5G

M855)6"&%5+  *( (EL5%'$()G !;?$65; '95 6(7' #&);6%&"$)= ;5'&$#6 &85 &%%5"'&E#5D 9(H5?58 7F8'958 @$)(8

&@5);@5)'6 85NF$85; (7 '95 "#&A "8(?$6$()G !;?$65; '9&' &## "#&A ;5'&$#6 H$## E5 85?$5H5; &6 "&8' (7 '95

(E#$=&'$()6 65%F85; &6 "&8' (7 '95 45%'$() .OP &=855@5)' (E#$=&'$()6G

1G :,C!>3C 23,2343*>!>KI*4+

>H( 7F8'958 (EL5%'$()6 9&?5 E55) 85%5$?5;D 9(H5?58 )( )5H @&'58$&#6 %()6$;58&'$()6 9&?5 E55) 8&$65;G

/G <I*CK>KI* :,C!>3+

<();$'$() . 9&6 E55) F";&'5; '( 857#5%' '95 &@5);5; "#&)6G <();$'$() Q 9&6 E55) F";&'5; '( 857#5%' &

)5H 85?$6$() )F@E58 7(8 '95 !%%566 ,#&)G >95 )5H !%%566 ,#&) 25? <  )(H 857586 '( '95 @(6' F" '(

;&'5 #&A(F' "8("(65; 7(8 '95 &;L&%5)' 4F@@58 J&)5 6$'5G

G

Page 18



 !"#$%&'%()*(+*,&&-%#,'%() './0*1223/415/67*/0*869*9:0:9;:<*=155:90*9:315/7>*56*?1@*,44:00A

?B@*-1C6D5A*?4@*"413:A*?<@*,22:19174:A*17<*?:@*-17<0412/7>E

869*FG*<H:33/7>0I

'.:*6D53/7:*2:9=/00/67*?9:8:9:74:*&JKGJLMJ(N'@*:051B3/0.:<

5.:*29/74/23:*68*9:0/<:75/13*<:;:362=:75E*17<*5.:*467059D45/67

68*D2*56*FG*)6I*<H:33/7>0I

"%'!*,$!, ,2296O/=15:3C*PILG*.:4519:0I

$!"% !)'%,-* !Q!-(&R!)'

 !)"%'S*?)!'@

,2296O/=15:3C*LGIFF*<H:33/7>0*2:9*.:4519:*?<2.@*51T/7>*5.:

:75/9:*0/5:I*U6H:;:9E*D0/7>*VD05*5.:*<:;:3621B3:*19:1*?KIW

.:4519:0@*5.:*<:70/5C*H6D3<*B:*KXIKG<2.I

'(&(Y$,&US '.:*0/5:*/0*29:<6=/71753C*8315I

'$!!" '.:9:*19:*1*7D=B:9*68*59::0*67*5.:*0/5:*17<*/==:</15:3C

0D996D7</7>*5.:*0/5:I*,*319>:*0.:35:9B:35*68*59::0*19:*29:0:75*56

5.:*7695.ZH:05:97*4697:9*68*5.:*0/5:E*17<*1*3/7:19*>96D2*0/5

H/5./7*5.:*7695.:97*2195*68*5.:*0/5:I*'.:9:*19:*/7</;/<D13*59::0

04155:9:<*196D7<*5.:*:O/05/7>*<91/71>:*</54.I

[(N) ,$S*'$!,'R!)' &1950*68*5.:*7695.:97E*H:05:97*17<*:105:97*B6D7<19/:0*68*5.:

0/5:*8:15D9:*=15D9:*0.:35:9B:35*59::*3/7:0*68*2623190I*\66<:7

:3:459/4/5C*2C3670*9D7*1367>0/<:*5.:*06D5.:97*B6D7<19C*17<

67:*49600:0*5.:*1223/415/67*0/5:*7695.*56*06D5.I

'.:*0/5:*.10*1*7D=B:9*68*296=/7:75*5133*59::0*H./4.*19:*;/0/B3:

/7*367>*</05174:*;/:H0E*17<*0:;:913*>96D20*68*5133*59::0*H./4.

19:*36415:<*6D50/<:*68*5.:*1223/415/67*B6D7<19CI

"%'!*#U,$,#'!$%"'%#" '.:*1223/415/67*0/5:*=:10D9:0*12296O/=15:3C*PILG*.:4519:0

17<*/0*4D99:753C*D0:<*10*17*6D53C/7>*21<<64T*10064/15:<*H/5.

#.D94.*[19567*U6D0:I*'.:*0/5:*/0*B6D7<:<*56*5.:*H:05*17<

06D5.*BC*U6970*-17:*H/5.*"D==:9*-17:*0/5D15:<*56*5.:*7695.I

#U,$,#'!$*(+*-(#,-%'S '.:*4.19145:9*68*5.:*36413/5C*/0*29:<6=/71753C*0:=/Z9D913E*H/5.

62:7*46D759C0/<:*56*5.:*H:05*68*5.:*0/5:I*!O/05/7>*9:0/<:75/13

<:;:362=:75*/0*29:0:75*1367>*&1>.1=*$61<*56*5.:*:105I*'6

5.:*7695.:105*5.:9:*/0*9:315/;:3C*7:H3C*467059D45:<*9:0/<:75/13

<:;:362=:75*?D7<:9*&JGWJLGJ(N'@*H./4.*/0*06=:H.15*;/0/B3:

869=*5.:*0/5:I*'6*5.:*06D5.*5.:9:*/0*:O/05/7>*BD/35*<:;:362=:75E

H./4.*/0*0:21915:<*BC*8/:3<0*896=*5.:*0/5:*17<*1229:4/1B3:*/7

;/:H0*896=*5.:*0/5:I

 :;:362=:75*196D7<*5.:*0/5:*4670/050*29/=19/3C*68*02691</4

819=*BD/3</7>0*H./4.*19:*144:00:<*BC*5914T0E*17<*2DB3/4

8665215.0*H./4.*4677:450*5.:*9D913*317<0412:*56*5.:*:<>:*68

5.:*BD/35ZD2*0:553:=:75*68*&1>.1=I

&1>.1=*$/8:*/0*36415:<*56*5.:*H:05*68*5.:*1223/415/67*0/5:*17<

4677:450*56*5.:*&1>.1=*U19B6D9*56*5.:*06D5.I

'.:9:*19:*1*7D=B:9*68*3/05:<*BD/3</7>0*/7*5.:*H/<:9*36413/5CI

'.:*4360:05E*F]]=*56*5.:*06D5.*68*5.:*1223/415/67*0/5:*19:*'.:

&19/0.*#.D94.*68*"5*'.6=10*1*[:4T:5E*R/330567:*#6551>:*17<

Page 19



 

 

!"# $%& '())*+#, !"# )(-#. (/ !"# 0*.12" '"3.4" (/ 5)

!"(6*2 * 7#48#) 12 9121:%# /.(6 -1)"1; )"# *<<%14*)1(; 21)#,

0=>?=@A=$B! $3)%1;# *<<%14*)1(; -1)" *%% 6*))#.2 .#2#.9#& C D.#4)1(; (/

3< )( E? F(, &-#%%1;+2G *44#22 .(*&2G %*;&24*<1;+G (<#;

2<*4# H *22(41*)#& -(.82,

I<< '(;& -1)" 5@JE

J?CJKC@K

0=L@=>>=M$' I<<.(9*% (/ &#)*1%2 .#2#.9#& :N 4(;&1)1(; 16<(2#& 3;&#.

.#/ 0=>?=@A=$B! .#%*)1;+ )( '(;&1)1(; F( E C M#21+;

'(&# O*2)#.<%*;,

M$' I<<.(9#&

JPCJLC>>

F()#&,

0*+"*6 0*.12" '(3;41% C $:Q#4)1(; (; )"# /(%%(-1;+ +.(3;&2

C  R*48 (/ *44#22,

C  '(;4#.;2 *.(3;& &.*1;*+#,

C  O*2)#. <%*;;1;+ 1; .#%*)1(; )( 1;/.*2).34)3.# -1)" *&Q*4#;) 21)#2,

C  R*48 (/ 4%*.1)N *;& 4(;23%)*)1(; -1)" 0*+"*6 *;& I%&-148 I&912(.N S.(3<,

I )()*% (/ T? <3:%14 (:Q#4)1(;2 -#.# .#4#19#&, O*)#.1*% 4(;21&#.*)1(;2 *.# 2366*.12#& *2 /(%%(-2U

C  F( *44#22 <%*;2 1;4%3&#& -1)"1; *<<%14*)1(;,

C  I44#22 )".(3+" V(.;2 R*;#G *;& )"#; 5366#. R*;# *.# 3;231)*:%#,

C  0W$X -(3%& :# 4(6<.(612#&,

C  0.(<(2# <.(9121(; /(. 2*/# <#&#2).1*; *;& 4N4%1;+ ).*9#%,

C  M#21+; (/ &-#%%1;+2 %*48 .3.*% *#2)"#)14,

C  M#;21)N 12 )(( "1+" *;& 12 4(;21&#.#& (9#. &#9#%(<6#;),

C  R1+")G ;(12# *;& 9#"14%# <(%%3)1(;,

C  F( #6#.+#;4N 9#"143%*. *44#22 :#)-##; )"# )-( <.(<(2#& &#9#%(<6#;) <*.4#%2,

C  Y;23//141#;) <*.81;+ *;& ;( <.(9121(; /(. %*.+#. 9#"14%#2,

C  Y;4.#*2#& /(()/*%%=&(+2 -1%% :# 4*32# <.(:%#62 )( )"# 0*+"*6 V*.:(3.,

C  M#21+; (/ <.(<#.)1#2 %*48 .3.*% *#2)"#)14,

C  M#;21)N 12 )(( "1+",

O*;N (:Q#4)1(;2 .*12#& <(1;)2 -"14" *.# ;() * 6*)#.1*% )( )"12 <%*;;1;+ &#4121(;G *2 #1)"#. )"#N *.# ;()

6*)#.1*% .#*2(;2 (. )"#N -#.# 4(;21&#.#& *2 <*.) (/ )"# (3)%1;# <#.61221(; *;& &( ;() /(.6 <*.) (/ )"#

W#2#.9#& O*))#.2 .#61) *;& 24(<#, !"# <(1;)2 .*12#& -#.# *2 /(%%(-2U

C  '(;4#.; )"*) )"# 2#-#.*+# <%*;2 *.# ;() 4.#&1:%# Z<()#;)1*% /(. 2#-#.*+# )*;8#.1;+ 3;)1% 1;/.*2).34)3.#

12 3<+.*&#&[,

C  V1+"-*N2 4*;;() 4(<# -1)" )"# *&&1)1(;*% 9#"14%#2,

C  '(;+#2)1(; /.(6 *&&1)1(;*% 9#"14%#2,

C  Y;23//141#;) 23<<(.)1;+ 1;/.*2).34)3.#,

Page 20



 

 

 

!  "#$% &$#$'()*$+,-

!  .( /0%123$ 42,$% &%25+26$-

!  7+/011535$+, /$%#53$/ /038 2/ 9: /0%6$%5$/; &$+,5/,/-

!  <23= (1 32)235,> 45,85+ ,8$ /38(('/ ?5+12+,; )%5*2%> 2+& /$3(+&2%>@-

!  <(// (1 82A5,2,/ 2+& 5*)23,/ ,( 45'&'51$-

!  B5,562,5(+ 15$'&/ 1(% C%$+, 9$$/$ +$$&$&-

!  D33$// 82/ +(, A$$+ 26%$$& A> 2&E23$+, &$#$'()$% ,( 2''(4 233$// ,8%(068 F0**$% <2+$-

!  :%()(/$ )%(#5/5(+ 1(% /21$ )$&$/,%52+ 2+& 3>3'5+6 ,%2#$'-

!  G$/0',/ 5+ 2&&5,5(+2' 1'((&5+6-

!  H'((& G5/= D//$//*$+, 5/ 5+2&$I02,$-

!  <2+& 5/ +(, /05,2A'$ 1(% 8(0/5+6 (% 2+> &%25+26$ &0$ ,( <(+&(+ 3'2> 32)-

!  <(// (1 '2+& 1(% :2682* :(+5$/-

!  :2682* 0+2A'$ ,( 2A/(%A 10%,8$% 8(0/5+6-

!  "0,/5&$ C05', J) D%$2 C(0+&2%>-

!  <(// (1 26%530',0%2' '2+& ! )%()$% 2//$//*$+, (1 ,8$ '(// 2+& 5*)23, 5/ +$$&$&-

!  K8$ /5,$ 5/ ,(( 3'(/$ ,( ,8$ .2,0%$ G$/$%#$-

K8$ %$)%$/$+,2,5(+/ 2%$ +(,$& 5+ 10'' 2+& 2%$ 3(+/5&$%$& 45,85+ ,8$ %$)(%, 48$%$ %$'$#2+,-

7, 5/ +(,$& ,82, ,8$ :2%5/8 &( +(, 1$$' ,82, ,8$%$ 82/ A$$+ 2+> 3(+/0',2,5(+- L(4$#$%; ,8$ M(0+35' &5& +(,

%$3$5#$ 2+> )%5(% $+626$*$+, (% )%$!2))'532,5(+ ,( )%(#5&$ 5+1(%*2,5(+ (+ )%5(% ,( ,8$ /0A*5//5(+- D/ 2

%$/0',; ,8$ :2%5/8 4$%$ 3(+/0',$& (+ ,8$ )'2++5+6 2))'532,5(+; 2+& 5, ,8$ 2))'532+,/ )%$/$+,$& ,8$5%

/38$*$ ,( *$*A$%/ (1 ,8$ :2682* 2+& D'&453= D&#5/(%> 9%(0) (+ NO P$3$*A$% QRQQ- D 10%,8$%

D&#5/(%> 9%(0) (+ NS F$),$*A$% QRQO 42/ 8$'& 2+& 2 10%,8$% 0)&2,$ 42/ )%(#5&$& (+ ,8$ 2))'532,5(+/

/,2,0/-

L56842>/ 5*)23,/; 1(0' 42,$%; /0%123$ 42,$%; 1'((&5+6; '(// (1 26%530',0%2' '2+& 82#$ 2'' A$$+ 2&&%$//$&

2/ )2%, (1 ,8$ (0,'5+$ )$%*5//5(+; 2+& 3(+&5,5(+/ 82#$ A$$+ 5*)(/$& 48$%$ %$'$#2+,-

D&&5,5(+2''>; 15+2+352' 3(+,%5A0,5(+/ 82#$ 2'%$2&> A$$+ /$30%$& #52 F$3,5(+ NRT 26%$$*$+, 48538 5+3'0&$

U&032,5(+; L$2',832%$; L56842>/; H((,)2,8; H5%$ 2+& G$/30$; <5A%2%>; F0/,25+2A'$ K%2+/)(%,; F)(%,/

)5,38$/; F45**5+6 :((' 2+& *(%$- K8$%$1(%$; 3(**$+,/ 5+ %$'2,5(+ ,( 5+1%2/,%03,0%$ 82#$ A$$+

2&&%$//$& 45,85+ ,8$ (0,'5+$ 2))'532,5(+-

V5,8 %$1$%$+3$ ,( $*$%6$+3> 233$//; +( 3(**$+,/ 82#$ A$$+ %25/$& 5+ %$'2,5(+ ,( /21$,> (1 ,8$ 5+,$%+2'

%(2&/-

F0//$W :('53$ ! .( (AE$3,5(+; 2&#53$ %$3$5#$&-

.2,5(+2' L56842>/ ! .( (AE$3,5(+ ! /2,5/15$& ,82, ,8$ )%()(/2'/ 45'' +(, *2,$%52''> 211$3, ,8$ /21$,>;

%$'52A5'5,> 2+&X(% ()$%2,5(+ (1 ,8$ /,%2,$653 %(2& +$,4(%=-

U+#5%(+*$+,2' L$2',8 ! .( (AE$3,5(+ /0AE$3, ,( /$30%5+6 &$,25'/ 1(% UY 382%65+6-

M(+/$%#2,5(+ "1153$% ! .( (AE$3,5(+ 45,8 ,8$ 82%* (1 ,8$ )%()(/2'/ (+ +$2%A> &$/56+2,$& 8$%5,26$ 2//$,/

Page 21



 

!"#$%!&!#" '( )#(( %*'$ (+,(%'$%!')-

./00 1#'" 123') 4)22" 5+%*26!%7 8 92 2,:#3%!2$ '$" $2 32;;#$%(-

./00 <!=*>'7( 8 4+6%*#6 !$&26;'%!2$ 6#?+!6#" '$" '6# (+;;'6!(#" ,#)2>@

8  <!=*)!=*%#" 32$3#6$ >!%* &22%A'%*( 2$)7 ,#!$= A62B!"#" 2$ 2$# (!"# 2& 62'"-

8  /*'6#" (+6&'3#( 32+)" ,# 32$(!"#6#" '$" ;'%#6!')( &26 ')) >!)) ,# $##"#"-

8  02$&!6;#" %*'% '33#(( >!%*!$ %*# (!%# &26 (#6B!3# B#*!3)#( C&!6# &!=*%!$=D 6#&+(#E >'( '33#A%',)#-

8  F*# &22%A'%* ,#%>##$ %*# %>2 "#B#)2A;#$% A'63#)( (*2+)" ,# >!"#$#"-

F*# (!%# 'AA#'6( %2 ,# 6#)!'$% 2$ '33#(( &62; A*'(#( 2& %*# '":'3#$% "#B#)2A;#$% %2 %*# $26%* '$" #'(%-

G$ %*# ',(#$3# 2& (+!%',)# 32$$#3%!2$( &26 +(#6( 2& %*# "#B#)2A;#$% %2 '$" %*62+=* %*# '":'3#$% (!%# %2

(#6B# %*# "#B#)2A;#$%D %*# 233+A'%!2$ 2& %*# "#B#)2A;#$% +$"#6 %*!( A)'$$!$= A62A2(') >2+)" $##" %2

,# "#)'7#" +$%!) (+!%',)# '33#(( !( "#;2$(%6'%#"-

./00 4!6# '$" H#(3+# 8 92 2,:#3%!2$ ,+% 6#?+#(%#" 32$"!%!2$ %2 #$(+6# %*'% ">#))!$=( '6# >!%*!$ IJK;

2& ' &!6# *7"6'$%-

563*'#2)2=7 8 02$"!%!2$ LJ !;A2(#" 2$ %*# 2+%)!$# A#6;!((!2$ >!)) (#3+6# ' >6!%%#$ (3*#;# 2&

!$B#(%!='%!2$ '$" $2 &+6%*#6 32;;#$%( '6# ;'"#-

M6##$(A'3# N&&!3#6 8 92 2,:#3%!2$ (+,:#3% %2 (#3+6!$= &+6%*#6 "#%'!) 2$ %*# 1O5PD 15P A62B!(!2$ %*62+=*

%*# /IKQ A623#((- 5"B!(#" %*# /2&% 1'$"(3'A!$= A)'$( '6# $2> '33#A%',)#- R#%%#6 A62B!(!2$ 2&

'33#((!,)# #?+!A;#$% !( (+AA26%#"- F*# ?+'$%+; 2& A)'7 (A'3# !( $2> A2)!37 32;A)!'$% '$" '33#A%',)#-

/%!)) 6'!(#" 32$3#6$( 6#='6"!$= 2A#$ ,!$(D #?+!A;#$% '=# 6'$=# '$" ;!((!$= "#%'!)(- <2>#B#6D ('%!(&!#"

%*'% %*!( "#%'!) 3'$ ,# (#3+6#" '% %*# /#3%!2$ IKQ (%'=#-

/2&% )'$"(3'A!$= A62A2(')( >#6# 32$(!"#6#" =#$#6'))7 '33#A%',)#D *2>#B#6D $2 +A"'%#" A)'$%!$= A)'$(

*'B# ,##$ (+,;!%%#" >!%* %*# ';#$"#" 'AA)!3'%!2$-

S6'!$'=# O$=!$##6( 8 <2)"!$= 2,:#3%!2$ "+# %2 !$(+&&!3!#$% #B!"#$3# %*'% %*# "#(!=$ >2+)" ,# ',)# %2

'332;;2"'%# ' A2)!37 32;A)!'$% "#(!=$-

F6## N&&!3#6 8 N,:#3%!2$ ,'(#" 2$ )'3T 2& '6,26!3+)%+6') !$&26;'%!2$ '$" "#%'!)D '$" %*#6#&26# !$(+&&!3!#$%

!$&26;'%!2$ %2 !$&26; "#3!(!2$ ;'T!$= A623#(( !$ 6#)'%!2$ %2 %6##(- F6##( >!%*!$U'":'3#$% %2 %*# 'AA)!3'%!2$

(!%# ,2+$"'67 >2+)" ?+')!&7 &26 ' %6## A62%#3%!2$ 26"#6 "+# %2 %*#!6 A62;!$#$3# >!%*!$ %*# >!"#6

)'$"(3'A#-

O32)2=7 8 92 N,:#3%!2$ '( %*# A)'$%!$= A)'$( '6# '33#A%',)# '$" A62B!"# >!)")!&# &6!#$")7 (A#3!#(- 4+6%*#6

"#%'!)( 2& /VS( A)'$%!$= '6# 6#?+!6#"D ')2$= >!%* ;!$26 6#32;;#$"'%!2$( %2 (A#3!#( &26 !$%#6$') &26;')

*#"=# A)'$%!$=- F*# R!2"!B#6(!%7 9#% M'!$ 3')3+)'%!2$( '6# '33#A%',)#-

9'%+6') O$=)'$" 8 H#?+!6#" ' 32(%#" ;'$'=#;#$% A)'$ '% %*# HW (%'=#- <'B# ,##$ 32$(+)%#" 2$ %*#

5AA62A6!'%# 5((#((;#$% '$" %*#!6 6#(A2$(# !( '>'!%#"-

9</ 8 02;;#$%( 6#3#!B#" 6#='6"!$= &!$'$3!') 6#?+!6#;#$%(-

G$ 6#(A2$(# %2 9'%+6') O$=)'$"X( 32;;#$%( 6#='6"!$= ' 02(%#" W'$'=#;#$% P)'$D %*!( >'( (#3+6#"

>!%*!$ %*# /IKQ '$" >!)) ,# A62B!"#" A6!26 %2 32;;#$3#;#$% '$" %*#6#&26# $2% 6#)#B'$% %2 %*!(

Page 22



 

 

!""#$%!&$'() *+,&-.,/',.0 ! 1$(!(%$!# %'(&,$2+&$'( &' 3455 /$&$6!&$'( -!7 2..( 7.%+,.8 +(8., &-. 39:;

!6,../.(&) <!&+,!# =(6#!(8 -!>. ('& ?.& ,.7"'(8.8 &' &-. ,.@+.7& &' ,.>$.A &-. 4"",'",$!&.

477.77/.(&0 -'A.>., 7+2B.%& &' (' '2B.%&$'( 2.$(6 ,!$7.8 &' &-. C'+(%$#7 4"",'",$!&. 477.77/.(& &-.

",'"'7!#7 A'+#8 2. !%%."&!2#.)

D3CC *$,. !(8 E.7%+. ,.@+.7&.8 ! %'(8$&$'( ,.#!&$(6 &' 1$,. -?8,!(&70 -'A.>., &-$7 1!##7 A$&-$( &-. ,./$&

'1 F+$#8$(6 E.6+#!&$'(7 !(8 &-.,.1',. $7 ('& %'(7$8.,.8 (.%.77!,?)

G,!$(!6. %'(8$&$'(7 A.,. $/"'7.8 '( &-. '+&#$(. ".,/$77$'( !(8 !,. ('& %'(7$8.,.8 !7 "!,& '1 &-.

,.7.,>.8 /!&&.,7) H& $7 ('&.8 &-!& $1 &-. 8,!$(!6. %'(8$&$'(7 !,. +(!2#. &' 2. 8$7%-!,6.8 8+. &' &-. #!?'+&0

! (.A ,.7.,>.8 /!&&.,7 !""#$%!&$'( A$## 2. ,.@+$,.8)

=(>$,'(/.(&!# I.!#&- ,.@+.7&.8 %'(8$&$'(7 1', %'(&!/$(!&$'( !(8 =J %-!,6$(60 -'A.>., &-$7 -!7 !#,.!8?

2..( 7.%+,.8 !7 ! %'(8$&$'( +(8., &-. '+&#$(. ".,/$77$'()

*$(!(%$!# %'(&,$2+&$'(7 1', &-. <I3 A.,. 7.%+,.8 !7 ! 39:; '2#$6!&$'( +(8., &-. '+&#$(. !""#$%!&$'()

K-. 8.>.#'"/.(& $7 #'%!&.8 A$&-$( &-. 4,+( L'%!# M#!( 3&,!&.6$% I'+7$(6 4##'%!&$'( 3G9N M!6-!/

3'+&-)

4,+( L'%!# M#!( O:99 P O:Q9N

GG59 G G59 47".%&7 '1 1',/ !(8 8.7$6( @+!#$&?

GG5O G G5O H(&.,(!# 7"!%. 7&!(8!,87

G3M9 G 3M9 G.7$6(

=<JG59 =<J G59 G.7$6(!&.8 3$&.7 '1 F$'8$>.,7$&? ', 6.'6,!"-$%!#

$/"

=<JG5O =<J G5O M!6-!/ I!,2'+,

=<JG5R =<J G5R M,'&.%&$'( '1 &,..7

=<JG5S =<J G5S G.>.#'"/.(& !(8 2$'8$>.,7$&?

=<J3M9 =<J 3M9 <!&+,!# =(>$,'(/.(&

IG59 I G59 I'+7$(6 /$T

I=EG59 I=E G59 L$7&.8 F+$#8$(67

I=E3M9 I=E 3M9 K-. I$7&',$% =(>$,'(/.(&

IDF3M9 IDF 3M9 I.!#&- !(8 D.##2.$(6

L4<G59 L4< G59 M,'&.%&$'( '1 #!(87%!". %-!,!%&.,

U=3M9 U= 3M9 U+!#$&? '1 &-. =(>$,'(/.(&

V3EG59 M,'&.%&$'( '1 '".( 7"!%.0'+&8'', 7"',&0%'//W ,.% 1!%$#$&$.7

KG59 K G59 3+7&!$(!2#. K,!>.# !(8 M+2#$% E$6-&7 '1 D!?

K3M9 K 3M9 K,!(7"',& !(8 G.>.#'"/.(&

D3M9 D 3M9 D!&.,

<MMGX <!&$'(!# G.7$6( X+$8.

Page 23



 

 

 

 

!""# !$%&'($) ")$((&(* "')&+, #-$./0'-1

!""2 !$%&'($) ")$((&(* "-$+%&+/ 23&4$(+/

"56 "$*7$. "$-&87 9'3(+&):8 ;&))$*/ 5/8&*( 6%$%/./(% <,

"$*7$."9

6"5== >-3( "$-1&(* 6%$(4$-48 ?@?@

6"5=A >-3( 5&8%-&+% 5/8&*( 23&4/ B6"5C D$(3$-, ?@?=

E7/ 5/F/)'G./(% ")$( +'(8&8%8 'H %7/ >-3( I'+$) ")$( ?@== J ?@A=K L/8% 6388/M 9'3(%, 9'3(+&):8

L$8%/ $(4 N&(/-$)8 ")$(8K E7/ 6'3%7 O(87'-/ P 6'3%7 QHH87'-/ N$-&(/ ")$(R Q( ?S%7 #/<-3$-, ?@?=

>-3( 5&8%-&+% 9'3(+&) -/+/&F/4 $( &(8%-3+%&'( H-'. "$*7$. "$-&87 9'3(+&) %' 0&%74-$0 %7/ "$*7$.

!/&*7<'3-7''4 ")$(K $(4 %7/-/H'-/ %7/-/ &8 (' -/)/F$(% !/&*7<'3-7''4 ")$(R

E7/ 4/F/)'G./(% &8 )'+$%/4 0&%7&( %7/ >-3( I'+$) ")$( 6%-$%/*&+ T'38&(* >))'+$%&'( 65=U "$*7$.

6'3%7R

6/+%&'( AVBWC 'H %7/ ")$((&(* $(4 9'.G3)8'-, "3-+7$8/ >+% ?@@X 8%$%/8UJ

YOH -/*$-4 &8 %' </ 7$4 %' %7/ 4/F/)'G./(% G)$( H'- %7/ G3-G'8/ 'H $(, 4/%/-.&($%&'( %' </ .$4/ 3(4/-

%7/ G)$((&(* >+%8 %7/ 4/%/-.&($%&'( .38% </ .$4/ &( $++'-4$(+/ 0&%7 %7/ G)$( 3()/88 .$%/-&$)

+'(8&4/-$%&'(8 &(4&+$%/ '%7/-0&8/RY

6/+%&'( Z@B?C 'H %7/ E'0( $(4 9'3(%-, ")$((&(* >+% =[[@ B$8 $./(4/4C G-'F&4/8 %7$% B?C &( 4/$)&(* 0&%7

$( $GG)&+$%&'( H'- G)$((&(* G/-.&88&'( %7/ $3%7'-&%, 87$)) 7$F/ -/*$-4 %' J

B$C %7/ G-'F&8&'(8 'H %7/ 4/F/)'G./(% G)$(K 8' H$- $8 .$%/-&$) %' %7/ $GG)&+$%&'(K

B$\$C $ G'8% /M$.&($%&'( 4-$H% (/&*7<'3-7''4 4/F/)'G./(% G)$(K 8' H$- $8 .$%/-&$) %' %7/ $GG)&+$%&'(K

B<C $(, )'+$) H&($(+/ +'(8&4/-$%&'(8K 8' H$- $8 .$%/-&$) %' %7/ $GG)&+$%&'(K $(4

B+C $(, '%7/- .$%/-&$) +'(8&4/-$%&'(8R

O% &8 +'(8&4/-/4 %7$% %7/-/ $-/ (' '%7/- .$%/-&$) +'(8&4/-$%&'(8 %' </ 0/&*7/4 &( %7/ <$)$(+/ 0&%7 %7/

5/F/)'G./(% ")$(R

O!E]Q5̂ 9EOQ!

#'))'0&(* 83<.&88&'( +'(+/-(8 0/-/ -$&8/4 <, %7/ I'+$) ")$((&(* >3%7'-&%, $(4 %7/ 8+7/./ 0$8

$./(4/4R #3-%7/- $./(4./(%8 %' %7/ 8+7/./ &( -/)$%&'( %' %7/ )$(48+$G&(* 4/%$&)8 $(4 G)$, $-/$

G-'F&8&'(R >./(4./(%8 0/-/ $)8' .$4/ %' %7/ )$,'3% 'H %7/ +$- G$-1&(*K 4/G%78 'H G-'G/-%&/8 $(4

/)/F$%&'($) %-/$%./(%8R

E7/ $GG)&+$%&'( 0$8 '-&*&($)), G-/8/(%/4 %' "$*7$. $(4 >)40&+1 >4F&8'-, 2-'3G '( =A 5/+/.</- ?@??R

9'../(%8 -/+/&F/4 0/-/ )$-*/), <$8/4 $-'3(4 $++/88 -/_3&-/./(%8 $(4 %7/ (//4 H'- %7/ $GG)&+$%&'( %'

</ ̀'&(/4J3G 0&%7 %7/ $4̀$+/(% 63../- I$(/ 4/F/)'G./(%R 6'./ ./.</-8 +'../(%/4 %7/&- 83GG'-% H'-

Page 24



 !"##$%&'()*(+"(#*!",($%(-"$&-)()*(,"'."/)()-"(!$ ",(/*0%),1'$ "2(3(40,)-",(0. 5)"(!5'(.,*6$ " (+1()-"

7*0%/$#()*()-"(85&-59(5% (3# !$/:(3 6$'*,1(;,*0.(*%(<=(>".)"9+",(?@?A(5% (%*('0+')5%)$6"(4"" +5/:

*,(/*99"%)'(!","(.,*6$ " 2

8BCD7C8EF(GH(IFJFEG8KFDL

L-"('$)"(4*,9'(.5,)(*4(5(>),5)"&$/(M*0'$%&(3##*/5)$*%(0% ",(.*#$/1(>I<(*4()-"(3,0%(E*/5#(8#5%2(L-"('$)"

4*,9'(.5,)(*4()-"(85&-59(>*0)-(>),5)"&$/(3##*/5)$*%(0% ",(8*#$/1(M(>8?5(*4()-"(3,0%(E*/5#(8#5%(N3E8O2

L-"('$)"(+"%"4$)'(4,*9(*0)#$%"(.#5%%$%&(.",9$''$*%(N,"4","%/"(8P?QP<RPGSLOT(&,5%)" (Q(>".)"9+",(?@<=T

!-$/-("')5+#$'-" ()-"(.,$%/$.#"(*4(,"'$ "%)$5#( "6"#*.9"%)(*%()-"('$)"2

L-"(4*##*!$%&(/*% $)$*%'(!","($9.*'" (*%()-"(*0)#$%"(.",9$''$*%(!-$/-(5##*!'(4*,(65,$*0'(95))",'()*(+"

,"'*#6" (.,$*,()*(/*99"%/"9"%)(5% P*,(*//0.5)$*%(*4()-"( "6"#*.9"%)U

(((V((7*% $)$*%(?(W(F9.#*19"%)(5% (>:$##'(8#5%

(((V((7*% $)$*%(Q(W(K5)",$5#'

(((V((7*% $)$*%(=(W(L,""(8,*)"/)$*%(8#5%(5% (3,+*,$/0#)0,5#(K")-* (>)5)"9"%)

(((V((7*% $)$*%(<@T(<<T(<?T(<A(W(H*0#(5% (>0,45/"(X5)",(I,5$%5&"

(((V((7*% $)$*%(<Q(W(F/*#*&$/5#(K5%5&"9"%)(5% (K$)$&5)$*%(8#5%(5% (F/*#*&$/5#(>/-" 0#"(*4(X*,:'

(((V((7*% $)$*%(<Y(W(FZ)",%5#(E$&-)$%&

(((V((7*% $)$*%(<R(W(7*%'),0/)$*%(5% (F%6$,*%9"%)(K5%5&"9"%)(8#5%(N7FK8O

(((V((7*% $)$*%(??(W(B"%"!5+#"(F%",&1(.,*6$'$*%()*(<@[

(((V((7*% $)$*%(?\(W(L,56"#(8#5%

(((V((7*% $)$*%(?Q(W(3,/-5"*#*&1

(((V((7*% $)$*%(?Y(W(F#"/),$/(J"-$/#"(NFJO(7-5,&$%&

L-$'(5..#$/5)$*%(,"#5)"'(*%#1()*()-"(95))",'(,"'",6" T(!-$/-(5,"(5//"''T(#51*0)T(#5% '/5.$%&T('/5#"(5% 

5.."5,5%/"2

IF>C;D(3DI(E3]GSL

3,0%(E*/5#(8#5%(N3E8O(.*#$/$"'(I(IK<(5% (I(>8<(5,"(,"#"65%)($%(,"'."/)(*4( "'$&%(5% (/-5,5/)",2(L-"

D5)$*%5#(I"'$&%(;0$ "(NDI;O($'(5#'*(95)",$5#(/*%'$ ",5)$*%($%()-"( ")",9$%5)$*%(*4()-$'(5..#$/5)$*%T(5'

!"##(5'()-"(3,0%(I"'$&%(;0$ "(N3I;O2

7*% $)$*%(NYO($9.*'" (*%()-"(*0)#$%"(.",9$''$*%(,"̂0$," ()-5)(5(I"'$&%(7* "(K5')",.#5%('"))$%&(*0)(:"1

-$&-(#"6"#( "'$&%(.,$%/$.#"'(4*,()-"('$)"(+"(5..,*6" (.,$*,()*()-"('0+9$''$*%(*4()-"(B"'",6" (K5))",'

5..#$/5)$*%2(L-"(I"'$&%(7* "($%(,"#5)$*%()*()-"('$)"(!5'(5..,*6" (0% ",(,"4","%/"(8P_<P??PIG7(5% ()-"

.,*.*'" ( "6"#*.9"%)(5'(59"% " ($'($%(40##(5//*, 5%/"(!$)-()-"(I"'$&%(7* "2

L-"(.,$%/$.#"(*4()-"(#51*0)(!$)-()-"( "6"#*.9"%)( $6$ " ($%)*()!*(.5,/"#'(!$)-(5(&,""%('.5/"(,0%%$%&

)-,*0&-()-"(9$  #"(!5'('-*!%($% $/5)$6"#1(5)(*0)#$%"(')5&"(0% ",()-"(K5')",.#5%(5% (,"4#"/)'()-"( "'$&%

.,$%/$.#"(*4()-"(,"95$% ",(*4()-"(>I<(5##*/5)$*%()*()-"("5')(5'(!"##(5'()-"(.,$%/$.#"'("')5+#$'-" ()-,*0&-

)-"(I"'$&%(7* "2

L-"(.,*.*'" (#51*0)(-5'( !"##$%&'(45/$%&(*0)!5, '()*(5  ,"''()-"(/*0%),1'$ "(5 ̀5/"%)()*()-"('$)"(5'

!"##(5'()-"(%"$&-+*0,$%&(>099",(E5%"('$)"2(3(%09+",(*4( !"##$%&'(-56"(+""%( "'$&%" ()*(.*'$)$6"#1

5  ,"''(/*,%",'(5% (.,*6$ "(%5)0,5#('0,6"$##5%/"()*()-"(*."%('.5/"'2(L-"(.,*.*'5#'($ "%)$41()-"

95)",$5#'( $'),$+0)$*%(!$)-$%()-"('/-"9"(!$)-(4#$%)(+"$%&(.,"'"%)(*%(:"1(a4"5)0,"(+0$# $%&'a($%(5//*, 5%/"

!$)-()-"( ")5$#'(5&,"" ()-,*0&-()-"(I"'$&%(7* "(NB"6(7T(85&"(AQO(!-$/-('"/0,"'(5(/*-","%)(5% 

'),"%&)-"%" ('"%'"(*4(.#5/"(5% (/-5,5/)",2

Page 25



 !"#$"%"&'()"*+#!,-#,$'(+"$#,#)./"$#-0,&"#1.+!#+!"#&'1"-+#23.&$.*4-#-.+3,+"$#'*#+!"#"$4"#'5#+!"

$"%"&'()"*+#,$6,0"*+#+'#+!"#0'3*+78-.$"9# !.-#,((7',0!#.-#-3(('7+"$#28#+!"#:73*#;"-.4*#<3.$"9# !"

$"%"&'()"*+#.*0'7('7,+"-#23*4,&'1-#,-#1"&&#,-#=9>#-+'7"8#$1"&&.*4-#.*#'7$"7#+'#(7'%.$"#,#+7,*-.+.'*#.*

-0,&"#2"+1""*#0'3*+78-.$"?#&'1"7#23.&+#5'7)?#,*$#+1'#-+'7"8#$"%"&'()"*+#1.+!.*#+!"#7"),.*$"7#'5#+!"

$"%"&'()"*+9

;1"&&.*4-#,&'*4#@,4!,)#A',$#,7"#5,.7&8#0'*-.-+"*+#.*#!".4!+#,*$#,7"#.$"*+.5."$#,-#2".*4#2"+1""*

,((7'/.),+"&8#B9>)#C#D)#.*#!".4!+9# !"#!".4!+#'5#+!"#(7'('-"$#$1"&&.*4-#7,*4"-#57')#>9E)#+'#D9E)#,*$

+!.-#.-#0'*-.$"7"$#,*#,((7'(7.,+"#7"-('*-"#+'#+!"#"-+,2&.-!"$#0!,7,0+"7#'5#+!"#&'0,&.+89# !"7"5'7"?#+!"

-0,&"#'5#+!"#(7'('-"$#$"%"&'()"*+#.-#,00"(+,2&"#,*$#.-#,#('-.+.%"#7"-('*-"#+'#+!"#-.+"-#&'0,+.'*9

 !"#(7'('-,&-#.*0'7('7,+"#,#7,*4"#'5#"&"%,+.'*,&#+7",+)"*+-#5'7#+!"#$1"&&.*4-#-!'1.*4#7"*$"7?#27.0F

G3'.*.*4#,-#1"&&#,-#5&.*+#,*$#27.0F#$"+,.&.*4#+'#,$$#.*+"7"-+9# !"#3-"#'5#5&.*+#,*$#27.0F#$"+,.&.*4#.-

0!,7,0+"7.-+.0#'5#+!"#1.$"7#&'0,&.+8#'5#@,4!,)#,*$#4.%"*#+!"#-),&&"7#*3)2"7#'5#$1"&&.*4-#(7'('-"$#'*#+!"

-.+"#.-#0'*-.$"7"$#,*#,((7'(7.,+"#7"-('*-"9

 !"#7''5-#,7"#'5#,*#,((7'(7.,+"#-0,&"#5'7#+!"#$1"&&.*4#-.H"-?#,*$#$'#*'+#,((",7#'%"7&8#$').*,*+#5'7#+!"

$1"&&.*4-9#;7'(("$#",%"-#,*$#$'7)"7-#,7"#3-"$#1.+!.*#+!"#-0!")"#+'#,$$#.*+"7"-+#,*$#0')(&")"*+#+!"

"/.-+.*4#0!,7,0+"7#'5#@,4!,)#A',$9#I%"7,&&?#+!"#$1"&&.*4#$"-.4*-#.*0'7('7,+"#('-.+.%"#$"-.4*#03"-#1!.0!

,7"#.*5&3"*0"$#28#+!"#"/.-+.*4#0!,7,0+"7#'5#@,4!,)9

J,+"7.,&-#,7"#0'*$.+.'*"$#3*$"7#+!"#'3+&.*"#,((7'%,&#,*$#$"+,.&-#'5#+!"#-("0.5.0#),+"7.,&-#+'#2"#3-"$#.*

0'*-+730+.'*#1.&&#*""$#+'#2"#5'7),&&8#,((7'%"$#(7.'7#+'#+!"#0'))"*0")"*+#'5#$"%"&'()"*+9# !"#$"-.4*

(7.*0.(&"-#.*#+!"#,((7'%"$#;"-.4*#K'$"#.$"*+.5."$#+!"#5'&&'1.*4#27',$#(7.*0.(&"-#5'7#),+"7.,&-L

##C##M7'1*N7"$#7''5#+.&"-

##C##A3-+.0#0'&'37"$#27.0F1'7F#O7"$N27'1*P

##C## .&"#!,*4.*4N#5&.*+N#G3'.*.*4N0!.)*"8Q-N7"*$"7

I55.0"7-#7,.-"$#0'*0"7*-#7"4,7$.*4#+!"#.*0&3-.'*#'5#47"8#7''5-?#2355#27.0F-?#,*$#1",+!"72',7$.*4?#1!.0!

$"%.,+"#57')#+!"#,((7'%"$#;"-.4*#K'$"?#,*$#,-#,#7"-3&+#+!"-"#!,%"#2""*#7")'%"$#57')#+!"#(7'('-,&9

 !"#(7'('-"$#(,&"++"#'5#),+"7.,&-#'55"7-#+1'#+8("-#'5#7''5#),+"7.,&-#O7"$#,*$#27'1*P?#+1'#27.0F#+8("-#O7"$

)3&+.?#,*$#A"$NM7'1*#J3&+.P?#,&'*4#1.+!#7"*$"7#,*$#5&.*+9# .&"#!,*4.*4#!,-#*'+#2""*#.*0&3$"$#1.+!.*#+!"

(7'('-"$#-0!")"?#!'1"%"7#+!"#),+"7.,&-#,7"#-32-+,*+.,&&8#.*#,00'7$,*0"#1.+!#+!"#,((7'%"$#;"-.4*

K'$"9

@7'('-"$#.*+"7*,&#2'3*$,78#+7",+)"*+-#0'*-.-+#'5#,#)./+37"#'5#!"$4"7'1-?#0&'-"#2',7$"$#5"*0.*4?#27.0F

(."7#5"*0.*4#,*$#&'1#&"%"&#27.0F#1,&&-9#;"+,.&-#'5#+!"#!,7$#&,*$-0,("#2'3*$,78#+7",+)"*+-#,7"#,00"(+,2&"9

:#0'*$.+.'*#!,-#2""*#.)('-"$#-"037.*4#+!"#$"+,.&-#'5#+!"#2'3*$,78#+7",+)"*+-#,*$#"*-37"#+!".7#$"&.%"789

;37.*4#+!"#,((&.0,+.'*#'55.0"7-#7,.-"$#,#*3)2"7#'5#0'*0"7*-#1.+!#+!"#(,7F.*4#,77,*4")"*+-?#-30!#,-#+!"

(7').*"*0"#'5#(,7F"$#0,7-#1.+!.*#+!"#$"%"&'()"*+#,*$#+!"#.*0&3-.'*#'5#,#(,7F.*4#0'37+#1!.0!#2"*"5.++"$

57')#&.++&"#'%"7&''F.*4?#).*.),&#53*0+.'*,&#7"&,+.'*-!.(#+'#$1"&&.*4-#,*$#1,-#4"*"7,&&8#,#-32372,*#-'&3+.'*

*'+#-3.+"$#+'#+!"#-.+"-#&'0,+.'*9

 !"#,((&.0,*+-#-'34!+#+'#'%"70')"#+!"-"#.--3"-#1.+!#+!"#(,7F.*4#0'37+#28#7",77,*4.*4#+!"#&,8'3+#1!.0!

7"-3&+"$#.*#2"++"7#'%"7&''F.*4#57')#*",728#$1"&&.*4-#,*$#+!"#-+7""+9# !"#('-.+.'*#'5#$1"&&.*4-#1"7"#,&-'

,)"*$"$#+'#2"++"7#3+.&.-"#23.&$.*4-#,-#-07""*.*4#5'7#(,7F"$#0,7-#1.+!.*#+!"#$"%"&'()"*+9#:$$.+.'*,&

&,*$-0,(.*4#,*$#+!"#3-"#'5#&'1C&"%"&#2'3*$,78#1,&&-#(7'%.$"#-')"#"*0&'-37"#1!.0!#.*#0')2.*,+.'*#1.+!

'+!"7#$"-.4*#),++"7-#7"-3&+#.*#,*#,((7'(7.,+"#0,7#(,7F.*4#&,8'3+9

Page 26



 !"#$%&'"()"'&*"+,(-*"'&*"./(.(0*1"1*-*#(.2*!'"$!"'*/20"()"#+3(4'"+!1"1*0$%!"$0"5(!0$1*/*1"'(",*"+

.(0$'$-*"/*0.(!0*"'("'&*"5&+/+5'*/"()"'&*"6$1*/"#(5+#$'3"+!1"6(4#1".(0$'$-*#3"/*0.(!1"'("'&*"*1%*"()

0*''#*2*!'"5&+/+5'*/"()"'&*"0$'*"$!"+55(/1+!5*"6$'&".(#$5$*0"7"789"+!1"7":;9"()"'&*"</4!"=(5+#";#+!>

?@: 7@AB <="<8@A BC

<=;".(#$53"7"789"+!1".(#$53"D@":;9"/*E4$/*0"1*-*#(.2*!'"'("5(!'/$,4'*".(0$'$-*#3"'("'&*"E4+#$'3"()"'&*

*!-$/(!2*!'"+!1"./('*5'"/*0$1*!'$+#"+2*!$'3")(/",('&"(554.$*/0"+!1"!*$%&,(4/0>"B&*"</4!"7*0$%!"F4$1*

+$20"'("./(-$1*")4/'&*/"%4$1+!5*"(!"&(6"'("./('*5'"./$-+53"+!1"+2*!$'3>

B&*/*"+/*"+"5(4.#*"()"%+/1*!0"6&$5&"+/*"2+/%$!+##3",*#(6"'&*"/*5(22*!1*1"9G>H2"2$!$242"%+/1*!

1*.'&>" !"'&*0*"5+0*0"'&*"%+/1*!0"+/*"#+/%*/"5(/!*/".#('0"6$'&"+2.#*"%+/1*!"0.+5*"'("+5&$*-*"+"&$%&

0'+!1+/1"()"+2*!$'3")(/")4'4/*"(554.$*/0>" !"'&*0*"5+0*0"!*$%&,(4/$!%"./(.*/'$*0"1("!('")*+'4/*"+!3

6$!1(60"(!"'&*"0$1*"*#*-+'$(!0"+!1"+/*"(!*"0'(/*3"$!"&*$%&'"+!1"+0"045&"1("!('"%$-*"/$0*"'("+!3

4!+55*.'+,#3"+1-*/0*"(-*/,*+/$!%I"(-*/0&+1(6$!%"(/"(-*/#((J$!%"$2.+5'0>

B&*"#+3(4'"+55(/10"6$'&"'&*"2$!$242"K+5JL'(LK+5J"1$0'+!5*"1*05/$,*1"$!"'&*"</4!"7*0$%!"F4$1*>

M(6*-*/I"'&*/*"+/*"+"02+##"!42,*/"()"$!0'+!5*0"6&*/*"'&*/*"+/*"2$!(/"1*-$+'$(!0")/(2"'&*

/*5(22*!1*1"1$0'+!5*0I"0.*5$)$5+##3I",+5JN)/(!'L'(L0$1*"1$0'+!5*0"6&$5&"0&(4#1",*"9O2P"+!1")/(!'L'(L

)/(!'"1$0'+!5*0",*'6**!"&+,$'+,#*"/((20"6&$5&"0&(4#1",*"9Q2>

M(6*-*/I"$!"'&*0*"$!0'+!5*0"6$!1(60"+/*"*$'&*/"(2$''*1")/(2"'&*"/*#*-+!'"*#*-+'$(!0"(/"+/*"(,054/*#3

%#+R*1>" !"+11$'$(!I"2(0'",+5JN)/(!'L'(L0$1*"1*-$+'$(!0"(554/",*'6**!",4!%+#(60I"/*04#'$!%"$!"!(".(00$,#*

(-*/#((J$!%")/(2"0*5(!1"0'(/*3"6$!1(60>

B&*"</4!"7*0$%!"F4$1*"$0"S40'"%4$1+!5*"+!1"$0"!('"+"0*'"()"#$2$'+'$(!0"(!"6&+'"$0"+!1"$0"!('"+55*.'+,#*>

B&*0*"2+''*/0"240'",*"5(!0$1*/*1"(!"'&*$/"(6!"2*/$'0"+!1"'&*"#*-*#"()"&+/2"$)"+!3"'&+'"6(4#1"/*04#'>" !

'&$0"5+0*"6&$#0'"'&*/*"+/*"+"02+##"!42,*/"()"1*-$+'$(!0")/(2"'&*"/*5(22*!1*1"1$0'+!5*0"'&*/*"6(4#1",*

!("+1-*/0*"&+/2"'("'&*"./$-+53"+!1"+2*!$'3"()"(554.+!'0"+!1"+0"045&"'&*"1*-*#(.2*!'"6(4#1"+55(/1

6$'&"7"789"+!1"D@":;9"()"'&*"<=;>

T@M U=@"<A7"UCU=@";<?V AF

</4!"7$0'/$5'"U(4!5$#";+/J$!%":'+!1+/10":4..#*2*!'+/3";#+!!$!%"7(542*!'"W:;7X"/*E4$/*0"1*-*#(.2*!'

6$'&$!"'&$0"#(5+'$(!I"Y(!*"ZI"'("./(-$1*")(/"Z"+##(5+'*1".+/J$!%"0.+5*0")(/"+##"9I"Z"+!1"[",*1/((2"16*##$!%0

+!1"["+##(5+'*1".+/J$!%"0.+5*0")(/"*-*/3"O",*1/((2"16*##$!%>" !"+11$'$(!I"-$0$'(/".+/J$!%"./(-$0$(!"0&(4#1

,*"ZG\"()"'&*"'('+#"!42,*/"()"4!$'0"W0.*5$)$5+##3"9[X>

B&*"E4+!'42"()"+##(5+'*1".+/J$!%"./(.(0*1"$0"9[]"+##(5+'*1".+/J$!%"0.+5*0I"6&$5&"2**'0"'&*"+##(5+'*1

.+/J$!%"./(-$0$(!"/*E4$/*1",3"'&*":;7>"9O"-$0$'(/".+/J$!%"0.+5*0"+/*"./(.(0*1I"+!1"'&$0"6(4#1"/*04#'"$!

+!"(-*/./(-$0$(!"()"9"-$0$'(/".+/J$!%"0.+5*I"6&$5&"6(4#1",*"+55*.'+,#*>

 !"/*#+'$(!"'(".+/J$!%"1$2*!0$(!0I"+##"0'+!1+/1".+/J$!%"1$2*!0$(!0"+/*"./(.(0*1"'(",*"Z>H2"̂"H2I"+0".*/

'&*"<7U"7*0$%!"F4$1*"W.%>"]]X>"7$0+,#*1"+!1"<55*00$,#*"&(2*0"+#0("2**'"'&*"/*E4$/*1"1$2*!0$(!0>

B&*"</4!";+/J$!%":;7"$1*!'$)$*0"'&+'"H\"()"+##".+/J$!%"0.+5*0"0&(4#1"5+'*/")(/"1$0+,#*1"./(-$0$(!>"B&$0

6(4#1"*E4+'*"'("]>HH"0.+5*0")(/"'&$0"1*-*#(.2*!'>"B&*"./(.(0*1"#+3(4'"$!5#41*"9O"+##(5+'*1"(!".#('

1$0+,#*1".+/J$!%"0.+5*0"'("0*/-*"'&*"8OWZX"(/"8OW[X"5(2.#$+!'"16*##$!%0"+!1"'&$0"(-*/+##"./(-$0$(!"$0

+55*.'+,#*>

B&*"<7U"7*0$%!"F4$1*".+/'" >G9"/*5(22*!10"'&+'".+/J$!%"0(#4'$(!0"0&(4#1",*"-+/$*1I"+!1"0*!0$'$-*#3

#(5+'*1"'("2$!$2$0*"'&*$/"./*0*!5*"6$'&$!"'&*"0'/**'"05*!*>";+/J$!%"0&(4#1"+#0("+-($1",*$!%".#+5*1"'("'&*

Page 27



 !"#$%" %&'())*#+,%-$%$.(%&($!*/(#$%" % !"#$%+-!&(#,%-#&%"0(!1(-!*#+%&'())*#+% !"#$-+(,2%3,%$.(%,*$(%*,

)"4-$(&%-&5-4(#$%$"%$.(%"6(#%4"7#$!8,*&(9%$.(!(%*,%-),"%-%#((&%$"%(#,7!(%$.-$%4-!,%-!(%.*&&(#%'*$.*#%0*(',

" %$.(%#('%,($$)(/(#$%(&+(2

:-!;*#+%*,%+(#(!-))8%6!"6",(&%"#%6)"$9%$86*4-))8%$"%$.(%,*&(,%" %&'())*#+,9%'.*4.%*,%-#%-44(6$-1)(

-66!"-4.%'.*4.%!(&74(,%$.(%*/6-4$%" %4-!,%76"#%$.(%,$!(($,4(#(2%<.(%6!"6",-),%7,(%17*)&*#+%)*#(,9%," $

-#&%.-!&%)-#&,4-6*#+%$"% 7!$.(!%,4!((#%4-!,% !"/%0*(',%-#&%*,%$.(!( "!(%,766"!$(&2

="%&($-*),%" %484)(%6-!;*#+%.-0(%1((#%6!"0*&(&%'*$.*#%$.(%,71/*,,*"#%17$%*$%*,%-#$*4*6-$(&%$.-$%484)(

6-!;*#+%'"7)&%1(%6!"0*&(&%'*$.*#%+-!&(#,2%<.(!(%*,%-&(>7-$(%!(-!%+-!&(#%-44(,,%$"%-))%6)"$,%-#&%,"%$.*,

-66!"-4.%'"7)&%1(%4"#,*&(!(&%-44(6$-1)(%-#&%4"7)&%1(%,-$*, -4$"!*)8%4"#&*$*"#(&%$"%(#,7!(%$.-$%484)(

6-!;*#+%*,%6!"0*&(&% "!%(-4.%" %$.(%&'())*#+,2

<.(!( "!(9%$.(%6!"6",-)%&()*0(!%,-$*, -4$"!8%)(0(),%" %4-!%-#&%484)(%6-!;*#+%'.*4.%-!(%-66!"6!*-$()8

)"4-$(&2%?-!%6-!;*#+%6!"0*,*"#%-44"!&,%'*$.%:")*48%<%@:A%" %$.(%3!7#%B"4-)%:)-#9%3!7#%:-!;*#+%@$-#&-!&,

@:C%-#&%$.(%3!7#%C(,*+#%D7*&(2

EFGH<3DF

<.(%6!*#4*6)(%" %&(0()"6/(#$%.-,%1((#%(,$-1)*,.(&%$.!"7+.%"7$)*#(%6)-##*#+%6(!/*,,*"#9%:IJKIALIMN<9

$.!"7+.%'.*4.%.(!*$-+(%*/6-4$,%'(!(%-,,(,,(&%*#%-44"!&-#4(%'*$.%$.(%=::O9%3!7#%B"4-)%:)-#9%-#&

@(4$*"#%PPQAR%" %$.(%:)-##*#+%QB*,$(&%S7*)&*#+,%-#&%?"#,(!0-$*"#%3!(-,R%34$%ATTU2%3$%"7$)*#(%,$-+(9

*/6-4$,%"#%.(!*$-+(%'(!(% "7#&%$"%1(%)(,,%$.-#%,71,$-#$*-)%*#%-44"!&-#4(%'*$.%$.(%=::O2

:-!-+!-6.%ATV%" %$.(%=::O%!(>7*!(,%$.(%-66)*4-#$%$"%&(,4!*1(%$.(%,*+#* *4-#4(%" %-#8%.(!*$-+(%-,,($,

-  (4$(&9%*#4)7&*#+%-#8%4"#$!*17$*"#%/-&(%18%$.(*!%,($$*#+2%<.(%)(0()%" %&($-*)%,."7)&%1(%6!"6"!$*"#-$(%$"

$.(%-,,($,W%*/6"!$-#4(%-#&%#"%/"!(%$.-#%*,%,7  *4*(#$%$"%7#&(!,$-#&%$.(%6"$(#$*-)%*/6-4$%" %$.(%6!"6",-)

"#%$.(*!%,*+#* *4-#4(2%<.(%B"4-)%:)-##*#+%37$."!*$8%QB:3R%,."7)&%*&(#$* 8%-#&%-,,(,,%$.(%6-!$*47)-!

,*+#* *4-#4(%" %-#8%.(!*$-+(%-,,($%$.-$%/-8%1(%-  (4$(&%18%-%6!"6",-)%Q*#4)7&*#+%&(0()"6/(#$%'.*4.%/-8

-  (4$%$.(%,($$*#+%" %-%.(!*$-+(%-,,($R9%$-;*#+%*#$"%-44"7#$%-#8%-0-*)-1)(%(0*&(#4(%-#&%#(4(,,-!8

(X6(!$*,(%*#%)*#(%'*$.%:-!-+!-6.%ATK%" %$.(%=::O2

:-!-+!-6.%ATL%" %$.(%=::O%,$-$(,%$.-$%*#%$.(%&($(!/*#-$*"#%" %6)-##*#+%-66)*4-$*"#,%$.(%B:3%,."7)&%$-;(

-44"7#$%" %$.(%&(,*!-1*)*$8%" %,7,$-*#*#+%-#&%(#.-#4*#+%$.(%,*+#* *4-#4(%" %-%.(!*$-+(%-,,($Y%$.(%6",*$*0(

4"#$!*17$*"#%$.-$%4"#,(!0-$*"#%" %.(!*$-+(%-,,($,%4-#%/-;(%$"%,7,$-*#-1)(%4"//7#*$*(,Y%-#&%$.(

&(,*!-1*)*$8%" %#('%&(0()"6/(#$%/-;*#+%-%6",*$*0(%4"#$!*17$*"#%$"%)"4-)%4.-!-4$(!%-#&%&*,$*#4$*0(#(,,2

@(4$*"#%PPQAR%" %$.(%:)-##*#+%QB*,$(&%S7*)&*#+,%-#&%?"#,(!0-$*"#%3!(-,R%34$%ATTU%!(>7*!(,%$.-$%*#

4"#,*&(!*#+%'.($.(!%$"%+!-#$%6)-##*#+%6(!/*,,*"#% "!%&(0()"6/(#$%'.*4.%-  (4$,%-%)*,$(&%17*)&*#+,%"!%*$,

,($$*#+9%$.(%B:3%,.-))%.-0(%,6(4*-)%!(+-!&%$"%$.(%&(,*!-1*)*$8%" %6!(,(!0*#+%$.(%17*)&*#+%"!%*$,%,($$*#+%"!%-#8

 (-$7!(,%" %,6(4*-)%-!4.*$(4$7!-)%"!%.*,$"!*4%*#$(!(,$%*$%6",,(,,(,2

<.(!(%-!(%#"%&(,*+#-$(&9%"!%#"#Z&(,*+#-$(&%17*)$%.(!*$-+(%-,,($,%'*$.*#%$.(%1"7#&-!8%" %$.(%,*$(2

E"'(0(!9%-%@4.(&7)(&%3#4*(#$%["#7/(#$%Q)"4-$(&%-66!"X*/-$()8%PKU/%$"%$.(%,"7$.%" %$.(%,*$(

1"7#&-!8R9%="#ZC(,*+#-$(&%E(!*$-+(%3,,($,%Q1"$.%-66!"X*/-$()8%"0(!%VJU/% !"/%$.(%,*$(R%-#&%B*,$(&

S7*)&*#+,%Q$.(%4)",(,$9%\.*$(%G"4;9%*,%)"4-$(&%-66!"X*/-$()8%VUU/% !"/%$.(%,*$(R%-!(% "7#&%*#%$.(%'*&(!

)"4-)*$82

3%E(!*$-+(%3,,(,,/(#$%3&&(#&7/%'-,%,71/*$$(&%-)"#+,*&(%$.(%!(,(!0(&%/-$$(!,%-66)*4-$*"#%$"%(#,7!(

$.(%)-8"7$%-#&%6!"6",(&%17*)$% "!/%-)*+#%'*$.%$.(%4"#4)7,*"#,%/-&(%-$%"7$)*#(%,$-+(2%<.(%?"#,(!0-$*"#

M  *4(!%.-,%4"# *!/(&%$.-$%$.(!(%*,%#"%.-!/%$"%$.(%"0(!-))%,*+#* *4-#4(%" %/",$%B*,$(&%S7*)&*#+,%&7(%$"%$.(

,(6-!-$*"#%&*,$-#4(,%1($'((#%$.(%-66)*4-$*"#%,*$(%-#&%$.(%.(!*$-+(%-,,($,2%E"'(0(!9%$.(!(%-!(%,"/(

Page 28



 !"#$%&'((!")%! *+,(&%-*#"%.!&('/%0-!1/!")&2%&*',!3!,+114%(5'%6+$!&5%75-$,5%#3%8(%95# +&%+%0',:'(2

;!11&(#"'%7#((+)'%+"/%95'%<1/%7#((+)'=

>**$#?! +('14%@AA %(#%(5'%&#-(5%#3%(5'%+**1!,+(!#"%&!('%!&%8(%95# +&%+%0',:'(2%+%B$+/'%C%1!&('/% '/!'D+1

,5-$,5%E5!,5%E+&%$'&(#$'/%!"%FGHI=%95'%(#E'$%!&%+%1+"/ +$:%D!&!J1'%!"%1#")%/!&(+",'%D!'E&=%C  '/!+('14

+/K+,'"(%(#%(5'%,5-$,5%!&%<1/%7#((+)'2%+"%FG(5%7'"(-$4%(5+(,5'/%,#((+)'%E5!,5%(#)'(5'$%E!(5%(5'%,5-$,5

3#$ &%+%*!,(-$'&L-'%)$#-*!")=%;!11&(#"'%7#((+)'%!&%1#,+('/%(#%(5'%E'&(%#3%(5'%,5-$,54+$/%+"/%(5'$'%+$'

1! !('/%D!'E&%3$# %(5'%+**1!,+(!#"%&!('=

95'%7#"&'$D+(!#"%<33!,'$%,#"3!$ &%(5+(%;!11&(#"'%7#((+)'%+"/%95'%<1/%7#((+)'2%J#(5%1#,+('/

+**$#?! +('14%@AA %&#-(5%#3%(5'%/'D'1#* '"(%+$'%#3%+$,5!(',(-$+1%+"/%5!&(#$!,%&!)"!3!,+",'=%95'

/'D'1#* '"(%3#$ &%*+$(%#3%(5'%E!/'$%$-$+1%&'((!")2%J-(%!"('$D'"!")%D')'(+(!#"%$'&-1(&%!"%(5'%!"+J!1!(4%(#%3-114

+**$',!+('%(5'%J-!1/!")&%+$,5!(',(-$+1%!"('$'&(=%95'%*1+"(!")%(#%(5'%&#-(5%#3%(5'%&!('%!&%! *#$(+"(%!"%5'1*!")

(#%$'/-,'%(5'%D!&-+1%! *+,(%#3%(5'%/'D'1#* '"(%#"%(5'!$%&'((!")=%95'%1'D'1%#3%5+$ %!/'"(!3!'/%!&%(5'$'3#$'

 !"#$%+"/%E#-1/%,+-&'%1'&&%(5+"%&-J&(+"(!+1%5+$ %!"%+,,#$/+",'%E!(5%(5'%M66N=

95'%3!'1/&%(#%(5'%"#$(5%#3%(5'%6+$!&5%75-$,5%#3%8(%95# +&%+%0',:'(%,#"($!J-('%(#E+$/&%(5'%-"/'$&(+"/!")

+"/%+**$',!+(!#"%#3%(5'%$-$+1%#$!)!"%#3%(5'%,5-$,5%+"/%5!&(#$!,%,#$'%#3%(5'%D!11+)'=%O#E'D'$2%(5'%+**1!,+(!#"

&!('%3#$ &%*+$(%#3%(5'%E!/'$%$-$+1%&'((!")2%+"/% +:'&%1! !('/%,#"($!J-(!#"%(#%(5'%5!&(#$!,%+"/%+$,5!(',(-$+1

!"('$'&(%#3%(5'%1!&('/%J-!1/!")2%J-(%E#-1/%"#(%! *+,(%#"%(5'%!  '/!+('%&'((!")%#3%(5'%,5-$,5=

.! !('/%D!'E&%+$'%*#&&!J1'%3$# %E!(5!"%(5'%&!('%E5!1&(%&# '%D!'E&%+$'%*#&&!J1'%3$# %N##(*+(5%FAF%E5!,5

$-"&%+/K+,'"(%(#%(5'%/'D'1#* '"(%&!('=%>&%+%$'&-1(%#3%/'D'1#* '"(2%(5'$'%E#-1/%J'%+%1#&&%#3%&# '%D!'E&

#3%(5'%,5-$,5%+"/%+%$'/-,(!#"%!"%(5'%E!/'$%$-$+1%&'((!")=%95'$'3#$'2%(5'%1'D'1%#3%5+$ %!/'"(!3!'/%E#-1/%J'

1'&&%(5+"%&-J&(+"(!+1%!"%+,,#$/+",'%E!(5%6+$+)$+*5%PAP%#3%(5'%M66N%QPAPHR=

6+$+)$+*5%PAP%#3%(5'%M66N%&(+('&%(5+(%E5'$'%+%/'D'1#* '"(%*$#*#&+1%E!11%1'+/%(#%1'&&%(5+"%&-J&(+"(!+1

5+$ %(#%(5'%&!)"!3!,+",'%#3%(5'%/'&!)"+('/%5'$!(+)'%+&&'(2%(5!&%5+$ %&5#-1/%J'%E'!)5'/%+)+!"&(%(5'%*-J1!,

J'"'3!(&%#3%(5'%*$#*#&+1=%95'%#-(1!"'%*'$ !&&!#"%E'!)5'/%(5'%&-J&(+"(!+1%,#"($!J-(!#"%(#%(5'%5#-&!")%1+"/

&-**14%#3%>$-"%S!&($!,(%+"/%/'' '/%(5'%/'D'1#* '"(%E#-1/%#-(E'!)5%(5'%1'&&%(5+"%&-J&(+"(!+1%5+$ 

!/'"(!3!'/%(#%(5'%&'((!")%+"/%&!)"!3!,+",'%#3%(5'%"'+$J4%/'&!)"+('/%5'$!(+)'%+&&'(&=%95'%7#"&'$D+(!#"

<33!,'$%,#"3!$ &%(5+(%(5'$'%!&%"#%,5+")'%!"%5+$ %#D'$%+"/%+J#D'%E5+(%5+&%J''"%,#"&!/'$'/%+"/

+**$#D'/%+(%#-(1!"'%*'$ !&&!#"%&(+)'=

95'$'3#$'2%(5'%+**1!,+(!#"%,#"(!"-'&%(#%J'%!"%+,,#$/+",'%E!(5%*+$+)$+*5%PAP%#3%(5'%M66N%(5'%*$#*#&+1%!&

/'' '/%(#%J'%+,,'*(+J1'%+"/%E#-1/%+,,#$/%E!(5%*#1!,!'&%OTU%86F2%OTU%S;F%+"/%OTU%S;V%#3%(5'

>$-"%.#,+1%61+"=

OCBOW>X8%>MS%>77T88

95!&%+**1!,+(!#"%&'':&%(#%+**$#D'%(5'%$'&'$D'/% +(('$%#3%+,,'&&=%C"%#$/'$%(#%+)$''%/'(+!1&%#3%+,,'&&2%(5'

+**1!,+"(%!&%$'L-!$'/%(#%*$#D!/'%/'(+!1&%#"%5#E%+%D'5!,-1+$%1!":%E!11%J'%*$#D!/'/%J'(E''"%(5'%/'D'1#* '"(

+"/%+"%'?!&(!")%5!)5E+4=%>"%!"/!,+(!D'%+,,'&&%*1+"%5+&%J''"%*$#D!/'/%&5#E!")%(5'%(E#%*$#*#&'/

+,,'&&'&%3#$%'+,5%/'D'1#* '"(%*+$,'1%#"%(5'%'+&('$"%J#-"/+$4%E5!,5%E!11%1!":%!"(#%(5'%!"('$"+1%$#+/

"'(E#$:%#"%(5'%+/K+,'"(%&!('=

6#1!,4%O%86P+%B$'+('$%0#)"#$%U')!&%Y$J+"%>$'+%&(+('&%(5+(%(5!&%/'D'1#* '"(%,#"&!&(&%#3%+%"- J'$%#3

*+$,'1&%#3%1+"/2%+"/%(5'$'3#$'%Z!(%!&%! *'$+(!D'%(5+(%!"/!D!/-+1%+$'+&%+$'%+1!)"'/%E!(5%"'!)5J#-$!")%*+$,'1&

#3%1+"/=Z

W877%O!)5E+4&%5+/%"#%#JK',(!#"%(#%(5'%+,,'&&%+$$+")' '"(&%!"(#%(5'%&!('2%J-(%/!/%!/'"(!34%(5'%"''/%3#$

(5'%+/K+,'"(%8-  '$%.+"'%/'D'1#* '"(%(#%,# '%3#$E+$/%!"%+/D+",'%#3%3!$&(%#,,-*+(!#"%!"%#$/'$%(#

Page 29



 !"#$!% &'!%&()%&**$+*$,&-!%&""!  %-+%-.!%)!/!0+*1!(-2%3.!$!'+$!4%&%"+(),-,+(%5,00%6!%,1*+ !)%-+%!( #$!

-.&-%-.!%-,1,(7%+'%',$ -%+""#*&-,+(%&0,7( %5,-.%&""!  %6!,(7%&/&,0&60!%&()%'#008%+*!$&-,+(&02%9:;;%.&/!

&0 +%"+(',$1!)%-.&-%-.!%0&8+#-%*$+/,)! %&)!<#&-!% *&"!%'+$%!1!$7!("8%&()%$!'# !%/!.,"0! 2

:#6=!"-%-+%-.!%&**$+/&0%+'%>?@AB?CC?DE:4%-.!%*$+*+ !)%&""!  %&$$&(7!1!(- %5+#0)%6!%&""!*-&60!%&()

5+#0)%&""+$)%5,-.%>+0,",! %F%:>C&%&()%3%:>@%+'%-.!%G$#(%H+"&0%>0&(2

G;;E::IJHE%K9EHHILM:

G$#(%K, -$,"-%;+#(",0%.&/!%*#60, .!)%-.!%G""+11+)&-,+(%'+$%N0)!$%>!+*0!%&()%>!+*0!%9,-.%K, &6,0,-,! 

7#,)&("!%)+"#1!(-%-+%&  , -%,(%-.!%,(-!$*$!-&-,+(%+'%>+0,",! %K%KO@%&()%K%KOC2%3., %)+"#1!(-%, %(+-%&(

:>K4%.+5!/!$%,-%)+! %'+$1%&%1&-!$,&0%"+( ,)!$&-,+(%-+%!( #$!%-.&-%.+# ,(7%,(%G$#(%&))$!  ! %-.!%(!!) 

+'%&%5,)!$%$&(7!%+'%-.!%*+*#0&-,+(2%3.!%7#,)!% #77! - %-.&-%)!/!0+*1!(-% .+#0)%*$+/,)!%APQ%+'%#(,- 

)! ,7(!)%-+%ORSCT% -&()&$)4%5.,0 -%&%)!/!0+*1!(-%+'%-., % ,U!%5+#0)%6!%$!<#,$!)%-+%"+(-$,6#-!%R%ORSBT

 -&()&$)%)5!00,(7 2

3.!%&""+11+)&-,+(% ".!)#0!%,(),"&-! %@P(+2%CV6!)%)5!00,(7 %5+#0)%6!%6#,0-%-+%ORSCT% -&()&$)%&()

@B(+2@WCV6!)%)5!00,(7 %&$!%*$+*+ !)%-+%6!%6#,0-%-+%ORSBT% -&()&$)2%3.!%<#&(-#1%+'%#(,- %*$+*+ !)

5+#0)%!X"!!)%-.!%1,(,1#1%$!<#,$!1!(- %,)!(-,',!)%-.$+#7.%7#,)&("!%&()%& % #".%, %&""!*-&60!2

G %,)!(-,',!)%&6+/!%-.!%*&$Y,(7%),1!( ,+( %'+$%-.!%ORSCT%&()%ORSBT%)5!00,(7 %+(% ,-!%&$!%&00%,(%0,(!%5,-.

*+0,"8%&()%7#,)&("!%&()%& % #".%&$!%&""!*-&60!2%O+ -%+'%-.!%*&$Y,(7%, %+(%*0+-4%&()%-.!%), -&("!

6!-5!!(%-.!%'$+(-%)++$%&()%*&$Y,(7% *&"!%1!!- %-.!%$!"+11!()&-,+( %+'%-.!%G$#(%K, -$,"-%K! ,7(%M#,)!

&()%, %-.!$!'+$!%&""!*-&60!2

3.!%*$+/, ,+(%+'%ORSCT% -&()&$)%)5!00,(7 %&()%ORSBT% -&()&$)%)5!00,(7 %, %-.!$!'+$!%&""!*-&60!%&()

5+#0)%&""+$)%5,-.%>+0,"8%K%KO@%&()%K%KOC%+'%-.!%G$#(%H+"&0%>0&(2

FNZ:ILM%OI[%GLK%G\\NDKGJHE%FNZ:ILM

>+0,"8%F%KO@%SF+# ,(7%O,XT%+'%-.!%GH>%$!<#,$! %)!/!0+*1!(- %-+% !!Y%&%1,X%+'%)5!00,(7%-8*! %&()% ,U! 

,(%7!(!$&0%&""+$)&("!%5,-.%-.!%0&-! -%:-$&-!7,"%F+# ,(7%O&$Y!-%G  !  1!(-%S:FOGT2

3.!%*$+*+ &0% !!Y %-+%*$+/,)!%-.!%'+00+5,(7%.+# ,(7%1,X]

@%J!)$++1]%̂%#(,- %S@@QT

C%J!)$++1]%C@%#(,- %SBCQT

B%J!)$++1]%BP%#(,- %SR_QT

R%J!)$++1]%̂%#(,- %S@@QT

3.!%*$+*+ !)%1,X%$! #0- %,(%&(%+/!$*$+/, ,+(%+'%B%6!)%)5!00,(7 4%&()% #6 !<#!(-08%&(%#()!$%*$+/, ,+(%+'

6+-.%@%&()%C%6!)%)5!00,(7 2%3.!% ,-!%.& %/&$,+# %"+( -$&,(- 4%,("0#),(7%,- % !( ,-,/!%$#$&0% !--,(7%5.,".

$! #0- %,(%-.!%(!!)%-+%)!0,/!$%&%0++ !$%7$&,(%+'%)!/!0+*1!(-%,(%+$)!$%-+%&".,!/!%&(%&**$+*$,&-!%-$&( ,-,+(

'$+1%-.!%6#,0-%#*%&$!&%-+%-.!%"+#(-$8 ,)!2%I(%&)),-,+(%-+%-., 4%-.!%&**0,"&(-%, %)!0,/!$,(7%&%0&$7!$%(#16!$%+'

)5!00,(7 %-+%1!!-%-.!%(!!) %+'%+0)!$%*!+*0!%&()%-.+ !%5,-.%), &6,0,-,! 4%5.,".%&$!%-8*,"&008%6#(7&0+5 2

9.,0 -%*+0,"8%5+#0)% !!Y%-+% !"#$!%&%.,7.!$%*$+/, ,+(%'+$%@%&()%C%6!) %*$+*!$-,! 4%7,/!(%-.!% ,-! % *!",',"

"+( -$&,(- %-.!%+/!$&00%1,X%, %&""!*-&60!2

3.!%1,X%+'%&''+$)&60!%)5!00,(7 %*$+*+ !)%, ]%@A%G''+$)&60!%$!(-!)%SC%X%@%6!)̀%@P%X%CV6!)̀%B%X%B%6!)T̀%&()

A%:.&$!)%N5(!$ .,*%SB%X%CV6!)̀%C%X%BV6!)T2

3.!$!%, %&(%+/!$*$+/, ,+(%+'%C%6!)%&''+$)&60!%,(-!$1!),&-!%#(,- 4%&()%&(%#()!$%*$+/, ,+(%+'%@%6!)

&''+$)&60!%,(-!$1!),&-!%#(,- 4%.+5!/!$%7,/!(%-.!% 1&00%(#16!$%+'% .&$!)%+5(!$ .,*%#(,- %$!<#,$!)%SAT4

Page 30



 !"#$"#$%&'#"()*)($+%%), +-.)/$0"1)2"#)3$ !)*)$"#$+'$&4)*,*&4"#"&'$&5$6$-)($+55&*(+-.)$*)' )($7'" #3$+'($+'

7'()*$,*&4"#"&'$&5$8$-)($+55&*(+-.)$*)' )($7'" #/

9&2)4)*3$:$+55&*(+-.)$*)' )($7'" #$2&7.($-)$-7';+.&2#$()#";')($ &$<=>?@$# +'(+*(3$A+1"';$ !)A

+%%)##"-.)$5&*$,)&,.)$2" !$("#+-"." ")#3$+'($ !)*)5&*)$+((*)##)#$"()' "5")($()A+'($5&*$&.()*$,)&,.)$+'(

,)&,.)$2" !$("#+-"." ")#/$B!)$&4)*+..$#,." $>C:D6:@$&5$+55&*(+-.)$*)' )($+'($#!+*)($&2')*#!",$ )'7*)#

+.";'#$2" !$ !)$E8FG$+;*))A)' $+#$2)..$+#$,&."%H$I9$EJ6$&5$ !)$I*7'$0&%+.$J.+'/

B!)$,*&,&#)($.&%+ "&'#$&5$ !)$+55&*(+-.)$7'" #$>*)' )($+'($#!+*)($&2')*#!",@$+*)$("# *"-7 )(

+,,*&,*"+ ).H$ !*&7;!&7 $ !)$#" )$+#$#A+..$%.7# )*#$+4&"("';$+'H$&4)*%&'%)' *+ "&'$&5$+55&*(+-.)$7'" #/

B!)$E8FG$*)K7"*)#$+'$I55&*(+-.)$9&7#"';$E%!)A)$ &$-)$#7-A"  )($5&*$+,,*&4+.$2!"%!$2"..$#)%7*)$() +".#

&5$ !)$+55&*(+-.)$!&7#"';$"'$,)*,) 7" H/$9&2)4)*3$ !)$() +".#$+#$,*&4"()($"'$#7,,&* $&5$ !"#$+,,."%+ "&'$+*)

+%%), +-.)$+'($+#$#7%!$ !)$+55&*(+-.)$!&7#"';$,*&,&#+.#$2&7.($+%%&*($2" !$J&."%H$I9$EJ6$&5$ !)$I0J/

ELMB$0INOEPIJQNR

B!)$NJJM$+'($I*7'$0&%+.$J.+'$>I0J@$,&."%")#$O$O<83$SNT$O<:$+'($0IN$O<83$ !)$I*7'$O)#";'$R7"()3

+'($ !)$N+ "&'+.$O)#";'$R7"()$*)K7"*)#$()4).&,A)' #$ &$%&'#"()*$.+'(#%+,"';3$ &$)'#7*)$+$!";!UK7+." H

#%!)A)$"#$+%!")4)($7#"';$#&5 $+'($!+*($.+'(#%+,"';$2!"%!$*)5.)% #$ !)$)# +-."#!)($%!+*+% )*$&5$ !)$.&%+.

+*)+/$B!)$NJJM$)A,!+#"#)#$ !+ $ *))#$A+1)$+'$"A,&* +' $%&' *"-7 "&'$ &$ !)$%!+*+% )*$+'($K7+." H$&5

 !)"*$)'4"*&'A)' /

B!)$I*7'$0+'(#%+,)$P+,+%" H$&5$E *+ );"%$E" )#$"'$I*7'$O"# *"% $>6F8C3$9OI@3$+(4"#)#$&5$"A,*&4)A)' #

 !+ $2&7.($-)$)'%&7*+;)($"'$+'H$,*&,&#+.#$&'$ !)$+..&%+ "&'$#" )D

$$$$U$=/8$V" !$."A" )($4);) + "4)$-&7'(+*H$# *7% 7*)$+%*&##$ !)$#" )$+$%&A,*)!)'#"4)$# *+ );H$&5$,.+' "';

+.&';$!"# &*"%$-&7'(+*H$+.";'A)' #3$"'%.7("';$!)(;)*&2#3$ *))#$+'($;*+##$A+*;"'#3$#!&7.($-)$()4).&,)(

 &$*)%*)+ )$+$') 2&*1$&5$;*))'$."'1#$+%*&##$+'H$()4).&,)($+*)+#/

$$$$U$=/6$B!)$%7**)' $5". )*)($#)  .)A)' $)(;)$2&7.($'))($ &$-)$*)%*)+ )($+.&';$ !)$"' )*5+%)$-) 2))'$+'H

')2$()4).&,A)' $+'($ !)$*7*+.$.+'(#%+,)$ &$ !)$2)# 3$ &$."A" $4")2#$&5$-7". $5&*A$5*&A$ !)$*7*+.$.+'(#%+,)

-)H&'(3$"'%.7("';$5*&A$,7-."%$5&& ,+ !#$2" !"'$ !)$+(W+%)' $*"5)$+'($!+*-&7*$.+'(#%+,)#/$9&2)4)*3$+$')2

.+'(#%+,)$# *7% 7*)$2&7.($ +1)$#";'"5"%+' $ "A)$ &$)# +-."#!$+'($2&7.($'))($ &$-)$A+ 7*)$)'&7;!$ &$&55)*

#";'"5"%+' $#%*))'"';$ &$4")2#/

Q'("4"(7+.$,.+' "';$,.+'#$!+4)$-))'$,*&4"()($ &$#7,,.)A)' $ !)$0+'(#%+,"';$R)')*+.$I**+';)A)' $J.+'

>OO:X:0F8$Y)4$M@$2!"%!$,*&4"()#$#7" +-.)$() +".$+'($"#$%&'5"*A)($+#$+%%), +-.)$-H$ !)$P&7'%".Z#

R*))'#,+%)$L55"%)*/

M&*A+.$ *))$."')($# *)) #$+#$,)*$NJJM$*)K7"*)A)' #$+*)$+$4)*H$#7-7*-+'$*)#,&'#)$+'($+*)$'& 

%&'#"()*)($+'$+,,*&,*"+ )$*)#,&'#)$ &$ !)$)(;)$&5$#)  .)A)' $%!+*+% )*$&5$ !)$#" )/$Q'# )+(3$,*&,&#)(

 *))#$+*)$,*&4"()($&'$"**);7.+*$,&%1) #$&5$&,)'$#,+%)$ !*&7;!&7 $ !)$#" )/$I,,*&,*"+ )$#&5 $.+'(#%+,"';3

"'%.7("';$ *))#3$#!*7-#$+'($()'#)$!)(;)*&2#$+.&';$ !)$-&7'(+*")#$+*)$+.#&$,*&,&#)($2" !"'$ !)$J7-."%

L,)'$E,+%)/$B!)$# *&';$-&7'(+*H$,.+' "';$2"..$)'#7*)$ !+ $ !)$#" )$"#$#755"%")' .H$#%*))')($+'($ !)

,.+' "';$2" !"'$ !)$#" )$"#$%!+*+% )*"# "%$&5$ !)$2"()*$#)  "';/

B!)$"##7)#$*+"#)($-H$ !)$P&7'%".Z#$S%&.&;"# $"'$*).+ "&'$ &$A"##"';$2) .+'($,.+' "';$() +".#$+'($"' )*'+.

5&*A+.$!)(;)*&2$A"[$!+4)$-))'$,+##)($ !*&7;!$ &$ !)$+,,."%+' $2!&$"' )'(#$ &$,*&4"()$7,(+ )($,.+'#$"'

*)#,&'#)$ &$ !)#)$"##7)#/$B!)*)5&*)3$&'%)$ !)#)$+A)'(A)' #$!+4)$-))'$*)%)"4)($ !)H$2"..$-)$,*)#)' )(

 &$<)A-)*#$+#$,+* $&5$+$*),&* $7,(+ )

B!)$#&5 $.+'(#%+,"';$,*&,&#+.#$,*&4"()$#&A)$#%*))'"';$"'$2"()*$4")2#$+'($2" !"'$ !)$# *)) #%)')/

Page 31



 !"#"$%#"&'()*+",-'-%',%.$/#01-/%.'%$'-!"'2"-31.4'531.-/.6'4"-1/3('1.4'$%#013'!"46"#%2'0/7'-!"'5#%5%(13(

1#"'/.'1,,%#41.,"'2/-!'8%3/,9':':;<'1.4'=>?':;<'%$'-!"'>=8@

ABC:BDEFGB H'>?:'8FC EI E:'G8EIBEG

;1.41-%#9'A/%4/J"#(/-9'?"-'K1/.'LA?KM'%$'<NO').4"#'-!"'E.J/#%.0".-'>,-'!1('.%-'*",%0"'*"".

".1,-"4'9"-&'1.4'-!"#"$%#"'-!"'5%3/,9'0%(-'#"3"J1.-'/('E?D':;P'%$'-!"'>#).'=%,13'831.@

 !/('5%3/,9'(-/5)31-"('1'#"Q)/#"0".-'$%#'4"J"3%50".-'-%'4"3/J"#'1'A/%4/J"#(/-9'?"-'K1/.'1.4'-!1-'5#%5%(13(

(!%)34'(""R'-%'5#%-",-'!1*/-1-('%.'(/-"@' !"'?88S'TNTU'(-1-"('-!1-'4"J"3%50".-'(!%)34',%.-#/*)-"'-%'1.4

".!1.,"'-!"'.1-)#13'1.4'3%,13'".J/#%.0".-'*9'0/./0/(/.6'/051,-('1.4'5#%J/4/.6'0"1()#1*3"'."-'61/.(

$%#'*/%4/J"#(/-9'L81#16#15!'<VW&'4M@'?88S'81#16#15!'<XN'(-1-"('-!1-'Y4M'4"J"3%50".-'2!%("'5#/01#9

%*+",-/J"'/('-%',%.("#J"'%#'".!1.,"'*/%4/J"#(/-9'(!%)34'*"'()55%#-"4Z'2!/3"'%55%#-)./-/"('-%'/05#%J"

*/%4/J"#(/-9'/.'1.4'1#%).4'4"J"3%50".-('(!%)34'*"'/.-"6#1-"4'1('51#-'%$'-!"/#'4"(/6.&'"(5",/1339'2!"#"

-!/(',1.'(",)#"'0"1()#1*3"'."-'61/.('$%#'*/%4/J"#(/-9'%#'".!1.,"'5)*3/,'1,,"(('-%'.1-)#"'2!"#"'-!/('/(

155#%5#/1-"@Y

>'A/%4/J"#(/-9';"-#/,'!1('*"".'5#%J/4"4'1.4')541-"4'*1("4')5%.'-!"'31-"(-'(%$-'31.4(,15/.6'5#%5%(13(

2!/,!'(!%2'1'?"-'K1/.'$%#'A/%4/J"#(/-9'*%-!'$%#'!1*/-1-('L<@X[OM'1.4'!"46"#%2('L<VNOM@

 !"'531.-/.6'531.'L=1.4(,15"'K"."#13'>##1.6"0".-'831.'F"J'SM'(!%2('01.9'-#""('3%,1-"4'2/-!/.

5#/J1-"'$#%.-'61#4".(&'1.4'/-'!1('*"".',%.$/#0"4'-!1-'-!"("'!1J"'*"".'"7,3)4"4'$%#'-!"'5)#5%("('%$'A?K

,13,)31-/%.(@'>',%.4/-/%.'21('/05%("4'%.'-!"'%)-3/."'-%'".()#"'-!1-'1.9'-#""('%#'531.-('-!1-'$1/3'-%

"(-1*3/(!'%#'4/"'2/-!/.'P'9"1#('0)(-'*"'#"531,"4&'1.4'1'01.16"0".-'531.'$%#'-!"/#')5R""5'(",)#"4'2/-!/.

-!"'G",-/%.'<N\'16#""0".-@' !"#"$%#"&'-!"'5#%5%(13('2%)34'#"()3-'/.'1'*/%4/J"#(/-9'."-'61/.'/.

1,,%#41.,"'2/-!'5%3/,9'E?D':;P@

 !"'E,%3%69'C$$/,"#',%.$/#0('-!1-'1'8!1("'T'A1-'()#J"9'!1('*"".',1##/"4'%)-'2!/,!'/('1,,"5-1*3"@'>'*1-

#%%(-'/('5#"(".-'2/-!/.'-!"'"7/(-/.6'42"33/.6'1.4'-!"#"$%#"'1'E)#%5"1.'8#%-",-"4'G5",/"(';/-/61-/%.

=/,".,"'$%#'*1-('2/33'*"'#"Q)/#"4'$#%0'?1-)#13'E.631.4@

B.'144/-/%.&'-!"'-/0"'(/.,"'-!"'%)-3/."'1553/,1-/%.'-!"'6#1((31.4'!1('*",%0"'3"(('J/6%#%)(39'01.16"4&'$%#

2!/,!'1'5#",1)-/%.1#9'#"5-/3"',15-)#"'/('#",%00".4"4'LE,%G)55%#-&'<W-!'])39'TNTTM@'̂%2"J"#&

I%.4/-/%.'<P'/05%("4'%.'-!"'%)-3/."'155#%J13'L8_TP_<V_C̀  M'#"Q)/#"('-!"'()*0/((/%.'%$'1.'E,%3%6/,13

;1.16"0".-'1.4';/-/61-/%.'G-#1-"69'5#/%#'-%',%00".,"0".-'%#'1.9'5#"51#1-%#9'2%#R(@' !"#"$%#"&'-!"

,%.4/-/%.'2/33'".()#"'-!1-'-!"'=8>'2/33'*"'1*3"'-%'(",)#"'4"-1/3('%$'1'5#",1)-/%.1#9',15-)#"'5#%,"(('$%#

#"5-/3"(@

 !"'E,%3%69'C$$/,"#'13(%'#1/("4'-!"'.""4'$%#'1'*/%4/J"#(/-9'".!1.,"0".-'531.&'!%2"J"#'-!/('21('(",)#"4

J/1',%.4/-/%.'/05%("4'%.'-!"'%)-3/."'5"#0/((/%.'L8_TP_<V_C̀  M@

G)*+",-'-%',%.4/-/%.(&'-!"'=%,13'831../.6'>)-!%#/-9'2%)34'".()#"'-!"'5#%-",-/%.'1.4'0/-/61-/%.'%$

5#%-",-"4'(5",/"(').4"#'/-('4)-/"('%$'-!"'I%.("#J1-/%.'%$'̂1*/-1-('1.4'G5",/"('TN<V'L1('10".4"4M&'-!"

a/343/$"'b'I%).-#9(/4"'>,-'<[X<'1('10".4"4&'1.4'(WN'%$'-!"'?1-)#13'E.J/#%.0".-'1.4'F)#13

I%00)./-/"('>,-'TNN\'L8#/%#/-9'!1*/-1-('1.4'(5",/"(M@

B.'144/-/%.&'-!"'4"J"3%50".-'(",)#"('14"Q)1-"'A/%4/J"#(/-9'?"-'K1/.'LA?KM'1.4'1,,%#4('2/-!'5%3/,9'E?D

:;'P'%$'-!"'>#).'=%,13'831.&'I!15-"#'<P'%$'-!"'?88S&'?1-/%.13':"(/6.'K)/4"&'1.4'81#-'E@NU'%$'-!"'>#).

:/(-#/,-':"(/6.'K)/4"@

 FEEG'>?:'̂E:KFCaG

Page 32



 !"#$"%"&'()#*+%,-.#-+(/,0"$'),+(#,(#$"%'),+(#)+#)$""/#,/#*+%,-.#123#456#+7#)!"#89:#;!,-!#/""</#)+

*$"&"()#)!"#%+//#+7#)$""/#;!,-!#-+()$,=>)"#)+#'?"(,).@

 !"#9'(0/-'*"#A"("$'%#8$$'(B"?"()#:%'(#CD"&#EF#,(0,-')"/#;!"$"#)$""/#'(0#!"0B"/#'$"#*$+*+/"0#)+

="#$"?+&"0@#8%+(B/,0"#)!"#+>)%,("#'**%,-'),+(#0+->?"()# $""#G+(/)$',()/#:%'(H#)!"#7+%%+;,(B#'$"#/!+;(

)+#="#$"?+&"0I

#####J#8**$+K,?')"%.#LM#,(0,&,0>'%#)$""/#C?',(%.#-')"B+$.#GFN

#####J#G')"B+$.#G#!"0B"$+;#)+#)!"#(+$)!"$(#*'$)#+7#)!"#/,)"N#'(0

#####J#8#B$+>*#+7#A$".#:+*%'$/#G')"B+$.#O#)$""/#C(>?="$#+7#,(0,&,0>'%#)$""/#>(<(+;(#J#=>)#'**$+K,?')"%.

PQ#)$>(<#*+,()/#/!+;(F@

 !"#G+>(-,%R/# $""#S77,-"$#/)')"/#)!')#;!,%"#)!"#0"/,B(#,/#%'$B"%.#'--"*)'=%"#,(#)"$?/#+7#$"?+&'%#+7

,()"$('%#)$""/#)+#'--+??+0')"#)!"#*$+*+/'%/H#)!"#%,("'$#B$+>*#+7#*+*%'$#)$""/# 9TL#/!+>%0#="#$")',("0@

2+#->$$"()# :S#"K,/)/#7+$#)!"#/,)"#+$#'(.#)$""/#;,)!,(#+$#'0U'-"()#)+#)!"#/,)"@# !"#+>)%,("#*"$?,//,+(

"/)'=%,/!"0#)!"#*$,(-,*%"#+7#0"&"%+*?"()#;,)!,(#)!"#/,)"#'(0#(+#7>(0'?"()'%#+=U"-),+(/#;"$"#$"-",&"0

$"B'$0,(B#)!"#,(0,-'),&"#*%'(/#;!,-!#;+>%0#!'&"#$"/>%)"0#,(#)!"#%+//#+7#)!,/#B$+>*#+7#)$""/#C 9TLF@# !"

*$+*+/"0#%'.+>)#'--+$0/#;,)!#)!"#'**$+&"0#4"/,B(#G+0"#;!,-!#;'/#='/"0#>*+(#)!"#,(0,-'),&"

?'/)"$*%'(#C5'/)"$*%'(#J#EVTW#J#D"&@#G#J#X'(>'$.#PTYQF#-+(/,0"$"0#=.#)!"#G+>(-,%#)!$+>B!#)!"

0")"$?,('),+(#+7#+>)%,("#'**%,-'),+(#:ZPMZYQZS[ @

 !"#G+>(-,%R/# $""#S77,-"$#$"-+??"(0"0#)!')#)!"#"K,/),(B#!"0B"$+;#+(#)!"#(+$)!"$(#=+>(0'$.#+7#)!"#/,)"

,/#$")',("0@#\+;"&"$H#)!"#%'.+>)#'/#*$+*+/"0#$"/>%)/#,(#,)/#%+//@#](#+$0"$#)+#?,),B')"#)!,/#$"?+&'%H#)!"

*$+*+/"0#*%'(),(B#/-!"?"#;,%%#/"->$"#'#)$,*%"#/)'BB"$"0#('),&"#!"0B"$+;#)!')#"K)"(0/#'$+>(0#)!"#/,)"

*$+&,0,(B#'#U+,("0#>*#!'=,)')#'(0#'/#/>-!#,/#U>0B"0#)+#="#'#/>,)'=%"#$"*%'-"?"()@

 !"# $""#S77,-"$#!'/#'%/+#(+)"0#)!"#%'-<#+7#/*"-,7,-#*%'(/#$"%'),(B#)+#)$""/H#/>-!#'/#'(#8$=+$,->%)>$'%

5")!+0#V)')"?"()#'(0# $""#:$+)"-),+(#:%'(@#\+;"&"$H#)!"/"#'$"#$"̂>,$"0#)+#="#*$+&,0"0#'(0#'**$+&"0

=.#)!"#9+-'%#:%'((,(B#8>)!+$,).#*$,+$#)+#)!"#-+??"(-"?"()#+7#0"&"%+*?"()#'/#*'$)#+7#)$""#-+(0,),+(

,?*+/"0#+(#)!"#+>)%,("#*"$?,//,+(@

:+%,-.#123#456#+7#)!"#8$>(#9+-'%#:%'(#,0"(),7,"/#)!')#0"&"%+*?"()#/!+>%0#/""<#)+#$"*%'-"#)$""/#;!"$"

)!".#'$"#$"̂>,$"0#)+#="#$"?+&"0@# !"#'**%,-'),+(#*$+*+/"/#)!"#*%'(),(B#+7#YPY#(+@#(";#)$""/#+(#)!"#/,)"H

;!,-!#,/#?'$B,('%%.#%"//#)!'(#);+#)$""/#7+$#"&"$.#+("#)$""#)+#="#$"?+&"0@# !"#)$""/#'$"#'#?,K)>$"#+7#/,_"/

=>)#,(-%>0"#"K)$'#!"'&.#/)'(0'$0/#)!$+>B!+>)#)!"#/,)"@#S(-"#?')>$"0#)!"/"#)$""/#;,%%#?'<"#'#?"'(,(B7>%

-+()$,=>),+(#)+#)!"#/,)"#,(#)"$?/#+7#'?"(,).H#=,+0,&"$/,).#'(0#-'$=+(#/)+$'B"@

 !"$"7+$"H#)!"#*$+*+/"0#%+//#+7#)$""/#;+>%0#="#'0"̂>')"%.#?,),B')"0#'(0#;+>%0#="#,(#B"("$'%

'--+$0'(-"#;,)!#123#456#+7#)!"#89:@

\D8#Z#:8A\85#\8DOS[D#824#:141V D]82#9]2̀ V

:+%,-.#123#45P#+7#)!"#8$>(#9+-'%#:%'(#C89:F#$"̂>,$"/#)!')#0"&"%+*?"()#;,)!,(#a+("#O#+7#)!"#:'B!'?

\'$=+>$#C*'$)#=H#,,F#-$"')"/#"'/,%.#'--"//,=%"#(";#B$""(#/*'-"/#7+$#$"-$"'),+(#;,)!,(#+$#'0U'-"()#)+#)!"

0"&"%+*?"()#/,)"#)+#'--+??+0')"#)!"#*$"0,-)"0#,(-$"'/"/#,(#0"?'(0#7+$#%+-'%#;'%<,(BH#,(-%>0,(B#0+B

;'%<,(B@#](#'00,),+(#)+#*$+&,0,(B#$"-$"'),+('%#;'%<,(B#$+>)"/#7+$#+-->*,"$/#'(0#0+B#;'%<"$/#7+$#)!"#="("7,)

+7#)!"#:'B!'?#\'$=+>$H#%'.+>)/#/!+>%0#'%/+#"(-+>$'B"#;'%<,(B#'(0#-.-%,(B#=+)!#)+#'(0#7$+?#)!"

0"&"%+*?"()#'(0#;,)!,(#,)H#)+#/>**+$)#!"'%)!.#%,7"/).%"/#'(0#/>/)',('=%"#)$'&"%#,(#'--+$0'(-"#;,)!

*'$'B$'*!#bP#+7#)!"#2::E#'(0#*+%,-,"/#\cO#V:Y#'(0# #45Y#+7#)!"#89:@

 !"#G+>(-,%#-+(/,0"$"0#)!')#)!"#'**%,-'()R/#'&+,0'(-"#'(0#?,),B'),+(#/)$')"B.#C\'=,)')/#D"B>%'),+(/

8**$+*$,')"#8//"//?"()H#O.#9,_'$0#994YMLYJ1GSJD1:JTTY#D"&#TTF#;,)!,(#)!"#+>)%,("#*"$?,//,+(#;'/

Page 33



 !"#$%&'()&*+%&%,+&%+$%$&!-&%,+&.// !/ 0'%+&.$$+$$*+(%&'()&1'%# '2&3(42'()&'4 ++)&50%,&%,0$

'$$+$$*+(%&'()&%,+&*0%04'%0!(&*+'$# +$&0)+(%0-0+)&'()&$+6# +)&'%&!#%20(+&$%'4+7

8,+&'//206'(%$&9:.&/ !;0)+)&'&*0%04'%0!(&<&';!0)'(6+&$% '%+4=&5,06,&6!*/ 0$+)&-!# &>+=&+2+*+(%$7&?%

$%'%+)@

AB0 $%2=C&!(&$0%+&/ !;0$0!(&-! & +6 +'%0!(&'6%0;0%0+$&0(62#)0(4&)!4&5'2>0(4C&$+6!()2=C&'&/'6>'4+&!-&*+'$# +$

'0*+)&'%&'22+;0'%0(4&+D0$%0(4&'()&-#%# +&/ +$$# +$&- !*&;0$0%! &(#*"+ $&!(&%,+&EF.&<&:.GE.:&$0%+&0%$+2-7

8,0 )2=C&%,+&$0%+&"!#()' 0+$&!-&%,+&)+;+2!/*+(%&' +'&5!#2)&"+&$% +(4%,+(+)&50%,&+D%+($0;+&(+5&/2'(%0(4

'()&$%!6>&-+(60(4&0(&! )+ &%!&"#--+ &%,+& +%'0(+)&-' *2'()&%!&%,+&5+$%&/!%+(%0'22=&#$+)&"=&H' >I"+220+)

J +(%&K++$+&- !*&"#02%&-! *&'()&*!;+*+(%&!-&;+,062+$&'()&/+!/2+&<&)!4$&50%,0(&%,+&)+;+2!/*+(%7

B!# %,2=C&'&"+$/!>+&/'6>'4+&!-&*+'$# +$&0$&/ !/!$+)&5,06,&)+20;+ &2!(4&%+ *&*0%04'%0!(&<

+(,'(6+*+(%$&-! &J +(%&K++$+7A

.&-0('(60'2&6!(% 0"#%0!(&,'$&"++(&$+6# +)&;0'&E+6%0!(&LMN&'4 ++*+(%&%!5' )$&%,+&F'4,'*&9' "!# 

E% '%+406&.66+$$O&G'('4+*+(%&'()&G!(0%! 0(4&PE.GGQ&5,06,&$++>$&%!&*'('4+&'()&*0%04'%+&;0$0%! 

/ +$$# +&50%,0(&%,+&9' "!# 7

8,+&)+;+2!/*+(%&/ !/!$+$&'&R#'(%#*&!-&FSE&5,06,&5!#2)&6!($0$%&!-&M7TN,'&!-&#$+'"2+&F#"206&S/+(

E/'6+&5,06,&5!#2)&+D6++)&%,+& +R#0 +*+(%&0)+(%0-0+)&50%,0(&%,+&! 040('2&.// !/ 0'%+&.$$+$$*+(%&'()&'$

$#6,&%,0$&0$&'66+/%'"2+7

.&$+2-I"0()0(4&4 ';+2&-!!%/'%,&0$&/ !/!$+)&%!&6!((+6%&%,+&%5!& +$0)+(%0'2&/' 6+2$O&5,06,&,';+&/';+*+(%$

'204(0(4&*!$%&!-&%,+&,04,5'=$7&8,+ +&0$&'2$!&'&-!!%/'%,&'66+$$&%!&%,+&E#**+ &2'(+&)+;+2!/*+(%&;0'&'

-!!%" 0)4+&6!((+6%0!(&%!&%,+&$!#%,+'$%7&.& '(4+&!-&60 6#2' &5'2>$&-! & +6 +'%0!(&'()&)!4&5'2>0(4&6'(

%,+ +-! +&"+&'6,0+;+)&50%,0(&%,+&$0%+&'$&5+22&'$&%, !#4,&%,+&(+04,"!# 0(4&E#**+ &U'(+&)+;+2!/*+(%7

8,+&9:.&)+$6 0"+)&%,+& +R#0 +)&*0%04'%0!(&/2'(%0(4&'$&)+($+&(+5&% ++&/2'(%0(4&%!&%,+&$0%+&"!#()' 0+$O

$04(0-06'(%2=&"!2$%+ 0(4&+D0$%0(4&% ++&20(+&'()&,+)4+ !5$&'2!(4&50%,&')+R#'%+&-+(60(4&%!&'6%&'$&;0$#'2&'()

/,=$06'2&)+%+  +(%&%!&%,+&F'4,'*&9' "!# 7&8,+&U'()$6'/+&K+(+ '2&.  '(4+*+(%&F2'(&:+;&B&$,!5$&%,+

"!#()' 0+$&!-&%,+&$0%+&')V'6+(%&%!&%,+&!/+(&6!#(% =$0)+&' +&%!&"+&/2'(%+)&50%,&% 0/2+&$%'44+ +)&('%0;+

,+)40(47&.&L7W*&%0*"+ &/!$%&'()& '02&-+(6+&50%,&$%!6>&/ !!-&*+$,&5!#2)&"+&/ !/!$+)&%!&%,+&$!#%,+ (O

5+$%+ (&'()&(! %,+ (&"!#()' 0+$&!-&%,+&$0%+O&6!((+6%0(4&%!&%,+&-+(60(4&/ !;0)+)&'%&%,+&')V!0(0(4&E#**+ 

U'(+&)+;+2!/*+(%7

S%,+ &)+%'02&$#6,&'$&%0*0(4&!-&)+20;+ =&!-&%,+&-+(60(4&'()&;+4+%'%0!(&%!&+($# +&%,'%&%,+&*0%04'%0!(&,'$

*'D0*#*&0*/'6%&)# 0(4&%,+&6!($% #6%0!(&/,'$+&5022&"+&$+6# +)&%, !#4,&'(&'// !/ 0'%+2=&5! )+)

6!()0%0!(7

.(&.// !/ 0'%+&.$$+$$*+(%&,'$&"++(&#()+ %'>+(&5,06,&6!(62#)+)&%,'%&%,+&)+;+2!/*+(%&5!#2)

+(6!# '4+&#$+ $&%!& +*'0(&50%,0(&%,+&$0%+&'()& +$% 06%&)!4$&,';0(4&)0 +6%&'66+$$&0(%!&%,+&,' "!# &'()&'$

$#6,&5!#2)&(!%& +$#2%&0(&'(=&20>+2=&$04(0-06'(%&');+ $+&0*/'6%$&!(&%,+&F'4,'*&9' "!# &EF.7&1'%# '2

3(42'()&,';+&"++(&6!($#2%+)&!(&%,+&.// !/ 0'%+&.$$+$$*+(%O&'()&$#"V+6%&%!&6!(-0 *'%0!(&%,'%&%,+=&,';+

(!&!"V+6%0!(&%!&%,+&6!(62#$0!(&!-&%,+&'$$+$$*+(%O&%,+&)+;+2!/*+(%&5!#2)&"+&0(&'66! )'(6+&50%,&F!206=

31X&HGW7&8,+&/ !/!$+)&2'=!#%&5!#2)&'2$!&/ !;0)+&$#--060+(%&60 6#2' & !#%+$&%!&+(6!# '4+&,+'2%,=

20-+$%=2+$&0(&'66! )'(6+&50%,&F!206=&9YJ&EFL&'()&8&HGL&!-&%,+&.UF&'$&5+22&'$&/' '4 '/,&ZW&!-&%,+

1FFB7

F[JU?\&SF31&EF.\3&PFSEQ&.1H&FU.]&EF.\3

8,+&F#"206&S/+(&E/'6+&PFSEQ& +R#0 +)&-! &%,+&$0%+&0$&̂O_̀N$R*7&S-&%,0$O&'&*0(0*#*&!-&̀T̀$R*&!-&/2'=

$/'6+&0(&%,+&-! *&!-&L&U!6'22=&3R#0//+)&. +'&-! &F2'=&PU3.FQ&'()&L&U!6'2&. +'&-! &F2'=&PU.FQ&' +

Page 34



 !"#$ !%&'(&)!&%!*$+! !%,

-.!&/ (/(01*&/ (+$%!0&1// (2$31'!*4&5650"3&(7&/*14&0/18!&19%&6:;<<0"3&(7&=>?:&7( &@.$8.&'.!

#0!1)*!&3!19$9A7#*&=>?&/ (+$0$(9&!28!!%0&'.!&/(*$84& !"#$ !3!9'&19%&10&0#8.&'.!&'('1*&*!+!*&(7

/ (+$0$(9&$0&%!!3!%&188!/'1)*!,&B.$*0'&9('&$98*#%!%&@$'.$9&'.!&>/!9&?/18!&"#19'#3:&'.!&%!+!*(/3!9'

@(#*%&/ (+$%!&7( &/(8C!'0&(7&$  !A#*1 *4&0.1/!%&/#)*$8&(/!9&0/18!&@$'.$9&'.!&%!+!*(/!%&/1 8!*0:&@.$8.

.1+!&)!!9&%$08(#9'!%&7 (3&'.!&'('1*&=>?&/ (+$0$(9&)#'&@.$8.&8(9' $)#'!&'(@1 %0&'.!&0(7'!9$9A&(7&'.!&)#$*'

7( 3&19%&/1 C$9A,

-.!&*(81'$(90&(7&'.!&/*14&1 !10&/ (+$%!&(//( '#9$'$!0&7( &91'# 1*&0# +!$**198!&7 (3&0#  (#9%$9A&%@!**$9A0

19%&@(#*%&)!&188!/'1)*!&$9&/ $98$/*!,&-.!&=#)*$8&>/!9&?/18!&?#//*!3!9'1 4&=*199$9A&D(8#3!9'&E?=DF

 !"#$ !0&'.1'&GHI=0&/ (+$%!&1&J<3&3$9$3#3&)#77! &)!'@!!9&'.!&18'$+$'4&K(9!&19%&%@!**$9A&7181%!0,&-.!

/ (/(0!%&GHI=&$0&*(81'!%&1// (2$31'!*4&L5,M<3&7 (3&'.!&9!1 !0'&%@!**$9AN0&7181%!&E/*('&;<F,&O(@!+! :

/ (/(0!%&/*19'$9A&@$'.$9&'.!&/*14&1 !1&@$**&!90# !&'.1'&'.!&18'$+$'4&K(9!&19%&!"#$/3!9'&$0&0$'!%&'.19&J<3

7 (3&'.!&%@!**$9AN0&7181%!&$9&188( %198!&@$'.&'.!&>/!9&?/18!&?=D,

I3!9%3!9'0&@! !&31%!&'. (#A.(#'&'.!&*$7!'$3!&(7&'.!&1//*$81'$(9:&'(&$98*#%!&3( !&188!00$)*!&!"#$/3!9'

@.$8.&$0&/(0$'$+!,&-.!&P !!90/18!&>77$8! &0'$**&.10&8(98! 90&@$'.&0(3!&(7&'.!&/ (/(01*0:& !A1 %$9A&(/!9

'(/&)$90:&#9%!7$9!%&/*14&/$!8!0:&19%&!"#$/3!9'&'1 A!'&1A!& 19A!,&O(@!+! :&'.!&?!8'$(9&L<;&G!A1*

IA !!3!9'&0!8# !%&7( &'.!&0$'!&$98*#%!0&19&()*$A1'$(9&'(&1A !!&/*14&1 !1&%!'1$*0&@$'.&'.!&Q(#98$*&19%&'.!

P !!90/18!&>77$8! &.10&8(97$ 3!%&'.1'&'.!4&1 !&8(9'!9'&'.1'&$'&$0&1// (/ $1'!&'(&0!8# !&'.$0&%!'1$*&'. (#A.

'.!&?!8'$(9&L<;&1A !!3!9',

>+! 1**:&'.!&/*14&/ (+$0$(9&$0&0#77$8$!9':&19%&@(#*%&188( %&@$'.&'.!&I #9&>/!9&?/18!&?=D&19%&=(*$84

OBR&?=L&(7&'.!&I #9&G(81*&=*19&EIG=F,

DSITUIPH

IDQ&D 1$91A!&H9A$9!! 0&.1+!& 1$0!%&1&.(*%$9A&()V!8'$(9&'(&'.!&1//*$81'$(9:&10&$90#77$8$!9'&$97( 31'$(9

.10&)!!9&/ (+$%!%&'(&%!3(90' 1'!&1&/(*$84&8(3/*$19'&% 1$91A!&08.!3!,&W# '.! &$97( 31'$(9&@10

/ (+$%!%&)4&'.!&1//*$819'&$9& !0/(90!&'(&'.$0&/($9'&)#'&.10&9('&8#  !9'*4&)!!9& !+$!@!%&)4&'.!&Q(#98$*N0

D 1$91A!&H9A$9!! 0,

O(@!+! :&Q(9%$'$(90&L<:&LL&19%&LJ&$3/(0!%&(9&'.!&(#'*$9!&/*199$9A&/! 3$00$(9&E=XLY<XL;X>Z-F& !*1'!&'(

0# 718!&@1'! &% 1$91A!&19%& !"#$ !&%!'1$*0&'(&)!&0#)3$''!%&7( &1// (+1*&/ $( &'(&'.!&8(33!98!3!9'&(7

%!+!*(/3!9',&-.! !7( !:&10&% 1$91A!&@10&8(90$%! !%&1'&(#'*$9!&0'1A!&19%&'.!0!&/ ![8(33!98!3!9'

8(9%$'$(90&@! !&$3/(0!%&'.! !&$0&9(& !"#$ !3!9'&'(&1// (+!&% 1$91A!&%!'1$*0&1*(9A0$%!&'.$0& !0! +!%

31''! 0&0#)3$00$(9,

-.$0&1//*$81'$(9&19%&*14(#'&@10&/ (/(0!%&)4&'.!&1//*$819'&1'&'.!$ &(@9& $0C&19%&0.(#*%&$'&9('&)!&/(00$)*!

7( &19&1// (/ $1'!&% 1$91A!&08.!3!&'(&)!&188(33(%1'!%&1*(9A0$%!&'.!&/ (/(0!%&*14(#'&'.!9&'.!

1//*$819'&@$**&9('&)!&1)*!&'(&$3/*!3!9'&'.!&/! 3$00$(9,&P$+!9&'.!&$98*#0$(9&(7&/ ![8(33!98!3!9'

8(9%$'$(90&'(&0!8# !&%!'1$*!%&% 1$91A!&%!0$A9&'.$0& !0! +!%&31''! 0&1//*$81'$(9&819&)!&%!'! 3$9!%

@$'.(#'&'.!&7#**&0#//( '&(7&D 1$91A!&H9A$9!! 0&19%&10&0#8.&$'&$0&9('&9!8!001 4&'(&%!3(90' 1'!&8(3/*$198!

@$'.&/(*$84&B&D\]&1'&'.$0&'$3!,

Q>UQGZ?T>U?

-.!&13!9%3!9'0&31%!&'(&'.!&1//*$81'$(9&.1+!&(+! 8(3!&'.!&( $A$91*&8(98! 90& 1$0!%&)4&'.!&G(81*

=*199$9A&I#'.( $'4&19%&0'1'#'( 4&8(90#*'!!0,&W(**(@$9A&13!9%3!9'&'.!&/ (/(01*0&1 !&9(@&$9&188( %198!

@$'.& !*!+19'&%!+!*(/3!9'&/*19&/(*$8$!0,&T9&'.!&1)0!98!&(7&194&31'! $1*&8(90$%! 1'$(90&8(9' 1 4&'(&'.$0&$'

$0& !8(33!9%!%&'.1'&'.!&1//*$81'$(9&$0&1// (+!%&0#)V!8'&'(&'.!&)!*(@&8(9%$'$(90,

Page 35



 

 

 

!"# $%&'()* )' +,-)'. , /#()0)%'1 0"%&*/ 2# ,3,4# %5 ,'/ 6,-# )'6% ,((%&'6 ,'7 )+8*)(,6)%'0 6",6 +,7

,4)0# 54%+ 6"# 9&+,' :)."60 ;(6 <==>? @'/#4 6"# ;(61 )6 )0 &'*,35&* 5%4 , 8&2*)( ,&6"%4)67 0&(" ,0 ;4&'

A)064)(6 $%&'()* 6% ,(6 )' , +,''#41 3")(" )0 )'(%+8,6)2*# 3)6" 6"# B&4%8#,' $%'C#'6)%' %' 9&+,'

:)."60?

$%'0)/#4,6)%' ",0 2##' 08#()5)(,**7 .)C#' 6% ;46)(*# > D4)."6 6% 4#08#(6 84)C,6# ,'/ 5,+)*7 *)5#E ,'/ ;46)(*# <

%5 6"# F)406 G4%6%(%* D84%6#(6)%' %5 84%8#467E? H6 )0 '%6 (%'0)/#4#/ 6",6 6"# 4#(%++#'/,6)%' 5%4 ,884%C,* %5

6"# .4,'6 %5 8#4+)00)%' )' 6")0 (,0# )'6#45#4#0 &'4#,0%',2*7 3)6" ,'7 *%(,* 4#0)/#'60I 4)."6 6% 4#08#(6 5%4

6"#)4 84)C,6# ,'/ 5,+)*7 *)5# ,'/ "%+#1 #J(#86 )'0%5,4 ,0 )6 )0 '#(#00,47 6% 84%6#(6 6"# 4)."60 ,'/ 54##/%+0

%5 %6"#40 D)' 6")0 (,0#1 6"# 4)."60 %5 6"# ,88*)(,'6E? !"# $%&'()* )0 ,*0% 8#4+)66#/ 6% (%'64%* 6"# &0# %5

84%8#467 )' ,((%4/,'(# 3)6" 6"# .#'#4,* )'6#4#06 ,'/ 6"# 4#(%++#'/,6)%' 5%4 ,884%C,* )0 (%'0)/#4#/ 6%

2# , 84%8%46)%',6# 4#08%'0# 6% 6"# 0&2+)66#/ ,88*)(,6)%' 2,0#/ %' 6"# (%'0)/#4,6)%'0 0#6 %&6 )' 6")0

4#8%46?

A&67 &'/#4 6"# BK&,*)6)#0 ;(6 LM<M

H' ,00#00)'. 6")0 84%8%0,* 6"# 5%**%3)'. )+8,(60 ",C# 2##' )/#'6)5)#/ &8%' 6"%0# 8#%8*# 3)6" 6"#

5%**%3)'. 84%6#(6#/ (",4,(6#4)06)(0 D,.#1 /)0,2)*)671 .#'/#4 4#,00).'+#'61 +,44),.# ,'/ ()C)* 8,46'#40")81

84#.','(7 ,'/ +,6#4')671 4,(#1 4#*).)%' %4 2#*)#51 0#J %4 0#J&,* %4)#'6,6)%'E?

!"# 84%8%0,* 3%&*/ ",C# , '#&64,* )+8,(6 %' 6"# 84%6#(6#/ (",4,(6#4)06)(0?

;GG:NOB $NPAH!HNP;QQR

< !"# /#C#*%8+#'6 "#4#27 ,884%C#/ 0",** 2# (,44)#/ %&6 )' 064)(6 ,((%4/,'(# 3)6" 6"# 5%**%3)'.

,884%C#/ 8*,'0S

T)6# Q,7%&6 D$%*%&4#/E GQULUML :#C 9

!#'&4# Q,7%&6 GQULUMV :#C F

W#/4%%+0 Q,7%&6 GQULUMV

W&)*/)'. X,6#4),*0 Q,7%&6 GQUMLUMY :#C Z

W%&'/,47 X,6#4),*0 Q,7%&6 GQUMLUM[ :#C Z

G,4-)'. \ W)'0 \ $7(*# T6%4,.# Q,7%&6 GQUMLUM] :#C F

Q,'/0(,8# Z#'#4,* ;44,'.#+#'6 G*,' AAY>YQM< :#C Z

A#6,)*#/ G*,'6)'. G*,'̂T"##6 < %5 Y AAY>YQMV :#C A

A#6,)*#/ G*,'6)'. G*,'̂T"##6 L %5 Y AAY>YQM_ :#C A

A#6,)*#/ G*,'6)'. G*,'̂T"##6 V %5 Y AAY>YQMY :#C A

A#6,)*#/ G*,'6)'. G*,'̂T"##6 _ %5 Y AAY>YQM[ :#C A

A#6,)*#/ G*,'6)'. G*,'̂T"##6 Y %5 Y AAY>YQM] :#C A

< W#/ W&'.,*%3 U !78# ; U T#+) DW4)(-E GQU9!U<;̂TUM<

< W#/ W&'.,*%3 U !78# W U A#6,("#/ G*,'0 GQU9!U<ŴTUM<

< W#/ W&'.,*%3 U !78# W U A#6,("#/ DW4)(-E GQU9!U<ŴTUML

< W#/ W&'.,*%3 U !78# W U T#+) DW4)(- ̀&%)' \ F*)'6E GQU9!U<ŴTUMV

L W#/ W&'.,*%3 U !78# ; U A#6,("#/ G*,'0 GQU9!UL;̂AUM<

L W#/ W&'.,*%3 U !78# ; U A#6,("#/ DW4)(- ̀&%)' \ F*)'6E GQU9!UL;̂AUML

Page 36



 !"#$!"%&'()*+!,!-./#!0!,!1#2(34#$!5"6738!1#2(7)7&'9!:;,<-, 0=1,>?

 !"#$!"%&'()*+!,!-./#!0!,!@#A7!:)(&B!:;,<-, 0=@,>C

 !"#$!"%&'()*+!,!-./#!0!,!@#A7!5"6738!D%*7&!E!F)7&29!:;,<-, 0=@,>C

 !"#$!<*%B#!,!-./#!0!,!@#A7!5"6738!D%*7&!E!F)7&29!:;,<-, "=@,>C

 !"#$!<*%B#!,!-./#!0!,!@#A7!5"6738!D%*7&!E!G#&$#69!:;,<-, "=@,> 

 !"#$!<*%B#!,!-./#!0!,!@#A7!5"67389!:;,<-, "=@,>?

 !"#$!<*%B#!,!-./#!0!,!@#A7!5"6738!1#2(7)7&'9!:;,<-, "=@,>H

 !"#$!<*%B#!,!-./#!0!,!-#66(3#!5"6738!1#2(7)7&'9!:;,<-, "=@,>I

?!"#$!<*%B#!,!-./#!0!,!@#A7!5"6738!D%*7&!E!F)7&29!:;,<-,?0=@,>C

?!"#$!<*%B#!,!-./#!0!,!@#A7!5"6738!D%*7&!E!G#&$#69!:;,<-,?0=@,> 

?!"#$!<*%B#!,!-./#!0!,!@#A7!5"67389!:;,<-,?0=@,>?

?!"#$!<*%B#!,!-./#!"!5JC9!,!1#2(34#$!5"6738!1#2(7)7&'9!:;,<-,?"=1,>C

?!"#$!<*%B#!,!-./#!"!5J 9!,!1#2(34#$!5"6738!1#2(7)7&'9!:;,<-,?"=1,> 

?!"#$!<*%B#!,!-./#!"!5J?9!,!@#A7!5"6738!D%*7&!E!F)7&29!:;,<-,?"=@,>C

?!"#$!<*%B#!,!-./#!"!5J?9!,!@#A7!5"6738!D%*7&!E!G#&$#69!:;,<-,?"=@,> 

?!"#$!<*%B#!,!-./#!"!5J?9!,!@#A7!5"6738!1#2(7)7&'9!:;,<-,?"=@,>?

?!"#$!<*%B#!,!-./#!K!,!@#A7!5"6738!D%*7&!E!F)7&29!:;,<-,?K=@,>C

?!"#$!<*%B#!,!-./#!K!,!@#A7!5"67389!:;,<-,?K=@,> !G#L!0

?!"#$!<*%B#!,!-./#!K!,!@#A7!5"6738!1#2(7)7&'9!:;,<-,?K=@,>?!G#L!0

?!"#$!<*%B#!,!-./#!1!,!@#A7!5"6738!1#2(7)7&'9!:;,<-,?1=@,>C

H!"#$!<*%B#!,!-./#!0!5JC9!,!@#A7!5"6738!1#2(7)7&'9!:;,<-,H0=@,>C!G#L!0

H!"#$!<*%B#!,!-./#!0!5JC9!,!-#66(3#!5"6738!1#2(7)7&'9!:;,<-,H0=-,>C!G#L!0

H!"#$!<*%B#!,!-./#!0!5J 9!,!@#A7!5"6738!D%*7&!E!F)7&29!:;,<-,H0=@,> !G#L!0

G#(B*&M!F*6!24#!(L*7$(&3#!*N!$*%O2!(&$!7&!24#!7&2#6#B2B!*N!(A#&72.!(&$!24#!#&L76*&A#&2!7&

(33*6$(&3#!+724!06%&!;*3()!:)(&!/*)737#B!;0P!1QCR!1!@:CR!(&$!1!1QC!*N!24#!06%&!;*3()

:)(&S

 :67*6!2*!*33%/(27*&!*N!(&.!$+#))7&'!4#6#O.!/#6A722#$R!$#2(7)B!*N!24#!3.3)#!B2*6('#!(&$!O7&

B2*6('#!B4())!O#!B%OA722#$!2*!(&$!(//6*L#$!7&!+6727&'!O.!24#!;*3()!:)(&&7&'!0%24*672.S!P*

7&$7L7$%()!$+#))7&'!B4())!O#!*33%/7#$!%&27)!24#!O7&!B2*6('#!(&$!3.3)#!B2*6('#!4(L#!O##&

/6*L7$#$!7&!(33*6$(&3#!+724!24#!(//6*L#$!$#2(7)!N*6!24(2!6#B/#327L#!$+#))7&'S!-4#!B/(3#B

/6*L7$#$!B4())!O#!6#2(7&#$!7&!/#6/#2%72.S

G#(B*&M!-*!/6*L7$#!()2#6&(27L#!26(L#)!*/27*&B!2*!24#!%B#!*N!24#!3(6!7&!(33*6$(&3#!+724!06%&

;*3()!:)(&!/*)73.!-!@:CS

? :67*6!2*!24#!*33%/(27*&!*N!(&.!$+#))7&'R!24#!N**2/(24!(&$!N**2O67$'#!3*&&#327*&!2*!24#!($T(3#&2

$#L#)*/A#&2!B72#!5@%AA#6!;(&#9!A%B2!O#!7A/)#A#&2#$!(&$!*/#6(27*&()S!-4#!N**2O67$'#!B4())

O#!A(7&2(7&#$!7&!/#6/#2%72.S

G#(B*&M!-*!#&B%6#!($#U%(2#!3763%)(6!+()8B!(&$!6*%2#B!7&!)7&#!+724!24#!A727'(27*&!N*6!24#

<(O72(2B!G#'%)(27*&B!0BB#BBA#&2!5<G09!0//6*/67(2#!0BB#BBA#&2!5009!7&!(33*6$(&3#!+724

:*)73.!VPJ!1QC!*N!24#!06%&!;*3()!:)(&S

H -4#!$#L#)*/A#&2!B4())!&*2!O#!*33%/7#$!%&27)!24#!(33#BB!2*!24#!B72#!(B!/#6!24#!033#BB!:)(&!:;,

> ,>W!G#L!K!4(B!O##&!7A/)#A#&2#$!(&$!7B!N%)).!*/#6(27*&()!(&$!'7L#B!(33#BB!2*!:('4(A

G*($S

G#(B*&M!-*!#&B%6#!24(2!*33%/(&2B!4(L#!($#U%(2#!L#473%)(6!(33#BB!2*!24#!47'4+(.S

I P*!7&$7L7$%()!$+#))7&'!4#6#O.!(//6*L#$!B4())!O#!*33%/7#$!%&27)!24#!*/27*&()!6#U%76#A#&2!N*6

6#B26732#$!+(2#6!3*&B%A/27*&!7&!:(62!X!*N!24#!"%7)$7&'!G#'%)(27*&B!(B!$#A*&B26(2#$!246*%'4

24#!+(2#6!3()3%)(2*6!4(B!O##&!3*A/)7#$!+724!N*6!24(2!$+#))7&'S

Page 37



 

 

!"#$%&' (% )*+,%-" ./" $0$.#)&#1)2).3 %4 ./" 56"22)&7$ )& #88%,5#&8" 6)./ +%2)8)"$ 9:: ;<=

#&5 > ?@= %4 ./" A,0& B%8#2 <2#&C

D <,)%, .% ./" 8%**"&8"*"&. %4 ./" 5"-"2%+*"&.E # @).)7#.)%& B#&5$8#+" </#$)&7 <2#& $/#22

1" $01*).."5 .% #&5 #++,%-"5 )& 6,).)&7 13 ./" B%8#2 <2#&&)&7 A0./%,).3C (/" 5".#)2$ $/#22

)&8205" # .)*".#12" %4 6/"& +2#&.)&7 F/"57)&7 #&5 .,""$G #&5 4"&8)&7 %& ./" &%,./",&E 6"$.",&

#&5 $%0./",& 1%0&5#,)"$ )$ .% 1" )*+2"*"&."5 )& ,"2#.)%& .% ./" 8%**"&8"*"&. %4

5"-"2%+*"&. #&5 +,"H8%&$.,08.)%& #8.)-).)"$ #&5 5".#)2$ $/%6)&7 ./" *"#$0,"$ .% +,%."8. #&5

*#)&.#)& ./" 6%,I$ 50,)&7 ./" 8%&$.,08.)%& +/#$"C (/" #++,%-"5 5".#)2 6)22 1" )*+2"*"&."5 )&

4022C

!"#$%&' (% "&$0," #5"J0#." *).)7#.)%& +2#&.)&7 )& %,5", .% 8%*+23 6)./ ./" #++,%-"5 K#1).#.$

!"702#.)%&$ A$$"$$*"&. FK!AG A++,%+,)#." A$$"$$*"&. FAAG )& #88%,5#&8" 6)./ <%2)83 9LM

?@= %4 ./" A,0& B%8#2 <2#&C

N <,)%, .% ./" %880+#.)%& %4 #&3 56"22)&7E 5".#)2$ %4 #22 $)7&#7" #&5 K%*"%6&", O&4%,*#.)%&

<#8I$ +",.#)&)&7 .% ./" "508#.)%& %4 ./" <#7/#* K#,1%0, $)." $/#22 1" $01*).."5 .% #&5

#++,%-"5 )& 6,).)&7 13 ./" B%8#2 <2#&&)&7 A0./%,).3C ?".#)2$ $/#22 )&8205" ./" 2%8#.)%&$E

#++"#,#&8" #&5 8%&."&.$ %4 ./" $)7&#7" #&5 O&4%,*#.)%& <#8I$E #&5 $/#22 #2$% 1" )& 2)&" 6)./

./" *"$$#7)&7 70)5"2)&"$ %4 ./" <#7/#* K#,1%0, ;.,#."7)8 A88"$$ @#&#7"*"&. #&5

@%&).%,)&7 <2#&C (/" #++,%-"5 5".#)2$ $/#22 1" )*+2"*"&."5 )& 4022 +,)%, .% ./" %880+#.)%& %4

#&3 56"22)&7 #&5 *#)&.#)&"5 )& +",+".0).3 0&2"$$ %./",6)$" #7,""5 )& 6,).)&7 13 ./" B%8#2

<2#&&)&7 A0./%,).3C

!"#$%&' (% "&$0," #5"J0#." *).)7#.)%& +2#&.)&7 )& %,5", .% 8%*+23 6)./ ./" #++,%-"5 K#1).#.$

!"702#.)%&$ A$$"$$*"&. FK!AG A++,%+,)#." A$$"$$*"&. FAAG )& #88%,5#&8" 6)./ <%2)83 9LM

?@= #&5 9LM ?@P %4 ./" A,0& B%8#2 <2#&C

Q OLRS!@A(OM9' L%." ./#. ./" <,"8#0.)%&#,3 !"+.)2" *"#$0,"$ $+"8)4)"5 6)./)& ./" 0+5#."5

98%2%73 L%."E 98%$0++%,. S8.%1", PTPP $/#22 1" )&8205"5 6)./)& ./" $01*)$$)%& 4%, :%&5).)%&

=U %4 ./" <VPUV=NVSW( F,"2#.)&7 .% #& 98%2%7)8#2 @#&#7"*"&. #&5 @).)7#.)%& <2#& #&5

;8/"502" %4 >%,I$GC

(/" 5%80*"&.$ ,"2#.)&7 .% ./)$ #++2)8#.)%& 8#& 1" -)"6"5 %& ./" A,0& ?)$.,)8. :%0&8)2 6"1$)."  13 7%)&7

.%  /..+$'VV666C#,0&C7%-C0IV6""I23H2)$.$ #&5 "&.",)&7 ./" #++2)8#.)%& ,"4","&8" %, 5),"8.23 13 82)8I)&7 %&

./)$ 2)&IC

Page 38



 

 

!"#$% &' ()$ *+%'"',$ -.+/$0 1"223'4 53() 2$+13##3&' &6 ()$ 7&'(+&88$+ &6 9$+ :";$#(0<# -("(3&'$+0 *663,$ = 7+&5' 7&20+34)(>

?'".()&+3#$% +$2+&%.,(3&' 3'6+3'4$# 7+&5' 7&20+34)( "'% 1"0 8$"% (& 2+&#$,.(3&' &+ ,3/38 2+&,$$%3'4#>  @+.' A3#(+3,( 7&.',38

BCCCBDEDF> GCBH

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank



 

!"#$ %&'() &* %'++,- !"#,

"#$ .,/( &* 0"1)"+ 2&"$

0"1)"+

344-&5"6 &* -,/,-5,$ +"((,-/ 7"44,"-"#8,9 6":&'(9 6"#$/8"4;#1 "#$ /8"6,<

*&66&=;#1 &'(6;#, 46"##;#1 0,-+;//;&# 0>?@A>?B>CDE *&- (), ,-,8(;&# &* FGA H&I

$=,66;#1/9 (&1,(),- =;() 4'J6;8 &4,# /4"8,9 46": /4"8,9 $-";#"1,9 4"-K;#1 "#$

"//&8;"(,$ ;#*-"/(-'8('-,9 6"#$/8"4,9 "#8;66"-: "#$ /;(, 4-,4"-"(;&# =&-K/9 =;()

"88,// &** 0"1)"+ 2&"$I E);/ /;(, +": "**,8( " 0'J6;8 2;1)( &* .":I

E);/ "446;8"(;&# ="/ 4-,/,#(,$ (& (), 06"##;#1 L&++;((,, &# ?F M,8,+J,- NANFI O,+J,-/ -,/&65,$ (&

$,*,- (), "446;8"(;&# ;# &-$,- (& /,8'-, 86"-;*;8"(;&# "/ (& (), ),;1)( &* (), 4-&4&/,$ $=,66;#1/ "#$ (),

;+4"8( ();/ =&'6$ )"5, &# (), /,((;#1 &* %( E)&+"/ " P,8K,( L)'-8)I

C**;8,-/ '#$,-/(&&$ ()"( (), 8&#8,-#/ -,6"(,$ (& (), ),;1)( &* (), $=,66;#1/ "#$ (), ;+4"8( ();/ =&'6$

)"5, &# 5;,=/9 /4,8;*;8"66: *-&+ (), 02C.9 (&="-$/ %( E)&+"/ " P,8K,( L)'-8)I E),-,*&-,9 (),

"446;8"(;&# ;/ '#8)"#1,$9 )&=,5,- *'-(),- ;#*&-+"(;5, +"(,-;"6 )"/ J,,# 4-&5;$,$ J: (), "446;8"#( ;#

&-$,- (& 5;/'"66: $,+&#/(-"(, (), ),;1)( &* (), $=,66;#1/ "#$ (), ;+4"8( (), $,5,6&4+,#( =&'6$ )"5, &#

5;,=/ &* (), 8)'-8)I

E), -;$1, ),;1)( &* (), (=& /(&-,: $=,66;#1/ =;();# (), /&'(),-# 4"-8,6 +,"/'-, J,(=,,# QI@+ "#$ R+

=;() "# ,"5,/ ),;1)( &* @IS+ "#$ GIN+I E), -;$1, ),;1)( &* (), &#, "#$ )"6* /(&-,: $=,66;#1/9 =);8) "-,

6&8"(,$ "$T"8,#( (& 0"1)"+ 2&"$ (& (), /&'(),"/(9 +,"/'-, J,(=,,# BIG+ "#$ Q+ =;() "# ,"5,/ ),;1)(

&* J,(=,,# NI@G "#$ NIR+I

E), L&'#8;6U/ L&#/,-5"(;&# C**;8,- )"$ "6-,"$: 4-&5;$,$ 8&++,#(/ &# (), -,/,-5,$ +"((,-/ "446;8"(;&#9

J'( ;( ="/ 5,-J"66: 8&#*;-+,$ ()"( (),/, 8&++,#(/ )"$ ("K,# ;#(& "88&'#( (), ),;1)( &* (), $=,66;#1/ "/

4"-( &* (), "//,//+,#(I

%;#8, (), "446;8"(;&# ="/ 4-,/,#(,$ (& 8&++;((,,9 (), H00V %,4(,+J,- NANF )"/ #&= J,,# -,5;/,$ (&

H00V M,8,+J,- NANF9 "#$ (),-,*&-, /&+, 4"-"1-"4) #'+J,-/ =;();# (), &**;8,- -,4&-( )"5, 8)"#1,$I

V&- 86"-;(:9 4"-"1-"4) NAN ="/ $;-,8(6: W'&(,$ =;();# (), &**;8,- -,4&-(9 "#$ ;/ #&= 4"-"1-"4) NAQ =;() #&

8)"#1, (& (), =&-$;#1 &* /";$ 4"-"1-"4)I .),-, -,*,-,#8, ;/ +"$, (& (), H00V "/ " =)&6,9 (), -,6,5"#(

4"-"1-"4)/ $& #&( ;+4"8( '4&# (), -,8&++,#$"(;&# J: &**;8,-/I

Page 41

Agenda Item 7



 

!""#$%&'$() *(+ ,-./0-1.-234

25&6() 7(8 '95 :";&'5 - <9&)=56

>95 &""#$%&)'6 9&?5 "8(?$;5; & )@AB58 (7 A$)(8 %9&)=56 '( '95 #&C(@'D &); #&);6%&"$)= ;5'&$#6 $)

&%%(8;&)%5 E$'9 %(AA5)'6 85%5$?5; BC F4<< G$=9E&C6H

.H I:2>G32 23,2343*>!>JK*4+

! 7@8'958 L M)(HN (BO5%'$()6D &); . M)(HN %(AA5)' 9&?5 B55) A&;5H >95 7(##(E$)= &;;$'$()&# A&''586 9&?5

B55) 8&$65;+

P K""(65 '95 5Q$' "($)' (7 '95 7(('"&'9 78(A '95 56'&'5 B5$)= #(%&'5; (""(6$'5 &) 5Q$6'$)= "8("58'C P '9585

$6 &#85&;C & "&'9 (@'6$;5 '95 "8("58'C B@$#' BC R85E 4A$'9H F$'9 )( 6'855' #$=9'$)= '9585 E$## B5 "('5)'$&#

7(8 &)'$P6(%$&# &%'$?$'CH

P <#@A"5; 6(%$&# 9(@6$)=H

1H :,R!>3R <K*4:S>!>JK* 234,K*434+

*&'@8&# 3)=#&);+ *( KBO5%'$()H *&'@8&# 3)=#&); 9&?5 85?$5E5; '95 "8("(6&#6 &#()=6$;5 '95 <(@)%$#T6

!""8("8$&'5 !66566A5)' MG&B$'&'6 25=@#&'$() !66566A5)'NH >95C %()%@8 E$'9 '95 856@#'6 (7 '95 <(@)%$#T6

!!D &); &6 & 856@#' 9&; )( (BO5%'$() '( '95 "8("(6&#6 &6 E$'9 A$'$=&'$() '95C E(@#; )(' 856@#' $) & #$U5#C

6$=)$7$%&)' &;?5865 5775%' () '95 6'&'@6 (8 V@&#$7C$)= 75&'@856 (7 '95 ,&=9&A G&8B(@8 4,!H

F4<< G$=9E&C6+ *( (BO5%'$() 6@BO5%' '( %();$'$()6H >95 A&O(8$'C (7 %(AA5)'6 9&?5 B55) &;;85665;D

&); 85V@56' '9&' &""8("8$&'5 %();$'$()6 &85 $)%#@;5; '( 65%@85 ;5'&$#6 $) 85#&'$() '( B$%C%#5 6'(8&=5D &);

'95 "8(?$6$() (7 "&8U$) $) #$)5 E$'9 (%%@"&'$()H

W855)6"&%5 K77$%58+ *( (BO5%'$()H 4(7' #&);6%&"$)= ;5'&$#6 &85 &""8("8$&'5 '( '95 #(%&'$() &); 6@77$%$5)'#C

;5'&$#5;H F$'9 85=&8;6 '( "#&C "8(?$6$() '95C ;( )(' 85%(AA5); &""8(?&# (7 '95 6@BA$''5; "#&)6H

G(E5?58D $' 9&6 B55) %()7$8A5; '9&' '95C &85 %(A7(8'&B#5 7(8 '9565 ;5'&$#6 '( B5 65%@85; '98(@=9 '95

45%'$() .XYH

3%(#(=C K77$%58+ *( (BO5%'$()H 4(7' #&);6%&"$)= ;5'&$#6 &85 &%%5"'&B#5H

0H <K*RJ>JK* !Z3*RZ3*>4

<();$'$() . 9&6 B55) &A5);5; '( $)%#@;5 '95 85#5?&)' ;8&E$)= )@AB586 &); <();$'$() 1 9&6 B55)

&;;5; '( 856'8$%' (%%@"&'$() @)'$# 6@%9 '$A5 &6 ?59$%@#&8 &%%566 9&6 B55) "8(?$;5; '( 658?5 '95 &;O($)$)=

;5?5#("A5)'H

<();$'$() .. 9&6 B55) &;;5; '( 65%@85 ;5'&$#6 (7 '95 B(@);&8C '85&'A5)' 7(8 '95 &##('A5)'6H

K77$%58 <(AA5)'6 () 85"(8' @";&'56+

.H >95 7(('"&'9 E$## "8(?$;5 %())5%'$() B5'E55) 5Q$6'$)= ;5?5#("A5)' &); '95 &""#$%&'$() 6$'5H >9$6 $6

&%%5"'&B#5 &); E(@#; )(' 856@#' $) @)&%%5"'&B#C &;?5865 $A"&%'6 () 856$;5)'$&# &A5)$'C (8 B5 #$U5#C '(

=5)58&'5 &;;$'$()&# &)'$P6(%$&# B59&?$(@8H >95 "8("(65; &77(8;&B#5 9(@6$)= $6 %()6$;585; '( B5

Page 42



 

 

!""#$"#%!&'() *%+&#%,-&'* !.#$++ &/' +%&' %0 !..$#*!0.' 1%&/ "$(%.) 23 456 $7 &/' 2#-0 8$.!( 5(!09

69 :$;;'0&+ 7#$; <4:: 3%=/1!)+ !#' 0$&'* !0* &/' .$0*%&%$0+ !#' !""#$"#%!&' !0* !+ +-./ /!>'

,''0 %0.$#"$#!&'* !+ "!#& $7 &/' #'.$;;'0*!&%$0 ?:$0*%&%$0 @ !0* AB9

@9 C$ .$;;'0&+9

9

DE4:FG5HGIC IJ 2558G:2HGIC H/' *'+.#%"&%$0 $7 *'>'($";'0& 1!+ !;'0*'* *-#%0= &/' (%7'

$7 &/' !""(%.!&%$0 1%&/ &/' &$&!( 0-;,'# $7 -0%&+ ,'%0= #'*-.'*

7#$; @KL &$ @LM *1'((%0=+9

4GHE 2FE2 2""#$N%;!&'() OP9A@ /'.&!#'+9

FE4GDECHG28 DEQE8I5RECH

DEC4GHS

2""#$N%;!&'() OT *1'((%0=+ "'# /'.&!#'9

HI5IUF253S 5#'*$;%0!0&() 7(!&9

HFEE4 C$0' $7 !0) +%=0%7%.!0.' !77'.&'* ,) &/' "#$"$+'*

*'>'($";'0&9

VIWCD2FS HFE2HRECH H/' '!+&'#0 ,$-0*!#) $7 &/' +%&' !*X!.'0& &$ 5!=/!; F$!*

7'!&-#'+ ;!&-#' /'*='#$1 !0* &#'' "(!0&%0= ;'!+-#%0=

,'&1''0 6; !0* L; %0 /'%=/&9 H/' 1'+&'#0Y +$-&/'#0 !0*

0$#&/'#0 ,$-0*!#%'+ $7 &/' +%&' 7'!&-#'+ ($1 "(!0&%0= $7

,'&1''0 M9L; !0* O9L; %0 /'%=/&9

4GHE :32F2:HEFG4HG:4 H/' 'N%+&%0= (!0* -+' %+ ! =#''07%'(* +%&' %0 !=#%.-(&-#!( -+'Y

!*X!.'0& &$ &/' ,-%(& -" !#'! ,$-0*!#) $7 5!=/!;9 H/'

!""(%.!&%$0 +%&' %+ +%&-!&'* &$ &/' 1'+& $7 5!=/!; F$!*9

J-#&/'# !=#%.-(&-#!( (!0* %+ +%&-!&'* &$ &/' 1'+& $7 &/'

!""(%.!&%$0 +%&'Y 1%&/ &/' 5!=/!; 3!#,$-# +%&-!&'*

!""#$N%;!&'() ZOA; &$ &/' +$-&/[1'+&9

4-;;'# 8!0' %+ +%&-!&'* &$ &/' 0$#&/ $7 &/' !""(%.!&%$0 +%&'

Page 43



 

!"# $% $#&"'$($&# !% ! )*+,$- .$/0' 1( 2!3 4).5267 8 ).52

!,%1 -91%%&% '0& %$'& (91: &!%' '1 ;&%' ;0$-0 ,&!#% '1;!9#%

'0& )!/0!: <!9+1*97 8#=1$"$"/ '0& ;&%'&9" +1*"#!93 1( '0&

!>>,$-!'$1" %$'& $% ?0*9-0 @!9'1" <1*%& ;0$-0 $% -*99&"',3 '0&

%*+=&-' 1( ! 9&%&9A&# :!''&9% !>>,$-!'$1" 4)BCDEBFFB.GH6 (19

'0& &9&-'$1" 1( *> '1 IJ #;&,,$"/% *"#&9 >,!""$"/ 9&(&9&"-&

)BFJBCKB5LM7

M0& A!%' :!=19$'3 1( '0& %$'& $% $#&"'$($&# +3 '0& G"A$91":&"'

8/&"-3 !% (!,,$"/ ;$'0$" N,11# O1"& C7 <1;&A&9P !" !9&! 1(

'0& %$'& :&!%*9$"/ !>>91Q$:!'&,3 R7SF 0&-'!9&% $% $#&"'$($&# !%

N,11# O1"& D !"# !" &A&" %:!,,&9 >19'$1" 1( '0& %$'&

4:&!%*9$"/ !>>91Q$:!'&,3 R7TT0&-'!9&%6 $% $#&"'$($&# !% (!,,$"/

;$'0$" N,11# O1"& F7 U!9$1*% #9!$"!/& #$'-0&% !9& >9&%&"'

;0$-0 -91%% '0& %$'& !"# 9*" !,1"/ '0& +1*"#!9$&%7

8 >19'$1" 1( '0& %$'& :&!%*9$"/ !>>91Q$:!'&,3 JTS7C:F $%

$#&"'$($&# !% (!,,$"/ ;$'0$" JRR: 1( '0& )!/0!: <!9+1*9 HHHV

;$'0 '0& 9&:!$"#&9 1( '0& %$'& (!,,$"/ ;$'0$" '0& JW: X1"& (91:

)!/0!: <!9+1*97 )!/0!: <!9+1*9 $% !,%1 #&%$/"!'&# !% !

H>&-$!, )91'&-'$1" 89&! 4H)86 !"# .!:%!9 H$'&7

?<8.8?MG. 5N Y5?8YVMZ M0& ,1-!,$'3 1( '0& %$'& $% >9&#1:$"!"',3 9*9!, $" -0!9!-'&97

<1;&A&9P #&A&,1>:&"' $% >9&%&"' '1 '0& &!%' 1( )!/0!: .1!#

;0$-0 $% -0!9!-'&9$%&# >9&#1:$"!"',3 +3 ';1 %'19&3 #;&,,$"/%

!"# -0!,&' +*"/!,1;% 1( A!9$1*% #&%$/"% !"# %'3,&% ;0$-0 !9&

%&' +!-W (91: '0& 0$/0;!37 N*9'0&9 ';1 %'19&3 #&A&,1>:&"' $%

%$'*!'&# '1 '0& "19'0 1( '0& !>>,$-!'$1" %$'& 4'1 '0& ;&%' 1(

)!/0!: .1!#67

@*% %'1>% !9& %$'*!'&# '1 '0& &!%' 1( '0& %$'& !,1"/ )!/0!:

.1!# !"# '0& !>>,$-!'$1" %$'& ;$,, %*991*"# )!/0!: U$,,!/&

<!,, ;0$-0 $% %$'*!'&# '1 '0& ;&%' 1( )!/0!: .1!#7 20$'&

.1-W% 4FC )!/0!: .1!#6 ;0$-0 !+*'% '0& &!%'&9" +1*"#!93

1( '0& %$'& $% ! [9!#& VV Y$%'&# @*$,#$"/7

)BCJJBFCB.GH 8>>91A!, 1( 9&%&9A&# :!''&9% 4,!31*'P %-!,&P !>>&!9!"-&

!"# ,!"#%-!>$"/6 (1,,1;$"/ 1*',$"& -1"%&"'

)BCTRBCIB5LM (19 '0& \,1-!, -&"'9&\ >!9-&, ;0$-0

-1:>9$%&% 1( 9&'!$,P -1::*"$'3 !"# -1::&9-$!, *%&%P FR

]1 9&%$#&"'$!, !>!9':&"'% !"# ! KR +&# -!9& 01:&7

8>>91A&?1"#$'$1"!,,3

DĈRĴFF

)BCTRBCIB5LM 5*',$"& !>>,$-!'$1" (19 !--&%% 1",3 ̂ :$Q&# *%&

#&A&,1>:&"' -1:>9$%$"/ 1( *> '1 TRR #;&,,$"/%P ! -!9&

01:& ;$'0 *> '1 KR +&#%P ! Y1-!, ?&"'9& -1:>9$%$"/ *>

'1 FRRR%_: 1( 8CB8FB8DB̀CB%*$ /&"&9$% (,119%>!-&P

>91A$%$1" 1( ,!"# (19 ! CNG >9$:!93 %-011, 4;$'0 %*(($-$&"'

%>!-& '1 &"%*9& '0!' $' $% &Q>!"#!+,& '1 FNG6P >91A$%$1"

8>> ?1"# ;$'0 HCRI

FF̂CĈCS

Page 44



 

!" #$%& "!' $ ()!*+ ,*+- ($"./*$'&0%/ !" #$%& +! ,.#1 #0%2

+,. (0+. +! +,. 3$/,$4 5$'6!*' 78)#. 9!*+. : !+,.'

)!44*%0+8 *(.( 0%)#*&0%/ 1*6#0) !1.% (1$). :

$##!+4.%+( ;0+, (!4. 4$++.'( '.(.'<.&=

>*+#0%. 1#$%%0%/ 1.'40((0!% ;$( /'$%+.& "!' +,. .'.)+0!% !" *1 +! ?@@ &;.##0%/( *%&.' '.".'.%).

3AB?@ABCA>DE= F (*6(.G*.%+ '.(.'<.& 4$++.'( '.#$+0%/ +! +,. #!)$# ).%+'. ;$( $11'!<.& *%&.' '.".'.%).

3ABHHAIBA9JK=

3FL5FM 3F9NK5 7>DO7NP Q >6R.)+0!% "!' +,. "!##!;0%/ '.$(!%(S

Q T0.;( !" K+ E,!4$( F U.)2.+ 7,*'), $%& 7,0),.(+.' )$+,.&'$# $'. %!+ '.(1.)+.&=

Q K+$%&$'& !" &.(0/% !" 1'!1.'+0.( ;.'. 1!!' Q &;.##0%/( ;.'. 6!V8 $%& '!!" ,.0/,+( +!! ,0/,=

Q N%(*""0)0.%+ ),$'$)+.' &.+$0# $%& +!! 4*), '.& 6'0)2=

Q O! "'!%+$/.( +! &;.##0%/(=

Q ><.'&.<.#!14.%+ $%& )'$41.& #$8!*+=

Q P$)2 !" '.(1.)+ "!' T0##$/. W.(0/% K+$+.4.%+=

Q P$%& '$0(0%/ 68 B=H4 ;0## ,$<. "*'+,.' #$%&()$1. 041$)+(=

Q O! 6*%/$#!;( 0% +,. &.<.#!14.%+=

Q N%(*""0)0.%+ &.+$0# !" +,. $##!+4.%+(=

Q U'.%+ L..(. 40+0/$+0!% 1#$% *%'.#0$6#.=

Q X0&.' (10%. '!$& %..&.& &*. +! +'$""0) "'!4 (),!!# $%& '.(0&.%+(A1$'0%/ .+)=

Q W.<.#!14.%+ %..&( +! 1'!<0&. $ )8)#. '!*+.=

Q W'$0%$/. 0%"!'4$+0!% 0%(*""0)0.%+=

Y*'+,.' )!%(*#+$+0!% ;$( '.G*.(+.& $"+.' $4.%&.& 1#$%(- ;,0), +,. 37 ,$<. $&&.& "*'+,.' )!44.%+( +!

+,.0' !6R.)+0!%- 0% $&&0+0!% +! +,!(. $6!<.S

Q W'$0%$/. $''$%/.4.%+( ,$<. %!+ 6..% 1#$%%.& ;0+, %.0/,6!*'0%/ &.<.#!14.%+(=

Q Y!!+1$+, 0( (,!;% ;,0), )'!((.( +,. KDWK $'.$- ;,0), 4$8 6.)!4. (*64.'/.& $+ +04.(=

Q Y!!+1$+, 0( $)).((.& <0$ K*44.' P$%.- ;,0), +,.'. 0( %! "!!+1$+, !' #0/,+0%/ !% +,0( (0&. $%& 0(

&$%/.'!*(=

Q O! )!%%.)+0<0+8 +! +,. 3>K +! 6. &.#0<.'.& $( 1$'+ !" +,. K*44.' Y0.#&( &.<.#!14.%+=

Q N%(*""0)0.%+ <0(0+!' 1$'20%/=

Q P$8!*+ &!.( %!+ $))!44!&$+. '."*(. +'*)2(=

Q P$%&()$10%/ )!*#& 6. 041'!<.& Z#$'/. $4!*%+( !" ,$'&(+$%&0%/[=

Q F)).(( 0( (,!;% "!' +,. 1'!1!(.& 7,*'), U$'+!% &.<.#!14.%+ $%& &!.( %!+ (*11!'+ $)).(( "!' $% *1

+! $% $&&0+0!%$# CH *%0+( +,'!*/, +,. (10%. '!$&=

Q 3#$8 .G*014.%+ #$)2( 04$/0%$+0!%= Y*'+,.' &.+$0# 0( '.G*0'.& +! .%(*'. %! $'.$( ;,.'. $%+0Q(!)0$#

6.,$<0!*' )!*#& 6. .%)!*'$/.&=

\] #.++.'( !" !6R.)+0!% ;.'. '.).0<.& +! +,. $11#0)$+0!%=

J)!#!/8 $%& U0!&0<.'(0+8 ZU'.%+ L..(.[

Q P$)2 !" ()'..%0%/ ;0+,0% +,. #$%&()$1. 1#$%( $#!%/ ;.(+.'% 6!*%&$'8- ;,0), ;0## $"".)+ 60'&( &*. +!

&0(+*'6$%).=

Q P$%&()$1. 1#$%( $&<.'(.#8 041$)+ 6$+(=

Q 7!%).'% +,$+ &!/( )$% /! +,'!*/, &'8 KDWK ".$+*'.( $%& !*+ !%+! $/'0)*#+*'$# "0.#&( +! &0(+*'6 U'.%+

Page 45



 !!"!#$%&'(%()

*#+,-%.('/0#1-2/#/%(13%4#&!%1(5#26#%3!%)

*#+/%7!81%(!#-%39'/0#&2($#:'($'/#%/7#21("'7!#26#7!;!42-,!/()

*#<$!#4%521(#72!"#/2(#%..2,,27%(!#%/5#"-%.!#!'($!3#"'7!#26#($!#-1&4'.#3'0$(#26#:%5=#:$'.$#'"#/!!7!7#%"

.2,-!/"%('2/#623#($!#42""#26#.21/(35"'7!)

*#>2/"'7!3%('2/#26#-1&4'.#3'0$(#26#:%5#:%49'/0#!/;'32/,!/(#$%"#/2(#2..133!7)

<$!#62442:'/0#,%((!3"#$%;!#&!!/#3%'"!7#:$'.$#%3!#/2(#,%(!3'%4#(2#($!#.2/"'7!3%('2/#26#%#3!"!3;!7#,%((!3"

%--4'.%('2/#$%;'/0#&!!/#.2/"'7!3!7#($3210$#($!#7!(!3,'/%('2/#26#($!#21(4'/!#.2/"!/(#:$!3!#($!#-3'/.'-4!

26#7!;!42-,!/(#:%"#!"(%&4'"$!7))

+/63%"(31.(13!#%/7#-1&4'.#"!3;'.!"

*#?%.9#26#'/63%"(31.(13!=#$2"-'(%4"#72.(23"=#7!/('"("=#".$224"=#-24'.!#%/7#"!3;'.!"#!(.)

*#@$23(%0!#26#".$224#"-%.!"#'/#42.%4#".$224")

*#A!!7#($!#".$224#"'(!#%/7#"-23("#-'(.$!"#:'($'/#21(4'/!#(2#-3203!""#%(#($!#"%,!#-%.!)

B3%'/%0!#%/7#C4227'/0

*#<$!#"136%.!#:%(!3#73%'/%0!#-4%/#'"#/2(#"1"(%'/%&4!)

*#A2#.2/"'7!3%('2/#26#!D'"('/0#"2%9%:%5"#713'/0#&1'47'/0#:239#1/7!3(%9!/)#+,-%.("#26#4%/7#:%"(!#2/

%3!%"#:'($'/#($!#"'(!#%4(!3'/0#%&'4'(5#26#4%/7#(2#73%'/)

*#?2.%4#E2%7#A!(:239#1/%&4!#(2#.2-!#:'($#.133!/(#64227'/0)

*#A2#.%-%.'(5#623#6214#:%(!3)

*#<$!#42.%('2/#'"#%(#$'0$#3'"9#632,#64227'/0#71!#(2#3'"'/0#"!%#4!;!4")

*#<$!#"'(!#$%"#3!.!/(45#&!!/#64227!7)

*#A!:#&1'47#7!;!42-,!/(#'/#($!#%3!%#'"#.%1"'/0#64227'/0)

E2%7"#%/7#F%39'/0

*#>2/0!"('2/#:'44#&!#!D%.!3&%(!7)

*#>2/.!3/#2;!3#32%7#"%6!(5#:'($#%77'('2/%4#(3%66'.)

*#?%.9#26#,2/!5#(2:%37"#"!3;'.!"#%/7#'/63%"(31.(13!)

*#+/.3!%"!#'/#$21"'/0#:'44#7%,%0!#%((3%.(';!/!""#26#F%0$%,#(2#(213'"("=#:$'.$#$!4-#($!#%3!%#6'/%/.'%445)

*#B!4%5"#71!#(2#32%7:239"#(2#6%.'4'(%(!#7!;!42-,!/(")

*#+/.3!%"!#'/#.$'473!/#/!!7'/0#(2#&!#(%9!/#(2#".$224"#21("'7!#26#.%(.$,!/(=#'/.3!%"'/0#;!$'.14%3#(3%66'.=

-2441('2/)

*#>2/"(31.('2/#7'"31-('2/#(2#3!"'7!/("#%/7#32%7#1"!3")

*#>133!/(#(3%66'.#($3210$#;'44%0!#'"#7%/0!321"=#%/7#,23!#;!$'.4!"#:'44#!D%.!3&%(!#($'")

*#A2#".$224#/!%3&5#:$'.$#$%"#.%-%.'(5#*#.$'473!/#:'44#/!!7#(2#&!#(3%/"-23(!7#(2#".$224)

G.2/2,5

*#A2#42.%4#H2&"#623#($!#/1,&!3#26#/!:#3!"'7!/(")

*#I23!#$21"!"#,%5#7%,%0!#($!#%((3%.(';!/!""#26#($!#%3!%#623#$24'7%5#,%9!3")

G.24205#%/7#J'27';!3"'(5#KJ3!/(# !!"!L

*#@21($!3/#M%(!3#%3!#1/%&4!#(2#$%/74!#($!#'/.3!%"!7#6214#:%(!3#;241,!#%/7#($!3!#'"#%/#'/.3!%"!7#3'"9#26

"!:!3%0!#2;!3642:"#'/(2#F%0$%,#N%3&213)

*#B:!44'/0"#.42"!#(2#A%(13!#E!"!3;!#"2#"$2147/O(#&!#%442:!7)

*#?2""#26#%03'.14(13%4#4%/7)

*#A!!7#(2#-32(!.(#P31/O"#%""!("#:$'.$#'/.417!#F%0$%,#N%3&213=#@FP#!(.)

*#?2""#26#&'27';!3"'(5)

*#?2""#26#$%&'(%("#623#:'474'6!)

*#A%(13!#3!"!3;!#:'44#&!#%(#($3!%(#71!#(2#'/.3!%"!7#622(6%44)

Page 46



 

 

 

! "#$%&'(&) *&+,$-.'% .&*&.( .&'),#/ 01 ,#$%&'(&) #,0%'0& .&*&.(2

! 31#$&%# 1*&% .'$4 15 6%1/%&(( ,# )&*&.16,#/ 7,0,/'0,1# 6.'#( 01 $176&#('0& 51% .1(( 15 8%&#0 9&&(&

51%'/,#/ +':,0'02

! 31#$&%# 0+'0 7,0,/'0,1# (0%'0&/; <71#,01%,#/ (,0& 51% 8%&#0 9&&(& 51% 5,*& ;&'%(= ,( ,#(-55,$,&#02

! >+,( %&(&%*&) 7'00&% ,( 6%&7'0-%& ,# %&.'0,1# 01 0+& 7,0,/'0,1# 0+'0 ,( %&$177&#)&) 51% 0+& 8%&#0 9&&(&2

8%&#0 9&&(& 7,0,/'0,1# (-%*&;( (+1? 0+'0 ,0 ,( #10 ?1%4,#/2

! @1(( 15 A'/+'7B( (&7,!%-%'. $+'%'$0&% '( ' CD-,&0 *,..'/&C2

! 3;$.& 6'%4,#/ %&D-,%&)2

! E.&$0%,$ :,4& '#) $'% $+'%/,#/ 61,#0( #&&)&)2

! >+& (,0& %&D-,%&( '$0,*& 0%'*&. '#) '.. -(&% 6'0+( '$%1(( 0+& (,0&F G1-0& #&&)( 01 :& $%&'0&) '$%1((

(-77&% .'#& 01 H1#&% I'%72

! J1 .1$'. K1:(L (1 %&(,)&#0 ?,.. +'*& 01 $177-0& -6 01 0+& MNOL ?+,$+ )1&( #10 +'*& ' 5110 1% $;$.& 6'0+2

3177&#0( '%& #10&) '#) ?,.. :& $1#(,)&%&) 5-%0+&% ,# 0+& $1#$.-(,1# 01 0+,( %&61%02

9GEEJPAM3E ! G&$177&#) '66%1*'. 15 (150 .'#)($'6,#/ 6%161('.(L +1?&*&% @MAL @EMAL E@EMA

6%161('.( '%& ,#')&D-'0& '#) ?1-.) 1:K&$0 01 0+&(&2

PQR>HEGJ SM>EG ! M)*,$& 6%1*,)&)2 G&$177&#)( 0+'0 #1 ),($+'%/& 15 51-. (&?&%'/& 5%17 0+& (,0&

,( ),($+'%/&) 01 6-:.,$ (;(0&7 -#0,. 155(,0& )%',#'/& ?1%4( +'*& :&&# $176.&0&) 01 6%1*,)& (-55,$,&#0

$'6'$,0;2

JM>RGM@ EJ9@MJT ! G&D-,%& 5-%0+&% ,#51%7'0,1# 1# ?+&0+&% 0+& '66.,$'0,1# 6%1*,)&( (-55,$,&#0

$&%0',#0; 0+'0 0+& 1#!(,0& 7,0,/'0,1# 7&'(-%&( '/%&&) '( 6'%0 15 AFUVWFUXFQR> $'# :& )&.,*&%&)2

EJY"GQJZEJ> M9EJ3[ ! J1 1:K&$0,1#L '#) %&D-&(0&) $1#),0,1#(2

SP33 @EMT @Q3M@ I@QQT MR>HQG">[ ! Q%,/,#'. $1#(-.0'0,1# %&(61#(& %',(& #1 1:K&$0,1# '#) #1

$177&#0(2 M (-:(&D-&#0 $1#(-.0'0,1# %&(61#(& ?'( (-:7,00&) ?+,$+ 1:K&$0&) 1# 0+& :'(,( 15

,#(-55,$,&#0 ,#51%7'0,1#2

SP33 H"9HSM[P ! "#,0,'. $177&#0( +'*& :&&# '))%&((&)2 M 5-%0+&% $1#(-.0'0,1# %&(61#(& +'( %',(&)

D-&%,&( ,# %&.'0,1# 01 0+& (,0,#/ 15 0-%#,#/ +&')(L 5110?'; 6%1*,(,1# '#) 7&%,0( 15 0%'55,$ $'.7,#/ 7&'(-%&(2

>+& $1#(-.0'0,1# ,)&#0,5,&( 0+'0 (17& 15 0+& ,((-&( '%& #10 6.'##,#/ %&.'0&) :-0 ?1-.) +'*& ,76.,$'0,1#(

51% 0+& 610&#0,'. ')160,1# 15 0+& %1')( ,# 0+& 5-0-%&2

EJY"GQJZEJ>M@ HEM@>H ! G&D-&(0&) 5-%0+&% ,#51%7'0,1# 1# 0+& 610&#0,'. #1,(& ,76'$0 '%,(,#/ 5%17

0%'55,$ 1# A'/+'7 %1') '#) P-77&% @'#&2 A%161(&) $1#),0,1#( ,# %&.'0,1# 01 $1#0'7,#'0&) .'#)L .,/+0,#/L

EYL "#0&%#'. #1,(& .&*&.(L 3EZAL Q$$-6'#$; :&51%& )&*&.167&#0 $176.&0&)2

PRPPE\ AQ@"3E <T&(,/#,#/ 1-0 3%,7&= ! 9&#&%'. ')*,$& 6%1*,)&) <(-55,$,&#0 1*&%.114,#/ 15 AQPL

(&$-%,0; 7&'(-%&( &0$=2

SP33 I"GE MJT GEP3RE ! J1 1:K&$0,1#L 6%1*,)&) $1#),0,1# 01 6%1*,)& 5,%& +;)%'#0( 6%,1% 01

Page 47



 

 

!""#$%&'!()

*+,-.*+/ 0-102+34 5 *! !678"&'!( %9 &:8;8 <!#=> 68 (! ?%&8;'%= %@@8"& !( &:8 9%@8&AB ;8='%6'='&A

%(>C!; !$8;%&'!( !@ &:8 4&;%&8D'" E!%> *8&<!;F)

GE+-*+1H H*1-*HHE4 5 0!=>'(D .678"&'!( >#8 &! @#;&:8; '(@!;?%&'!( (88>8>)

HI./.13 5 *! !678"&'!( 9#678"& &! >8='J8;A !@ 6'!>'J8;9'&A ?'&'D%&'!( %(> 8(:%("8?8(& ?8%9#;89

98"#;8> 6A "!(>'&'!(9 !( !#&='(8 "!(98(&)

5 4%&'9@'8> &:%& &:8;8 '9 9#@@'"'8(& 8"!=!D'"%= '(@!;?%&'!( %J%'=%6=8 @!; >8&8;?'(%&'!( !@ &:'9 %$$='"%&'!()

+KK.EG+L/H 0.M4-*1 5 .678"&'!( %9 <:'=9& &:8 $;!J'9'!( !@ %@@!;>%6=8 :!#9'(D '9 9#$$!;&8>B &:8

"#;;8(& >'9&;'6#&'!( !@ %@@!;>%6=8 :!?89 '9 (!& 9#$$!;&8> %9 &:'9 <!#=> ;89#=& '( =%;D8 %;8%9 !@ %@@!;>%6=8

:!?89)

0-4,.E-I H*1/+*G 5 *! "!??8(&9 &! %>>) I!(9#=&%&'!( <'&: &:8 I!#("'=N9 9$8"'%='9&9 9:!#=> 68

9!#D:& <:8;8 ;8=8J%(&)

I.*4HEO+,-.* .KK-IHE 5 ,:8 >8J8=!$?8(& <'== (!& '?$%"& !( &:8 98&&'(D !@ ?!9& !@ &:8 ='9&8>

6#'=>'(D9 <'&: &:8 8P"8$&'!( !@ ,:8 Q%;'9: I:#;": !@ 4&) ,:!?%9 % L8"F8& %(> ,:8 .=> I!&&%D8) ,:8

=8J8= !@ :%;? '>8(&'@'8> &! &:8 &<! %@!;8?8(&'!(8> %998&9 "%( 68 >89";'68> %9 =899 &:%( 9#69&%(&'%= :%;?)

,:8 =8J8= !@ :%;? &! &:898 &<! %998&9 '9 !( &:8 =!<8; 8(> !@ &:8 9"%=8)

I!??8(&9 (!&8>)

G89'D(%&'!( %$$='"%6=8 &! 9'&8R

+;#( /!"%= Q=%( STUU 5 STVUR

+04QS +0 4QS +@@!;>%6=8 0!#9'(D

GGWU G GWU +9$8"&9 !@ @!;? %(> >89'D( X#%='&A

GGWS G GWS -(&8;(%= 9$%"8 9&%(>%;>9

G4QU G 4QU G89'D(

H*OGWS H*O GWS Q%D:%? 0%;6!#;

H*OGWY H*O GWY G8J8=!$?8(& %(> 6'!>'J8;9'&A

H*O4QU H*O 4QU *%&#;%= H(J';!(?8(&

1-4QU 1- 4QU 1;88( -(@;%9&;#"&#;8 %(> G8J8=!$?8(&

0GWU 0 GWU 0!#9'(D ?'P

0HEGWU 0HE GWU /'9&8> L#'=>'(D9

0HE4QU 0HE 4QU ,:8 0'9&!;'" H(J';!(?8(&

.4E4QU .4E 4QU +==!&?8(&9

ZHGWU ZH GWU *!'98 Q!==#&'!(

ZH4QU ZH 4QU Z#%='&A !@ &:8 H(J';!(?8(&

,GWU , GWU 4#9&%'(%6=8 ,;%J8= %(> Q#6='" E'D:&9 !@ 2%A

Page 48



 

 

 

!"#$ ! "#$ !%&'()*%+ &', -./.0*)1.'+

2##-3 2&+4*'&0 -.(45' 364,.

2##7 2&+4*'&0 #0&''4'5 #*0489 7%&1.:*%;

2##3 2&+4*'&0 #0&''4'5 #%&8+48. 364,&'8.

#-" #&5<&1 #&%4(< =*6'840>( ?400&5. -.(45' "+&+.1.'+ @9

#&5<&1#=

"#-$$ A%6' #&%;4'5 "+&',&%,( BCBC

"#-D A%.&( *E ").84&0 =<&%&8+.%

!<. -./.0*)1.'+ #0&' 8*'(4(+( *E +<. A%6' F*8&0 #0&' BC$$ G BCH$I J.(+ "6((.K =*6'+9 =*6'840>(

J&(+. &', L4'.%&0( #0&'( &', L&,. 2.45<@*6%<**, -./.0*)1.'+ #0&'(M

!<. )*0484.( &%. )6@04(<., 6',.% N.560&+4*'( $O &', HP *E +<. !*:' &', =*6'+%9 #0&''4'5 QF*8&0

#0&''4'5R QS'50&',R N.560&+4*'( BC$BM

".8+4*' HDQTR *E +<. #0&''4'5 &', =*1)60(*%9 #6%8<&(. A8+ BCCU (+&+.(VG

WXE %.5&%, 4( +* @. <&, +* +<. ,./.0*)1.'+ )0&' E*% +<. )6%)*(. *E &'9 ,.+.%14'&+4*' +* @. 1&,. 6',.%

+<. )0&''4'5 A8+( +<. ,.+.%14'&+4*' 16(+ @. 1&,. 4' &88*%,&'8. :4+< +<. )0&' 6'0.(( 1&+.%4&0

8*'(4,.%&+4*'( 4',48&+. *+<.%:4(.MW

!<. )%*)*(&0 4( 8*'(4,.%., +* 8*1)09 :4+< %.0./&'+ -./.0*)1.'+ #0&' )*0484.( 4' +<&+ 4+ %.(60+( 4' &

,./.0*)1.'+ *E &' &))%*)%4&+. (8&0.I 0&9*6+ &', &)).&%&'8. :<48< 4( '*+ <&%1E60 +* +<. 8<&%&8+.% &',

&)).&%&'8. *E +<. &%.&I +<. &1.'4+4.( *E .K4(+4'5 %.(4,.'+( *% +<. .K4(+4'5 %*&, &', )6@048 E**+)&+<

'.+:*%;M

".8+4*' YCQBR *E +<. !*:' &', =*6'+%9 #0&''4'5 A8+ $OOC Q&( &1.',.,R )%*/4,.( +<&+

QBR 4' ,.&04'5 :4+< &' &))048&+4*' E*% )0&''4'5 ).%14((4*' +<. &6+<*%4+9 (<&00 <&/. %.5&%, +* G

Q&R +<. )%*/4(4*'( *E +<. ,./.0*)1.'+ )0&'I (* E&% &( 1&+.%4&0 +* +<. &))048&+4*'I

Q&Z&R & )*(+ .K&14'&+4*' ,%&E+ '.45<@*6%<**, ,./.0*)1.'+ )0&'I (* E&% &( 1&+.%4&0 +* +<. &))048&+4*'I

Q@R &'9 0*8&0 E4'&'8. 8*'(4,.%&+4*'(I (* E&% &( 1&+.%4&0 +* +<. &))048&+4*'I &',

Q8R &'9 *+<.% 1&+.%4&0 8*'(4,.%&+4*'(M

!<. )%*)*(&0 &EE.8+( +<. (.++4'5 *E '.&%@9 3%&,. XX F4(+., [640,4'5( &', (.8+4*' TT Q$R *E +<. #0&''4'5

QF4(+., [640,4'5( &', =*'(.%/&+4*' A%.&(R A8+ $OOC (+&+.( +<&+V WX' 8*'(4,.%4'5 :<.+<.% +* 5%&'+

)0&''4'5 ).%14((4*' E*% ,./.0*)1.'+ :<48< &EE.8+( & 04(+., @640,4'5 *% 4+( (.++4'5I +<. 0*8&0 )0&''4'5

&6+<*%4+9 *%I &( +<. 8&(. 1&9 @.I +<. ".8%.+&%9 *E "+&+.I (<&00 <&/. ().84&0 %.5&%, +* +<. ,.(4%&@404+9 *E

)%.(.%/4'5 +<. @640,4'5 *% 4+( (.++4'5 *% &'9 E.&+6%.( *E ().84&0 &%8<4+.8+6%&0 *% <4(+*%48 4'+.%.(+ :<48< 4+

)*((.((.(MW

!<. )%*)*(&0 4( 8*'(4,.%., +* 8*1)09 :4+< (.8+4*' TT Q$R &', +<4( <&( @..' 8*'(4,.%., 4' E6%+<.% ,.+&40 4'

Page 49



 

 

!"# $%&$'()*%& +#'%,-

.! *) $%&)*/#0#/ !"1! !"#0# 10#210# &% %!"#0 31!#0*1' $%&)*/#01!*%&) !% +# ,#*4"#/ *& !"# +1'1&$# ,*!" !"#

5#6#'%73#&! 8'1&-

9"# 177'*$1!*%& )##:) !% )#$(0# 0#)#06#/ 31!!#0) 1770%61' ;%0 177#101&$#< '1&/)$17*&4< '1=%(! 1&/

)$1'#- 9"#)# 10# !"# %&'= 31!!#0) ;%0 $%&)*/#01!*%& !"0%(4" !"# /#!#03*&1!*%& %; !"*) 177'*$1!*%&- >'' %!"#0

31!!#0) ,#0# $%&)*/#0#/ !"0%(4" !"# 401&!*&4 %; 7#03*))*%& 82?@A2?B2CD9 ,*!" $%&/*!*%&) *&$'(/#/ *&

0#'1!*%& !% !"# ;%''%,*&4 31!!#0) ,"*$" ,*'' 0#E(*0# /*)$"104# 70*%0 !% !"# $%33#&$#3#&! %; /#6#'%73#&!F

G H1!#0*1') 1&/ I*&*)"#) JK%&/*!*%& LMN

G >0+%0*$('!(01' H#!"%/ O!1!#3#&! 1&/ 90## 80%!#$!*%& 8'1& JK%&/*!*%& PMN

G O(0;1$# Q1!#0 501*&14# JK%&/*!*%& ?A< ?? 1&/ ?RMN

G I%(' 501*&14# JK%&/*!*%& ?SMN

G T$%'%4= JK%&/*!*%& ?LMN

G K%&)!0($!*%& H1&14#3#&! 8'1& JK%&/*!*%& ?UMN

G T37'%=3#&! 1&/ O:*'') 8'1& JK%&/*!*%& RAMN

G K'*31!# K"1&4# 1&/ V#&#,1+'# T&#04= JK%&/*!*%& R@MN

G 9016#' 8'1& JK%&/*!*%& RBMN

G >0$"1#%'%4= JK%&/*!*%& RUMN

G T'#$!0*$ W#"*$'# K"104*&4 JK%&/*!*%& RPMN 1&/

G 814"13 X10+%(0 O8> JK%&/*!*%& SAM-

8V.YK.8ZT

9"# 70*&$*7'# %; !"# 70%7%)#/ /#6#'%73#&! "1) +##& #)!1+'*)"#/ += %(!'*&# 7#03*))*%& 82?@A2?B2CD9

,"*$" 401&!#/ 7'1&&*&4 7#03*))*%& ;%0 (7 !% @AA /,#''*&4)< 1 $10# "%3# ,*!" (7 !% UA +#/)< 1 Z%$1'

K#&!0# $%370*)*&4 (7 !% RAAA)E3 %; >?2>R2>S25?2)(* 4#&#0*) ;'%%0)71$# ,*!" !,% 7%*&!) %; 1$$#)) ;0%3

814"13 V%1/- 9"# %(!'*&# 7'1&&*&4 7#03*))*%& #)!1+'*)"#/ !"# 70*&$*7'# %; /#6#'%73#&! 1&/ $%&)*/#0#/

31!!#0) %; ;'%%/ 0*):< *371$! %& ,*'/'*;#< '%)) %; 140*$('!(01' '1&/< $%(&!0=)*/# '%$1!*%&< ;%(' /01*&14#< ;'%%/

0*): 1&/ !"# 70%6*)*%& %; 1;;%0/1+'# "%()*&4< 7(+'*$ %7#& )71$#< $"*'/0#&[) 7'1= 1&/ %!"#0 0#'1!#/

*&;01)!0($!(0#-

9"*) %(!'*&# 1770%61' 0#'1!#) !% !"# 814"13 O%(!" O!01!#4*$ >''%$1!*%& ,*!" !"*) 177'*$1!*%& 0#'1!*&4 !% !"#

0#31*&/#0 %; !"# 1''%$1!*%& ;%''%,*&4 1770%61' %; 82?LL2R?2VTO *& 0#'1!*%& !% !"# '%$1' $#&!0#-

KCH8Z.>YKT CI 9XT 8VC8CO>Z Q.9X CD9Z.YT KCY5.9.CYO

K%&/*!*%& JSM )!1!#) !"1! /#6#'%73#&! )"1'' +# $100*#/ %(! *& 1$$%0/1&$# ,*!" 1770%6#/ 7'1&) ,"*$"

$%&)*)! %;N

Z%$1!*%& 8'1& G /,4 &%- 5Z>-?US?-ZAAS-ASN

V#/ Z*&# \%(&/10= G 5Z>-?US?-ZAAS-A?N

80%7%)#/ Y%0!"#0& O*!# >$$#)) G ?B?B2A? V#6 ZN 1&/

80%7%)#/ O%(!"#0& O*!# >$$#)) G ?B?B2AR V#6 ]-

.& !"*) $1)# !"# /#6#'%73#&! 1$$%0/) ,*!" !"# 7'1&) 1770%6#/ (&/#0 0#;#0#&$# 82?@A2?B2CD9 *& )% ;10

1) *! 0#'1!#) !% !"# 70%7%)1')-

K%&/*!*%& JBM 0#E(*0#/ !"1! 1 5#)*4& K%/# H1)!#07'1& +# 1770%6#/ 70*%0 !% !"# )(+3*))*%& %; !"#

Page 50



 !"!#$!%&'())!#"&(**+,-(),./&(/%&)0()&)0!&%!$!+.*1!/)&)0!/&2!&*#!*(#!%&(/%&-(##,!%&.3)&,/&(--.#%(/-!

4,)0&)0!&(**#.$!%&%!)(,+"5&60!&7!",8/&9.%!&,/&#!+(),./&).&)0!&",)!&4("&(**#.$!%&3/%!#&#!:!#!/-!

;<=><?@<7A95&60!&*#.*."!%&%!$!+.*1!/)&,/&)0,"&-("!&(--.#%"&4,)0&)0!&7!",8/&9.%!5

9./%,),./&BCD&#!E3,#!%&(/F& !"!#$!%&'())!#"&(**+,-(),./&).&2!&(--.1*(/,!%&2F&%!)(,+"&-./-!#/,/8

+(/%"-(*,/8&(/%&+(F.3)&*(#),-3+(#"&,/&#!+(),./&).&)#!!"5&60!&*#.*."!%&(**+,-(),./&(--.#%"&4,)0&)0!

#!E3,#!1!/)"&4,)0&9./%,),./&BCD&(/%&)0,"&4,++&2!&-./",%!#!%&,/&1.#!&%!)(,+&+()!#&,/&)0!&#!*.#)5

GHIAJ6K&H;;LH HM9L&HM7&N9HGL

H#3/&G.-(+&;+(/&*.+,-,!"&7&7'@K&7&N;@&(/%&GHM&7'@&(#!&#!+!$(/)&,/&#!"*!-)&.:&%!",8/&(/%&-0(#(-)!#5&O/

(%%,),./&;.+,-F&HP&N;?&"!!Q"&).&!/"3#!&)0()&(::.#%(2+!&0.3",/8&,"&$,"3(++F&,/%,"),/83,"0(2+!&:#.1&1(#Q!)

0.3",/8&(/%&)0()&+(F.3)"&($.,%&+(#8!&-+3")!#"&.:&(::.#%(2+!&%4!++,/8"5

60!&M(),./(+&7!",8/&R3,%!&BM7RD&,"&(&1()!#,(+&-./",%!#(),./&,/&)0!&%!)!#1,/(),./&.:&)0,"&(**+,-(),./&("

4!++&("&)0!&H#3/&7!",8/&R3,%!5&60!&(**+,-(),./&0("&2!!/&*#!*(#!%&,/&(--.#%(/-!&4,)0&)0!&7!",8/&9.%!K

(**#.$!%&)0#.380&)0!&%,"-0(#8!&.:&9./%,),./&SK&40,-0&4("&,)"!+:&*#!*(#!%&(/%&(""!""!%&(8(,/")&)0!

#!E3,#!1!/)"&.:&)0!&;(80(1&T,++(8!&7!",8/&N)()!1!/)K&M7R&(/%&H#3/&7!",8/&R3,%!&("&4!++&("&)0!

*(#(1!)!#&*+(/"&(**#.$!%&)0#.380&;<@UV<@S<AJ65

60!&%!",8/&-.%!&,/&#!"*!-)&.:&)0!&#!",%!/),(+&%!$!+.*1!/)&,%!/),:,!"&U&-0(#(-)!#&(#!("&4,)0&$(#,(),./

2!)4!!/&)4.&.:&)0!&-0(#(-)!#&(#!("&2!)4!!/&)0!&/.#)0!#/&(/%&".3)0!#/&*(#-!+"&.:&)0!&",)!5&L(-0

-0(#(-)!#&(#!(&0("&%!:,/,/8&*#,/-,*+!"&(/%&,/&)0,"&-("!&)0!&*#.*."!%&%!$!+.*1!/)&,"&%!!1!%&).&2!&,/

(--.#%(/-!&4,)0&)0!"!&%!)(,+"5&60!&-0(#(-)!#&(#!("&(/%&%!:,/,/8&*#,/-,*+!"&(#!&("&:.++.4"W

;(#Q&T,!4&B9H&@D

X&R#(/%&0.1!"&4,)0&$!#%(/)&+(/%"-(*,/85

X&Y3,+)&:.#1&:(-!"&)0!&$,++(8!&8#!!/&.#&($!/3!5

X&R!.#8,(/&,/"*,#!%&(#-0,)!-)3#!5

X&;#.1,/!/)&Q!F&23,+%,/8"5

X&R#!!/&+,/Q&)0#.380&",)!5

 3#(+&L%8!&M.#)0&B9H&?(D

X&6#(%,),./(+&:(#1F(#%&4.#Q!#"&)!##(-!%&-.))(8!"5

X&Y3,+)&:.#1&:(-!"&.3)4(#%"&).&"3##.3/%,/8&-.3/)#F",%!5

X& 3#(+&$!#/(-3+(#5

X&G(/%"-(*!%&*(#Q,/8&).&0,%!&-(#"5

 3#(+&L%8!&N.3)0&B9H&?2D

X&6,+!&03/8&0.3",/85

X&Y3,+)&:.#1&:(-!"&.3)4(#%"&).&"3##.3/%,/8&-.3/)#F",%!5

X& 3#(+&$!#/(-3+(#5

9.113/,)F&N)#!!)"&B9H&>D

X&N,1*+!&(#-0,)!-)3#!5

X&O/4(#%&+..Q,/8&*!#,1!)!#&2+.-Q"5

X&A--(",./(+&$,!4"&).&4,%!#&#!(+15

X&T,")("&(/%&Q!F&23,+%,/8&-#!()!&*("",$!&4(FX:,/%,/85

6#(/",),./(+&;!#,1!)!#&N.3)0&B9H&U(D

X&H#-0,)!-)3#!&).&1()-0&,11!%,()!&-./)!Z)5

X&Y3,+%&:.#1&:(-!"&.3)4(#%"5

X&H%[(-!/)&).&!/0(/-!%&/()3#(+&23::!#&(+./8&;(80(1& .(%5

Page 51



 !"#$%&%'#"()*+!%,+&+!)-'!&.)/01)234

5)1!6.%&+6&7!+)&'),"&6.)%,,+8%"&+)6'#&+9&:

5);7%(8)<'!,)<"6+$)'7&="!8$:

5)18>"6+#&)&')+#."#6+8)#"&7!"()37<<+!)"('#?)*"?.",)@'"8:

A'(('=%#?)&.+)%#%&%"()$73,%$$%'#)'<)&.+)"BB(%6"&%'#)%#)-'C+,3+!)DEDF)&.+)B!'B'$"($)=+!+)B!+$+#&+8)&')&.+

1(8=%6G)"#8)*"?.",)18C%$'!H)I!'7B)'#)J)K+6+,3+!)DEDF:)0',,+#&$)=+!+),"8+)3H)&.+)18C%$'!H

I!'7B)%#)!+("&%'#)&')&.+)$6"(+)'<)8+C+('B,+#&L)&.+)7#%<'!,).+%?.&)"#8)!+B+&%&%C+)#"&7!+)'<)&.+)$&!++&

$6+#+$L)"#8)&."&),"&+!%"($)B!'B'$+8)=+!+)&'')7!3"#)/$B+6%<%6"((H)&.+)7$+)'<)!+8)3!%6G4:

M#)+"!(H)DEDD)<++83"6G)="$)"($')B!'C%8+8)3H)&.+)N'6"()*("##%#?)17&.'!%&H)/N*14)'#)&.+)B!'B'$"($)=%&.

6'#6+!#$)3+%#?)!"%$+8)=%&.)&.+)8+C+('B,+#&)3+%#?)6"!)8',%#"&+8L)&."&).'7$+)&HB+$)=+!+)!+B+"&+8)"#8

'<&+#)6(7$&+!+8)&'?+&.+!)=%&.)(%&&(+)&')#')C"!%"&%'#L)")("6G)'<)?!++#)%#<!"$&!76&7!+)'!)B("#&%#?L)"#8)&.+

B!'B'$+8)%#6!+"$+)%#)$%&+)(+C+($)'<)F:O,)'#)")$%?#%<%6"#&)B!'B'!&%'#)'<)&.+)$%&+:) .+)8+C+('B+!)="$)&.+#

B!'C%8+8)=%&.)"#)'BB'!&7#%&H)&')",+#8)&.+)B!'B'$"($)%#)'!8+!)&')'C+!6',+)&.+$+)%$$7+$:

 .+)!+C%$+8)B!'B'$"($)/<'(('=%#?),++&%#?$)3+&=++#)&.+)*("##%#?)P<<%6+!)"#8)8+C+('B+!4)=+!+)B!+$+#&+8

&')&.+)1(8=%6G)"#8)*"?.",)18C%$'!H)I!'7B)'#)DQ)R7#+)DEDD:)M#)!+$B'#$+)&')&.%$)&.+)18C%$'!H)I!'7B

$&"&+8)&."&)&.+H)=+!+)?!"&+<7()&."&)&.+)8+C+('B+!$)."8)(%$&+#+8)&')&.+)6'#6+!#$)'<)!+$%8+#&$)&')6!+"&+)"

,'!+)C%(("?+)<++()=%&.)&.+)18C%$'!H)I!'7B)6'#6(78%#?)&."&)&.+)!+C%$+8)B!'B'$"($)8!"$&%6"((H)%,B!'C+8)&.+

"+$&.+&%6$)'<)&.+)8+C+('B,+#&)"8>"6+#&)&')*"?.",)@'"8:

A7!&.+!)",+#8,+#&$)=+!+)&.+#),"8+)3H)&.+)8+C+('B+!)&')"88!+$$)&.+)<%#"()'7&$&"#8%#?)%$$7+$)=%&.)&.+

!+C%$+8)B!'B'$"()"#8)+#$7!+)&."&)"(()6',,+#&$)<!',)&.+)"8C%$'!H)?!'7B)."8)3++#)<7((H)"88!+$$+8)%#)&.+

!+C%$+8)$73,%$$%'#:) .+)!+C%$+8)B!'B'$"($)=+!+)&.+#)$73,%&&+8)&')&.+)N*1)%#)S+B&+,3+!)DEDD)<'!)!+5

6'#$7(&"&%'#)"#8)8+&+!,%#"&%'#:

 .+)!+C%$+8)B!'B'$"($)"88!+$$+8)&.+)%#%&%"()6'#6+!#$)=%&.)&.+)("H'7&)%#$'<"!)"$)&.+H)!+("&+8)&')&.+)8+$%?#

'<)8=+((%#?$)"#8)B"!G%#?)"!!"#?+,+#&$)=%&.)&.+)",+#8,+#&$)"88!+$$%#?)&.+)8',%#"#6+)'<)6"!$:)T.+!+

B"!G%#?)."8)")B!+$+#6+)=%&.%#)&.+)$&!++&)$6+#+)B("#&%#?)."$)3++#)%#6'!B'!"&+8)&')3!+"G)&.%$)7B)"#8

$'<&+#)%&$)B!+$+#6+:)M#)"88%&%'#U)&')&.%$)$',+)37%(8%#?$)."C+)3++#)!+5'!%+#&"&+8)&')B!'C%8+)$6!++#%#?)"#8

<7!&.+!),%&%?"&+)&.+)8',%#"#6+)'<)6"!)B"!G%#?)%#)C%+=$)=%&.%#)&.+)$%&+:

 .+).'7$+)&HB+$)."C+)"($')3++#)!+C%+=+8)=%&.)"),%#%,%$"&%'#)'<)&.+)$",+)37%(8%#?)&HB+)"BB+"!%#?)#+9&

&')+"6.)'&.+!)"#8)C"!%+8)!''<).+%?.&$)"#8)8+$%?#$)%#)'!8+!)&')B!'C%8+)?!+"&+!)C"!%"&%'#)&')&.+)$&!++&

$6+#+$:)M#)'!8+!)&')"88!+$$)6',,+#&$)<!',)&.+)18C%$'!H)I!'7B),'!+)37#?"('=$)."C+)3++#)%#6(78+8

"#8),"&+!%"($)."C+)3++#)",+#8+8)&')+96(78+)&.'$+)%8+#&%<%+8)"$)%#$+#$%&%C+)&')*"?.",)/$B+6%<%6"((H

3("6G)=+"&.+!3'"!8%#?)"#8)!+8)3!%6G4:

 .+)B!'B'$+8).'7$+)&HB+$)"!+)"#)"BB!'B!%"&+)!+$B'#$+)&')&.+)('6"()6'#&+9&)"#8)8+C+('B,+#&)"8>"6+#&)&'

*"?.",)@'"8)=.%6.)!+<(+6&$)&.+)+$&"3(%$.+8)6."!"6&+!)'<)&.+)('6"(%&H)=.%($&)B!'C%8%#?)"#)"BB!'B!%"&+

&!"#$%&%'#)3+&=++#)+9%$&%#?)37%(&)<'!,)"#8)&.+)=%8+!)"BB(%6"&%'#)$%&+:) .+)B"!G%#?)("H'7&)."$)"($')3++#

",+#8+8)&')"88!+$$)&.+)8',%#"#6+)'<)6"!)B"!G%#?)=%&.%#)&.+)$&!++&)$6+#+)"#8)&.%$)%#)6'#>7#6&%'#)=%&.

$&!++&)B("#&%#?)!+$7(&$)%#)")8+C+('B,+#&)=.%6.)%$)#'&)8',%#"&+8)3H)6"!$:

V'=+C+!U)8+$B%&+)&.+$+)B'$%&%C+)",+#8,+#&$)6'#6+!#$)!+,"%#+8)%#)!+("&%'#)&')&.+)B!'C%$%'#)'<)'B+#

$B"6+)=%&.%#)&.+)$%&+:) .%$),"&&+!)6"!!%+$)$%?#%<%6"#&)=+%?.&)?%C+#)&."&)&.+)'B+#)$B"6+)B!'C%$%'#)'#)$%&+

="$)'#+)'<)&.+),+"$7!+$)6'#$%8+!+8)"$)#+6+$$"!H)&'),%&%?"&+)&.+)%,B"6&)'<)&.+)8+C+('B,+#&)7B'#)&.+

*"?.",)V"!3'7!)S*1W@",$"!)$%&+)&.!'7?.)&.+)1BB!'B!%"&+)1$$+$$,+#&)/114)7#8+!&"G+#)"$)B"!&)'<)&.+

'7&(%#+)"BB(%6"&%'#)/*WF2EWFXWPY 4:

Page 52



 !"#$%&$&'()'#('#'*+,-.."/#-0#1"$.",+"%#2322#'"4*%"/#(#.&.()#&05'-."#$%&6-'-&0#&7#&$"0#'$(4"#&7#8*'.

29:;<!(#(0/#.!-'#-04)*/"/#(#'-=0-7-4(0.#(,&*0.#&7#-04-/"0.()#'$(4"'#(0/#0(%%&>#'$(4"'#>!-4!#>&*)/#0&.

+"#6-">"/#('#*'(+)"#+?#.!"#@AB9#CD4)*/-0=#.!"'"#',())E#0(%%&>#&$"0#'$(4"'#.!"#.&.()#$%&6-'-&0#>('

($$%&D-,(.")?#F9;!(9# !-'#7"))#'-=0-7-4(0.)?#+")&>#.!"#&$"0#'$(4"#$%&6-'-&0#&7#:9GH!(#-/"0.-7-"/#.!%&*=!

.!"#&*.)-0"#$)(00-0=#$"%,-''-&0#(0/#4&0'-/"%"/#.!%&*=!#.!"#BB9

I.#>('#()'&#4&04"%0-0=#7&%#.!"#@AB#.!(.#.!"#&$"0#'$(4"'#)(4J"/#(0?#'-=0-7-4(0.#-0."%4&00"4.-6-.?#(0/#/-/

0&.#$%&6-/"#(/"K*(."#&%#($$%&$%-(."#&$$&%.*0-.-"'#7&%#&05'-."#%"4%"(.-&0#-0#&%/"%#.&#(/"K*(.")?#,-.-=(."

.!"#-,$(4.#&7#.!"#/"6")&$,"0.#*$&0#A(=!(,#L(%+&*%#1ABMN(,'(%#1-."9# !-'#%"'*)."/#-0#(#/"6")&$,"0.

>!-4!#>('#()'&#-0#4&07)-4.#>-.!#.!"#4&04)*'-&0'#&7#.!"#BB9

O&))&>-0=#.!"'"#4&04"%0'#+"-0=#!-=!)-=!."/#+?#.!"#@AB#(0/#7*%.!"%#/-'4*''-&0'#+".>""0#.!"#$(%.-"'E#.!"

/"6")&$"%#%"K*"'."/#(//-.-&0()#.-,"#.&#%"6-">#(0/#%"6-'"#.!"#$%&$&'()'#-0#&%/"%#.&#&6"%4&,"#.!"'"

4&04"%0'9# !"#7*))?#%"6-'"/#$%&$&'()'#>"%"#'*+,-.."/#.&#.!"#P&*04-)#&0#F#B*=*'.#232G9

O&))&>-0=#7*%.!"%#%"6-'-&0#.!"#$%&$&'()'#0&>#$%&6-/"#(#.&.()#&05'-."#$%&6-'-&0#&7#:9GQ!(#&7#$*+)-4#&$"0

'$(4"#>-.!#G92<!(#.&#+"#$%&6-/"/#('#*'(+)"#'",-50(.*%()#=%""0#'$(4"9#I0#(//-.-&0#.&#.!-'#.!"

/"6")&$,"0.#$%&6-/"'#392F!(#&7#"K*-$$"/#$)(?#(%"('#%"'*).-0=#-0#(#.&.()#&05'-."#$%&6-'-&0#&7#:9:;!(9# !"

($$)-4(0.#!('#-/"0.-7-"/#(#.&.()#$%&6-'-&0#&7#39RQ!(#&7#-04-/"0.()#&$"0#'$(4"#4&0'-'.-0=#&7#6"%="'#(0/

&.!"%#-04-/"0.()#0&05%"4%"(.-&0()#'$(4"'9

L&>"6"%E#('#-/"0.-7-"/#(+&6"#-.#-'#0"4"''(%?#7&%#.!"#&$"0#'$(4"#$%&6-'-&0#.&#$%&6-/"#(/"K*(."

&$$&%.*0-.-"'#7&%#&05'-."#%"4%"(.-&09#B'#$%&$&'"/#.!"#&$"0#'$(4"#$%&6-'-&0#>&*)/#4&0'-'.#&7#(#)(%="%

4"0.%()#'$(4"#>!-4!#"D."0/'#7%&,#.!"#0&%.!"%0#$(%4")#.!%&*=!#.&#.!"#'&*.!"%0#$(%4")#,"('*%-0=#(

4&,+-0"/#(%"(#&7#292<!(9#B0#(%"(#&7#&$"0#'$(4"#,"('*%-0=#F9G<!(#-0#'!&>0#.&#.!"#'&*.!#&7#.!"#'-."

()&0='-/"#())&.,"0.#$%&6-'-&09#B0#(%"(#&7#&$"0#'$(4"#,"('*%-0=#39<H!(#-'#$%&6-/"/#()&0=#.!"#"('."%0

+&*0/(%?#&7#.!"#'-."#(/8(4"0.#.&#.!"#'&*.!"%0#$(%4")9#B#4"0.%()#&$"0#'$(4"#,"('*%-0=#39F:!(#-'#7"(.*%"/

4"0.%())?#>-.!-0#.!"#0&%.!"%0#$(%4")#>-.!#.!"#%",(-0-0=#&$"0#'$(4"'#(%&*0/#.!"#$"%-$!"%?#&7#.!"#'-."

4&0'-'.-0=#$%-,(%-)?#&7#0(%%&>"%#(%"('#>!-4!#4&0.(-0#/%(-0(="#7"(.*%"'9

1&,"#&7#.!"#&$"0#'$(4"'#7"(.*%"#7&&.>(?'#%*00-0=#.!%&*=!#.!",#+*.#()&0=#.!"#"('."%0#+&*0/(%?#&7#.!"

'&*.!"%0#$(%4")#(0/#.!"#>"'."%0#+&*0/(%?#&7#.!"#0&%.!"%0#$(%4")#$"/"'.%-(0#%&*."'#%*0#(/8(4"0.#.&#.!"

-0."%0()#%&(/'9

 !"#($$)-4(.-&0#()'&#$%&6-/"'#())&.,"0.#$%&6-'-&0#,"('*%-0=#392!(#>!-4!#-'#(#'-=0-7-4(0.#%"/*4.-&0#7%&,

.!"#F9H2<!(#(%"(#&%-=-0())?#-/"0.-7-"/#.!%&*=!#.!"#&*.)-0"#($$%&6()9# !"#(,"0/"/#($$)-4(.-&0#$%&$&'"'

.!(.#F9R2<!(#&7#.!"#$%"6-&*'#())&.,"0.#)(0/#-'#-0'."(/#*.-)-'"/#('#&$"0#'$(4"#$%&6-'-&09#L&>"6"%E#.!%&*=!

.!"#&*.)-0"#($$%&6()#.!-'#(%"(#&7#.!"#'-."#>('#'!&>0#('#"-.!"%#+"-0=#7&%#())&.,"0.#&%#$%&6-'-&0#&7#.!"#0">

'4&*.#!*.9#S-.!#.!"#%"$)(4","0.#'4&*.#!*.#+"-0=#$%&6-/"/#(.#.!"#1"7."%#N&(/#'-."#.!"%"#-'#0&#%"K*-%","0.

7&%#.!"#'4&*.#!*.#.&#+"#/")-6"%"/#&0#.!-'#'-."9

T05'-."#())&.,"0.#$%&6-'-&0#>('#0&.#%"K*"'."/#(.#&*.)-0"#'.(="#+?#U%""0'$(4"E#>-.!#.!"#'-."#7())-0=#+")&>

.!"#.!%"'!&)/#7&%#&05'-."#$%&6-'-&0E#+*.#-.#>('#-04)*/"/#>-.!-0#.!"#/"'4%-$.-&0#&7#/"6")&$,"0.9#V('"/#*$&0

.!"#'4()"#&7#/"6")&$,"0.#$%&$&'"/#+?#.!-'#$%&$&'()#(0/#.(J-0=#-0.&#(44&*0.#.!"#@&4()#P"0.%"#W23

/>"))-0='X#>!-4!#>"%"#$%"6-&*')?#($$%&6"/#*0/"%#AMF::M2FMNC1#.!"#())&.,"0.#$%&6-'-&0#,"".'#.!"

%"K*-%","0.'#"'.(+)-'!"/#.!%&*=!#.!"#T$"0#1$(4"#(0/#N"4%"(.-&0#1AY9# !"#$%&$&'"/#())&.,"0.

$%&6-'-&0#-'#/"","/#.&#+"#(44"$.(+)"#(0/#>&*)/#0&.#4&07)-4.#>-.!#.!"#&*.)-0"#($$%&6()#*0/"%

AMFR3MFHMTZ 9

O&))&>-0=#.!"#(,"0/,"0.'#.!"#)(?&*.E#($$"(%(04"#(0/#'4()"#&7#.!"#$%&$&'"/#/"6")&$,"0.#-'#4&0'-/"%"/

($$%&$%-(."#>-.!#.!"#/"6")&$,"0.#%"'$&0/-0=#$&'-.-6")?#.&#.!"#"'.(+)-'!"/#4!(%(4."%#&7#.!"#)&4()-.?#>!-)'.

%"7)"4.-0=#.!"#J"?#$%-04-$)"'#"'.(+)-'!"/#.!%&*=!#.!"#Y"'-=0#P&/"9# !"%"7&%"E#.!"#$%&$&'()'#(%"#-0

Page 53



 !!"#$ %!&'()*+',"-)!)&.'/'/012'/'341' %$'567'/01'"8'*+&'6#9%'5"! -'4- %' .'(&--' .'*+&'4 :+ ;

<)-- :&'/&.):%'3* *&;&%*=

4>?5@A'B4C7'346AC'67/'456D

654',"-)!E'B3F'/01' %$'GH?'341' #&'#&-&I %*='J+&'A"9%!)-K.'.9,,-&;&%* #E',- %%)%:'$"!9;&%*

L34/M'KB,&%'3, !&2'4- E)%:'4)*!+&.2'@%$""#' %$'?9)-*'3,"#*.'N !)-)*)&.K'LO %9 #E'PQPQM'.&*.'"9*'.,&!)8)!

#&R9)#&;&%*.'8"#'"%S.)*&',9T-)!'",&%'., !&'L4B3M' %$',- E',#"I).)"%=

6.')$&%*)8)&$' T"I&'*+&')%$)! *)I&'; .*&#,- %'(+)!+' !!";, %)&$'*+&',- %%)%:' ,,-)! *)"%')$&%*)8)&$' 

*"* -'",&%'., !&',#"I).)"%'"%'.)*&'"8'U=VW+ '(+)!+'&X!&&$.'*+&'#&R9)#&;&%*.'8"#' '$&I&-",;&%*'"8'*+).

.)Y&' .'.&*'"9*'()*+)%'*+&'A"9%!)-K.'B,&%'3, !&2'4- E)%:'4)*!+&.2'@%$""#' %$'?9)-*'3,"#*'N !)-)*)&.'34/2

O %'PQPQ'TE' ,,#"X); *&-E'P=1U+ ='J+).'",&%'., !&',#"I).)"%'( .'$&&;&$' !!&,* T-&' %$'("9-$

&%.9#&'*+ *'.988)!)&%*'",&%'., !&'( .',#"I)$&$'"%'.)*&'*"'&%!"9# :&'89*9#&'#&.)$&%*.'*"'( -Z[&X&#!).&

()*+)%'*+&'$&I&-",;&%*'# *+&#'*+ %' !!&..)%:'*+&'%&):+T"9#)%:'4 :+ ;'G #T"9#'3,&!) -'4#"*&!*)"%'6#& 

L346M=

J+&',9T-)!'",&%'., !&'L4B3M',#"I)$&$2'8"--"()%:' ;&%$&$'"8'*+&',#",". -.2' -):%.'()*+'*+&

#&R9)#&;&%*.'"8'*+&'"9*-)%&',- %%)%:' ,,#"I -' %$' !!"#$.'()*+'*+&'%9;&#)! -'#&R9)#&;&%*.'*&.*&$

*+#"9:+'*+&'6,,#",#) *&'6..&..;&%*'L66M='6'$&* )-&$' ..&..;&%*'"8'*+&'- E"9*'"8'*+&'",&%'., !&

,#"I).)"%'+ .'T&&%'9%$&#* Z&%' .', #*'"8'*+&'- E"9*'.&!*)"%' T"I&=

J+&'"9*-)%&' ,,#"I -'L9%$&#'#&8&#&%!&'4[1\Q[1W[B>JM'.&!9#&$'*+&',#"I).)"%'"8']'5"! -'6#& .'"8'4- E

L564M2'1'5"! -'CR9),,&$'6#& '"8'4- E'L5C64M' %$'1'&%+ %!&$'5"! -'CR9),,&$'6#& '"8'4- E'LC5C64M=

H+)-.*'$&* )-.'"8',- E',#"I).)"%' #&'*"'T&'.&!9#&$'*+#"9:+'*+&'31QW' :#&&;&%*'$&* )-.'+ I&'T&&%

,#"I)$&$' .', #*'"8'*+).' ,,-)! *)"%=

J+&',- E',#"I).)"%'+ .'T&&%'*+&'.9T̂&!*'"8'!"%.)$&# *)"%'TE'*+&'A"9%!)-K.'_#&&%., !&'B88)!&#'(+"'+ .

# ).&$' %'"T̂&!*)"%'"%'*+&'T .).'*+ *'*+&')%8"#; *)"%',#"I)$&$'8"#'*+&'564'4- E'J# )-'!"%* )%&$')%.988)!)&%*

$&* )-' %$'.,&!)8)! *)"%̀'.);)- #-E'()*+'*+&'%"#*+&#%'5C64')*'+ .'T&&%' $I).&$'*+ *'*+&'&R9),;&%*' ,,& #.

-);)*&$')%'*&#;.'"8'&X,&#)&%!&.'"88&#&$̀' %$')%'#&- *)"%'*"'*+&'C5C64')*'+ .'T&&%' $I).&$'*+ *'*+&'$&.):%

 ,,& #.')% $&R9 *&')%'*&#;.'"8' !!&..)T-&',- E',#"I).)"%' .'#&R9)#&$'TE'*+&'6#9%'/&.):%'_9)$&=

CR9),;&%*'T&*(&&%'*+&'5C64' %$'C5C64').'#&,&*)*)I&' %$'8 )-.'*"'$&-)I&#' %'&X!)*)%:' %$'!+ --&%:)%:

,- E'"88&#='@*'+ .' -."'T&&%')$&%*)8)&$'*+ *' !#"..' --',- E' #& .'*+&')%$)! *&$':# ..',- E';"9%$.'+ I&'%"

!"%*"9#'"#'+&):+*'$&* )-'"#'$&* )-'"8'+"('*+&.&'("9-$')%*&#8 !&'()*+'*+&' $̂ !&%*'8&%!)%:='J+&#&').' -."' 

- !Z'"8'$&* )-'*"'$&;"%.*# *&'(+ *').',#",".&$')%'*&#;.'"8', *+( E'!"%%&!*)"%' %$'.9#8 !)%:'*"',9T-)!

",&%'., !&'L4B3M' #& .2'*+&' ,,-)! *)"%'.+"(.'.&-8ST)%$)%:':# I&-'(+)!+'("9-$',"*&%*) --E'#&.9-*')%

; )%*&% %!&')..9&.')%'+):+'*# 88)!' #& .'&.,&!) --E'(+&%'.&&Z)%:' --S(& *+&#' !!&..)T)-)*E' %$'*"';&&*

*+&'%&&$.'"8'(+&&-&$'9.&#.=

_)I&%'*+&')..9&.'()*+'*+&',#",".&$',- E',#"I).)"%' %$'*+ *'*+&.&'$&* )-.'(&#&'"#):)% --E')%*&%$&$'*"'T&

.&!9#&$'*+#"9:+'*+&'31QW'6:#&&;&%*')*'+ .'T&&%'#&!";;&%$&$'TE'*+&'546'*+ *'*+&',- E',#"I).)"%').

#&;"I&$'8#";'*+&'.9T;)..)"%'()*+'*+&'$&* )-.'*"'T&'.9T;)**&$')%'-)%&'()*+'*+&'31QW'#&R9)#&;&%*.'8"#

 ,,#"I -'TE'*+&'5"! -'4- %%)%:'69*+"#)*E'L546M')%'!"%.9-* *)"%'()*+'*+&'_#&&%., !&'B88)!&#=

B%'*+).'T .).'*+&',#",". -.' #&' !!&,* T-&' %$'("9-$' !!"#$'()*+'*+&'#&R9)#&;&%*.'"8',"-)!)&.'B3F'/01

 %$'GH?'341'"8'*+&'6#9%'5"! -'4- %' .'(&--' .'*+&'#&R9)#&;&%*.'"8'*+&'KB,&%'3, !&2'4- E)%:'4)*!+&.2

@%$""#' %$'?9)-*'3,"#*.'N !)-)*)&.K'LO %9 #E'PQPQM'34/=

567/3A64@7_'67/'JFCC3

654',"-)!)&.'/'/012'567'/01' %$'/'341' #&'#&-&I %*'*"'*+&'!"%.)$&# *)"%'"8'- %$.! ,)%:' %$'*#&&.='6

J#&&'4#&.&#I *)"%'B#$&#'LJ4BM').',#&.&%*'"%'*+&'.)*&'9%$&#'#&8&#&%!&'J4B[4[V[1a' %$'#&- *&.'*"'*#&&.

(+)!+' #&'-"! *&$' $̂ !&%*'*"'4 :+ ;'F" $'L_PM' .'(&--' .' '4&$9%!9- *&'B Z'LJ1M'.)*&$')%'*+&'."9*+S

Page 54



 !"#!$%&'($%!$&()&#*!&"(+#*!$%&,-$'!./

0&1$-2%-3!&)!-#+$!&2"&"*( %&2%&'.("!&,$(4252#6&#(&78&-%1&2#&2"&+%'.!-$&)$(5&#*!&1!#-2.&,$(921!1&2%&"+,,($#

()&#*!&-,,.2'-#2(%&2)&#*2"&2"&-&%! &($&!42"#2%3&)!-#+$!:&;+#&2#&-,,!-$"&#(&)-..& 2#*2%&#*!&$((#&,$(#!'#2(%&-$!-"

<=>0?&)($&#*!&#$!!"& *2'*&)($5&78&+%1!$&#$!!&,$!"!$9-#2(%&($1!$&@>AB>BCBDE/&0%6&%! &)!-#+$!&2%&#*2"

.('-#2(%& (+.1&%(#&;!&"+,,($#!1&;6&#*!&>.-%%2%3&0+#*($2#6& *(& (+.1&!4,!'#&#(&"!!&-&C5&;+))!$&;!# !!%

-%6&#$!!&-%1&-%6&%! &1$-2%-3!&)!-#+$!/&F( !9!$:&#*2"& 2..&;!&'(%"21!$!1&2%&5($!&1!#-2.&#*$(+3*&#*!

12"'*-$3!&()&#*!&1$-2%-3!&'(%12#2(%"/

G%&$!.-#2(%&#(&@D&-&)((#,-#*&2"&"*( %&(%&#*!&$!92"!1&.-6(+#& *2'*&-,,!-$"&#(&$+%&2%&'.("!&,$(4252#6&#(&#*!

@>A&#$!!&-%1&5-6&2%#!$"!'#& 2#*&#*!&=>0&()&#*!&,$(#!'#!1&#$!!/&F( !9!$:&H(%12#2(%&E&25,("!1&(%

>BDIJBDKBAL@&$!M+2$!"&#*!&"+;52""2(%&()&-%&0$;($2'+.#+$-.&N!#*(1&O#-#!5!%#&-%1&@$!!&>$(#!'#2(%&>.-%

-%1&2#&2"&-%#2'2,-#!1&#*-#&#*2"&"+;52""2(%& 2..&%!!1&#(&'(%"21!$&#*2"&5-##!$& 2#*&-&%(&123&"(.+#2(%

25,.!5!%#!1&-"&$!M+2$!1&#(&52%252"!&-%6&12"#+$;-%'!& 2#*2%&#*!&=>0/

P*2."#&%(&)($5-.&'(55!%#"&*-9!&;!!%&"+;52##!1&#*!&-;(9!&-""!""5!%#&*-"&;!!%&12"'+""!1& 2#*&#*!

H(+%'2.Q"&@$!!&A))2'!$& *(&*-"&'(%)2$5!1&#*!2$&"+,,($#&()&())2'!$Q"&'(%'.+"2(%"&(%&#*!"!&5-##!$"&-%1&-"

"+'*&#*!&25,-'#&()&#*!&,$(,("-."&+,(%&#$!!"&-$!&'(%"21!$!1&-''!,#-;.!/

=!92"!1&.-%1"'-,2%3&1!#-2."&*-9!&;!!%&,$(921!1&2%&"+,,($#&()&#*!&,.-%%2%3&-,,.2'-#2(%/&@*!&0,,$(,$2-#!

0""!""5!%#&<00?&+%1!$#-R!%&-#&(+#.2%!&"#-3!&21!%#2)2!1&#*-#&1!%"!&#$!!&,.-%#2%3&"*(+.1&;!&,$!"!%#&-.(%3

#*!& !"#!$%&;(+%1-$6&()&#*!&"2#!&2%&($1!$&#(&52#23-#!&12"#+$;-%'!&)$(5&#*!&1!9!.(,5!%#&+,(%&S$!%#

7!!"!&)($-32%3&(%&)2!.1"&%!23*;(+$2%3&#*!&1!9!.(,5!%#/&@*!&.-%1"'-,2%3&1!#-2."&"+;52##!1&2%&"+,,($#&()

#*!&-,,.2'-#2(%&"*( &#*-#&*!13!$( &,.-%#2%3& 2..&;!&,$!"!%#&-1T-'!%#&#(&#*!&!-"#!$%&;(+%1-$6&()&#*!&"2#!

-%1&#*2"&2"&21!%#2)2!1&-"&'(%"2"#2%3&()&-&524&()&%-#29!&",!'2!"&"+'*&-"&)2!.1&5-,.!:&1(3 ((1:&*-U!.:

*- #*($%:&;.-'R#*($%&-%1&1(3&$("!& *2'*&2"&-%&-,,$(,$2-#!&524/&@*2"&2"&'(%"21!$!1&-%&-,,$(,$2-#!&524&()

",!'2!"&;+#&2#&2"&21!%#2)2!1&#*-#&#*2"& 2..&'(%"2"#&()& *2,"&5!-"+$2%3&;!# !!%&KJVWJ'5&2%&*!23*#/&F( !9!$:

"(5!&()&#*!&-$!-"&()&#*!&*!13!$( &,.-%#2%3&,$(,("!1&-$!&21!%#2)2!1&-"&)!-#+$2%3&-112#2(%-.&#$!!&,.-%#2%3

()&*!-96&-%1&!4#$-&*!-96&"#-%1-$1&#(&!%"+$!&-1!M+-#!&"'$!!%2%3/

X-%1"'-,2%3&-1T-'!%#&#(&#*!& !"#!$%&;(+%1-$6&()&#*!&"(+#*!$%5("#&(,!%&",-'!&2"&21!%#2)2!1&-"&,$(9212%3

QY-#29!&P((1.-%1&>.-%#2%3Q/&729!%&#*2"&2"&(%!&()&#*!&.-$3!"#&(,!%&",-'!"&(%&"2#!&-"& !..&-"

-''(55(1-#2%3&#*!&-..(#5!%#"&2#&2"&'(%"21!$!1&!""!%#2-.&#*-#&-1!M+-#!&,.-%#2%3&2"&,$(921!1&#(&-9(21

12"#+$;-%'!&-""('2-#!1& 2#*&+"!&()&#*2"&.-%1&)($&$!'$!-#2(%-.&,+$,("!"/&@*!& ((1.-%1&524&2"&'(%"21!$!1

#(&;!&-,,$(,$2-#!&-"&,$(,("!1&;+#&-3-2%&#*2"&2"&21!%#2)2!1&-"&'(%"2"#2%3&()& *2,"&5!-"+$2%3&;!# !!%&KJV

WJ'5/&729!%&#*!&",!'2!"&524&2#&2"&.2R!.6&#*-#&#*2"& 2..&#-R!&;!# !!%&I&-%1&Z&6!-$"&)($&#*!&#$!!&,.-%#2%3&#(

$!-'*&-&*!23*#&()&-,,$(4/&8&5!#$!"/

G%&($1!$&#(&-11$!""&#*2"&2""+!&2#&*-"&;!!%&21!%#2)2!1&;6&())2'!$Q"&#*-#&#*!&,.-%#2%3&(%&#*!& !"#!$%&;(+%1-$6

()&#*!&"2#!&"*(+.1&;!&,$(921!1&-#&#*!&!-$.2!"#&(,,($#+%2#6&1+$2%3&1!9!.(,5!%#&#(&,$(921!&-%&(,,($#+%2#6&)($

#*2"&,.-%#2%3&#(&5-#+$!&-%1&,$(921!&-1!M+-#!&"'$!!%2%3&()&#*!&1!9!.(,5!%#&,$2($&#(&(''+,-#2(%/&G%

-112#2(%&#(&#*2"&)!%'2%3&2"&#(&;!&,$(921!1&-.(%3&#*!& !"#!$%&;(+%1-$6&-%1&#*2"& (+.1&'(%"2"#&()&-&D/D5

*23*&,("#&-%1&$-2.&)!%'!& *2'*& (+.1&)!-#+$!&1(3&,$(()&5!"*/&@*2"&2"&'(%"21!$!1&-%&-,,$(,$2-#!&)!-#+$!

329!%&#*!&!13!&()&"!##.!5!%#&.('-#2(%&()&#*!&"2#!& *2."#&$!"#$2'#2%3&-''!""&#(&#*!&)+%'#2(%-..6&.2%R!1&*-;2#-#

#(&#*!& !"#&;6&1(3"&;!2%3&!4!$'2"!1&())&.!-1/

@*!&(%.6&(#*!$&(+#"#-%12%3&5-##!$&2%&$!.-#2(%&#(&#*!&1!9!.(,5!%#"&25,-'#&+,(%&#*!&>-3*-5&F-$;(+$

O>0B=-5"-$&O2#!&2"&#*!&$!M+2$!5!%#&#(&,$(921!&"23%-3!&#(&2%)($5&-%1&12"'(+$-3!&-''!""&#(&#*!&,$(#!'#!1

"2#!&;6&)+#+$!&$!"21!%#"/&@*!&,.-%"&"+;52##!1&2%&"+,,($#&()&#*!&-,,.2'-#2(%&1(&%(#&,$(921!&-%6&.('-#2(%"&($

1!#-2."&()&"23%-3!:&*( !9!$&2#&2"&-,,$(,$2-#!&)($&#*2"&1!#-2.&#(&;!&"!'+$!1&92-&-&"+2#-;.6& ($1!1&,.-%%2%3

'(%12#2(%/&@*!&'(%12#2(%& (+.1&$!M+2$!&2%,+#&)$(5&#*!&O#$-#!32'&0''!""&N-%-3!5!%#&-%1&N(%2#($2%3

<O0NN?&,.-%&#(&!%"+$!&'(%"2"#!%#&5!""-32%3/

Page 55



 !"#$%&'"#(&)(*+,-&),#&)#.!","#/$.."0,#$0"#0"1*"(."2#-)#.!"#3440&40-$."#3,,",,/").#5336#7!-(!#-,

(+00").*8#.!"#,+%9"(.#&1#(&),+*.$.-&)#7-.!#:$.+0$*#;)<*$)2=#>)("#(&//").,#!$'"#%"")#0"("-'"2#10&/

:$.+0$*#;)<*$)2#&)#.!"#33#.!","#7-**#%"#0"4&0."2#.&#?"/%"0,#$,#$#70-..")#+42$."#40-&0#.&#.!"#@*$))-)<

A&//-..""#/"".-)<=

B&7"'"0C#,+%9"(.#.&#)&#&%9"(.-&)#%"-)<#0$-,"2#%8#:$.+0$*#;)<*$)2#.&#.!"#(&)(*+,-&),#&1#.!"#33#.!"

40&4&,"2#2"'"*&4/").#7&+*2#$((&02#7-.!#4&*-(-",#D#D?EC#F3:#D?E#$)2#D#G@E#&1#.!"#30+)#F&($*#@*$)=

B;HI 3J;

3F@#4&*-(-",#B;H#G@EC#B;H#D?E#$)2#B;H#D?K#$0"#0"*"'$).#.&#.!"#(&),-2"0$.-&)#&1#-/4$(.,#&1#.!"

2"'"*&4/").#+4&)#!"0-.$<"=#G"(.-&)#LL#&1#.!"#@*$))-)<#5F-,."2#M+-*2-)<,#$)2#A&),"0'$.-&)#30"$,6#3(.

ENNO#-,#$*,&#0"*"'$).#.&#.!"#(&),-2"0$.-&)#&1#.!"#40&4&,$*,=

 !"#!"0-.$<"#-/4$(.,#&1#.!"#2"'"*&4/").#7"0"#(&),-2"0"2#$.#&+.*-)"#,.$<"#7!"0"#-.#7$,#(&)(*+2"2#.!$.

.!"#2"'"*&4/").#&1#.!"#,-."#7&+*2#40","0'"#.!"#,"..-)<#&1#)"$0%8#*-,."2#%+-*2-)<,=#I.#7$,#$*,&#-2").-1-"2#%8

.!"#A&+)(-*P,#A&),"0'$.-&)#>11-("0#.!$.#<-'")#.!"#*-/-."2#-)."0Q'-,-%-*-.8#%".7"")#.!"#$44*-($.-&)#,-."#$)2

.!"#M$0.&)#A*&,"#30"$#&1#G4"(-$*#A!$0$(."0#53GA6#.!$.#.!"#40&4&,"2#2"'"*&4/").#7&+*2#!$'"#*-..*"

-/4$(.#+4&)#-.,#*&($**8#2-,.-)(.-'"#R+$*-.-",=

B&7"'"0C#<-'")#.!$.#2".$-*"2#2",-<)#!$,#)&7#%"")#40&'-2"2#1&0#.!"#2"'"*&4/").#-.#-,#)"(",,$08#.&

+)2"0.$S"#$#1+0.!"0#$,,",,/").#&1#.!"#-/4$(.#&1#.!"#2"'"*&4/").#+4&)#)"$0%8#!"0-.$<"#$,,".,=# !"

$44*-($.-&)#-,#$((&/4$)-"2#%8#$#B"0-.$<"#G.$."/").#5T$)+$08#UOUU6#7!-(!#(&)(*+2",#.!$.#.!"#40&4&,"2

2"'"*&4/").#7&+*2#40","0'"#.!"#,-<)-1-($)("#&1#.!"#*-,."2#%+-*2-)<,=# !-,#(&)(*+,-&)#-,#(&),-,.").#7-.!

.!"#(&)(*+,-&),#&)#.!"#&+.*-)"#(&),").#+)2"0#0"1"0")("#@VEKOVELV>W =

3#(&),+*.$.-&)#0",4&),"#10&/#.!"#A&+)(-*P,#A&),"0'$.-&)#>11-("0#!$,#(&)1-0/"2#.!$.#.!"#40&4&,$*,#7&+*2

)&.#<-'"#0-,"#.&#$)8#!$0/#.&#$)8#&1#.!"#)"$0%8#*-,."2#%+-*2-)<,#7-.!#.!"#"X("4.-&)#&1#G.# !&/$,#$#M"(S".

$)2# !"#>*2#A&..$<"=#I.#-,#.!")#-2").-1-"2#.!$.#.!"#40&4&,$*#7&+*2#0",+*.#-)#*",,#.!$)#,+%,.$).-$*#!$0/#&)

.!"#*&7"0#")2#&1#.!"#,($*"=# !"0"1&0"C#-)#$((&02$)("#7-.!#4$0$<0$4!#UOU#&1#.!"#:@@Y#.!-,#!$0/#/+,.#%"

%$*$)("2#$<$-),.#.!"#%")"1-.,#&1#.!"#2"'"*&4/").=

I)#.!-,#($,"#.!"#%")"1-.,#&1#.!"#2"'"*&4/").#7&+*2#(&),-,.#&1Z

Q#@0&'-,-&)#&1#[\O#!&/",#7!-(!#(&).0-%+."#.&7$02,#.!"#A&+)(-*P,#(+00").#!&+,-)<#*$)2#,+44*8#,!&0.1$**Z

Q#@0&'-,-&)#&1#)"7#$11&02$%*"#!&+,-)<Z

Q#@0&'-,-&)#&1#(&).0-%+.-&),#$)2#&.!"0#-)10$,.0+(.+0"#-/40&'"/").,#$,#,".#&+.#-)#.!"#GEOL#3<0""/").#1&0

$44*-($.-&)#@VEKOVELV>W Z

Q#;-.!"0#(0"$."#)"7#(&),.0+(.-&)#9&%,#&0#!"*4#.&#/$-).$-)#"X-,.-)<#&)",#2+0-)<#2"'"*&4/").Z#$)2

Q#H",+*.#-)#$22-.-&)$*#,4")2-)<#%8#)"7#0",-2").,#&)#<&&2,#$)2#,"0'-(",#-)(*+2-)<#7-.!-)#.!"#*&($*#$0"$=

 !"#4+%*-(#%")"1-.,#$0"#&1#$#*"'"*#.!$.#.!"#-2").-1-"2#P*",,#.!$)#,+%,.$).-$*#!$0/P#.&# !"#@$0-,!#A!+0(!#&1

G.=# !&/$,#$#M"(S".#$)2# !"#>*2#A&..$<"#($)#%"#&+.7"-<!"2#$)2#$,#,+(!#.!"#40&4&,$*,#$0"#-)

$((&02$)("#7-.!#.!"#:@@Y#<+-2$)("#$)2#(&/4*-$).#7-.!#.!"#0"*"'$).#2"'"*&4/").#4*$)#4&*-(-",#-),&1$0

$,#.!"#-/4$(.#&)#F-,."2#M+-*2-)<,#-,#(&)("0)"2=

 !"#M$0.&)#A*&,"#30"$#&1#A!$0$(."0#53>A6#-,#*&($."2#.&#.!"#)&0.!Q"$,.#&1#.!"#$44*-($.-&)#,-."=#I.#-,

-2").-1-"2#.!$.#+4&)#")."0-)<#M$0.&)#A*&,"C#$#,-)<*"#.0$(S#-,#%&02"0"2#%8#<0$,,#'"0<",C#7-.!#$#,"/-0+0$*

")(*$'"#(0"$."2=#;,.$%*-,!"2#!"2<",C#(*"1.#&$S#1")(-)<#$)2#.!"#<0$,,#'"0<",#$0"#2-,.-)<+-,!-)<#1"$.+0",

&1#.!"#0+0$*#(!$0$(."0C#7-.!#.!"#4&)2#-)#.!"#<0&+)2,#&1#M$0.&)#J0$)$08#%"-)<#$)#$..0$(.-'"#1&($*#4&-).=

 !"#-/4$(.#&1#2"'"*&4/").#+4&)#.!"#3>A#7$,#(&),-2"0"2#.!0&+<!#.!"#2"."0/-)$.-&)#&1#@VEKOVELV>W 

Page 56



 !"#"$%&$ '($%)"*&%+%")$&!'&$&!"#"$ ,-.)$/"$.%&&."$%*&"#0%(%/%.%&1$/"& ""*$&!"$(%&"$'*)$&!"$2345$6,.%71$89:

;<=$#".'&"($&,$)"0".,>?"*&$ %&!%*$&!"$234$'*)$'($(-7!$%($*,&$'>>.%7'/."$&,$&!"$)"&"#?%*'&%,*$,+$&!%(

'>>.%7'&%,*5$8, "0"#@$&!"$%?>'7&$,+$&!"$)"0".,>?"*&$->,*$&!"$234$!'($/""*$#"0%" ")$'*)$&!"#"$ %..$/"

*,$!'#?$&,$&!"$("&&%*A$,#$(%A*%+%7'*7"$,+$&!%($*,*B)"(%A*'&")$!"#%&'A"$'(("&5

C*$#"(>"7&$,+$("7&%,*($DD$'*)$EF$,+$&!"$6.'**%*A$GH%(&")$I-%.)%*A($'*)$4,*("#0'&%,*$2#"'(J$27&$KLLM@

 !%.(&$&!"$("&&%*A$,+$&!"$6'#%(!$4!-#7!$,+$N&5$O!,?'($'$I"7P"&$ %..$/"$(-/Q"7&$&,$."(($&!'*$(-/(&'*&%'.

!'#?@$&!%($!'#?$7'*$/"$,-& "%A!")$/1$&!"$(&#"*A&!$,+$&!"$>-/.%7$/"*"+%&(5$R-#&!"#?,#"@$*,$!'#?$!'(

/""*$%)"*&%+%")$&,$'*1$*,*B)"(%A*'&")$!"#%&'A"$'(("&(5$O!"#"+,#"@$&!"$>#,>,(")$)"0".,>?"*&$ %..$'77,#)

 %&!$>,.%7%"($89:$N6K$'*)$89:$;<K$,+$&!"$2#-*$H,7'.$6.'*5

83SNCTU$<CV$2T;$2RR3:;2IH9$83SNCTU

2H6$>,.%71$8$;<K$>#,0%)"($+,#$'$?%W$,+$!,-(%*A$&,$?""&$.,7'.$*"")($'*)$#"X-%#"($&!'&$'..$!,-(%*A

)"0".,>?"*&$(!,-.)$>#,0%)"$'$?%W$,+$) "..%*A$&1>"($'*)$(%Y"($&,$'))#"(($&!"$*'&-#"$,+$.,7'.$!,-(%*A

*"")($'*)$?'#P"&$)"?'*)5$O!"$>,.%71$>#"'?/."$GKF5F5=J$'7P*, .")A"($&!'&$&!"$+%*'.$?%W$ %..$/"

*"A,&%'&")$,*$'$(%&"$/1$(%&"$/'(%(@$!'0%*A$#"A'#)$&,$&!"$?,(&$->$&,$)'&"$N&#'&"A%7$8,-(%*A$<'#P"&

2(("((?"*&$GN8<2J5$O!"$N8<2$(""P($&,$'7!%"0"$&!"$+,.., %*A$?'#P"&$) "..%*A$)%(&#%/-&%,*Z

K$/")$) "..%*A$B$[BKM\

F$/")$) "..%*A$B$=MB=[\

]$/")$) "..%*A$B$F[B=M\

=$/")$) "..%*A$B$KMBK[\

O!"$'>>.%7'&%,*$+,.., %*A$'?"*)?"*&$>#,>,("($'$&,&'.$,+$][M$) "..%*A($G'$#")-7&%,*$,+$F[$) "..%*A(J@$&!%(

#")-7&%,*$%*$&!"$*-?/"#$,+$) "..%*A($ '($&,$?""&$&!"$,>"*$(>'7"$#"X-%#"?"*&($%)"*&%+%")$&!#,-A!$&!"

,-&.%*"$'>>#,0'.5$O!"$'>>.%7'&%,*$'($'?"*)")$>#,>,("($&!"$+,.., %*A$) "..%*A$?%W$+,#$?'#P"&$!,-(%*AZ

K$/")$) "..%*A$B$M$GM\J

F$/")$) "..%*A$B$DL$GF̂5F\J

]$/")$) "..%*A$B$K]E$G[[5L\J

=$/")$) "..%*A$B$]L$GK[5L\J

O!"$>#,>,(")$?%W$)"0%'&"($+#,?$ !'&$ ,-.)$/"$'$N8<2$7,?>.%'*&$?%W$#"(-.&$%*$'*$-*)"#B>#,0%(%,*$,+

/"& ""*$[BKM\$+,#$K$/")$) "..%*A($'*)$KK5̂BKD5̂\$F$/")$) "..%*A($ %&!$'*$,0"#>#,0%(%,*$,+$/"& ""*

]M5LBK[5L\$+,#$]$/")$) "..%*A($'*)$[5LBM5L\$+,#$=$/")$) "..%*A(5

O!%($)"0%'&%,*$%($.'#A".1$'($'$)%#"7&$#"(>,*("$&,$&!"$)"0".,>?"*&($.,7'&%,*$,*$&!"$")A"$,+$("&&."?"*&$ %&!

&!"$.'1,-&$,+$&!"$>#,>,('.($(""P%*A$&,$>#,0%)"$'$&#'*(%&%,*$/"& ""*$&!"$"W%(&%*A$")A"$,+$6'A!'?$'*)$&!"

#-#'.$7,-*&#1(%)"$+-#&!"#$&,$&!"$ "(&5$O!"#"+,#"@$.'#A"#$) "..%*A($/1$&!"%#$*'&-#"$'.., $+,#$'$.,,("#$A#'%*$,+

)"0".,>?"*&$ !%7!$7'*$"*!'*7"$&!"$&#'*(%&%,*$'*)$(,+&"*$&!"$("&&."?"*&$")A"5

O!"$'>>.%7'*&$%*$&!"%#$7,0"#%*A$."&&"#$%*$(->>,#&$,+$&!"$'?"*)")$>#,>,('.($!'($%)"*&%+%")$&!'&$&!"1

G6'A!'?$8,?"(J$!'0"$"*&"#")$%*&,$'$7,*&#'7&$ %&!$_%0%)$G&!"$!,-(%*A$'((,7%'&%,*J$+,#$KK=$,+$&!"$?'#P"&

-*%&($&,$/"$)".%0"#")$'($'++,#)'/."$&"*-#"($#"(-.&%*A$%*$'*$,0"#'..$'++,#)'/."$!,-(%*A$>#,0%(%,*$,+$DF5D\@

'*$'))%&%,*'.$]F5D\$/"1,*)$&!'&$("7-#")$&!#,-A!$&!"$NKMD5$O!%($#"(-.&($%*$'$&,&'.$?'#P"&$>#,0%(%,*$,+

]E5=\5$8, "0"#@$&!"("$!,?"($'#"$*,&$̀'++,#)'/."$) "..%*A(̀$("7-#")$%*$>"#>"&-%&1$+,#$&!"$>-#>,("($,+

>,.%71$7,*(%)"#'&%,*$'($&!"1$'#"$&,$/"$(,.)$,*$&!"$,>"*$?'#P"&$'*)$ ,-.)$*,&$/"$)"+%*")$'($'++,#)'/."

) "..%*A($+,#$&!"$>-#>,("($,+$&!"$NKMD$'A#""?"*&$(%A*")$-*)"#$#"+"#"*7"$6aK=MaKDa3SO5

C&$(!,-.)$'.(,$/"$*,&")$&!'&$&!%($'>>.%7'&%,*$'.,*A(%)"$&!"$>#"0%,-($'>>#,0'.$-*)"#$#"+"#"*7"

6aK[[aFKa:9N$+,#$&!"$.,7'.$7"*&#"$?'P"$->$&!"$+-..$'..,7'&%,*5$O!"$>#"0%,-($'>>#,0'.$+,#$&!"$.,7'.$7"*&#"

G6aK[[aFKa:9NJ$)".%0"#")$F$W$K$/")$-*%&($'*)$K̂$W$F$/")$-*%&(5$O'P%*A$&!"("$) "..%*A$%*&,$'77,-*&$/#%*A(

Page 57



 !"#$#%"&#'()*+,+)-#+-#.+-"#/+ !# !"#0123#("45+("6"- ,7#8-&#+-9("8,",#:#%"&#'()*+,+)-# )#;:<=>#/!+., 

("&59+-?#;#%"&#&/"..+-?,# )#@A<BC>#)D# !"#)*"(8..#6+E<#F!+., 7# !+,#, +..#("68+-,#9)- (8(G# )# !"#+&"- +D+"&

0123#6+E# !"#6+E#8,#'()'),"&#+,#8-#8''()'(+8 "#(",')-,"# )# !"#9!8(89 "(#)D# !"#,+ "#8-&#+ ,#"&?"#)D

,"  ."6"- #.)98 +)-#8&H89"- # )# !"#9)5- (G,+&"<

3,#+&"- +D+"&#8%)*"# !"#!)5,+-?#6+E#/+..#%"#+&"- +D+"&#)-#8#,+ "#%G#,+ "#%8,+,#8-&#+-# !+,#98,"# !"#'()'),"&

6+E#."8-,#,.+?! .G# )/8(&,# !(""#8-&#D)5(#%"&#&/"..+-?,#/!+9!#+,#&""6"&#899"' 8%."<#I!+,#6+E#/+..#"-,5("

 !8 #.)/"(#&"-,+ G#&"*".)'6"- #+,#'(","- #8.)-?# !"#,)5 !J/", "(-#%)5-&8(+",#)D# !"#,+ "#/+ !# !"#)'"-

9)5- (G,+&"<#I!"("D)("7# !"#'()'),"&#!)5,+-?#6+E#+,#&""6"&# )#%"#899"' 8%."#8-&#"-,5("# !"#'()*+,+)-

)D#!)5,+-?#/!+9!#/+..#6"" #.)98.#-""&,#/!+., #(",'"9 +-?# !"#,"  +-?#)D# !"#,+ "#+-#899)(&8-9"#/+ !#').+9G

1#K2A#)D# !"#3(5-#L)98.#M.8-<

N-# "(6,#)D#8DD)(&8%."#!)5,+-?# !"#D)..)/+-?#6+E#+,#'()'),"&O

################################3DD)(&8%."#P"- #Q3PR##########N- "(6"&+8 "#QNR

A#%"&#&/"..+-?,#J##########;A#Q;B<C>R##########################:#QC<@>R

:#%"&#&/"..+-?,#J##########;B#Q$:<C>R########################AA#Q@:<$>R

;#%"&#&/"..+-?,#J##########A;#QA@<@>R##########################S#Q;;<;>R

$#%"&#&/"..+-?,#J############$#Q$<=>R############################A#Q$<=>R

I!"#68H)(+ G#)D# !"#8DD)(&8%."#!)5,+-?#'()*+,+)-#899)(&,#/+ !# !"#0123#/+ !#,)6"#6+-)(#5-&"(#'()*+,+)-

)D#.",,# !8-#T<@>#D)(#$#%"&#Q3PR#8-&#A#%"&#QNR<#I!"("#+,#8.,)#8#6+-)(#)*"('()*+,+)-#)D#:<C>#D)(#:#%"&

Q3PR#8-&#;<;>#D)(#;#%"&#QNR<#I!"("D)("7# !"#6+E#8,#'()'),"&#+,#&""6"&# )#%"#899"' 8%."#8-&#/)5.&

,5%, 8- +8..G#899)(&#/+ !# !"#0123#8-&#/)5.&#%"#+-#899)(&8-9"#/+ !#').+9G#31#0M:#)D# !"#3(5-#L)98.

M.8-<

31#0M:#8.,)#+&"- +D+",# !8 #8DD)(&8%."#!)5,+-?#,!)5.&#%"#*+,58..G#+-&+, +-?5+,!8%."#D()6#68(U" #!)5,+-?

8-&#.8(?"#9.5, "(,#)D#,+-?."# "-5("#&/"..+-?,#,!)5.&#%"#8*)+&"&<#I!"#8DD)(&8%."#5-+ ,#+-# "(6,#)D# !"+(

&",+?-#8("#&""6"&#899"' 8%."#/!+., # !"#&+, (+%5 +)-# !()5?!)5 # !"#,+ "#+,#8''()'(+8 "#8-&#8*)+&,#.8(?"

9.5, "(,#)D#8DD)(&8%."#5-+ ,<

I!"("D)("7# !"#.8G)5 #8-&#&",+?-#)D# !"#8DD)(&8%."#5-+ ,#+,#899"' 8%."#+-#899)(&8-9"#/+ !#').+9G#31#0M:

)D# !"#3(5-#L)98.#M.8-<

PV0NKVWIN3L#32VWNIX

3LM#').+9+",#K#K2A#8-&#YV#0MA#8("#("."*8- <#I!"#Z)5-9+.[,#K",+?-#\5+&"#," ,#)5 #?5+&8-9"#)-

+- "(D89"#&+, 8-9",#%" /""-#!)5,",O

J#]89U# )#]89UO#6+-<#:A6#%" /""-#!8%+ 8%."#())6,#)D#'()'"( +",#)(# )#"E+, +-?#%5+.&+-?,<

J#]89Û_()- # )#0+&"O#6+-<#A$6#%" /""-#!8%+ 8%."#())6,#8-&#,+&"#?8%."#)D#8&H89"- #'()'"( G<

J#_()- # )#_()- O#6+-<#AB6#%" /""-#!8%+ 8%."#())6,#)D#'()'"( +",#D89+-?#"89!#) !"(<

J#]89U# )#])5-&8(GO#6+-<#A:6#%" /""-#!8%+ 8%."#())6,#8-&#,+ "#%)5-&8(G# )#"E+, +-?#.8-&,98'+-?<

J#I!"("#8("#-)#, 8-&8(&,#D)(#"+ !"(#,+&"# )#,+&"#)(#D()- # )#%89U<

3#("*+"/#)D# !"#86"-&"&#.8G)5 #!8,#("*"8."&# !"#D)..)/+-?#"E86'.",#/!"("# !"#,"'8(8 +)-#&+, 8-9",#8("

+-,5DD+9+"- O

J#M.) ,#@JS#QA:6#%89U# )#,+&"R̀

J#M.) ,#=ĈCT̂CA#J#=S#QAA<@JA;6#%89U# )#,+&"R̀

J#M.) ,#:TCJ:AT#QAA<@6#%89U# )#,+&"R̀

J#M.) ,#;TB̂;TŜ;T=J;TC#QAA<@JA:<@6#%89U# )#,+&"R̀#8-&

J#M.) ,#;;$̂;;@̂;;;J;;B#QAA<@JA;6#%89U# )#,+&"R<

Page 58



 !"#$%#&!'(!)*#!+"'+',#-!./"-#0,!*/,!"#$#/1#-!/!0234#"!'(!#5/3+1#,!&*#"#!)*#!3%0%323!67893

./"-#0!-#+)*!*/,!0')!4##0!/:*%#$#-8!;'&#$#"<!%0!)*#!3/='"%)>!'(!:/,#,!)*%,!%,!'01>!3/".%0/11>!,*'")!/0-

)*#!?63!4/:@!)'!4/:@!,#+/"/)%'0!-%,)/0:#,!*/$#!4##0!/:*%#$#-!3#/0%0.!)*/)!)*#!"#,%-#0)%/1!/3#0%)>!'(

(2)2"#!'::2+%#",!/"#!0')!/-$#",#1>!%3+/:)#-!2+'08!;'&#$#"<!)*"##!#5/3+1#,!*/$#!4##0!('20-!&*#"#!)*#

./"-#0!-#+)*!%,!3'"#!)*/0!63!4#1'&!)*#!67893!3%0%323!&*%:*!%,!:'0,%-#"#-!/0!20/::#+)/41#!,*'")(/118

A1')!?BC!D!C8E3!/$#"/.#!F3/5!67893G

A1')!6HI!D!C8?3!/$#"/.#!F3%0!J8H3!D!3/5!673G

A1')!6C6!D!C893!/$#"/.#!F3%0!J8C!D!3/5!C8B93G

K*#!/4'$#!%,,2#,!&#"#!"/%,#-!&%)*!)*#!/.#0)!&*'!*/,!/3#0-#-!)*#!1/>'2)!)'!/--"#,,!)*#,#!:'0(1%:),

&*%:*!#0,2"#,!)*/)!)*#!+"'+',/1,!/::'"-!&%)*!)*#!L'20:%1M,!N#,%.0!O2%-#!:"%)#"%/8!P'11'&%0.!)*#,#

/3#0-3#0),!)*#!+"'+',#-!./"-#0!-#+)*,!/"#!/::#+)/41#!/,!/"#!)*#!,#+/"/)%'0!-%,)/0:#,!&*%:*!#0,2"#,

)*/)!)*#!+"'+',#-!-#$#1'+3#0)!-'#,!0')!.%$#!"%,#!)'!/0>!20/::#+)/41>!/-$#",#!%3+/:),!)'!/3#0%)>!('"

(2)2"#!'"!0#/"4>!'::2+%#",!'(!)*#!,%)#8

K*#!L'20:%1M,!Q0$%"'03#0)/1!;#/1)*!R((%:#"!%0!)*#%"!:'0,21)/)%'0!"#,+'0,#!%-#0)%(%#-!)*/)!0'!%0('"3/)%'0

*/-!4##0!+"'$%-#-!/,,#,,%0.!)*#!+')#0)%/1!0'%,#!%3+/:),!/"%,%0.!("'3!)"/((%:!'0!A/.*/3!S'/-!/0-

T233#"!U/0#8!V*%1,)!%)!&/,!"#:'33#0-#-!)*/)!/!"#+'")!/--"#,,%0.!)*#,#!%3+/:),!&/,!+"'$%-#-!%)!&/,

0')#-!)*/)!T233#"!U/0#!%,!/!"#,%-#0)%/1!:21D-#D,/:!,24=#:)!)'!/!I73+*!,+##-!1%3%)<!A/.*/3!S'/-!%,

,%3%1/"1>!,24=#:)!)'!/!I73+*!"#,)"%:)%'0!/0-!(#/)2"#,!"#,%-#0)%/1!-#$#1'+3#0)!/1'0.!)*#!#/,)#"0!,%-#!'(

)*#!"'/-8!K*#!%0)"'-2:)%'0!'(!"#,%-#0)%/1!-&#11%0.,!,#)!4/:@!("'3!)*#!*%.*&/>!&%)*!3/)2"#!+1/0)%0.

,:"##0%0.!)*#!-#$#1'+3#0)!%,!0')!202,2/1!/0-!%,!201%@#1>!)'!"#,21)!%0!/0>!20/::#+)/41>!/-$#",#!*/"3!)'

"#,%-#0)%/1!/3#0%)>!&*%:*!:'21-!0')!4#!/-#W2/)#1>!3/0/.#-!)*"'2.*!,)/0-/"-!3%)%./)%'0!3#/,2"#,8

K*#"#('"#<!%0!)*%,!:/,#!/!,2%)/41>!&'"-#-!:'0-%)%'0!)'!,#:2"#!:'0(%"3/)%'0!'(!)*#!/:'2,)%:!%3+/:),!'(!)*#

"'/-!'0!(2)2"#!'::2+%#",!*/,!4##0!%0:'"+'"/)#-!/0-!)*%,!/++"'/:*!*/,!4##0!$#"4/11>!/."##-!/,

/++"'+"%/)#!&%)*!)*#!Q0$%"'03#0)/1!;#/1)*!K#/38

K*#"#('"#<!)*#!+"'+',/1!%,!%0!/::'"-/0:#!&%)*!+'1%:%#,!N!NX6!/0-!YQ!TA6!'(!)*#! "20!U':/1!A1/08

A SZ[\O<!SR NT! \N!A]̂ U[L!PRRKA K;T

 "20!U':/1!A1/0!+'1%:%#,!K!NX6!/0-!K!TA6!/"#!"#1#$/0)!/1)*'2.*!)*#>!:/"">!"#-2:#-!&#%.*)!-2#!)'!)*#

/-'+)%'0!'(!)*#! "20!A/"@%0.!T)/0-/"-,!TAN8!P'11'&%0.!)*#!/3#0-3#0),!)'!)*#!1/>'2)!'(!)*#

-#$#1'+3#0)!/0!/--%)%'0/1!:'0,21)/)%'0!"#,+'0,#!*/,!4##0!"#:#%$#-!("'3!VTLL!"#W2#,)%0.!(2")*#"

%0('"3/)%'0!%0!"#1/)%'0!)'!)*#!,%)%0.!'(!)2"0%0.!*#/-,<!('')&/>!+"'$%,%'0!/0-!3#"%),!'(!)"/((%:!:/13%0.

3#/,2"#,8!K*#!:'0,21)/)%'0!("'3!VTLL!%-#0)%(%#,!)*/)!,'3#!'(!)*#!%,,2#,!%-#0)%(%#-!%0!)*#%"!"#,+'0,#!/"#

0')!+1/00%0.!%,,2#,!42)!&'21-!"/)*#"!*/$#!%3+1%:/)%'0,!('"!/0>!+')#0)%/1!/-'+)%'0!'(!)*#!"'/-,!%0!)*#

(2)2"#8

K*#!%,,2#,!"/%,#-!4>!VTLL!*/$#!4##0!+/,,#-!)*"'2.*!)'!)*#!/++1%:/0)!&*'!%0)#0-,!)'!+"'$%-#!2+-/)#-

+1/0,!%0!"#,+'0,#!)'!)*#,#!%,,2#,8!K*#"#('"#<!'0:#!)*#,#!/3#0-3#0),!*/$#!4##0!"#:#%$#-!)*#>!&%11!4#

+"#,#0)#-!)'!X#34#",!/,!+/")!'(!/!"#+'")!2+-/)#8

N#)/%1,!'(!/::#,,!)'!)*#!,%)#!&#"#!/++"'$#-!4>!)*#!'2)1%0#!+1/00%0.!+#"3%,,%'0!/0-!/,!,2:*!/"#!0')!)*#

,24=#:)!'(!(2")*#"!:'0,%-#"/)%'0!/,!+/")!'(!)*%,!"#,#"$#-!3/))#",!,243%,,%'08!K*#"#('"#<!%0!)#"3,!'(

*%.*&/>!,/(#)>!)*#!+"'+',/1!/"#!%0!/::'"-/0:#!&%)*!+'1%:%#,!K!NX6!/0-!K!TA6!'(!)*#! "20!U':/1!A1/08

K*#!/++1%:/)%'0!+"'+',#-!/!)')/1!+/"@%0.!+"'$%,%'0!'(!J?H!+/"@%0.!,+/:#,!FB7!'(!&*%:*!/"#!$%,%)'"!4/>,G

)*%,!#5:##-,!)*#!"#W2%"#3#0),!'(!)*#! "20!A/"@%0.!TAN!&*%:*!%-#0)%(%#,!/!)')/1!"#W2%"#3#0)!'(!J6I

,+/:#,8!K*#"#('"#<!)*#!1#$#1!'(!+/"@%0.!+"'+',#-!%,!/::#+)/41#!/0-!&'21-!0')!"#,21)!%0!'$#",+%11!:/"

Page 59



 !"#$%&'($)*$%')*+',+-+./ 0+%)'/"')*+'12""/2%,$%&'"/!,13'4+)!$.1'/5'1+62"+'676.+' !"#$%&' "/-$1$/%'5/"

,(+..$%&1'(*$6*',/'%/)'8+%+5$)'5"/0'!'&!"!&+'($..'8+'1+62"+,')*"/2&*'!%'!  "/ "$!)+.7'(/",+,'6/%,$)$/%3

9*+'1280$11$/%'$1'1$.+%)'/%')*+' "/-$1$/%'/5',$1!8.+,'6!"' !"#$%&'1 !6+13'9*+':"2%';!"#$%&'<;4

$,+%)$5$+1')*!)' "/ /1!.1'1*/2.,'!66/",'($)*'=!%2!.'5/"'<)"++)1'(*$6*'"+>2$"+1'?@'/5'!..' !"#$%&'1 !6+1')/

8+',+1$&%+,')/'0++)')*+1+'"+>2$"+0+%)13'A2")*+"',+)!$.1'*!-+'8++%'"+>2+1)+,'5"/0')*+'!  .$6!%)'$%

"+.!)$/%')/')*$1'+.+0+%)'/5')*+' "/ /1!.1'!%,'($..'8+'"+ /")+,')/'=+08+"1'/5')*+';.!%%$%&'B/00$))++'!1'!

"+ /")'2 ,!)+'/%6+'6/%5$"0!)$/%'/%')*$1'0!))+"'$1'"+6+$-+,3

C/!,'($,)*1'!"+'$%'!66/",!%6+'($)*')*+' "$%6$ .+1'/5'"/!,'*$+"!"6*7'+1)!8.$1*+,')*"/2&*')*+'4+1$&%'B/,+

(*$6*'!"+'!1'5/../(1D

;"$0!"7'C/!,1'!%,'<)"++)1'E'?3?0EF3G0'($,+'($)*'5//)(!71' "+1+%)3

<+6/%,!"7'<)"++)1'E'?0'E'H3I0'($,+'($)*'!)'.+!1)'/%+'5//)(!73

9+")$!"7'<)"++)1'E'<*!"+,'12"5!6+'1)"++)1'0+!12"$%&'J3I0'E'H03

K2!)+"%!"7'<)"++)1'E'G3F0'E'J3L0'($,+3

9*+' "/ /1!.'$%6/" /"!)+1'!,+>2!)+'"+6"+!)$/%!.'"/2)+1')*"/2&*/2)')*+'1$)+'!%,'($..'%/)'!,-+"1+.7'$0 !6)

2 /%' +,+1)"$!%1'/"'676.$1)13'M$-+%')*!)')*+'1$)+'.!7/2)'"+1 +6)1'!%,'+%*!%6+1'+N$1)$%&' 28.$6'"$&*)1'/5

(!7'!%,' "/-$,+1'%+('5//)'!%,'676.+' !)*1'!1' !")'/5')*+',+-+./ 0+%)')*+' "/ /1!.1'!"+',++0+,')/

!66/",'($)*';/.$67'9'4=I'!1'(+..'!1')*+';!"#$%&'<)!%,!",1'<;43

<OCA:BP'Q:9PC'4C:RS:MP

:'*/.,$%&'/8T+6)$/%'*!1'8++%'"!$1+,'87')*+'B/2%6$.U1'4"!$%!&+'P%&$%++"1'!%,'!%'/8T+6)$/%'*!1'!.1/'8++%

"!$1+,'87')*+'V+!,'V/6!.'A.//,':2)*/"$)73'W/(+-+"X'B/%,$)$/%1'IYX'II'!%,'IZ'$0 /1+,'/%')*+'/2).$%+

 .!%%$%&' +"0$11$/%'[;\IJY\IH\]O9̂'"+.!)+')/'12"5!6+'(!)+"',"!$%!&+'!%,'"+>2$"+',+)!$.1')/'8+'1280$))+,

5/"'!  "/-!.' "$/"')/')*+'6/00+%6+0+%)'/5',+-+./ 0+%)3'9*+"+5/"+X'!1',"!$%!&+'(!1'6/%1$,+"+,'!)

/2).$%+'1)!&+'!%,')*+1+' "+E6/00+%6+0+%)'6/%,$)$/%1'(+"+'$0 /1+,')*+"+'$1'%/'"+>2$"+0+%)')/'!  "/-+

,"!$%!&+',+)!$.1'!./%&1$,+')*$1'"+1+"-+,'0!))+"1'1280$11$/%3

<*/2.,'$)'%/)'8+' /11$8.+'5/"')*+',"!$%!&+'16*+0+')/'8+'!66/00/,!)+,'!./%&1$,+')*+' "/ /1+,'.!7/2)

)*+%')*+'!  .$6!%)'($..'%/)'8+'!8.+')/'$0 .+0+%)')*+' "/ /1+,'.!7/2)3']%')*$1'8!1$1X')*$1'"+1+"-+,'0!))+"1

!  .$6!)$/%'6!%'8+',+)+"0$%+,'($)*/2)')*+'52..'12  /")'/5'4"!$%!&+'P%&$%++"1'!%,'!1'126*'$)'$1'%/)

%+6+11!"7')/',+0/%1)"!)+'6/0 .$!%6+'($)*' /.$67'Q'4=G'!)')*$1')$0+3

_R]4R̀PC<R9a':S4'PB]V]Ma

9*+'!  .$6!)$/%'(!1'!66/0 !%$+,'87'!%'UP6/./&$6!.'<2"-+7'<200!"7'C+ /")'ZYZIU'!%,'*!1'8++%')*+

128T+6)'/5'6/%12.)!)$/%'($)*')*+'B/2%6$.U1'P6/./&$1)'(*/'*!1'!,-$1+,')*!)')*+"+'$1'1255$6$+%)'+6/./&$6!.

$%5/"0!)$/%'!-!$.!8.+'5/"')*+',+)+"0$%!)$/%'/5')*$1'!  .$6!)$/%3'R)'(!1'$,+%)$5$+,'!)')*+')$0+'/5')*+'/"$&$%!.

"+-$+('87')*+'B/2%6$.U1'P6/./&$1)')*!)',+)!$.1'/5'_$/,$-+"1$)7'S+)'M!$%'[_SM̂'*!,'%/)'8++%' "/-$,+,3

W/(+-+"X'_SM',+)!$.1'(+"+'1281+>2+%).7' "/-$,+,'(*$6*',+0/%1)"!)+,')*!)')*+',+-+./ 0+%)'(/2.,

!6*$+-+'$%'+N6+11'/5'IY@')/'+!6*'/5')*+'0+)"$61'(*$6*'(/2.,'!66/",'($)*' /.$67'PS̀ '4=?'/5')*+':"2%

V/6!.';.!%'(*$6*'"+>2$"+1')*!)',+-+./ 0+%)'!6*$+-+'!'%+)'&!$%'$%'8$/,$-+"1$)73':'%208+"'/5'6/%,$)$/%1

(+"+'$0 /1+,'/%')*+'/2).$%+'!  "/-!.'(*$6*' +")!$%+,')/'+6/./&$6!.'0!))+"1'!%,')*+1+'($..'%++,')/'8+

,$16*!"&+,' "$/"')/')*+'6/00+%6+0+%)'/5',+-+./ 0+%)'!%,'(/2.,'8+'128T+6)')/'52")*+"'16"2)$%7'!%,

!11+110+%)' /1)',+)+"0$%!)$/%'/5')*$1'"+1+"-+,'0!))+"1'1280$11$/%3

:1'$,+%)$5$+,'+!".$+"'$%')*+'"+ /")'$)'(!1'%+6+11!"7')/'2%,+")!#+'!%':  "/ "$!)+':11+110+%)'[::̂'5/"')*$1

!  .$6!)$/%3'W/(+-+"X')*+'0+!12"+1'(*$6*'!"+'5/"'6/%1$,+"!)$/%'!1' !")'/5')*$1'!  .$6!)$/%'"+.!)+')/')*+

Page 60



 

 

 

!"#$%&%#' #( #!)' &!*+) ,(#" ")+")*-%#'*. !/"!#&)&0 *'1 2#/'1*"3 &+"))'%'4 %' #"1)" -# 5%'%5%&)

1%&-/"2*'+) #( 6")'- 4))&) (#"*4%'4 #' (/'+-%#'*..3 .%'7)1 8*2%-*- -# -8) 9)&- #( -8) *!!.%+*-%#' &%-): ;#")

&!)+%(%+ 5%-%4*-%#' 5)*&/")& ").)$*'- -# 6")'- 4))&) 9%.. 2) +#'&%1)")1 -8"#/48 -8) 1)-)"5%'*-%#' #(

<#'1%-%#' => 98%+8 !)"-*%'& -# .*'1 #/-&%1) #( -8) *!!.%+*-%#' &%-):

?8)")(#")@ -8) !"#!#&*.& *& &/25%--)1 *") *++)!-*2.) *'1 9#/.1 *++#"1 9%-8 !#.%+3 ABC D;E #( -8)

F"/' G#+*. H.*':

IJ;;FKL

?8) *!!.%+*'- 8*& 5*1) * '/52)" #( *5)'15)'-& -# -8) *!!.%+*-%#' %' #"1)" -# #$)"+#5) -8) +#'+)"'&

"*%&)1 23 -8) GHF *'1 &-*-/-#"3 +#'&/.-))&: M#..#9%'4 *5)'15)'- -8) !"#!#&*.& *") '#9 %' *++#"1*'+)

9%-8 -8) F"/' D)&%4' N/%1) *& 9).. *& -8) &%-) &!)+%(%+ D)&%4' <#1) *& 9).. *& ").)$*'- 1)$).#!5)'-

!.*' !#.%+%)&: F& &/+8@ %- %& ")+#55)'1)1 -8*- -8) *!!.%+*-%#' %& *!!"#$)1 &/2O)+- -# -8) 2).#9

+#'1%-%#'&:

?8) <#/'+%. %' 5*7%'4 * 1)+%&%#' &8#/.1 2) *9*") #( *'1 -*7) %'-# *++#/'- *'3 %5!.%+*-%#'& -8*- 5*3

*"%&) ("#5 -8) P/5*' K%48-& F+- QRRS: J'1)" -8) F+-@ %- %& /'.*9(/. (#" * !/2.%+ */-8#"%-3 &/+8 *& F"/'

D%&-"%+- <#/'+%. -# *+- %' * 5*'')"@ 98%+8 %& %'+#5!*-%2.) 9%-8 -8) A/"#!)*' <#'$)'-%#' #' P/5*'

K%48-&:

<#'&%1)"*-%#' 8*& 2))' &!)+%(%+*..3 4%$)' -# F"-%+.) S ,"%48- -# ")&!)+- !"%$*-) *'1 (*5%.3 .%()0 *'1 F"-%+.) Q

#( -8) M%"&- H"#-#+#. ,!"#-)+-%#' #( !"#!)"-30: T- %& '#- +#'&%1)")1 -8*- -8) ")+#55)'1*-%#' (#" *!!"#$*. #(

-8) 4"*'- #( !)"5%&&%#' %' -8%& +*&) %'-)"()")& /'")*&#'*2.3 9%-8 *'3 .#+*. ")&%1)'-&U "%48- -# ")&!)+- (#"

-8)%" !"%$*-) *'1 (*5%.3 .%() *'1 8#5)@ )V+)!- %'&#(*" *& %- %& ')+)&&*"3 -# !"#-)+- -8) "%48-& *'1 ("))1#5&

#( #-8)"& ,%' -8%& +*&)@ -8) "%48-& #( -8) *!!.%+*'-0: ?8) <#/'+%. %& *.&# !)"5%--)1 -# +#'-"#. -8) /&) #(

!"#!)"-3 %' *++#"1*'+) 9%-8 -8) 4)')"*. %'-)")&- *'1 -8) ")+#55)'1*-%#' (#" *!!"#$*. %& +#'&%1)")1 -#

2) * !"#!#"-%#'*-) ")&!#'&) -# -8) &/25%--)1 *!!.%+*-%#' 2*&)1 #' -8) +#'&%1)"*-%#'& &)- #/- %' -8%&

")!#"-:

D/-3 /'1)" -8) AW/*.%-%)& F+- X>Q>

T' *&&)&&%'4 -8%& !"#!#&*. -8) (#..#9%'4 %5!*+-& 8*$) 2))' %1)'-%(%)1 /!#' -8#&) !)#!.) 9%-8 -8)

(#..#9%'4 !"#-)+-)1 +8*"*+-)"%&-%+& ,*4)@ 1%&*2%.%-3@ 4)'1)" ")*&&%4'5)'-@ 5*""%*4) *'1 +%$%. !*"-')"&8%!@

!")4'*'+3 *'1 5*-)"'%-3@ "*+)@ ").%4%#' #" 2).%)(@ &)V #" &)V/*. #"%)'-*-%#'0:

?8) !"#!#&*. 9#/.1 8*$) * ')/-"*. %5!*+- #' -8) !"#-)+-)1 +8*"*+-)"%&-%+&:

FHHKYCA <YBDT?TYBFGGL

Q ?8) 1)$).#!5)'- 8)")23 *!!"#$)1 &8*.. 2) +*""%)1 #/- %' *++#"1*'+) 9%-8 -8) (#..#9%'4

*!!"#$)1 !.*'&Z

G#+*-%#' H.*' [ XQ:>>=:>Q

I%-) H.*' [ XQ:QXR:>X K)$ ?

6.#+7 N ,<FQ0 M.##" H.*'& *'1 A.)$*-%#'& [ XQ:QXR:>= K)$ <

Page 61



 !"#$%&'($%)*%+,!!-%.,/0#%/01%2,$*/34!0#5%6787698:;%<$*%=

 !"#$%&'($%=%+,!!-%.,/0#%/01%2,$*/34!0#5%6787698:>%<$*%?

 !"#$%&'($%@%A@)7B%+,!!-%.,/0#%/01%2,$*/34!0#%5%6787698:C%<$*%@

 &%?%+,!!-%.,/0#%/01%2,$*/34!0#5%6787698:D%<$*%@

 &%E%A@)7B%+,!!-%.,/0#%/01%2,$*/34!0#5%6787698:9%<$*%@

=,!FG%=%+,!!-%.,/0#%/01%2,$*/34!0#5%67876987:%<$*%=

=,!FG%H%+,!!-%.,/0#%/01%2,$*/34!0#5%678769876%<$*%?

=,!FG%<%+,!!-%.,/0#%/01%2,$*/34!0#5%67876987I%<$*%=

 &%)%+,!!-%.,/0#%/01%2,$*/34!0#5%67876987;%<$*%@

 &%=%+,!!-%.,/0#%/01%2,$*/34!0#5%67876987>%<$*%@

 &%+%+,!!-%.,/0#%/01%2,$*/34!0#5%67876987D%<$*%@

=,!FG%=%+,!!-%.,/0#%/01%2,$*/34!0#5%67876987J%<$*%@

=,!FG%@%+,!!-%.,/0#%/01%2,$*/34!0#5%678769879%<$*%=

=,!FG%?%+,!!-%.,/0#%/01%2,$*/34!0#5%67876986:%<$*%=

=,!FG%+%+,!!-%.,/0#%/01%2,$*/34!0#%5%678769867%<$*%@

=,!FG%E%A@)IB%+,!!-%.,/0#%/01%2,$*/34!0#5%678769866%<$*%=

=,!FG% %+,!!-%.,/0#%/01%2,$*/34!0#5%A@)IB%67876986I%<$*%@

=,!FG%K%A@)7B%+,!!-%.,/0#%/01%2,$*/34!0#%5%67876986>%<$*%=

=,!FG%H%A@)IB%+,!!-%.,/0#%/01%2,$*/34!0#5%67876986C%<$*%@

=,!FG%L%A@)IB%+,!!-%.,/0#%/01%2,$*/34!0#5%67876986D%<$*%=

=,!FG%M%+,!!-%.,/0#%/01%2,$*/34!0#%5%67876986J%<$*%@

=,!FG%.%A@)6/B%+,!!-%.,/0#%/01%2,$*/34!0#5%678769869%<$*%=

=,!FG%N%A@)IB%+,!!-%.,/0#%/01%2,$*/34!0#5%6787698I:%<$*%=

=,!FG%O%A@)IB%+,!!-%.,/0#%/01%2,$*/34!0#5%6787698I7%<$*%?

 &%)*%A@)IB%+,!!-%.,/0#%/01%2,$*/34!0#5%6787698I6%<$*%@

 &%=%A@)IB%+,!!-%.,/0#%/01%2,$*/34!0#5%6787698II%<$*%@

 &%+%A@)IB%+,!!-%.,/0#%/01%2,$*/34!0#%5%6787698I>%<$*%@

=,!FG%)6%A@);P%H=B%+,!!-%.,/0#%/01%2,$*/34!0#5%6787698ID%<$*%@

=,!FG%+%A@);PB%+,!!-%.,/0#%/01%2,$*/34!0#5%6787698IJ%<$*%@

=,!FG%Q%A@)6/B%+,!!-%.,/0#%/01%2,$*/34!0#5%6787698;:%<$*%=

=,!FG%R%A@)IB%+,!!-%.,/0#%/01%2,$*/34!0#5%6787698;7%<$*%@

=,!FG%S%A@)IB%+,!!-%.,/0#%/01%2,$*/34!0#5%6787698;6%<$*%@

=,!FG%T%A@)6/B%+,!!-%.,/0#%/01%2,$*/34!0#%5%6787698;I%<$*%@

=,!FG%@%A@);/B%+,!!-%.,/0#%/01%2,$*/34!0#5%678::I8;;%<$*%@

=,!FG%U%A@);/B%+,!!-%.,/0#%/01%2,$*/34!0#5%678::I8;>%<$*%=

 &%2%A@);/B%+,!!-%.,/0#%/01%2,$*/34!0#5%678::I8;C%<$*%?

=,!FG%)7%AH=B%+,!!-%.,/0#%/01%2,$*/34!0#5%678::I8;D%<$*%@

=,!FG%@%A@)7B%+,!!-%.,/0#%/01%2,$*/34!0#%5%678::I8;J%<$*%@

=,!FG%27%A@);P%H=B%+,!!-%.,/0#%/01%2,$*/34!0#5%6787698;9%<$*%@

=,!FG%26%AH=B%+,!!-%.,/0#%/01%2,$*/34!0#5%6787698>:%<$*%@

=,!FG%+%A@);P%AH=B%+,!!-%.,/0#%/01%2,$*/34!0#5%6787698>7%<$*%@

=,!FG%+%A@)7B%+,!!-%.,/0#%/01%2,$*/34!0#5%6787698>6%<$*%@

=,!FG%V%AH=B%+,!!-%.,/0#%/01%2,$*/34!0#5%6787698>I%<$*%=

=,!FG%&%A@);PB%+,!!-%.,/0#%/01%2,$*/34!0#5%6787698>;%<$*%=

 &%=%A@)7%H=B%+,!!-%.,/0#%/01%2,$*/34!0#5%6787698>D%<$*%=

 &%?7A@)I%H=B%+,!!-%.,/0#%/01%2,$*/34!0#5%6787698>9%<$*%@

OW/,,%?!"P,$%E/-/X$%5%6787698C6%<$*%=

O40X,$%E/-/X$%5%6787698CI%<$*%=

 &% %5%A@);/B%+,!!-%.,/0#%/01%2,$*/34!0#5%6787698DI%<$*%@

=,!FG%=%A@);PB%+,!!-%.,/0#%/01%2,$*/34!0#5%6787698D;%<$*%@

=,!FG%+%A@)6/B%+,!!-%.,/0#%/01%2,$*/34!0#5%6787698D>%<$*%@

=,!FG%Y%+,/3#%A@);PB%+,!!-%.,/0#%/01%2,$*/34!0#5%6787698DC%<$*%@

Page 62



 !"#$%&%'!()*%+,-./0%'!""1%2!(3*%(34%5!67()8"3*9%:;<;:=<>>%?67%,

 !"#$%@%'!()*%+,-./0%'!""1%2!(3*%(34%5!67()8"3*9%:;<;:=<>A%?67%,

 !"#$%@%'!()*%+,-./0%'!""1%2!(3*%(34%5!67()8"3*9%:;<;:=<>=%?67%,

 !"#$%B%+,-:(0%'!""1%2!(3*%(34%5!67()8"3*9%:;<;:=<AC%?67%-

 !"#$%D%+,-:(0%'!""1%2!(3*%(34%5!67()8"3*9%:;<;:=<A;%?67%-

 !"#$%,%+,-./0%'!""1%2!(3*%(34%5!67()8"3*9%:;<;:=<A:%?67%-

 8$6%E)"16%9%:;<;:=<A.

F(1G6%E83G!6%D(1(G6%9%:;<;:=<AA

 !"#$%57%+,-.(%H 0%'!""1%2!(3*%(34%5!67()8"3*9%:;<;:=<=C

 !"#$%'7%+,-;0%'!""1%2!(3*%(34%5!67()8"3*9%:;<;:=<=;

 !"#$%'7%+,-:/0%'!""1%2!(3*%(34%5!67()8"3*9%:;<;:=<=:%?67%-

IJ%K%+,-;0%'!""1%2!(3*%(34%5!67()8"3*9%:;<;:=<=L

IJ%F%+,-L0%'!""1%2!(3*%(34%5!67()8"3*9%:;<;:=<=.%?67%-

IJ%H%+,-:/0%'!""1%2!(3*%(34%5!67()8"3*9%:;<;:=<=M

IJ%N%+,-;0%'!""1%2!(3*%(34%5!67()8"3*9%:;<;:=<=O%?67%-

IJ%N7%+,-;%H 0%'!""1%2!(3*%(34%5!67()8"3*9%:;<;:=<=>%?67%-

 !$%B%+,-;0%'!""1%2!(3*%(34%5!67()8"3*9%:;<;:=<=A

 !"#$%I%+,-:(0%'!""1%2!(3*%(34%5!67()8"3*9%:;<;:=<==

IJ%N%+,-:/0%'!""1%2!(3*%(34%5!67()8"3*9%:;<;:=<;CC%?67%-

IJ%N%,-L0%'!""1%2!(3*%(34%5!67()8"3*9%:;<;:=<;C;%?67%-

 !"#$%'7%+,-L0%'!""1%2!(3*%(34%5!67()8"3*9%:;<;:=<;C:

 !"#$%?%+,-L0%'!""1%2!(3*%(34%5!67()8"3*9%:;<;:=<;CL

 !"#$%H%+,-:/0%'!""1%2!(3*%(34%5!67()8"3*9%:;<;:=<;C.

P"1)Q613%I"R*6%JST6%H6S%2!(3%9%:;<;:=<O.%?67%D

E"R)Q613%I"R*6%JST6%H6S%2!(3%9%:;<;:=<OM%?67%D

P"1)Q613%-UU"14(/!6%I"R*83G%2!(3%9%:;<;:=<OO%?67%H

E"R)Q613%-UU"14(/!6%I"R*83G%2!(3%9%:;<;:=<O>%?67%H

E)166)%E#636*%;%9%:;<;:=<OA%?67%B

E)166)%E#636*%:%9%:;<;:=<O=%?67%B

E)166)%E#636*%L%9%:;<;:=<>C%?67%B

E)166)%E#636*%.%9%:;<;:=<>;%?67%B

E8)6%B8V63*8"3*%2!(3%9%:;<;:=<;CM%?67%-

P"1)Q613%?6UR*6%E)1()6GS%2!(3%9%:;<;:=<;CO%?67%-

E"R)Q613%?6UR*6%E)1()6GS%2!(3%9%:;<;:=<;C>%?67%-

D6361(!%-11(3G6V63)%W39T!")%2!(3%9%;CC=M9'2,?9XX9XX9B?9F9CCC;%?67%2CM

B6)(8!64%W39T!")%F(34*#(T6%2!(3%+EQ66)*%;%"U%;L0%;CC=M9'2,?9XX9XX9B?9F9CCC:%?67%2CM

B6)(8!64%W39T!")%F(34*#(T6%2!(3%+EQ66)*%:%"U%;L0%;CC=M9'2,?9XX9XX9B?9F9CCCL%?67%2CM

B6)(8!64%W39T!")%F(34*#(T6%2!(3%+EQ66)*%L%"U%;L0%;CC=M9'2,?9XX9XX9B?9F9CCC.%?67%2CM

B6)(8!64%W39T!")%F(34*#(T6%2!(3%+EQ66)*%.%"U%;L0%;CC=M9'2,?9XX9XX9B?9F9CCCM%?67%2CM

B6)(8!64%W39T!")%F(34*#(T6%2!(3%+EQ66)*%M%"U%;L0%;CC=M9'2,?9XX9XX9B?9F9CCCO%?67%2CM

B6)(8!64%W39T!")%F(34*#(T6%2!(3%+EQ66)*%O%"U%;L0%;CC=M9'2,?9XX9XX9B?9F9CCC>%?67%2CM

B6)(8!64%W39T!")%F(34*#(T6%2!(3%+EQ66)*%>%"U%;L0%;CC=M9'2,?9XX9XX9B?9F9CCCA%?67%2CM

B6)(8!64%W39T!")%F(34*#(T6%2!(3%+EQ66)*%A%"U%;L0%;CC=M9'2,?9XX9XX9B?9F9CCC=%?67%2CM

B6)(8!64%W39T!")%F(34*#(T6%2!(3%+EQ66)*%=%"U%;L0%;CC=M9'2,?9XX9XX9B?9F9CCC;C%?67%2CM

B6)(8!64%W39T!")%F(34*#(T6%2!(3%+EQ66)*%;C%"U%;L0%;CC=M9'2,?9XX9XX9B?9F9CCC;;%?67

2CM

B6)(8!64%W39T!")%F(34*#(T6%2!(3%+EQ66)*%;;%"U%;L0%;CC=M9'2,?9XX9XX9B?9F9CCC;:%?67

2CM

Page 63



 !"#$%!&'()*+%,"'-#)&./#+!'0%#)'123!!".'45',6'478'499:;*<0=>*??*??* >*-*99947'>!@

09;

 !"#$%!&'()*+%,"'-#)&./#+!'0%#)'123!!".'47',6'478'499:;*<0=>*??*??* >*-*9994A'>!@

09;

 !"#$%!&'0(2'-#)&./#+!'0B,+,.#%.'1C!)!B#%'DBB#)E!F!)"8'*'499:;*<0=>*??*??* >*-*994;

>!@'09G

 !"#$%!&'0(2'-#)&./#+!'0B,+,.#%.'123!!".'4',6';8'*'499:;*<0=>*??*??* >*-*994H'>!@

09G

 !"#$%!&'0(2'-#)&./#+!'0B,+,.#%.'123!!".'5',6';8'*'499:;*<0=>*??*??* >*-*994G'>!@

09G

 !"#$%!&'0(2'-#)&./#+!'0B,+,.#%.'123!!".'7',6';8'*'499:;*<0=>*??*??* >*-*994I'>!@

09G

 !"#$%!&'0(2'-#)&./#+!'0B,+,.#%.'123!!".'A',6';8'*'499:;*<0=>*??*??* >*-*994:'>!@

09G

 !"#$%!&'0(2'-#)&./#+!'0B,+,.#%.'123!!".';',6';8'*'499:;*<0=>*??*??* >*-*9959'>!@

09G

C!)!B#%'DBB#)E!F!)"'J#B&'-#)&./#+!'0%#)'*'499:;*<0=>*??*??* >*-*9954'>!@'09H

 !"#$%!&'J#B&'-#)&./#+!'0%#)'123!!".'4'",'78'*'499:;*<0=>*??*??* >*-*9955'>!@'09H

 !"#$%!&'J#B&'-#)&./#+!'0%#)'123!!".'5',6'78'*'499:;*<0=>*??*??* >*-*9957'>!@'09H

 !"#$%!&'J#B&'-#)&./#+!'0%#)'123!!".'7',6'78'*'499:;*<0=>*??*??* >*-*995A'>!@'09H

0,."'#)&'>#$%'<!)/$)E' B#K$)E'*'499:;*<0=>*??*??* >*-*995;'>!@'095

 !"#$%!&'D%%,"F!)"'0%#)'*'499:;*<0=>*??*??* >*-*995H'>!@'094

2LM0N'0DNJ'DOD-P2Q2'*'<Q>M'NMO M>'*'QNR4HAI4*CD*594'>!@'=

2LM0N'0DNJ'DOD-P2Q2'*'>M<S2M'=(--M=NQ(O'TMJQ=-M'U'LDNM>'NDOVM>'*

QNR4HAI4*CD*595'>!@' 

>(D 'CM(WMN>P'0-DO'*'QNR4HAI4*CD*59A'>!@'=

TQ2QRQ-QNP'D22M22WMON'*'QNR4HAI4*CD*597'>!@'=

0,"!)"$#%'0!&!."B$#)'U'=X/%$."'D//!..'DBB#)E!F!)".'*'QNR4HAI4*CD*99G'>!@'*

>!#.,)Y'<,B'"3!'#@,$&#)/!',6'&,Z["'#)&'$)'"3!'$)"!B!.".',6'#F!)$"X'#)&'"3!'!)@$B,)F!)"'$)

#//,B&#)/!'K$"3'DBZ)'-,/#%'0%#)'+,%$/$!.'='204\' ' W4\'N'204]

5 0B$,B'",'"3!',//Z+#"$,)',6'#)X'&K!%%$)E'%,/#"!&'K$"3$)'"3!'),B"3!B)'+#B/!%'10%,".'4*4;I8'#.

.3,K)',)'&B#K$)E'),]'2$"!'0%#)'*'54]45:]95'>!@'N'"3!'$)"!B)#%'!."#"!'B,#&'.3#%%'!).ZB!

#&!̂Z#"!'/,))!/"$,)'6,B'J$E3K#X.'#)&'6,,"+#"3.'",'"3!'#&_#/!)"'.$"!'̀),K)'#.'=3ZB/3

R#B",)]

>!#.,)Y'N,'!).ZB!'"3!'&!%$@!BX',6'#)'#++B,+B$#"!'#//!..'#)&'",'!).ZB!'&!%$@!BX',6'"3!'!)"$B!

#%%,/#"$,)]

7 O,'$)&$@$&Z#%'&K!%%$)E'.3#%%'[!',//Z+$!&'Z)"$%'"3!'B!.+!/"$@!'/#B'+#B̀$)E'.+#/!'.!B@$)E'"3#"

&K!%%$)E'3#.'[!!)'/,)."BZ/"!&'$)'#//,B&#)/!'K$"3'"3!'2$"!'0%#)'54]45:]95'>!@$.$,)'N\'#)&

#@#$%#[%!'6,B'Z.!]'()/!'+B,@$&!&'$)'#//,B&#)/!'K$"3'"3!'#++B,@!&'+%#).\'"3!'.+#/!.'+B,@$&!&

.3#%%'[!'B!"#$)!&'$)'+!B+!"Z$"X'6,B'"3!$B'&!.$E)#"!&'Z.!]

Page 64



 !"#$%&'($')*$+,-!'"-!./"0!'1"*')"*2,%3')*$+,#,$%',%'"11$*-"%1!'4,05'6*/%'7$1"8'98"%')$8,1:

(';9<=

> 9*,$*'0$'$11/)"0,$%'$?'"%:'-4!88,%3'5!*!@:')!*A,00!-B'-!0",8#'$?'05!'1:18!'#0$*"3!'"%-'@,%

#0$*"3!'#5"88'@!'#/@A,00!-'0$'"%-'"))*$+!-',%'4*,0,%3'@:'05!'7$1"8'98"%%,%3'6/05$*,0:'"%-'%$

-4!88,%3'#5"88'@!'$11/),!-'/%0,8'05!'@,%'#0$*"3!'"%-'1:18!'#0$*"3!'5"+!'@!!%')*$+,-!-',%

"11$*-"%1!'4,05'05!'"))*$+!-'-!0",8'?$*'05"0'-4!88,%3='(5!'#)"1!#')*$+,-!-'#5"88'@!'*!0",%!-

,%')!*)!0/,0:=

 !"#$%&'($')*$+,-!'"80!*%"0,+!'0*"+!8'$)0,$%#'0$'05!'/#!'$?'05!'1"*',%'"11$*-"%1!'4,05'6*/%

7$1"8'98"%')$8,1:'(';9<=

C 9*,$*'0$'05!'$11/)"0,$%'$?'"%:'-4!88,%3B'"'7"%-#1")!'D1$8$3,1"8'E"%"3!A!%0'98"%'F7DE9G

#5"88'@!'#/@A,00!-'"%-'"))*$+!-',%'4*,0,%3'@:'05!'7$1"8'98"%%,%3'6/05$*,0:='(5!'-!+!8$)A!%0

#5"88')*$1!!-',%'"11$*-"%1!'4,05'05!'A!"#/*!#'$/08,%!-'4,05,%'05!'7DE9=

 !"#$%&'($'1$%#!*+!'05!'4,8-8,?!',%0!*!#0'$?'"%',A)$*0"%0'%"0/*"8'5"@,0"0',%'"11$*-"%1!'4,05

)$8,1,!#'DHI';9<'J'DHI'KE<'$?'05!'6*/%'7$1"8'98"%=

L H$',%-,+,-/"8'-4!88,%3'5!*!@:'"))*$+!-'#5"88'@!'$11/),!-'/%0,8'05!'$)0,$%"8'*!./,*!A!%0'?$*

*!#0*,10!-'4"0!*'1$%#/A)0,$%',%'9"*0'M'$?'05!'N/,8-,%3' !3/8"0,$%#'"#'-!A$%#0*"0!-'05*$/35

05!'4"0!*'1"81/8"0$*'5"#'@!!%'1$A)8,!-'4,05'?$*'05"0'-4!88,%3=

 !"#$%&'($',A)*$+!'05!'#/#0",%"@,8,0:'$?'05!'-4!88,%3#',%'"11$*-"%1!'4,05')$8,1,!#'DOO';9<

"%-'P'KE<'$?'05!'6*/%'7$1"8'98"%=

Q 9*,$*'0$'05!'1$AA!%1!A!%0'$?'05!'-!+!8$)A!%0B'"'E,0,3"0,$%'7"%-#1")!'95"#,%3'98"%'#5"88

@!'#/@A,00!-'0$'"%-'"))*$+!-',%'4*,0,%3'@:'05!'7$1"8'98"%%,%3'6/05$*,0:='(5!'-!0",8#'#5"88

,%18/-!'"'0,A!0"@8!'$?'45!%')8"%0,%3'"%-'?!%1,%3'4,05,%'RSA'$?'05!'4!#0!*%'@$/%-"*:'"*!'0$'@!

,A)8!A!%0!-',%'*!8"0,$%'0$'1$AA!%1!A!%0'$?'-!+!8$)A!%0'"%-')*!T1$%#0*/10,$%'"10,+,0,!#'"%-

-!0",8#'#5$4,%3'05!'A!"#/*!#'0$')*$0!10'"%-'A",%0",%'05!'4$*2#'-/*,%3'05!'1$%#0*/10,$%

)5"#!='(5!'"))*$+!-'-!0",8'4,88'@!',A)8!A!%0!-',%'?/88=

 !"#$%&'($'1$%#!*+!'05!'4,8-8,?!',%0!*!#0'$?'"%',A)$*0"%0'%"0/*"8'5"@,0"0',%'"11$*-"%1!'4,05

)$8,1:'DHI'KER'$?'05!'6*/%'7$1"8'98"%=

U 9*,$*'0$'05!'$11/)"0,$%'$?'"%:'-4!88,%3B'-!0",8#'$?'"88'#,3%"3!'"%-'V$A!$4%!*'W%?$*A"0,$%

9"12#')!*0",%,%3'0$'05!'!-/1"0,$%'$?'05!'9"35"A'V"*@$/*'#,0!'#5"88'@!'#/@A,00!-'0$'"%-

"))*$+!-',%'4*,0,%3'@:'05!'7$1"8'98"%%,%3'6/05$*,0:='K!0",8#'#5"88',%18/-!'05!'8$1"0,$%#B

"))!"*"%1!'"%-'1$%0!%0#'$?'05!'#,3%"3!'"%-'W%?$*A"0,$%'9"12#B'"%-'#5"88'"8#$'@!',%'8,%!'4,05

05!'A!##"3,%3'3/,-!8,%!#'$?'05!'9"35"A'V"*@$/*';0*"0!3,1'611!##'E"%"3!A!%0'"%-

E$%,0$*,%3'98"%='(5!'"))*$+!-'-!0",8#'#5"88'@!',A)8!A!%0!-',%'?/88')*,$*'0$'05!'$11/)"0,$%'$?

"%:'-4!88,%3'"%-'A",%0",%!-',%')!*)!0/,0:'/%8!##'$05!*4,#!'"3*!!-',%'4*,0,%3'@:'05!'7$1"8

98"%%,%3'6/05$*,0:=

 !"#$%&'($'!%#/*!'"-!./"0!'A,0,3"0,$%')8"%0,%3',%'$*-!*'0$'1$A)8:'4,05'05!'"))*$+!-'V"@,0"0#

 !3/8"0,$%#'6##!##A!%0'FV 6G'6))*$)*,"0!'6##!##A!%0'F66G',%'"11$*-"%1!'4,05'9$8,1:'DHI

KE<'"%-'DHI'KER'$?'05!'6*/%'7$1"8'98"%=

X 9*,$*'0$'05!'1$AA!%1!A!%0'$?'05!'-!+!8$)A!%0B'"'%$,#!'"##!##A!%0B'"8$%3#,-!'"'%$,#!

A,0,3"0,$%'#15!A!'?$*')*$0!10,%3'05!')*$)$#!-'-4!88,%3#'?*$A'%$,#!'3!%!*"0!-'@:'9"35"A

 $"-B'#5"88'@!'#/@A,00!-'0$'"%-'"))*$+!-',%'4*,0,%3'@:'05!'8$1"8')8"%%,%3'"/05$*,0:='(5!

)*$)$#!-'#15!A!'#5"88'"15,!+!'05!'?$88$4,%3'%$,#!'8!+!8#B'@"#!-'$%'("@8!'>'$?'N;'URYY&RS<>&

"G',%0!*%"8'-":'0,A!'FSQ=SS'5$/*#'0$'RY=SS'5$/*#G'%$,#!'8!+!8#'#5"88'%$0'!Z1!!-'YC-N'76!.B

<L5*'?$*'5"@,0"@8!'*$$A#'F@!-*$$A#'"%-'8,+,%3'*$$A#'4,05'4,%-$4#'$)!%G=

Page 65



 

 

!" #$%&'$() $#*+%,%#-& ./0122 +34'5 %3 26122 +34'5" $3#5& )&7&)5 5+()) $3% &89&&: 02:; <=&>?

@#%+ #$:#7#:4() $3#5& &7&$%5 $3% &89&&:#$* AB:; <=-(8 $3 -3'& %+($ C/ %#-&5 D&' $#*+%

.!&:'33-5 @#$:3@5 3D&$"1

9" *(':&$E&8%&'$() (-&$#%F 5D(9&5 5+34): $3% &89&&: B2 :; <=&>? CG+'1

HI #% #5 D'&:#9%&: %+(% %+& #$%&'$() $3#5& )&7&)5 5D&9#I#&: (!37& @#)) $3% !& -&% @#%+ @#$:3@5

3D&$? %+& D'3D35&: -#%#*(%#3$ 59+&-& 5+()) (554-& @#$:3@5 @34): !& J&D% 9)35&: ($: @#))

5D&9#IF ($ ()%&'$(%#7& 7&$%#)(%#3$ 5F5%&-? %3 '&:49& %+& $&&: I3' @#$:3@5 %3 !& 3D&$&:1 =5 (

-#$#-4-? %+#5 5+34): 454())F 93$5#5% 3I ( -&9+($#9() +&(% '&937&'F 7&$%#)(%#3$ 5F5%&- @#%+

933) (#' !F,D(55 3' &>4#7()&$%1

K+& (*'&&: $3#5& -#%#*(%#3$ -&(54'&5 5+()) !& I4))F #$5%())&:E#-D)&-&$%&: D'#3' %3 3994D(%#3$

3I ($F 3I %+& (II&9%&: :@&))#$*5 ($: %+&$ D&'-($&$%)F '&%(#$&: #$ *33: @3'J#$* 3':&'

%+&'&(I%&'1

L&(53$M K3 D'3%&9% %+& (-&$#%F 3I )39() '&5#:&$%5 #$ (993':($9& @#%+ ='4$ <39() N)($ D3)#9F

OP QRC1 K+#5 -45% !& ( D'&,93--&$9&-&$% 93$:#%#3$ !&9(45& #% #5 $&9&55('F %3 +(7& 549+

-#%#*(%#3$ -&(54'&5 #$ D)(9& !&I3'& %+& !4#):#$*5 ('& 3994D#&:1

C2 HI '&5#:&$%#() D'3D&'%#&5 ('& %3 !& 93-D)&%&: ($: 3994D#&: D'#3' %3 %+& @+3)& 3I %+&

:&7&)3D-&$% !&#$* I#$#5+&:? ( 59+&-& %3 D'3%&9% %+35& &(')F 3994D($%5 I'3- $3#5& ($:

7#!'(%#3$ 5+34): !& 54!-#%%&: %3 ($: (DD'37&: #$ @'#%#$* !F %+& <39() N)($$#$* =4%+3'#%F1

L&(53$M K3 D'3%&9% %+& (-&$#%F 3I I4%4'& 3994D#&'5 #$ (993':($9& @#%+ N3)#9F OP QRC 3I %+&

='4$ <39() N)($1

CC N'#3' %3 %+& 3994D(%#3$ 3I ($F :@&))#$*? :&%(#)5 3I %+& !34$:('F %'&(%-&$% I3' %+& ())3%-&$%5

5+()) !& 54!-#%%&: %3 ($: (DD'37&: !F %+& <39() N)($$#$* =4%+3'#%F1 K+& I&$9#$* 5+()) !&

#$5%())&: D'#3' %3 %+& ())3%-&$%5 93-#$* #$%3 45&1

L&(53$M K3 &$54'& (DD'3D'#(%& 5%($:(': 3I (-&$#%F I3' I4%4'& 3994D#&'5 ($: %3 '&5%'#9% (99&55

%3 %+& ())3%-&$%5 #$ (993':($9& @#%+ Q QRC 3I %+& ='4$ )39() N)($1

C/ HSTULR=KHVPM K+& I3))3@#$* )#$J D'37#:&5 #$I3'-(%#3$E*4#:($9& I3' %+& $3#5& (55&55-&$%

($: -#%#*(%#3$ 59+&-&M N)($$#$* S3#5& =:7#9& Q394-&$% , W455&8? W&D%&-!&' /2/C

+%%D5MEE@@@1('4$1*3714JE:3@$)3(:1

K+& :394-&$%5 '&)(%#$* %3 %+#5 (DD)#9(%#3$ 9($ !& 7#&@&: 3$ %+& ='4$ Q#5%'#9% X34$9#) @&!5#%&  !F *3#$*

%3  +%%D5MEE@@@1('4$1*3714JE@&&J)F,)#5%5 ($: &$%&'#$* %+& (DD)#9(%#3$ '&I&'&$9& 3' :#'&9%)F !F 9)#9J#$* 3$

%+#5 )#$J1

Page 66



 

 

!"#$% &' ()$ *+%'"',$ -.+/$0 1"223'4 53() 2$+13##3&' &6 ()$ 7&'(+&88$+ &6 9$+ :";$#(0<# -("(3&'$+0 *663,$ = 7+&5' 7&20+34)(>

?'".()&+3#$% +$2+&%.,(3&' 3'6+3'4$# 7+&5' 7&20+34)( "'% 1"0 8$"% (& 2+&#$,.(3&' &+ ,3/38 2+&,$$%3'4#>  @+.' A3#(+3,( 7&.',38

BCCCBDEDF> GCBH

Page 67



 

 

    

Page 68



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

!

"#$%&'()'*+ *, -((.'%-)'*+ #/012345 46 735890 724/0: 0;2057345 24 2<0 /0=/ 46 = 2>4?724/0:@

70A3?B02=1<0B B>099358!

.CDEFDEGD%.( .=>6H9 B0I094JA052 10/23631=20 64/ = J/4J470B 9462

145I0/7345 >32< /0=/ 6=1358 B4/A0/ >35B4> K L +4! 6/452

6=1358 >35B4>7!

(( +42 &0MH3/0B

EF?FL?EG

.32290<=AJ245 )4>5 %4H5139 ? +4 4NO012345!

+4 /0J/07052=23457 6/4A 5038<N4H/7!

+450!

PH392?HJ -/0= P4H5B=/:!

-/H5 .41=9 (9=5 LFEE ? LFQER

""SE " "SE -7J0127 46 64/A =5B B07385 MH=932:

""ST " "ST #;20573457K=920/ 24 0;372 NH39B7U/07 =5B 545?/07V

"$(E " $(E "07385

.32290<=AJ245 +038<N4H/<44B (9=5 LFET (4931: E )<0 (/07HAJ2345 35 ,=I4H/ 46 $H72=35=N90

"0I094JA052

Page 69

Agenda Item 8



 

!""# !$%&'($) ")$((&(* "')&+, #-$./0'-1

!""2 !$%&'($) ")$((&(* "-$+%&+/ 23&4$(+/

5"678 9-3( 6&:%-&+% 6/:&*( 23&4/ ;5"6< =$(3$-, >?>7

@##ABCD !@EC

EF&: $GG)&+$%&'( F$: H//( -/I/--/4 %' %F/ ")$((&(* B'..&%%// 43/ %' %F/ $GG)&+$(% H/&(* $( 9-3( 6&:%-&+%

B'3(+&))'-J

"DA!BA"KC

EF/ G-'G':$) &: $::/::/4 $*$&(:% "')&+&/: 6 6L7M 6 6LNM 6 5"7 'I %F/ 9-3( K'+$) ")$(M %F/ 9-3(

6&:%-&+% 6/:&*( 23&4/M "')&+, 7 'I %F/ K&%%)/F$.G%'( !/&*FH'3-F''4 ")$( $(4 %F/ !""# ;6/+/.H/-

>?>8<J EF/ 9-3( 6/:&*( 23&4/ G-'O&4/: 4/%$&)/4 *3&4$(+/ %F$% F/)G: %' -$&:/ 4/:&*( :%$(4$-4: $+-'::

%F/ 4&:%-&+%J 5/+%&'( L :%$%/: %F$% 4/O/)'G./(% :F'3)4 -/:G'(4 %' %F/ 4&:%&(+%&O/(/:: 'I %F/&- F':%

40/))&(* $(4 :3--'3(4&(*: &( %/-.: 'I :+$)/M .$::&(*M .$%/-&$):M $(4 G-'%/+% %F/ $./(&%&/: 'I '++3G$(%:

$(4 (/&*FH'3-:J 5/+%&'( L $):' &))3:%-$%/: %F/ PQ?R $(4 NSR4/*-// -3)/:PJ EF/:/ -3)/: -/I/- %' %F/ Q?R

4/*-// :&*F%)&(/: $(4 NSR4/*-// :&*F%)&(/: I-'. (/&*FH'3-&(* O&/0G'&(%: $(4 $&.: %' G-/O/(% $4O/-:/

'H:%-3+%&'( 'I :&*F%)&(/: $(4 )':: 'I :3()&*F%J EF/ Q?R4/*-// -3)/ :G/+&I&+$)), -/I/-: %' :&(*)/ :%'-/, -/$-

/T%/(:&'(:J

6C5A2! 9!6 UA5V9K 9LC!AEW

!'J7X 6$O&%: 6-&O/ :&%: &( $ :%-//%:+/(/ +F$-$+%/-&:/4 H, 40/))&(*: 0&%F $ O$-&$(+/ &( :%,)/ $(4

'-&/(%$%&'(M -$(*&(* I-'. :&(*)/ :%'-/, :/.&R4/%$+F/4M %' %0'R:%'-/, :/.& $(4 )&(1 $%%$+F/4 G-'G/-%&/:J

EF/ F':% 40/))&(* &: %0'R:%'-/,M :/.&R4/%$+F/4 $(4 H/(/I&%: I-'. $ :.$)) I-'(% *$-4/(M H/&(* :/% H$+1

I-'. %F/ -'$4:&4/ H'3(4$-,J E' %F/ -/$-M $( /T&:%&(* :&(*)/ :%'-/, G&%+F/4 -''I /T%/(:&'( G-'O&4/: 4&(&(*

-''. I$+&)&%&/:J

EF/ G-'G':$) &: I'- %F/ +'(:%-3+%&'( 'I :&(*)/ :%'-/, /T%/(:&'( %' G-'O&4/ $44&%&'($) 3%&)&%, $(4 0J+J

I$+&)&%&/:M /(Y',&(* H'%F &(%/-($) $(4 /T%/-($) $++/::J Z/&(* :&%/4 0&%F&( %F/ Z3&)%R3G 9-/$ Z'3(4$-, $(4

+'(:&4/-/4 :3:%$&($H)/ 4/O/)'G./(%M %F/ G-'G':$) &: H'%F I'3(4 $++/G%$H)/ &( G-&(+&G)/ $(4 $++'-4: 0&%F

"')&+, 7 'I %F/ .$4/ K&%%)/F$.G%'( !/&*FH'3-F''4 ")$(J

EF/ G-'G':$) 0'3)4 -/G-/:/(% $ .'4/-$%/ &(+-/$:/ %' %F/ /T&:%&(* G)$( $-/$ $44&(* $( $GG-'TJ 8JQS. &(

)/(*%F H, $GG-'TJ >J>>. &( 0&4%F $(4 0'3)4 H, 0$, 'I :+$)/ $(4 I'-.M &(%/*-$%/ 0/)) 0&%F %F/ /T&:%&(*

G)'%J !'%/4 &: %F/ /T&:%/(+/ 'I $ :&.&)$-), :&[/4 4//G /T%/(:&'( %' %F/ -/$- 'I ('J>7M 0F&+F %F&: G-'G':$)

0&)) $H3%J

EF/ 4/:&*( ://: $ (/0 I)$% -''I 0&%F 'O/-$)) /$O/: F/&*F% .$%+F&(* %F/ (/&*FH'3-&(* :&(*)/ :%'-/,

/T%/(:&'( $% $GG-'TJ 8J?.M $)%F'3*F :)&*F%), /T+//4&(* %F$% 'I %F/ G-/:/(% 4&(&(* -''. /T%/(:&'(J 7 ('J

(/0 0&(4'0 &: G-'G':/4 %' %F/ ('-%F $(4 /$:% $(4 /)/O$%&'(: :/-O&(* %F/ 0J+JM 0&%F (/0 /T%/-($) 4''- %'

('-%F /)/O$%&'( :/-O&(* %F/ 3%&)&%, -''. $-/$J

L$%/-&$): +F':/( &(+)34/ I$+&(* H-&+1 $(4 G-'G-&/%$-, H3&)%R3G I/)% %' I)$% -''I %F$% 0&)) H/ 'I $ :&.&)$-

$GG/$-$(+/ %' %F/ /T&:%&(*J \F&%/ V"U+ 0&(4'0 I-$./: $(4 0F&%/ V"U+]-/:&( 4''- 0'3)4 H/ 3%&)&:/4J

9)%F'3*F %F/ /T&:%&(* .$&( 40/))&(* $(4 G-/O&'3: /T%/(:&'( H/(/I&% I-'. G&%+F/4 -''I:M %F/ G-'G':/4 I)$%

Page 70



 

!""# $" $%& '()*+& '$"!&, &-$&)'(") (' !&#+&.$(/& "# $%0$ '&&) () $%& (11&2(0$& +".0+($,3 4+$%"5*% ($ .0))"$

6& 0!*5&2 $%0$ $%& 7!"7"'0+ (' /('50++, ',170$%&$(. $" $%& %"'$ 28&++()*9 6, /(!$5& "# '.0+& 0)2 '($()* $"

$%& !&0! "# )"3 :;9 ($ (' )"$ .")'(2&!&2 $" .05'& '(*)(#(.0)$ %0!1 () $%(' !&*0!29 0)2 8(++ %0/& )" (170.$ ")

$%& '$!&&$'.&)& "! )&*0$(/&+, 0##&.$ $%& .%0!0.$&! "# $%& 0!&03

<%& 7!"7"'0+ (' ."17+(0)$ 8($% ="+(.(&' > ?=:9 > >@: A > >@B "# $%& 4!5) C".0+ =+0)9 $%& 4!5) >('$!(.$

>&'(*) D5(2&9 $%& C($$+&%017$") E&(*%6"5!%""2 =+0) 0)2 $%& E==F3

GH?I>HE<I4C 4@HEI<J

<%& 7!"7"'&2 !&0! &-$&)'(") 8(++ #5!$%&! ().!&0'& $%& &-('$()* '()*+& '$"!&, 7!"K&.$(") 65$ $%&!& 8(++ 6& )"

()$&!'&.$(") "# 0), LMN2&*!&& '(*%$O+(*%$ 0..&''(6(+($, +()& #!"1 %06($06+& !""1 +()& #!"1 $%& !&0! "# )"3P:

"! )"3:Q3  I) 065$$()* 0)2 10$.%()* $%& +&)*$% "# $%& 2&/&+"71&)$ $" $%& !&0! "# )"3 P:9 0), 7"$&)$(0+

022($(")0+ %0!1 6, 80, "# +"'' "# "5$+""R "! +(*%$ %0' 6&&) 0/"(2&23 <%& 7!"7"'&2 &0/&' %&(*%$ (' '+(*%$+,

%(*%&! $%0) $%0$ "# $%& &-('$()* !&0! &-$&)'(")9 %"8&/&!9 6, ()$!"25.()* 0 #+0$ !""#9 $%& '()*+& '$"!&,

&-$&)'(") 0/"(2' '(*)(#(.0)$ %0!1 6, 80, "# "/&!6&0!()* "! "/&!'%02"8()* $"80!2 )&(*%6"5!()*

28&++()*'3

<%& 7!"7"'&2 022($(") "# )&8 2""!O8()2"8' 0$ *!"5)2 +&/&+9 8"5+2 )"$ .!&0$& 0), )&8 /(&87"()$' "!

'(*)(#(.0)$ %0!1 6, 80, "# 2(!&.$+, "/&!+""R()* )&(*%6"5!()* 28&++()*'3 I) $%(' !&'7&.$9 $%& 7!"7"'0+ ('

0..&7$06+&3

4..&7$()* $%0$ $%&!& 8(++ 6& 0 '+(*%$ !&25.$(") () !&0! 7!(/0$& 01&)($, '70.&9 $%& 7!"7"'0+ 8"5+2 '$(++ '&& 0

2('$0).& "# 077!"-3 S3:1 6&()* !&$0()&29 8%(.%9 8%(+'$ #0++()* '%"!$ "# $%& !&."11&)20$(") () $%& 4!5)

>&'(*) D5(2&9 (' .")'(2&!&2 0..&7$06+& 0' 02&T50$& 01&)($, '70.& "/&!0++ 8"5+2 6& !&$0()&23

=4GUIED

V&()* '($&2 $" $%& !&0!9 $%& .5!!&)$ 70!R()* 0!!0)*&1&)$' !&10() 5)0##&.$&2 6, $%(' 7!"7"'0+ 0)2 8"5+2

'$(++ '&& "##N!"02 70!R()* #"! P )"3 /&%(.+&'9 8%(.% (' .")'(2&!&2 0..&7$06+&3

F"! $%& 7!&.&2()* !&0'")' $%& 7!"7"'0+ 8(++ )"$ !&'5+$ () '(*)(#(.0)$+, "/&!6&0!()*9 "/&!'%02"8()*9 "!

"/&!+""R()* ") 0), )&(*%6"5!()* 7!"7&!$(&' 0)2 (' () ."17+(0).& 8($% !&+&/0)$ >&/&+"71&)$ =+0) 7"+(.(&'

> >@: A > >@B "# $%& 4!5) C".0+ =+0)9 ?&.$(") @ "# $%& 4!5) >&'(*) D5(2& 0)2 $%& E==F3

?W@@4GJ

<%& 1"2&!0$& '.0+& "# $%& 7!"7"'0+ !&'5+$' () "/&!0++ 7+0) 0!&0 '(1(+0! $" 02K"()()* )&(*%6"5!' 0)2 ('

.")'(2&!&2 0..&7$06+& () $&!1' "# ($' (170.$ ") 6"$% /('50+ 0)2 !&'(2&)$(0+ 01&)($,3 4.."!2()*+,9 $%&

077+(.0$(") (' !&."11&)2&2 #"! 077!"/0+9 '56K&.$ $" $%& #"++"8()* .")2($(")' 0)2 ()#"!10$(/&'3

<%& X"5).(+ () 10R()* 0 2&.('(") '%"5+2 6& 080!& "# 0)2 $0R& ()$" 0.."5)$ 0), (17+(.0$(")' $%0$ 10,

0!('& #!"1 $%& Y510) G(*%$' 4.$ :;;S3 W)2&! $%& 4.$9 ($ (' 5)+08#5+ #"! 0 756+(. 05$%"!($, '5.% 0' 4!5)

>('$!(.$ X"5).(+ $" 0.$ () 0 10))&!9 8%(.% (' ()."170$(6+& 8($% $%& H5!"7&0) X")/&)$(") ") Y510)

G(*%$'3

X")'(2&!0$(") %0' 6&&) '7&.(#(.0++, *(/&) $" 4!$(.+& S Z!(*%$ $" !&'7&.$ 7!(/0$& 0)2 #01(+, +(#&[ 0)2 4!$(.+& :

"# $%& F(!'$ =!"$"."+ Z7!"$&.$(") "# 7!"7&!$,[3 I$ (' )"$ .")'(2&!&2 $%0$ $%& !&."11&)20$(") #"! 077!"/0+ "#

$%& *!0)$ "# 7&!1(''(") () $%(' .0'& ()$&!#&!&' 5)!&0'")06+, 8($% 0), +".0+ !&'(2&)$'\ !(*%$ $" !&'7&.$ #"!

$%&(! 7!(/0$& 0)2 #01(+, +(#& 0)2 %"1&9 &-.&7$ ()'"#0! 0' ($ (' )&.&''0!, $" 7!"$&.$ $%& !(*%$' 0)2 #!&&2"1'

Page 71



 

 

 

 

!" !#$%&' ()* #$)' +,'%- #$% &).$#' !" #$% ,//0)+,*#12 3$% 4!5*+)0 )' ,0'! /%&6)##%7 #! +!*#&!0 #$% 5'% !"

/&!/%&#8 )* ,++!&7,*+% 9)#$ #$% .%*%&,0 )*#%&%'# ,*7 #$% &%+!66%*7,#)!* "!& ,//&!:,0 )' +!*')7%&%7 #!

;% , /&!/!&#)!*,#% &%'/!*'% #! #$% '5;6)##%7 ,//0)+,#)!* ;,'%7 !* #$% +!*')7%&,#)!*' '%# !5# )* #$)'

&%/!&#2

<5#8 5*7%& #$% =>5,0)#)%' ?+# @ABA

C* ,''%'')*. #$)' /&!/!',0 #$% "!00!9)*. )6/,+#' $,:% ;%%* )7%*#)")%7 5/!* #$!'% /%!/0% 9)#$ #$%

"!00!9)*. /&!#%+#%7 +$,&,+#%&)'#)+' (,.%- 7)',;)0)#8- .%*7%& &%,'').*6%*#- 6,&&),.% ,*7 +):)0 /,&#*%&'$)/-

/&%.*,*+8 ,*7 6,#%&*)#8- &,+%- &%0).)!* !& ;%0)%"- '%D !& '%D5,0 !&)%*#,#)!*12

3$% /&!/!',0 9!507 $,:% , *%5#&,0 )6/,+# !* #$% /&!#%+#%7 +$,&,+#%&)'#)+'2

?EEFGH= 4GI<C3CGI?JJK

B 3$% 7%:%0!/6%*# $%&%;8 /%&6)##%7 '$,00 ;% ;%.5* ;%"!&% #$% %D/)&,#)!* !" L 8%,&' "&!6 #$%

7,#% !" #$)' /%&6)'')!*2

F%,'!*M 3! +!6/08 9)#$ N%+#)!* OB !" #$% 3!9* ,*7 4!5*#&8 E0,**)*. ?+# BOOA (,'

,6%*7%712

@ 3$% 7%:%0!/6%*# $%&%;8 ,//&!:%7 '$,00 ;% +,&&)%7 !5# )* ,++!&7,*+% 9)#$ #$% "!00!9)*.

,//&!:%7 /0,*'M

P J!+,#)!* E0,*2

P N)#% E0,* Q E&!/!'%7 =0%:,#)!*'2

P E&!/!'%7 R&!5*7 Q S)&'# S0!!& E0,*2

P E&!/!'%7 =0%:,#)!*'2

F%,'!*M S!& #$% ,:!)7,*+% !" 7!5;# ,*7 )* #$% )*#%&%'#' !" ,6%*)#8 ,*7 #$% %*:)&!*6%*# )*

,++!&7,*+% 9)#$ ?&5* J!+,0 E0,* /!0)+8 < <TB2

L 3$% 6,#%&),0' ,*7 ")*)'$%' !" #$% %D#%&*,0 9,00' !" #$% %D#%*')!* $%&%;8 /%&6)##%7 '$,00 6,#+$

)* +!0!5& ,*7 #%D#5&% #$!'% !" #$% %D)'#)*. ;5)07)*.2

F%,'!*M C* #$% )*#%&%'#' !" ,6%*)#8 )* ,++!&7,*+% 9)#$ ?&5* J!+,0 E0,* /!0)+)%' < <TB ,*7 <

<TU2

U CISGFT?3CH=M N#,#%6%*# /5&'5,*# #! ?&#)+0% LV !" #$% 3!9* ,*7 4!5*#&8 E0,**)*.

(<%:%0!/6%*# T,*,.%6%*# E&!+%75&%1 (=*.0,*71 G&7%& @ABV (,' ,6%*7%712 3$% J!+,0

E0,**)*. ?5#$!&)#8 $,' ,+#%7 /!')#):%08 ,*7 /&!,+#):%08 )* 7%#%&6)*)*. #$)' ,//0)+,#)!* ;8

,''%'')*. #$% /&!/!',0 ,.,)*'# ,00 6,#%&),0 +!*')7%&,#)!*'- )*+057)*. /0,**)*. /!0)+)%' ,*7 ,*8

&%/&%'%*#,#)!*' #$,# 6,8 $,:% ;%%* &%+%):%7 ,*7 '5;'%>5%*#08 7%#%&6)*)*. #! .&,*# /0,**)*.

/%&6)'')!* )* ,++!&7,*+% 9)#$ #$% /&%'56/#)!* )* ",:!5& !" '5'#,)*,;0% 7%:%0!/6%*#- ,' '%#

!5# 9)#$)* #$% I,#)!*,0 E0,**)*. E!0)+8 S&,6%9!&W2

3$% 7!+56%*#' &%0,#)*. #! #$)' ,//0)+,#)!* +,* ;% :)%9%7 !* #$% ?&5* <)'#&)+# 4!5*+)0 9%;')#%  ;8 .!)*.

Page 72



 !""#  $%&''((()*+,-).!/),0'(11023425% %"*-6"1- 1+5-." #1"*$$257* 5!-"+181+1-71"!+"65+17 23"93"725705-."!-

 #5%"25-0)

Page 73



 

 

!"#$% &' ()$ *+%'"',$ -.+/$0 1"223'4 53() 2$+13##3&' &6 ()$ 7&'(+&88$+ &6 9$+ :";$#(0<# -("(3&'$+0 *663,$ = 7+&5' 7&20+34)(>

?'".()&+3#$% +$2+&%.,(3&' 3'6+3'4$# 7+&5' 7&20+34)( "'% 1"0 8$"% (& 2+&#$,.(3&' &+ ,3/38 2+&,$$%3'4#>  @+.' A3#(+3,( 7&.',38

BCCCBDEDF> GCBH

Page 74



 

 

!

"#$%&'()'*+ *, -((.'%-)'*+ )/01 23340526078 199:1 39;<011078 =7; 6/9 9;956078 7= 6>7

?9625/9? @AB9?;77< ?>94408C1D 925/ >06/ 28 0869C;24 ?7EB49

C2;2C9!

)/9 ?>94408C1 2;9 7= 6/9 12<9 ?910C8! )/9F 2;9 6;2?06078244F

16F49? 28? 0854E?9 B2;8A98?1 67 B76/ 6/9 87;6/ 28? 17E6/ 28?

2 /0339?G526A140?9 ;77= 67 6/9 92169;8 949H26078 28? 2 108C49

167;9F B2;8A98? 7E6 5;7=6 67 6/9 >9169;8 949H26078! (065/9? ;77=

?7;<9;1 2;9 3;73719? 67 6/9 =;786 28? ;92;D 28? 1742; 328941

2;9 2417 0854E?9? 67 6/9 >9169;8 949H26078!

)/9 ?910C8 >044 0854E?9 B78896 60491 67 /031D 9I3719? ;2=69; =996

28? B9 =0801/9? >06/ B;05: 26 C;7E8? 28? 542??08C 67 6/9 =0;16

=477;! ,98916;26078 739808C1 2;9 233;73;02694F 10J9? C0H98 6/9

;E;24 196608C 7= 6/9 BE04?08C!

)/9 6>7 ?>94408C1 >7E4? B9 196 B25: =;7< 6/9 ;72? 28? 19;H9?

BF 2 108C49D 1/2;9? H9/05E42; 255911! )/9F >7E4? B9 3;7H0?9?

>06/ 32;:08C 28? 6E;808C 2;921D 0854E?08C 789 H01067; 52;

32;:08C 13259!

$')# -&#- K!@L M9562;91!

&#$'"#+)'-. "#N#.*(O#+)

"#+$')P

-33;7I0<2694F @ ?>94408C1 39; /9562;9!

)*(*Q&-(MP (;9?7<082864F =426!

)&##$ )/9 1069 /21 6;991 28? /9?C9;7> 67 061 >9169;8 28? 17E6/9;8

B7E8?2;091D 0854E?08C 2 42;C9 M7;8B92< 2?R25986 67 6/9

3;73719? 255911 67 6/9 1069!

S*T+"-&P )&#-)O#+) );991G/9?C9;7>!

$')# %M-&-%)#&'$)'%$ *398 2C;05E46E;24 C;2J08C 428?!

%M-&-%)#& *, .*%-.')P &E;24! )/9 1069 01 1E;;7E8?9? BF 137;2?05 ?9H9473<986 67 6/9

>916 28? 9216D 0854E?08C ;910?986024D >06/ 7398 2C;05E46E;24

C;2J08C 428? 67 6/9 87;6/! )/9;9 2;9 H2;07E1 BE108911 7= 2 ;E;24

Page 75

Agenda Item 9



 

 

!"#$%& #' #(& )**&+)"#& ,'$#( '- #(& ,)#&. )!/0$+)!1 1"%+&!

!$%,&%)&,2

34567658859: 8 ; +&#"/(&+ < =&+%''* +>&00)!1, ?&-$,&+

8<@78@8A

345BA58859: < C' A =&+%''* +>&00)!1,2 D(), "EE0)/"#)'! ), "

F&E"%#$%& -%'* #(& F&G&0'E*&!# 90"! "!+ ), )! HI: J'!&

A "!+ ), HI: :)"=0& ", !&> +>&00)!1,2

3)#(+%">!

6<@7K@88

D(), ), " %&G),&+ "EE0)/"#)'! -'00'>)!1 #(& >)#(+%">"0 '- "EE0)/"#)'! 345BA58859: "!+ #(& %&-$,"0 '- "

,$=,&L$&!# "EE0)/"#)'! 34567658859:. >()/( >", +),*),,&+ '! "EE&"0 '! #(& =",), #("# #(& ,/(&*&

>'$0+ %&,$0# )! #(& 0',, '- M&,# "!+ N',# O"0$"=0& 41%)/$0#$%"0 :"!+ PMNO4:Q2

D(& 90"!!)!1 I!,E&/#'% *"+& #(& -'00'>)!1 /'!/0$,)'!, )! #(&)% ,$**)!1 $E '- #(& E%'E',&+

+&G&0'E*&!#R

SD(& E%'E',"0 >'$0+ E%'G)+& 8 +>&00)!1, %&",'!"=0T L$)/U0T. +$& #' )#, ,*"00 ,/"0&2 I ("G& /'!,)+&%&+

#("# #(& V%"*&>'%U ,&&U, #' ='',# ,)1!)-)/"!#0T #(& ,$EE0T '- ('$,)!1 "!+ %&/'1!),&, #(& )*E'%#"!/& '-

,*"00 ,)#&, )! *&&#)!1 #(& ('$,)!1 %&L$)%&*&!#, '- "! "%&"2 I# >'$0+ #(&%&-'%& /'!#%)=$#& #' #(& H'$!/)0W,

X@T&"% ('$,)!1 0"!+ ,$EE0T "!+ "0'!1 >)#( #(& ",,'/)"#&+ &/'!'*)/. ,'/)"0. "!+ &!G)%'!*&!#"0 =&!&-)#,.

>'$0+ "##%"/# *'+&%"#& >&)1(#)!1 =",&+ '! #(& ,)Y& '- #(& H'$!/)0W, ('$,)!1 0"!+ ,$EE0T +&-)/)# "!+ #(&

!$*=&% '- ('$,&, E%'E',&+2

I ("G& -'$!+ #(& E%'E',"0 "//&E#"=0& )! %&0"#)'! #' )#, )*E"/# '! #(& /("%"/#&% "!+ "EE&"%"!/& '- #(&

"%&". "!+ #(& H'$!/)0 ("G& !'# -'$!+ ("%* %&0"#)!1 #' 0)G)!1 /'!+)#)'!,. +&,)1!. "//'**'+"#)'!

,#"!+"%+,. E"%U)!1. ()1(>"T ,"-&#T. #%&&,. =)'+)G&%,)#T. "!+ &!&%1T &--)/)&!/T. "*'!1,# '#(&% #()!1,2

Z'>&G&%. "!T "=,&!/& '- ("%* ), !&$#%"0 )! #(& E0"!!)!1 ="0"!/&2

C&G&%#(&0&,,. #(& E%'E',"0 >'$0+ /'!,#)#$#& #(& 0',, '- MNO4:. "!+ =&/"$,& #(), 0',, >'$0+ =&

E&%*"!&!# "!+ )%%&G&%,)=0&. I 1)G& #(), ,)1!)-)/"!# >&)1(#2 D(&%&-'%&. I -)!+ )! #(&,& /)%/$*,#"!/&,. #(&

"+G&%,& )*E"/#, '- 1%"!#)!1 E0"!!)!1 E&%*),,)'! >'$0+ ,)1!)-)/"!#0T "!+ +&*'!,#%"=0T '$#>&)1( #(&

=&!&-)#,2 4//'%+)!10T. #(& *"#&%)"0 /'!,)+&%"#)'!, )! #(), /",& +' !'# )!+)/"#& #("# #(& E%'E',"0 ,('$0+ =&

+&#&%*)!&+ '#(&% #("! )! "//'%+"!/& >)#( #(& +&G&0'E*&!# E0"!2S

D(), "EE0)/"#)'! %&E%&,&!#, " %&,$=*),,)'! '- "EE0)/"#)'! 34567658859: >)#( !&> &G)+&!/& ,$=*)##&+ #'

"++%&,, #(& I!,E&/#'%W, *")! /'!/&%!, %&1"%+)!1 #(& 0',, '- M&,# "!+ N',# O"0$"=0& 41%)/$0#$%"0 :"!+

PMNO4:Q. >()/( #(& "EE0)/"!# +),E$#&,2 H'!,)+&%"#)'! '- #(& !&> &G)+&!/& ), +),/$,,&+ )! #(& ='+T '-

#(& %&E'%# =&0'>2

3"0=&%#'! 9"%),( H'$!/)0 @ [=\&/#)'!2

@ ])#& ), '$#,)+& #(& M$)0#@$E 4%&" M'$!+"%T PM̂ 4MQ2

@ _%&&!-)&0+ ,)#& /'!,),#)!1 '- 1%"+& A "1%)/$0#$%"0 0"!+2

Page 76



 

 

 

! "#$%&'()#* +%&#, +- )#.)// /'#, '/-#* 0'(+&%*'+& 1'#&2 ,&3&/-45&#+ )( 5&%*)#* 6)+7 #&)*78-9%)#*

:'%)(7&(;

! <)-,)3&%()+= $-%%),-%2 )54'$+ -# $7'/> (+%&'5 #-+ ),&#+).)&,;

! "#$%&'(&, %)(> -. ./--,)#*? *%-9#, 6'+&% 5-#)+-%)#* /'$>)#*;

! @-+ ' (9(+')#'8/& /-$'+)-#2 6)+7-9+ .--+4'+7 -% $=$/& %-9+&(;

A /&++&%( -. (944-%+ .%-5 #&)*78-9%(;

! B 6&// 4%&(&#+&, 7-5&( )# +7& 3)//'*&;

! C44%-4%)'+&/= ()D&, '#, ()+9'+&, '5-#*(+ #&)*78-9%)#* 7-5&(; C 4-()+)3& ',,)+)-# +- +7)( %9%'/ (&++)#*;

! E+7&% ()5)/'% *'4 ,&3&/-45&#+( 7'3& 8&&# '44%-3&, '/-#* +7& /'#&;

F /&++&% -. -8G&$+)-# .%-5 #&)*78-9%;

! H7)( '44/)$'+)-# )( ' 7'%5.9/ )#$9%()-# )#+- +7& %9%'/ *'4 8&+6&&# (&++/&5&#+(;

I&4%&(&#+'+)-#( #-+&,; H7-(& %&/'+)#* +- 5'+&%)'/ 4/'##)#* 5'++&%( '%& $-#(),&%&, )# +7& J-#$/9()-#(

(&$+)-# -. +7)( %&4-%+;

KLJJ M)*76'=( ! C,3)$& 6)+7 $-#,)+)-#( (9**&(+&,;

! N)()8)/)+= )( )# '$$-%,'#$& 6)+7 O&()*# P'#9'/ .-% I-',( '#, <%),*&( *9),&/)#&( .-% L+-44)#* L)*7+

O)(+'#$&( QLLOR )# %&/'+)-# +- %&$-%,&, (9%3&= ,'+' SA+7 4&%$&#+)/& (4&&,( 4%-3),&, 6)+7)# +7& H%'#(4-%+

L+'+&5&#+; C( (9$72 +7& 1-$'/ M)*76'= C9+7-%)+= Q1MCR )( ('+)(.)&, 6)+7 +7& ,&5-#(+%'+&, 3)()8)/)+=2 -.

67)$7 $'# 8& (&$9%&, 8= $-#,)+)-#;

! H7& 1MC )( ('+)(.)&, +7'+ +7)( #958&% -. +%)4( $'# 8& '$$-55-,'+&, )#+- +7& /-$'/ 7)*76'= #&+6-%> '#,

)( #-+ '#+)$)4'+&, +- *)3& %)(& +- '#= ',3&%(& )54'$+( -# 7)*76'= ('.&+=;

! T#,&% C%9# :'%>)#* L+'#,'%,(2 +7& 1MC 6-9/, &U4&$+ ' ,&3&/-45&#+ -. +7)( ()D& '#, /-$'+)-# +-

4%-3),& '+ /&'(+ (&3&# $'% 4'%>)#* (4'$&(; H7&%&.-%&2 +7& 1MC )( ('+)(.)&, 6)+7 +7& 4%-4-(&, /&3&/ -.

4'%>)#* 4%-3)()-#;

! :'%>)#* 8'=( '44&'% (9)+'8/= ()D&,;

! V $=$/& 4'%>)#* (4'$&( '%& +- 8& 4%-3),&,; H7&(& $'# 8& (&$9%&, 8= $-#,)+)-#;

! H7& ()+& )( ()+9'+&, '44%-U)5'+&/= F>5 6&(+ -. K'/8&%+-# N)//'*&2 67)$7 4%-3),&( (-5& /-$'/ '5&#)+)&(

'#, (&%3)$&(2 (9$7 '( ' (7-4 '#, 89( /)#>(; M-6&3&%2 +7)( 4'%+ -. 0'(+&%*'+& 1'#& /'$>( ' .--+6'= '#, )(

9#/)+2 67)$7 5'= ,&+&% 4&,&(+%)'#(; J=$/)#* )( '3')/'8/& -4+)-# .-% $-#.),&#+ $=$/)(+(;

! H7& 1MC ,-&( #-+ $-#(),&% +7'+ +7)( 4%-4-('/ 6-9/, 7'3& '# 9#'$$&4+'8/& )54'$+ -# 7)*76'= ('.&+= -%

%&(9/+ )# W(&3&%&W $959/'+)3& )54'$+( -# +7& -4&%'+)-# -. +7& 7)*76'= #&+6-%>2 +7&%&.-%& )( #-+ $-#+%'%= +-

+7& @'+)-#'/ :/'##)#* :-/)$= X%'5&6-%> Q4'%'*%'47 FFFR2 '#, +7'+ +7&%& '%& #- +%'#(4-%+ *%-9#,( +-

%&()(+ +7& 4%-4-('/;

0#3)%-#5&#+'/ M&'/+7 ! @- -8G&$+)-#; J-#,)+)-#( )#$/9,)#* $-#+'5)#'+)-#2 6-%>)#* 7-9%( '#, 8&(+

4%'$+)$& (9**&(+&,;

0$-/-*= ! @- -8G&$+)-# 6)+7 $-#,)+)-#( %&/'+)#* +- #&6 8'+?8)%, 7'8)+'+2 /)*7+)#* '#, &#7'#$&5&#+

(9**&(+&,;

! H7& ()+& )( 6)+7)# +7& L)#*/&+-# '#, J-$>)#* LCJ H9##&/( LCJ '#, )( +7&%&.-%& 6)+7)# +7& FB;Y >5

6),&% $-#(&%3'+)-# '%&';

! H7)( 7'( 8&&# $-#(),&%&, '#, +7& )54'$+ )( %'+&, '( #&*/)*)8/&;

Page 77



 

 

 

 

! "#$ %&' ())$))*$+, -)$) ,#$ )*(.. )/,$) *$,0/1 2/,# (+ /+10$()$ 34 35$0 678 /+ (.. 9 ,:;3.3</$)=

>3-,#$0+ ?(,$0 ! @A5/1$=

@BC D+</+$$0) ! &3 13**$+, 0$1$/5$AE #32$5$0E ;0$5/3-) (;;./1(,/3+ 43-+A +3 3FG$1,/3+ 2/,#

13+A/,/3+) )-<<$),$A=

@;;03;0/(,$ 13+A/,/3+) 0$13**$+A$A F: 13+)-.,$$) #(5$ F$$+ /+1.-A$A 2#$0$ 0$.$5(+, (+A +$1$))(0:=

B$)/<+(,/3+ (;;./1(F.$ ,3 )/,$H

I-,)/A$ ,#$ %-/.,!-; @0$( %3-+A(0:=

>/+<.$,3+ (+A C31J/+< "-++$.) >@C 6=KJ* F-44$0 L3+$=

M/A)$: "0$(,*$+, C(,1#*$+, (0$(=

@0-+ M31(. N.(+ K766 ! K796H

C>N6 C >N6 C3-+,0:)/A$

DCC>N6 DCC >N6 @A(;,/+< ,3 C./*(,$ C#(+<$

M@&BO6 M@& BO6 N03,$1,/3+ 34 .(+A)1(;$ 1#(0(1,$0

B>N6 B >N6 B$)/<+

BBO6 B BO6 @);$1,) 34 430* (+A A$)/<+ P-(./,:

BBOK B BOK Q+,$0+(. );(1$ ),(+A(0A)

D&RBO6 D&R BO6 B$)/<+(,$A >/,$) 34 %/3A/5$0)/,: 30 <$3<0(;#/1(.

/*;

D&RBOS D&R BOS N03,$1,/3+ 34 ,0$$)

D&RBOT D&R BOT B$5$.3;*$+, (+A F/3A/5$0)/,:

?BO9 ? BO9 >-),(/+(F.$ U0F(+ B0(/+(<$ >:),$*)

?(.F$0,3+ &$/<#F3-0#33A N.(+ N3./1: K76V WN6 >;(,/(. N.(+ 34 ,#$ N(0/)#

?(.F$0,3+ &$/<#F3-0#33A N.(+ N3./1: K76V WN66 W3-)/+< B$+)/,:

?(.F$0,3+ &$/<#F3-0#33A N.(+ N3./1: K76V WN69 B$)/<+ '-/A(+1$

?(.F$0,3+ &$/<#F3-0#33A N.(+ N3./1: K76V RD9 N03,$1,/3+ 34 "0$$) (+A W$A<$032)

?(.F$0,3+ &$/<#F3-0#33A N.(+ N3./1: K76V RDV >-04(1$ ?(,$0 O(+(<$*$+,

&NNX &(,/3+(. N.(++/+< N3./1: X0(*$230J

&NNB' &(,/3+(. B$)/<+ '-/A$

>NB66 @0-+ N(0J/+< >,(+A(0A) K7K7

>NB69 @0-+ B/),0/1, B$)/<+ '-/A$ Y>NBZ [(+-(0: K7K6

Page 78



 

 

!"# $#%#&'()#*+ ,&-* .'*/0/+/ '1 +"# 234* 5'.-& ,&-* 6788 9 67:8; <#/+ =4//#> ?'4*+@ ?'4*.0&A/

<-/+# -*B C0*#3-&/ ,&-*/; !"# ='4+" D*/"'3# E ='4+" F11/"'3# C-30*# ,&-* -*B C-B# G#0H"I'43"''B

$#%#&'()#*+ ,&-*/J !"# ('&0.0#/ -3# (4I&0/"#B 4*B#3 K#H4&-+0'*/ 8L -*B :M '1 +"# !'N* -*B ?'4*+3@

,&-**0*H O5'.-& ,&-**0*HP OQ*H&-*BP K#H4&-+0'*/ 6786J

=#.+0'* :ROSP '1 +"# ,&-**0*H -*B ?')(4&/'3@ ,43."-/# 2.+ 677T /+-+#/U9

VD1 3#H-3B 0/ +' I# "-B +' +"# B#%#&'()#*+ (&-* 1'3 +"# (43('/# '1 -*@ B#+#3)0*-+0'* +' I# )-B# 4*B#3

+"# (&-**0*H 2.+/ +"# B#+#3)0*-+0'* )4/+ I# )-B# 0* -..'3B-*.# N0+" +"# (&-* 4*&#// )-+#30-&

.'*/0B#3-+0'*/ 0*B0.-+# '+"#3N0/#JV

!"# (3'('/-& 0/ -..#(+-I&# 0* +"-+ +"# -B%#3/# 0)(-.+/ '1 H3-*+0*H (&-**0*H (#3)0//0'* N'4&B *'+

/0H*010.-*+&@ -*B  B#)'*/+3-I&@ '4+N#0H" +"# I#*#10+/; N"#* -//#//#B -H-0*/+ $#%#&'()#*+ ,&-* ('&0.0#/

-*B +"# H40B-*.# '1 +"# G-+0'*-& ,&-**0*H ,'&0.@ W3-)#N'3X N"#* +-X#* -/ - N"'&#J

=#.+0'* Y7O6P '1 +"# !'N* -*B ?'4*+3@ ,&-**0*H 2.+ 8LL7 O-/ -)#*B#BP (3'%0B#/ +"-+

O6P 0* B#-&0*H N0+" -* -((&0.-+0'* 1'3 (&-**0*H (#3)0//0'* +"# -4+"'30+@ /"-&& "-%# 3#H-3B +' 9

O-P +"# (3'%0/0'*/ '1 +"# B#%#&'()#*+ (&-*; /' 1-3 -/ )-+#30-& +' +"# -((&0.-+0'*;

O-Z-P - ('/+ #>-)0*-+0'* B3-1+ *#0H"I'43"''B B#%#&'()#*+ (&-*; /' 1-3 -/ )-+#30-& +' +"# -((&0.-+0'*;

OIP -*@ &'.-& 10*-*.# .'*/0B#3-+0'*/; /' 1-3 -/ )-+#30-& +' +"# -((&0.-+0'*; -*B

O.P -*@ '+"#3 )-+#30-& .'*/0B#3-+0'*/J

D+ 0/ .'*/0B#3#B +"-+ +"#3# -3# '+"#3 )-+#30-& .'*/0B#3-+0'*/ +' I# N#0H"#B 0* +"# I-&-*.# N0+" +"#

$#%#&'()#*+ ,&-*J

<2[878[66[,5 N-/ B0/)0//#B -+ -((#-& 0* =#(+#)I#3 676: N"#3# +"# D*/(#.+'3 B#+#3)0*#B +"# X#@

0//4#/ +' I# +"# #11#.+ '1 +"# (3'('/#B B#%#&'()#*+ '* +"# -%-0&-I0&0+@ '1 +"# I#/+ -*B )'/+ %#3/-+0&#

-H30.4&+43-& &-*B O\C]25P; -*B +"# ."-3-.+#3 -*B -((#-3-*.# '1 +"# -3#-J

0̂%#* +"# "0H"9_4-&0+@ B#/0H* I#0*H 3#1&#.+0%# '1 +"# &'.-& -3#- -*B &-*B/.-(# +"#@ 1'4*B +"-+ +"#

(3'('/-& N'4&B *'+ "-3) +"# ."-3-.+#3 -*B -((#-3-*.# '1 +"# -3#-J D+ N'4&B +"#3#1'3# .')(&@ N0+" 5,

,'&0.0#/ $ $C8; $ =,8 -*B 52G $C8̀ ,'&0.@ a,8: '1 +"# <-&I#3+'* G#0H"I'43"''B ,&-*̀ +"# 234*

$0/+30.+ $#/0H* ̂40B# -*B +"# G,,WJ

<"#* .'*/0B#30*H \C]25; +"# D*/(#.+'3 4("#&B +"# 3#-/'* 1'3 3#14/-& 0*/'1-3 -/ ON"#* .'*/0B#30*H +"#

(3#.-4+0'*-3@ -((3'-."P; +"#@ N#3# 4*-I&# +' .'*.&4B# +"-+ +"# (3'('/-& N'4&B (3'+#.+ +"# -%-0&-I0&0+@ '1

+"# \C]25 '3 +"# (3'%0/0'* '1 6 *#N BN#&&0*H/ '* +"# -((#-& /0+# N'4&B -((3'(30-+#&@ '4+N#0H" +"#

(3'+#.+0'* '1 +"-+ &-*BJ !"# (3'('/-& N'4&B +"#3#1'3# .'*1&0.+ N0+" 5, ,'&0.@ =F $C8; -*B +"#

W3-)#N'3X; -/ 1-3 -/ 0+ 3#_403#/ +"-+ +"# #.'*')0. -*B '+"#3 I#*#10+/ '1 \C]25 -3# +-X#* 0*+' -..'4*+J

G' #%0B#*.# N-/ /4I)0++#B I@ #0+"#3 (-3+@ -+ +"# -((#-& -/ +' +"# #>-.+ .&-//010.-+0'* '1 +"# &-*B; '*&@

+"-+ +"# &-*B .'4&B I# .&-//010#B -/ ?&-// : ON"0." 0/ /(&0+ 0*+' :- 9 ̂''B C'B#3-+#; -*B :I C'B#3-+#

C'B#3-+#J !"0/ &#B +"# D*/(#.+'3 +' +-X# - (3#.-4+0'*-3@ -((3'-." I#.-4/# '1 +"# (#3)-*#*+ &'// '1 +"#

&-*B /4Ib#.+ +' +"# -((&0.-+0'*A/ -((3'%-&J !"0/ -((&0.-+0'* 0*+3'B4.#/ *#N #%0B#*.# 3#&-+0*H +' +"#

.&-//010.-+0'* '1 -H30.4&+43-& &-*B 1'3)0*H +"# /0+# -3#-; 0* -&& '+"#3 3#/(#.+/ +"# -((&0.-+0'* 0/ 0B#*+0.-& +'

+"# (3#%0'4/ /4I)0//0'*J

Page 79



 

!"#$ %&'( '&)&*+ ,--&,. /&)#$#0* #$ , 1,+&'#,. )0*$#/&',+#0* +0 2"#)" $#3*#4#),*+ 2&#3"+ $"05./ 6&

,440'/&/7

89:;<:8=>

!"& ?&%&.0-1&*+ 8.,* 40' +"& @'5* ?#$+'#)+ )5''&*+.( )01-'#$&$ +"& @'5* =0),. 8.,* ABCCDABEC FG@=8GHI

+"& J,.6&'+0* ;&#3"605'"00/ ?&%&.0-1&*+ 8.,* AI +",+ 2,$ 1,/& #* ABAC FGJ;?8GH ,*/ +"& J&$+

K5$$&L J,$+& ,*/ M#*&',.$ 8.,*$7

80.#)( < K8C 04 +"& @'5* =0),. 8.,* $+,+&$ +",+ #* .0),+#0*$ 05+$#/& +"& N5#.+D5- @'&,$ 605*/,'(I

/&%&.0-1&*+ 2#.. 0*.( 6& -&'1#++&/ 40' , /&4#*&/ .#$+ 04 )05*+'($#/& 5$&$7

80.#)( O8C 04 +"& J,.6&'+0* ;8 '&.,+&$ +0 +"& N5#.+D5- @'&, N05*/,'( FNP@NH ,*/ $+,+&$ -'0-0$,.$ 40'

/&%&.0-1&*+ 05+$#/& 04 +"& NP@NI +",+ /0 *0+ ,))0'/ 2#+" +"& /&%&.0-1&*+ -.,* -0.#)#&$ #* '&$-&)+ 04 +"&

)05*+'($#/&I 2#.. 6& '&$#$+&/ 5*.&$$ #+ #$ 40' &$$&*+#,. 5+#.#+( #*4',$+'5)+5'&7

!"& -'0%#$#0*$ 04 80.#)( O8C ,*/ 80.#)( < K8C -'&).5/& '&$#/&*+#,. /&%&.0-1&*+ 0* +"& ,--.#),+#0* $#+&7

!"& -'#*)#-.& 04 /&%&.0-1&*+ 0* +"& $#+& #$I +"&'&6(I )0*+','( +0 +"& /&%&.0-1&*+ -.,*7

!"& ;88Q #$ ,* #1-0'+,*+ 1,+&'#,. )0*$#/&',+#0* #* /&+&'1#*#*3 ,--.#),+#0*$7 @$ +"& <05*)#. ),**0+

/&10*$+',+& , RD(&,' O05$#*3 =,*/ K5--.( 80.#)( < K8C 04 +"& @=8 #$ 05+ 04 /,+& ,*/ +"& -'&$51-+#0*

#* -,',3',-" CCF/H F+"& $0 ),..&/ G+#.+&/ 6,.,*)&GH ,--.#&$7

8,',3',-" CS 04 +"& *&2 ;88Q FAB ?&)&16&' ABAEH '&.,+#*3 +0 +"& $+,+5$ 04 *&#3"605'"00/ -.,*$ #$ 04

'&.&%,*)& #* +"#$ #*$+,*)&7

8,',3',-" CS $,($ +",+ #* $#+5,+#0*$ 2"&'& +"& -'&$51-+#0* F,+ -,',3',-" CC/H ,--.#&$ +0 ,--.#),+#0*$

#*%0.%#*3 +"& -'0%#$#0* 04 "05$#*3I +"& ,/%&'$& #1-,)+ 04 ,..02#*3 /&%&.0-1&*+ +",+ )0*4.#)+$ 2#+" +"&

*&#3"605'"00/ -.,* #$ .#T&.( +0 $#3*#4#),*+.( ,*/ /&10*$+',6.( 05+2&#3" +"& 6&*&4#+$I -'0%#/&/ +"&

40..02#*3 ,--.(U ,H +"& *&#3"605'"00/ -.,* 6&),1& -,'+ 04 +"& /&%&.0-1&*+ -.,* 4#%& (&,'$ 0' .&$$ 6&40'&

+"& /,+& 0* 2"#)" +"& /&)#$#0* #$ 1,/&V ,*/ 6H +"& *&#3"605'"00/ -.,* )0*+,#*$ -0.#)#&$ ,*/ ,..0),+#0*$

+0 1&&+ #+$ #/&*+#4#&/ "05$#*3 '&W5#'&1&*+7

!"& )5''&*+ 1,/& J,.6&'+0* ;&#3"605'"00/ 8.,* A #$ .&$$ +",* R (&,'$ 0./ ,*/ $#+&$ 40' +"& ,..0),+#0* 04

"05$#*3 ",%& 6&&* -'0%#/&/ 2#+"#* +"& J;87 @))0'/#*3.(I 8,',3',-" CS 04 +"& ;88Q #$ , 1,+&'#,.

)0*$#/&',+#0* +0 2"#)" $#3*#4#),*+ 2&#3"+ $"05./ 6& ,++,)"&/7

@X9:<P=!P9@= =@;?

!"& $#+& #$ #*/#),+&/ 6( G@3'#)5.+5',. =,*/ <.,$$#4#),+#0* D 8'0%#$#0*,. F>*3.,*/HG /,+, F,$ 06+,#*&/

+"'053" ;,+5',. >*3.,*/H +0 6& 3',/& E FX00/ +0 M0/&',+& W5,.#+(H7 O02&%&'I +"& ).,$$#4#),+#0* /0&$ *0+

/#$+#*35#$" 6&+2&&* 3',/& E,YE67 !"#$ 1,--#*3 #$ 6,$&/ 0* /,+, -'0%#/&/ 6( +"& *,+#0*,. 8'0%#$#0*,.

@3'#)5.+5',. =,*/ <.,$$#4#),+#0* X',/#*3 $($+&1 F@=<H7 :+ ,$$&$$&$ +"& -0+&*+#,. 40' .,*/ +0 $5--0'+

/#44&'&*+ ,3'#)5.+5',. 5$&$I $5)" ,$ 3'02#*3 )'0-$ 40' 400/ 65+ /0&$ *0+ )0*$#/&' +"& .,*/Z$ )5''&*+ 5$&

,*/ #*+&*$#+( 04 5$&7

@+ ,--&,.I +"& :*$-&)+0' *0+&/ +",+ *0 &%#/&*)& ",/ 6&&* $561#++&/ +0 ).,'#4( +"& &L,)+ ).,$$ 04 +"& .,*/I

*0+#*3 +",+ ;,+5',. >*3.,*/ /,+, /#/ *0+ ).,'#4( 2"&+"&' +"& ,--&,. $#+& 205./ 6& ).,$$#4#&/ ,$ 3',/& E,I

0' +"& .02&' W5,.#+( E67 !,T#*3 +"& -'&),5+#0*,'( ,--'0,)"I #* +"& ,6$&*)& 04 ).,'#+( 0* +"& $-&)#4#)

3',/#*3I +"&( )0*).5/&/ +"& .,*/ +0 6& E, F+"& 20'$+ ),$& $)&*,'#0H ,*/ 3,%& +"& -&'1,*&*+ .0$$ 04 +"&

.,*/ +0 ,3'#)5.+5'& $#3*#4#),*+ 2&#3"+ #* +"& -.,**#*3 6,.,*)&7

Page 80



 !"#$%%&'("&)"(*+#"',#$-.+((,/"0%%1+20(+&!3"0"/,(0+1,/"456'+2$1($'01"70!/"810##+)+20(+&!"9,%&'(4"*0#"!&:

-,,!"%',%0',/"(*0("2&!21$/,#"(*0(3"&:+!6"(&"(*,"#+(,4#"#(&!+!,##"0!/"/'&$6*(3"(*+#"#+(,"20!!&("-,

210##+)+,/"0!;"*+6*,'"(*0!"210##"<-"10!/=">*+#"+#"#*&'("&)"(*,"',?$+',.,!(#"&)"@&1+2;"AB"CDE"&)"(*,"57@

:*+2*"',?$+',#"/,F,1&%.,!("&!"210##"<0"10!/"0!/"*+6*,'"G+!21$/+!6"210##,#"E"0!/"HI3"(&"-,"#$%%&'(,/"-;

0"#$#(0+!0-+1+(;"0!/"&%(+&!#"0%%'0+#01="J$'(*,'.&',3"+("+#"0'6$,/"(*0("(*,"1&##"&)"K=LM"*,2(0',#"&)"6'0N+!6

%0#($',3":*+2*"+#"(&&"#.011"(&"-,"2&!#+/,',/"4-,#("0!/".&#("F,'#0(+1,4"10!/3":+11"!&("0)),2("(*,")0'.+!6

-$#+!,##4"1&!6,'"(,'."F+0-+1+(;=">*,"8&$!2+1"*0#"!&(",F+/,!2,"0F0+10-1,"(&"2&$!(,'"(*+#=

57@"%&1+2;"AB"CDE"#(0(,#"$!1,##"10!/"+#"011&20(,/3"(*,!"(*,"$#,"&)"6'0/,/"06'+2$1($'01"10!/"0-&F,"1,F,1

<-")&'"0!;")&'."&)"/,F,1&%.,!("!&("0##&2+0(,/":+(*"06'+2$1($',3"*&'(+2$1($',"&'")&',#(';":+11"!&("-,

%,'.+((,/"$!1,##"(*,"!,,/")&'"(*,"/,F,1&%.,!("&$(:,+6*#"(*,"!,,/"(&"%'&(,2("#$2*"10!/"+!"(*,"1&!6"(,'.=

 !"(*+#"+!#(0!2,"(*,"!,:",F+/,!2,"#$-.+((,/"+#"2&!#+/,',/"#0(+#)02(&';"(&"/,.&!#('0(,"(*0("(*,"10!/"/&,#

!&(")011"(&"-,"2&!#+/,',/"$!/,'"(*+#"%&1+2;"0!/3"0#"#$2*3"(*,',"+#"!&"',?$+',.,!(")&'"(*,"0%%1+20(+&!"(&

.,,("(*,"#%,2+)+2"%&1+2;"(,#(=

B!"(*,"-0#+#"&)"(*,"',F+#,/"+!)&'.0(+&!"!&:"%'&F+/,/3"(*0(":0#"!&("0F0+10-1,"0("(*,"(+.,"&)"(*,"%',F+&$#

0%%,013"+("+#"2&!#+/,',/"(*0("0"',)$#01"',0#&!"',10(+!6"(&"(*,"1&##"&)"ODP57"2&$1/"!&"1&!6,'"-,"#$#(0+!,/=

P AQ57RCSA TU" D@58>

@&1+2;"C"CDE"#,(#"&$("E<"/,#+6!"0#%,2(#"&)":*+2*"0%%1+20(+&!#"#*&$1/"-,"0##,##,/"060+!#(=">*,#,

+!21$/,V"8*0'02(,'3"5%%,0'0!2,3" .%02(3">',,#3"70;&$(3"C,!#+(;"0!/"A201,="@&1+2;"C"A@E"',?$+',#

/,F,1&%.,!("(&".0W,"0!",)),2(+F,"$#,"&)"(*,"10!/=

@&1+2;"75U"CDE"#('+F,#"(&"',#%,2("(*,"%0'(+2$10'"2*0'02(,'+#(+2#"0!/"!0($'01"),0($',#"&)"(*,"10!/#20%,=

@&1+2;"X@"E<"&)"(*,"Y01-,'(&!"U,+6*-&$'*&&/"@10!"',?$+',#"(*0("!,:"/,F,1&%.,!(".$#("2&!('+-$(,"(&

1&201"2*0'02(,'"-;"2',0(+!6"0"#,!#,"&)"%102,"0%%'&%'+0(,"(&"+(#"1&20(+&!=

@0'0"E<Z"&)"(*,"U@@J"',?$+',#"/,F,1&%.,!("(&"-,"F+#$011;"0(('02(+F,"0#"0"',#$1("&)"6&&/"0'2*+(,2($',3

10;&$(3"-,"#;.%0(*,(+2"(&"1&201"2*0'02(,'"0!/"*+#(&';3"+!21$/+!6"(*,"#$''&$!/+!6"-$+1(",!F+'&!.,!("0!/

10!/#20%,"#,((+!6"0!/".0+!(0+!"0"#('&!6"#,!#,"&)"%102,=

@0'("["&)"(*,"5'$!"C,#+6!"T$+/,"G5CTI"',?$+',#"/,F,1&%.,!("(&"#,!#+(+F,1;")+("+!(&"+(#"#,((+!6"+!"&'/,'"(&

',#%,2("(*,"2*0'02(,'"&)"(*,"C+#('+2(4#"2&$!(';#+/,"0',0#=

>*,"#+(,"+#"1&20(,/"+..,/+0(,1;"(&"(*,",0#("&)"0"6'&$%"&)"0%%'&\="EZ"/:,11+!6#"&)"(;%+201"#%&'0/+2"'+--&!

/,F,1&%.,!(3"#+($0(,/"-02W")'&."(*,"*+6*:0;="S0#(,'60(,"70!,"+#"0"'$'01"!0''&:"10!,"G:+(*&$(

%0F,.,!(#I":+(*"6'0##"F,'6,#"1+!,/"-;"*,/6,'&:=" ..,/+0(,1;"(&"(*,"!&'(*"&)"(*,"#+(,"+#"&%,!"6'0##10!/3

$#,/")&'"6'0N+!63"(&"(*,"#&$(*"0',"2&..,'2+01"!$'#,'+,#="X,0/+!6")'&.":,#("(&",0#("(*,"2*0'02(,'"&)"(*,

10!,"01(,'#")'&."&!,"&)"0".&',")&'.01"%0((,'!"&)"#,.+]'$'01"/,F,1&%.,!("(&"(*0("&)"0"'$'01"#,((+!6="J'&.

S0#(,'60(,"70!,3"1&&W+!6"!&'(*3"F+,:#"&)"(*,"&%,!3"$!/,F,1&%,/"!0($',"&)"(*,"10!/"20!"-,"61+.%#,/

(*'&$6*"&%,!+!6#"+!"(*,"*,/6,'&:="S?$011;"(*,',"0',"%&+!(#"&!"Y,#("Y01-,'(&!"70!,":*,',"F+,:#

(&:0'/#"(*,"0%%1+20(+&!"#+(,"20!"-,"02*+,F,/=">*+#"2*0'02(,'"2&!('+-$(,#"(&"(*,"0(('02(+F,"#,((+!6"0!/"&%,!

'$'01"2*0'02(,'"&)"(*,"1&201"0',0="C,#%+(,"(*,"/,F,1&%.,!("*0F+!6"0!"+.%02("+!"(*+#"',60'/#3"(*,

%'&%,'(+,#"20!!&("-,"2&!#+/,',/"0#"&$("&)"2*0'02(,'3",#%,2+011;"0#"(*,"/,F,1&%.,!("+#"1&20(,/"+!"-,(:,,!

&(*,'"/:,11+!6#")'&!(+!6"(*,"10!,=

J$'(*,'.&',3"(*,",\+#(+!6"*,/6,'&:"#+($0(,/"&!"(*,"#&$(*,'!"-&$!/0';"&)"(*,"#+(,"%'&F+/,#"#&.,

#2',,!+!63"(*,',":+11"#(+11"-,"61+.%#,#"&)"(*,"%'&%&#,/"/:,11+!6#"0F0+10-1,")'&."(*,"*+6*:0;=">*,"0((02*,/

60'06,#"G(*,")&':0'/".&#("%0'("&)"(*,"/,F,1&%.,!(I":+11"-,"1&20(,/"0%%'&\="HM."0:0;")'&."(*,",/6,"&)

(*,"*+6*:0;=" ("+#"!&(,/"(*0("(*,"!,0',#("!,+6*-&$'#"!&#="E"0!/"H"U$'#,';"8&((06,#3":*+2*"1+,

+..,/+0(,1;"(&"(*,"0%%1+20(+&!"#+(,4#":,#(,'!"-&$!/0';"0',"#+($0(,/"!,0','"(&"(*,"*+6*:0;#",/6,"0(

Page 81



 !!"#$%&'()&* +,%&-.&./+0&102&34255678.&4655&7#1&0 ")&102&2.1 *56.023&! 112"7&#9&32:25#!)271%

; "1&;&#9&102&-<=&"2>/6"2.&679655&32:25#!)271&1#&?@2.!#73&!#.616:25A&1#&102&+0 " +12"B& !!2 " 7+2& 73

5 A#/1&#9&./""#/73678&*/653678.?& 73&"2>/6"2.&724&32:25#!)271&1#&?"25 12&1#&102&2$6.1678&"0A10)&#9

*/653678.& 73&:#63.%?%&C02&.+ 52& 73&*/5,&#9&102&!"#!#.23&34255678.&6.&7#1&36..6)65 "&1#&10#.2&!"#!2"162.&1#

102&6))236 12&42.1%&D#.%&'& 73&E&D/".2"A&F#11 82.& "2& &! 6"&#9&.2)6&321 +023&34255678.B&1026"&*/5,& 73

026801&) 1+02.&102&!"#!#.23&34255678.%&&&G7&12").&#9& !!2 " 7+2&102&0680H>/ 561A&32.687&"2.!#73.&4255&1#

102&"/" 5&.211678%

G7&102&G7.!2+1#"?.&"2!#"1&102A&+#7+5/323&10 1&102&!"#!#. 5.&4#/53&*2&#9& &.1A52B&.6I2& 73&9#")

+#))27./" 12&1#&102&#102"&!"#!2"162.& 5#78&J .12"8 12&K 72& 73&4#/53B&102"29#"2B& !!2 "&:6./ 55A&67

,22!678&4610&2$6.1678&32:25#!)271%&C02&.21&* +,&!#.616#7&#9&102&32:25#!)271& 73&"21 6723& 73&270 7+23

8"227&*/992"&4#/53& 5.#&) 671 67&102&8"227&:2"3 71&"/" 5&.211678&#9&102&32:25#!)271%&C02&G7.!2+1#"& 5.#

+#))27123&10 1B&32.!612&102&5#..&#9&102&:#63&*214227&2$6.1678&32:25#!)271B&86:27&102&.! +6#/.&7 1/"2&#9

32:25#!)271&61&4#/53&67128" 12& ++2!1 *5A%

G7&12").&#9& !!2 " 7+2& 73&+0 " +12"&102&!"#!#.23&34255678.&4#/53&672:61 *5A&0 :2&.#)2&6)! +1&#7&102

"25 16:25A&#!27&"/" 5&+0 " +12"&#9&102& "2 B&0#42:2"B&1026"& !!2 " 7+2B&*/5,B&.+ 52& 73&5 A#/1& "2

"2952+16:2&#9&#102"&72 "*A&2$6.1678&32:25#!)271%&-7A&0 ")& "6.678&4#/53&7#1&*2&.687696+ 71&27#/80&1#

+#7956+1&4610&!#56+A&"2>/6"2)271.%&C02&32:25#!)271& ++#"3.&4610&!#56+62.&=&L;'B&=&=M'& 73&K-D&=M'&#9

102&-"/7&K#+ 5&;5 7B&N;&'O&#9&102&PD;B&; "1&Q& 73&;&#9&102&-"/7&=2.687&</632B& 73&"252: 71

! " 8" !0.&#9&102&D;;R%

@JLG=JDCG-K&-MJDGCS

-K;&!#56+A&=&=M'&"2>/6"2.&102"2&*2&)676) 5&6)! +1&1#&/.2".& 73&#++/!62".&#9&72 "*A&!"#!2"1A& 73&5 73%

-K;&!#56+A&QJ&L;'&"2>/6"2.&32:25#!)271&+#71"6*/12&!#.616:25A&1#&102&>/ 561A&#9&102&27:6"#7)271& 73

27./"2&32:25#!)271&3#2.&7#1&0 :2& &.687696+ 715A&728 16:2&6)! +1&#7&"2.632716 5& )2761A%&; "1&N&#9&102

-"/7&=2.687&</632&.21.&#/1&8/63 7+2&#7&8 "327&32!10.& 73&6712"9 +2&36.1 7+2.&*214227&0#/.2.%

C02&14#&34255678.&4655&.61&+271" 55A&461067&1026"&"2.!2+16:2&!5#1.&4610& 7& ++2!1 *52&)676)/)&#9&'T%U)&1#

102&42.12"7&*#/73 "A& 73&'O%U)&1#&102&2 .12"7&*#/73 "A&#9&.612B&4610&"2 "&8 "327.&2$+223678&; "1&N&#9

102&-=<&"2>/6"2)271.&V'E)W& 73&9"#71678& &!/*56+&"# 3%&-.&./+0&7#&#:2"*2 "678&6)! +1.&4655&#++/"&1#

72680*#/"678&!"#!2"162.%

C02"2& "2&7#&.632&9 +678&96".1&95##"&4673#4.&!"#!#.23&102"2*A&!"2:271678& 7A&#:2"5##,678&9"#)&102.2

252: 16#7.%&-55&#102"&#!27678.&9 +2&1#4 "3.&102&9"#71B&#:2"5##,678&!/*56+&#"&.0 "23& "2 .B&#"&9 +2&1#4 "3.

102&!"6: 12&"2 "& )2761A&.! +2%

C02&!"#!#. 5B&102"2*AB& ++#"3.&4610&!#56+62.&QJ&L;'& 73&=&=M'&#9&102&-K;%

QX-KGCS&YR&-FFYMMY=-CGYD

;#56+A&=&=ME&#9&102&-"/7&K#+ 5&;5 7&"2>/6"2.&6712"7 5&.! +2.&1#&*2& 7& !!"#!"6 12&.6I2&1#&)221&102

"2>/6"2)271.&#9& 55&#++/! 71.& 73&1026"&+0 78678&7223.%&D 16#7 55A&=2.+"6*23&L! +2&L1 73 "3.&!"#:632

102&+/""271&8/63 7+2%&-&T&*23HZ&!2".#7&34255678&.0#/53&!"#:632& &)676)/)&#9&'ET.>)&#:2"&14#&95##".%

C02&6712"7 5&.! +2.&9#"&102&!"#!#.23&34255678.&4#/53&.687696+ 715A&2$+223&102&+/""271&.1 73 "3.%& 1

 !!"#$%&EZ[.>)%&C02"29#"2B&102&32:25#!)271& ++#"3.&4610&;#56+A&=&=ME&#9&102&-"/7&K#+ 5&;5 7%

G7&2$+223678&102&"2>/6"23&.! +2&.1 73 "3.B&102&!"#!#.23&34255678.& ++#"3&4610&;#56+A&=&=ME&#9&102

-K;%

C@-RRGF&\&@Y-=&L-RJCS

-K;&!#56+A&C&L;'&.22,.&1#&27./"2&32:25#!)271&!"#:632.&. 92& ++2..&#7&1#&102&06804 A&7214#",]

Page 82



 !"#$%&'#()*#!*+%,+-./*%01$!2(0("#)*3-+($(*.11$!1$%.#(4*."5*1$!0!#()*)')#.%".&6(*#$.")1!$#7*8 +(0()

)+!'65*.* $(.#(*).9(*."5*)( '$(*6./!'#)*9!$*#$.99% :* / 6%)#)*."5*1(5()#$%.")*."5*1$!2%5(*.11$!1$%.#(

6(2(6)*!9*1.$;%",7

<  !$5%",*#!*#+(*$(='%$(0("#*!9*>.$;%",*8#."5.$5)*38>?*@."'.$/*ABAB4:*A*1.$;%",*)1. ()*.$(*$(='%$(5

9!$*C*&(5*+!')()*%"*>.$;%",*D(+.2%!'$*E!"(*F7

G+(*16.")*%"5% .#(*H*1.$;%",*)1. ()*3#-!*-%#+%"*#+(*,.$.,(4*1($*5-(66%",*-+% +*-!'65*).#%)9/*#+(

$(='%$(0("#*!9*<?I*>.$;%",*8#."5.$5)7*F*2%)%#!$*)1. (*%)*.6)!*%"5% .#(5:*."5*.6#+!',+*"!#*"( ()).$/

-%#+*.*) +(0(*!9*#+%)*)%J(*-%66*&(*.*')(9'6*$()!'$ (*,%2("*#+(*".#'$(*!9*K.)#($,.#(*L."(7

<)*$()'6#*!9*#+(*M!2($"0("#N)*NO!.5*#!*E($!N*)#$.#(,/*9!$*.#*6(.)#*PBQ*!9*"(-* .$*).6()*#!*&(*'6#$.R6!-

(0%))%!"*&/*ABCB:*(6( #$% *2(+% 6(*3KS4* +.$,%",*1!%"#)*)+!'65*&(*1$!2%5(5*9!$*.66*"(-*+!0()7*<)*KS

 +.$,%",*1!%"#)*+.2(*"!#*&(("*%"5% .#(5*!"*16.":*5(#.%6)*!9*#+()(* ."*&(*)( '$(5*&/* !"5%#%!"7

G+(*<$'"*8>?*$(='%$()* / 6(*)#!$.,(*#!* .#($*9!$*A* / 6()*1($*5-(66%",7*<016(*)1. (*9!$*#+(*)#!$.,(*!9

&% / 6()* ."*&(*1$!2%5(5*-%#+%"*(. +*,.$.,(7

T8II*U%,+-./)*5!()*"!#* !")%5($*#+%)*1$!1!).6*-!'65*+.2(*."*'".  (1#.&6(*%01. #*!"*+%,+-./*).9(#/

!$*$()'6#*%"*N)(2($(N* '0'6.#%2(*%01. #)*!"*#+(*!1($.#%!"*!9*#+(*+%,+-./*"(#-!$;7*8'&V( #*#!* !"5%#%!")*#!

)( '$(*2(+% '6.$*W* / 6(*1.$;%",*."5*KS*1!%"#):*#+(*1$!1!).6*-!'65*.  !$5*-%#+*<L>*1!6% %()*G*8>F:*G

?XF:*#+(*<?I*>.$;%",*8#."5.$5)*8>?*3ABAB4*."5*#+(*Y>>Z7

GOKK8

>!6% /*KYS*?XH*!9*#+(*<L>*."5*SKC*!9*#+(*T.6&($#!"*Y(%,+&!'$+!!5*>6."*)#.#()*#+.#*5(2(6!10("#*-%66

&(*1($0%##(5*-+($(*%#* ."*&(*5(0!")#$.#(5*#+.#*#$(()*."5*+(5,($!-)* !"#$%&'#%",*#!*6! .6*.0("%#/*-%66

"!#*&(*5.0.,(5*!$*5()#$!/(5*."5*#+.#*5(2(6!10("#*#+.#*5.0.,()*!$*$()'6#)*%"*#+(*6!))*!9*." %("#*#$(()[

#$(()*!9*.$&!$% '6#'$.6*."5*.0("%#/*2.6'(*!$*6!))*!9*+(5,($!-)*!$*)%,"%9% ."#*,$!'"5* !2($*."5*+.&%#.#*-%66

&(*$()%)#(57

<*NG$((*>$!#( #%!"*."5*O(#("#%!"*>6."N*."5*NG$((*8 +(5'6(N*+.2(*&(("*1$!2%5(5*%"*)'11!$#*!9*#+(

.116% .#%!"7*G+()(*5(#.%6*#+.#*"!*#$(()*.$(*#!*&(*$(0!2(5*9$!0*)%#(:*."5*(\%)#%",*&!'"5.$/*#$(()*)+.66*&(

1$!#( #(5*5'$%",*-!$;)7*<0("5(5*16.")*+.2(*.6)!*&(("*$( (%2(5*0!2%",*#+(*.  ())*#$. ;*9$!0

%"#($)( #%",*#+$!',+*#+(*$!!#*1$!#( #%!"*.$(.)*!9*#+(*#$(()*9!'"5*!"*#+(*-()#($"*&!'"5.$/7*G+%)*-%66*.66!-

(\%)#%",*#$((* !2($.,(*#!*&(*9'66/*1$!#( #(5*9$!0*#+(*5(2(6!10("#*."5*1$!2%5(*)1. (*9!$*"(-*#$(([+(5,(

16."#%",*#!*1$! ((5*%"*6%"(*-%#+*1!6% %()*KYS*?XH*!9*#+(*<L>*."5*SKC*!9*#+(*TY?>7

D]̂?]SKO8]G_*<Y?*KÎ L̂ M_

<L>*1!6% /*KYS*?XP*$(='%$()*#+.#*5(2(6!10("#*) +(0()*)+.66*)((;*#!*. +%(2(*.*"(#*,.%"*%"*&%!5%2($)%#/

."5*1$!#( #*+.&%#.#)*!"*)%#(7

>!6% /*KYS*?XF* !"#$!6)*5(2(6!10("#*-%#+%"*)%#()*!9*&%!5%2($)%#/*!$*,(!6!,% .6*%01!$#." (7*G+(*)%#(*%)

%")%5(*#+(*FA;0*;%6!0(#$(*&'99($*J!"(*.)*)+!-"*%"*#+(*8'))(\*D.#*8<I*>6.""%",*."5*L."5) .1(*) .6(

K"+." (0("#*>$!#! !67*<Y>*1!6% /*KUFA*)#.#()*1$!1!).6)*9!$*#+(*5(2(6!10("#*!9*,$(("9%(65*)%#()*%"*#+(

>.$%)+*0')#*(2.6'.#(*-+(#+($*#+($(*%)*.*1!#("#%.6*9!$*#+(*6!))*!9*)'%#.&6(*9!$.,%",*+.&%#.#*."5*[*!$*#+(

)(2($." (*!9* !00'#%",*96%,+#*6%"():*)' +*.)*%"*#+(*9!$0*!9*0.#'$(*#$((6%"():*+(5,($!-):*."5

-.#($ !'$)()7

>!6% /*SKFB*!9*#+(*TY>*)((;)*#!*(")'$(*.*&%!5%2($)%#/*"(#*,.%"*%)*0.5(*."5*)((;)*#!*1$()($2(*9(.#'$()

3+(5,($!-[#$(()*(# 4*')(5*&/*&.#)*-%#+%"*#+(*8%",6(#!"*."5*I! ;%",*G'""(6)*81( %.6*<$(.*!9

I!")($2.#%!"*38<I47

Page 83



 !"#$%%&'($)'*+#',#$((*-%$+'".#/0#$+#1(*&*2'($&#3,,",,-"+)#4!"5"#)!"#*%%*5)6+')'",#7*5#/'*.'8"5,')0

"+!$+("-"+)#!$8"#/""+#,622",)".#$+.#.")$'&,#*7#/'*.'8"5,')0#+")#2$'+#!$8"#/""+#%5*8'.".9

 !"#(*6+('&:,#1(*&*2',)#',#,$)',7'".#)!$)#,677'('"+)#,658"0#"77*5)#!$,#/""+#$%%&'".#$+.#$%%5*%5'$)"

-')'2$)'*+#-"$,65",#!$8"#/""+#5"(*--"+.".#'+#5"&$)'*+#)*#;6$&'70'+2#7"$)65",#*7#)!"#<3=9#>+#)"5-,#*7

/$),#)!"5"#$5"#+*#,)56()65",#%5","+)#*+#,')"#,6')$/&"#7*5#5**,)'+2?#&'+"$5#7"$)65",#,6(!#$,#!".2"5*4#',

/"'+2#5")$'+".9# !"#,')"#!$,#$#&*4#%*)"+)'$&#7*5#/$),#4')!#)!"#/*6+.$50#!$8'+2#&*4@-*."5$)"#%*)"+)'$&9#3,

',#5";6'5".#/0#)!"#=*+,"58$)'*+#*7#A$/')$),#$+.#<%"('",#B"26&$)'*+,#CDEF#G$,#$-"+.".H?#)!"#(*6+('&#!$,

%5"%$5".#$+#3%%5*%5'$)"#3,,",,-"+)#G33H#4!'(!#(*+(&6.",#)!"5"#4*6&.#+*)#/"#$+0#$.8"5,"#"77"(),#*+

)!"#<3=#.6"#)*#%5*8','*+#*7#,6')$/&"#$8*'.$+("#$+.#-')'2$)'*+#-"$,65",9

 !"5"7*5"?#,6/I"()#)*#$#(*+.')'*+#,"(65'+2#-')'2$)'*+#-"$,65",#,")#*6)#'+#)!"#1(*&*2'($&#>-%$()

3,,",,-"+)?#)!"#%5*%*,".#."8"&*%-"+)#$((*5.,#4')!#3JK#%*&'(0#1LM#NOP9

1L1BQR#3LN#=J>O3 1#=A3LQ1

3JK#%*&'(0#1==#<KC#5";6'5",#)!$)#$&&#+"4#5",'."+)'$&#$+.#(*--"5('$&#."8"&*%-"+)#/"#"+"520#"77'('"+)

$+.#'+(*5%*5$)"#."("+)5$&',".?#5"+"4$/&"#$+.#&*4#($5/*+#"+"520#,6%%&0#,0,)"-,9#1==#<KE#5";6'5",

)!$)#+"4#."8"&*%-"+)#/"#.",'2+".#)*#$.$%)#)*#'-%$(),#$5','+2#75*-#(&'-$)"#(!$+2"9

KM#%$+"&,#$5"#%5*%*,".#*+#)!"#.4"&&'+2,9# !","?#$&*+2#4')!#*)!"5#-"$,65",#($+#/"#,"(65".#8'$

%&$++'+2#(*+.')'*+,9

NB3>L3Q1

K*&'(0#S#<KE#,""T,#)*#"+(*65$2"#4$)"5#"77'('"+(0#-"$,65",9#K5*%"5)'",#,!*6&.#."-*+,)5$)"#)!"#-*,)

5'2*5*6,#*7#"77'('"+(0#-"$,65",#";6$&#)*#)!*,"#5";6'5".#6+."5#K$5)#Q#*7#)!"#U6'&.'+2#B"26&$)'*+,9

K*&'(0#S#NOV#,)$)",#)!$)#%5*%*,$&,#,!*6&.#'+(*5%*5$)"#$#5$+2"#*7#<6,)$'+$/&"#W5/$+#N5$'+$2"#<0,)"-,

'+)*#%5*%*,$&,#$)#$+#"$5&0#,)$2"#'+#)!"#.",'2+#%5*(",,9#K5*%*,$&#4'&&#/"#,6%%*5)".#,!*6&.#)!"0#(*+,'."5

<657$("#S$)"5#N5$'+$2"#<0,)"-,?#4!'(!#5".6(",#)!"#(5"$)'*+#$+.#7&*4#*7#,657$("#4$)"5#.5$'+$2"#$+.

5".6(",#7&**.#5',T#4!'&,)#'+(5"$,'+2#/'*.'8"5,')09

 !"#$%%&'($)'*+#',#4')!'+#)!"#J'.,"0# 5"$)-"+)#=$)(!-"+)?#)!"5"7*5"#,657$("#4$)"5#.5$'+$2"#.",'2+

,!*6&.#/"#($5"76&&0#(*+,'."5".9#>+7'&)5$)'*+#-6,)#/"#76&&0#'+8",)'2$)".?#,6,)$'+$/&"#65/$+#.5$'+$2"#7"$)65",

!$8"#/""+#'+(&6.".#'+#)!"#'+')'$&#.5$'+$2"#.",'2+9

356+#N',)5'()#=*6+('&#N5$'+$2"#1+2'+""5,#4"5"#(*+,6&)".#/6)#!$8"#+*)#0")#(*--"+)".#*+#)!',

$%%&'($)'*+9#A*4"8"5#)!"0#5$',".#+*#*/I"()'*+#)*#$%%&'($)'*+#S3@EDE@CC@KJ#7*5#)!"#,$-"#."8"&*%-"+)9

3,%"(),#*7#+*)"#4')!'+#)!',#$%%&'($)'*+#5";6'5"#765)!"5#25*6+.#4$)"5#-*+')*5'+2#G4'+)"5H#)*#/"#6+."5)$T"+?

$#J$+.#N5$'+$2"#=*+,"+)#4'&&#/"#5";6'5".#)*#.'8"5)#)!"#(6&8"5)?#5**)#/$55'"5,#4'&&#/"#5";6'5".#/")4""+

,657$("#4$)"5#.5$'+$2"#7"$)65",#$+.#)5"",#%5*%*,".?#$+.#765)!"5#.",'2+#5"7'+"-"+)#',#5";6'5".#7*5

(*++"()'*+,#)*#/*6+.$50#4$)"5(*65,",9#<6/I"()#)*#(*+.')'*+#)!"#%5*%*,$&#$((*5.,#4')!#%*&'('",#S#<KE

$+.#S#NOV#*7#)!"#3JK9

<WOO3BR

K$5$25$%!#EE.G''H#*7#)!"#LKKX?#5";6'5",#)!$)#4!"5"#%*&'('",#5"&$)'+2#)*#5",'."+)'$&#."8"&*%-"+)#$5"#*6)#*7

.$)"#G'9"9#'+#)!',#'+,)$+("#)!',#$%%&'",#)*#%*&'(0#=#<KE#*7#)!"#3JK#$+.#AKE#*7#)!"#SLKH#)!"+#$%%&'($)'*+,

,!*6&.#/"#25$+)".#%"5-',,'*+#6+&",,#)!"#'-%$(),#*7#.*'+2#,*#."-*+,)5$/&0#*6)4"'2!#)!"#/"+"7'),?#4!"+

$,,",,".#$2$'+,)#)!"#X5$-"4*5T#$,#$#4!*&"9#K$5$#EY#,)$)",#)!$)#)!"#$.8"5,"#'-%$(),#*7#$&&*4'+2

!*6,'+2#)!$)#(*+7&'(),#4')!#)!"#SLK#$5"#&'T"&0#)*#,'2+'7'($+)&0#$+.#."-*+,)5$/&0#*6)4"'2!#)!"#/"+"7'),?

%5*8'.".#)!"#+"'2!/*65!**.#%&$+#(*+)$'+,#%*&'('",#$+.#$&&*($)'*+,#)*#-"")#'),#'."+)'7'".#!*6,'+2

5";6'5"-"+),9

Page 84



 

!"# $#%#&'() *& ("# )+"#,# -.# ("-( ("# /0#11'%2) 0*31/ ,-4# - ,*/#)( -//'('*% (* ("# "*3)'%2 )(*+4 '%

("# 5')(.'+( -%/ ("-( ("#.# 0*31/ $# - )1'2"( #+*%*,'+ $#%#&'( (* /3# (* ("# 6*$) +.#-(#/7 %*('%2 ("-( ("#

)'(# +*31/ 8.*9'/# (0* %#0 /0#11'%2) .#1-('9#1: ;3'+41:7 ("') $#'%2 - ),-11#. )'(#< !"# #+*%*,'+ $#%#&'()

-.')'%2 /3.'%2 ("# +*%)(.3+('*% *& ("# /#9#1*8,#%( 0*31/ $# (#,8*.-.: -%/ +-..: ,'%',-1 0#'2"(<

=9#.-117 2'9#% ("# )#9#.# 1-+4 *& - >?@AB7 ("# C%)8#+(*.D) +*%+13)'*%) '% .#)8#+( *& ("# 9#.: .#+#%(

-88#-1 )+"#,# -.# -++#8(#/7 0"'+" ') ("-( ("# $#%#&'() -.')'%2 &.*, /#9#1*8,#%( 0*31/ -((.-+( ,*/#.-(#

0#'2"('%27 $-)#/ *% ("# )'E# *& ("# F*3%+'1D) "*3)'%2 1-%/ )3881: /#&'+'( -%/ ("# %3,$#. *& "*3)#)

8.*8*)#/<

!"#.# "-) $##% - ,-(#.'-1 +"-%2# '% +'.+3,)(-%+#) )'%+# ("# -88#-1 /#+')'*%7 '% ("-( ("# 2*9#.%,#%(

83$1')"#/ - %#0 G-('*%-1 H1-%%'%2 H*1'+: I.-,#0*.4 '% 5#+#,$#. JKJL '% 0"'+" ("# .#9')#/ 0*./'%2 *&

8-.-2.-8" MN %*0 )(.#%2("#%) ("# )(-(3) *& %#'2"$*3."**/ 81-%)7 0"#.# ("#)# -11*+-(# 1-%/ &*. "*3)'%2

-%/ 0#.# ,-/# 1#)) ("-% > :#-.) -2*< !"# OGH ,##() ("#)# (#)() -%/ ("# 8.*9')'*%) *& 8-.-2.-8" MN

)"*31/ $# 2'9#% -% -88.*8.'-(# 1#9#1 *& 0#'2"( '% /#(#.,'%'%2 ("') -881'+-('*% -%/ )-:) ("-( '% )'(3-('*%)

0"#.# ("# 8.#)3,8('*% P-( 8-.-2.-8" MM/Q -881'#) (* -881'+-('*%) '%9*19'%2 ("# 8.*9')'*% *& "*3)'%27 ("#

-/9#.)# ',8-+( *& -11*0'%2 /#9#1*8,#%( ("-( +*%&1'+() 0'(" ("# %#'2"$*3."**/ 81-% ') 1'4#1: (*

)'2%'&'+-%(1: -%/ /#,*%)(.-$1: *3(0#'2" ("# $#%#&'()<

C% ("# *9#.-11 81-%%'%2 $-1-%+#7 *&&'+#.) "-9# 2'9#% /3# 0#'2"( (* ("# +*%&1'+( 0'(" $*(" ("# RAH -%/ ("#

OGH< @*0#9#.7 '% ("') 8-.('+31-. '%)(-%+# ("# 9#.: .#+#%( -88#-1 /#+')'*% P=+(*$#. JKJLQ ') -1)* -

,-(#.'-1 81-%%'%2 +*%)'/#.-('*% (* 0"'+" )'2%'&'+-%( 0#'2"( )"*31/ $# -881'#/< !"# -88#-1 8.*8*)-1) 0#.#

'/#%('+-1 (* ("# /#9#1*8,#%( ("# )3$6#+( *& ("') +3..#%( 81-%%'%2 -881'+-('*% -%/ ("# C%)8#+(*. &*3%/ ("#

8.*8*)-1 -++#8(-$1# '% .#1-('*% (* '() ',8-+( *% ("# +"-.-+(#. -%/ -88#-.-%+# *& ("# -.#-7 -%/ /'/ %*(

'/#%('&: -%: "-., .#1-('%2 (* 1'9'%2 +*%/'('*%)7 /#)'2%7 -++*,,*/-('*% )(-%/-./)7 8-.4'%27 "'2"0-:

)-&#(:7 (.##)7 $'*/'9#.)'(:7 -%/ #%#.2: #&&'+'#%+:< !"# *%1: .#-)*% ("# C%)8#+(*. &*3%/ &*. /'),'))'%2 ("#

8.#9'*3) -88#-1 0-) *% ("# -))3,8('*% ("-( ("# /#9#1*8,#%( 0*31/ .#)31( '% ("# 1*)) *& STURA PF1-))

L-Q7 '% +*%&1'+( 0'(" RAH H*1'+: B= 5TM< V*$3)( #9'/#%+# "-) )'%+# $##% )3$,'((#/ 0'(" ("') -881'+-('*%

(* )-(')&-+(*.'1: /#,*%)(.-(# ("-( ("# 1-%/ '% ;3#)('*% )"*31/7 '% .#-1'(:7 $# 2.-/#/ -) F1-)) L$7 0"'+"

&-11) *3()'/# *& ("# /#&'%'('*% *& S#)( -%/ T*)( U#.)-('1# R2.'+31(3.-1 A-%/< !"') 8.#9'*3) .#-)*% &*.

.#&3)-1 &-11) -0-:<

!-4'%2 -11 &-+(*.) '%(* -++*3%(7 -%/ %*(0'(")(-%/'%2 ("-( ("# 8.*8*)-1) /* %*( &311: +*,81: 0'(" ("#

8.*9')'*%) *& ("# /#9#1*8,#%( 81-% '( ') +*%+13/#/ ("-( ("#.# -.# ,-(#.'-1 +*%)'/#.-('*%) *& )3+" 0#'2"( W

#)8#+'-11: ("# H1-%%'%2 C%)8#+(*.D) +*%+13)'*%) '% .#)8#+( *& -% '/#%('+-1 )+"#,# &*. ("# .#/#9#1*8,#%(

*& ("') )'(# W ("-( 0*31/ 63)('&: 2.-%('%2 81-%%'%2 8#.,'))'*% '% ("') 8-.('+31-. '%)(-%+#< !"# -881'+-('*% ')

("#.#&*.# .#+*,,#%/#/ &*. -88.*9-1 )3$6#+( (* ("# &*11*0'%2 +*%/'('*%) -%/ '%&*.,-('9#)<

!"# F*3%+'1 '% ,-4'%2 - /#+')'*% )"*31/ $# -0-.# *& -%/ (-4# '%(* -++*3%( -%: ',81'+-('*%) ("-( ,-:

-.')# &.*, ("# @3,-% V'2"() R+( MXXY< Z%/#. ("# R+(7 '( ') 3%1-0&31 &*. - 83$1'+ -3("*.'(: )3+" -) R.3%

5')(.'+( F*3%+'1 (* -+( '% - ,-%%#.7 0"'+" ') '%+*,8-('$1# 0'(" ("# [3.*8#-% F*%9#%('*% *% @3,-%

V'2"()<

F*%)'/#.-('*% "-) $##% )8#+'&'+-11: 2'9#% (* R.('+1# Y P.'2"( (* .#)8#+( 8.'9-(# -%/ &-,'1: 1'&#Q -%/ R.('+1# M

*& ("# I'.)( H.*(*+*1 P8.*(#+('*% *& 8.*8#.(:Q< C( ') %*( +*%)'/#.#/ ("-( ("# .#+*,,#%/-('*% &*. -88.*9-1 *&

("# 2.-%( *& 8#.,'))'*% '% ("') +-)# '%(#.&#.#) 3%.#-)*%-$1: 0'(" -%: 1*+-1 .#)'/#%()D .'2"( (* .#)8#+( &*.

("#'. 8.'9-(# -%/ &-,'1: 1'&# -%/ "*,#7 #\+#8( '%)*&-. -) '( ') %#+#))-.: (* 8.*(#+( ("# .'2"() -%/ &.##/*,)

*& *("#.) P'% ("') +-)#7 ("# .'2"() *& ("# -881'+-%(Q< !"# F*3%+'1 ') -1)* 8#.,'((#/ (* +*%(.*1 ("# 3)# *&

8.*8#.(: '% -++*./-%+# 0'(" ("# 2#%#.-1 '%(#.#)( -%/ ("# .#+*,,#%/-('*% &*. -88.*9-1 ') +*%)'/#.#/ (*

$# - 8.*8*.('*%-(# .#)8*%)# (* ("# )3$,'((#/ -881'+-('*% $-)#/ *% ("# +*%)'/#.-('*%) )#( *3( '% ("')

.#8*.(<

Page 85



 

 

 

!"#$ "%&'( #)' *+",-.#.'/ 01# 2343

5% ,//'//.%6 #)./ 7(878/,- #)' 98--8:.%6 .;7,1#/ ),<' =''% .&'%#.9.'& "78% #)8/' 7'87-' :.#) #)'

98--8:.%6 7(8#'1#'& 1),(,1#'(./#.1/ >,6'? &./,=.-.#$? 6'%&'( (',//.6%;'%#? ;,((.,6' ,%& 1.<.- 7,(#%'(/).7?

7('6%,%1$ ,%& ;,#'(%.#$? (,1'? ('-.6.8% 8( ='-.'9? /'@ 8( /'@",- 8(.'%#,#.8%AB

C)' 7(878/,- :8"-& ),<' , %'"#(,- .;7,1# 8% #)' 7(8#'1#'& 1),(,1#'(./#.1/B

C)./ ,77-.1,#.8% ./ D5E E.,=-' #)'('98(' &'<'-87'( 18%#(.="#.8%/ #8:,(&/ .%9(,/#("1#"(' :.-- =' ('+".('&

>&'7'%&'%# 8% ,%$ '@';7#.8%/ 8( ('-.'9 #),# ;,$ ,77-$AB

0FFGHI* DHJ!5C5HJ0EEK

4 C)' &'<'-87;'%# )'('=$ 7'(;.##'& /),-- =' ='6"% ='98(' #)' '@7.(,#.8% 89 L $',(/ 9(8; #)'

&,#' 89 #)./ 7'(;.//.8%B

G',/8%M C8 18;7-$ :.#) N'1#.8% O4 89 #)' C8:% ,%& D8"%#($ F-,%%.%6 01# 4OO3 >,/

,;'%&'&AB

2 C)' &'<'-87;'%# )'('=$ ,77(8<'& /),-- =' 1,((.'& 8"# .% ,118(&,%1' :.#) #)' 98--8:.%6

,77(8<'& 7-,%/M

P E81,#.8% F-,%

P Q-81R F-,% 2324S2LS34 G'< T

P *,/# ,%& U'/# *-'<,#.8%/ 2324S2LS4L

P N8"#) *-'<,#.8% ,%& T(8"%& V-88( F-,% 2324S2LS44

P J8(#) *-'<,#.8%/ ,%& V.(/# V-88( F-,% 2324S2LS42

P N#(''# N1'%' 2324S2LS43 G'< 0

P G889 F-,% 2324S2LS4W

P C('' G'#'%#.8% ,%& F(8#'1#.8% F-,% TN3XY I W

P E,%&/1,7' F(878/,- 2LZ3PCVDP33P33P!GPEP4334 F3W

G',/8%M V8( #)' ,<8.&,%1' 89 &8"=# ,%& .% #)' .%#'('/#/ 89 ,;'%.#$ ,%& #)' '%<.(8%;'%# .%

,118(&,%1' :.#) 0("% E81,- F-,% 78-.1.'/ ! ![4B

L C)' &'<'-87;'%# /),-- =' 18%/#("1#'& :.#) #)' 98--8:.%6 ;,#'(.,-/ ,%& 9.%./)'/M

P T(8"%& 9-88( #8 =' =(.1R:8(R :.#) 9-.%# 7,%'-/B

P V.(/# 9-88( ,%& :)'(' .%&.1,#'& 8% '-'<,#.8%/ #8 =' )8(.\8%#,- -,(1) 1-,&&.%6B

P G889 #8 =' 1-,$ #.-'/B

P U.%&8:/ ,%& &88(/ #8 =' 7,.%#'& #.;='(S6-,\'&B

]%-'// :(.##'% ,6('';'%# ./ 8=#,.%'& 9(8; #)' E81,- F-,%%.%6 0"#)8(.#$ #8 <,($ #)./

,((,%6';'%#B

G',/8%M C8 '%,=-' #)' E81,- F-,%%.%6 0"#)8(.#$ #8 18%#(8- #)' &'<'-87;'%# .% &'#,.- =$

'%&',<8"(.%6 #8 ,1).'<' , =".-&.%6 89 <./",- +",-.#$ .% ,118(&,%1' :.#) 0("% E81,- F-,% 78-.1$

Page 86



 ! "#$

% &'!()*'+,-,'./0'.1-230-,'.!40-,5,-,)1!164++!-47)!8+40)!'-6)2!-64.!92'*!:;<::!6'321!3.-,+!#;<::

6'321!="'.(4>!-'!?2,(4>@!4.(!92'*!:;<::!6'321!3.-,+!#A<::!6'321!=B4-32(4>@!C,-6!.'!C'27!'.

B3.(4>!'2!D4.7/E3F+,0!G'+,(4>1$

H)41'.<!!I'!149)J342(!-6)!4*).,-,)1!'9!-6)!.),J6F'32,.J!82'8)2-,)1!,.!400'2(4.0)!C,-6!K23.

 ,1-2,0-!L'04+!E+4.!8'+,0>!MN! "#$

O E2,'2!-'!'00384-,'.!'9!4.>!'9!-6)!4882'5)(!(C)++,.J1P!-6)!488+,04.-!'2!()5)+'8)2!164++!82'5,()

-6)!(C)++,.J1!C,-6!)+)0-2,0!5)6,0+)!0642J)!8',.-1!,.!400'2(4.0)!C,-6!-6)!0'3.0,+Q1!1-4.(42(1!41

1)-!'3-!,.!,-1!E427,.J!B-4.(42(1!BE $!I6,1!2)R3,2)1!-64-!C6)2)!4!(C)++,.J!641!4!(2,5)C4>!'2

J424J)!-6).!'.)!'9!-6'1)!8427,.J!1840)1!164++!F)!82'5,()(!C,-6!4!0642J,.J!8',.-P!C,-6!(30-,.J

-6).!F),.J!82'5,()(!-'!4++!'-6)2!1840)1P!C6)2)!4882'82,4-)P!-'!82'5,()!8411,5)!82'5,1,'.!9'2

-6)1)!1840)1!-'!F)!38J24()(!,.!93-32)$!I6)!,.(,5,(34+!0642J)!8',.-1!164++!F)!,.!400'2(4.0)

C,-6!-6)!-)06.,04+!2)R3,2)*).-1!1)-!'3-!,.!E42-!BP!1)0-,'.!S$T!'9!-6)!D3,+(,.J!H)J3+4-,'.1!T:#:

=41!4*).()(@$!I6)!)+)0-2,0!5)6,0+)!0642J)!8',.-1!164++!-6)2)49-)2!F)!2)-4,.)(!4.(!*4,.-4,.)(

,.!J''(!C'27,.J!0'.(,-,'.$

H)41'.<!I'!*,-,J4-)!4J4,.1-!4(5)21)!,*840-1!'.!+'04+!4,2!R34+,->!4.(!-'!82'*'-)!131-4,.4F+)

-245)+P!,.!400'2(4.0)!C,-6!K23.!L'04+!E+4.!8'+,0>!MN! "A=0@P!-6)!K23.!E427,.J!B-4.(42(1

BE !4.(!-6)!&EE?$

S &'!(C)++,.J!6)2)F>!8)2*,--)(!164++!F)!9,21-!'0038,)(!3.-,+!-6)!042!8427,.J!1)25,.J!-64-!842-,03+42

(C)++,.J!641!F)).!0'.1-230-)(!,.!400'2(4.0)!C,-6!-6)!4882'5)(!B,-)!L4>'3-/D+'07!E+4.

T:T#/TA/:#!H)5!U$!I6)1)!1840)1!164++!-6)2)49-)2!F)!2)-4,.)(!4-!4++!-,*)1!9'2!-6),2!()1,J.4-)(

8328'1)$

H)41'.<!I'!82'5,()!042V8427,.J!1840)!9'2!-6)!31)!4.(!,.!400'2(4.0)!C,-6!8'+,0>!I!BE#!'9!-6)

K23.!L'04+!E+4.$

W &'!842-!'9!-6)!()5)+'8*).-!164++!F)!9,21-!'0038,)(!3.-,+!5,1,F,+,->!18+4>1!'9!T$%!*)-2)1!F>!XO$S

*)-2)1!-'!-6)!C)1-!4.(!T$%!*)-2)1!F>!XA$T!*)-2)1!-'!-6)!)41-!645)!F)).!82'5,()(!4-!-6)

82'8'1)(!1,-)!5)6,03+42!400)11!'.-'!-6)!488+,04-,'.!1,-)!,.!400'2(4.0)!C,-6!-6)!4882'5)(

8+4..,.J!(24C,.J1$!Y.0)!82'5,()(!-6)!18+4>1!164++!-6)2)49-)2!F)!*4,.-4,.)(!4.(!7)8-!92))!'9

4++!'F1-230-,'.1!'5)2!4!6),J6-!'9!:$S!*)-2)!4F'5)!4(Z',.,.J!0422,4J)C4>!+)5)+!'2!41!'-6)2C,1)

4J2))($

H)41'.<![.!-6)!,.-)2)1-1!'9!2'4(!149)->!4.(!,.!400'2(4.0)!C,-6!8'+,0,)1!I!BE#!'9!-6)!K23.

L'04+!E+4.$

;  )-4,+1!'9!F4-!-3F)1P!F2,071!'2!F'\)1!164++!F)!13F*,--)(!-'!4.(!4882'5)(!,.!C2,-,.J!F>!-6)!L'04+

E+4..,.J!K3-6'2,->!82,'2!-'!4.>!()5)+'8*).-!4F'5)!(4*8V82''9!0'321)!= E]@!+)5)+$

&'!9)C)2!-64.!T!F4-!-3F)1P!F2,071!'2!F'\)1!164++!F)!82'5,()(P!4.(!-6)!()-4,+1!164++!,.0+3()!-6)

)\40-!+'04-,'.P!18)0,9,04-,'.P!4.(!()1,J.!'9!-6)!64F,-4-1$!I6)!F4-!-3F)1P!F2,071!'2!F'\)1!164++

F)!,.1-4++)(!C,-6!-6)!()5)+'8*).-!82,'2!-'!-6)!9,21-!'00384-,'./31)!'9!-6)!F3,+(,.J/1!-'!C6,06

-6)>!9'2*!842-!'2!-6)!9,21-!31)!'9!-6)!1840)!,.!C6,06!-6)>!42)!0'.-4,.)($

I6)!F4-!-3F)1P!F2,071!'2!F'\)1!164++!F)!,.1-4++)(!1-2,0-+>!,.!400'2(4.0)!C,-6!-6)!()-4,+1!1'

4882'5)(!4.(!164++!F)!8)2*4.).-+>!*4,.-4,.)(!,.!J''(!C'27,.J!0'.(,-,'.!-6)2)49-)2$

H)41'.<!I'!).132)!-6)!()5)+'8*).-!82'5,()1!-6)!*4\,*3*!8'11,F+)!82'5,1,'.!-'C42(1!-6)

02)4-,'.!'9!64F,-4-1!4.(!54+34F+)!42)41!9'2!F,'(,5)21,->!,.!400'2(4.0)!C,-6!K23.!L'04+!E+4.

E'+,0,)1!N&̂ ! "#!4.(!N&̂ ! "O$

Page 87



 !"#$%&'()*(%+#",-$&(+"'#%+,(.-%/0'('1$&&(."('2.3%##"4(#)($+4($55-)6"4(%+(7-%#%+,(.8(#1"(9)/$&

:&$++%+,(;2#1)-%#8(5-%)-(#)($+8(4"6"&)53"+#($.)6"(4$35<5-))*(/)2-'"(=!:>?(&"6"&@

A)(*"7"-(#1$+(B(C7%*#(+"'#%+,(.-%/0'('1$&&(."(5-)6%4"4D($+4(#1"(4"#$%&'('1$&&(%+/&24"(#1"("E$/#

&)/$#%)+D('5"/%*%/$#%)+D($+4(4"'%,+()*(#1"(.-%/0'@(F1"(.-%/0'('1$&&(."(%+'#$&&"4(7%#1%+(#1"

4"6"&)53"+#(5-%)-(#)(#1"(*%-'#()//25$#%)+G2'"()*(#1"(.2%&4%+,G'(#)(71%/1(#1"8(*)-3(5$-#()-(#1"

*%-'#(2'"()*(#1"('5$/"(%+(71%/1(#1"8($-"(/)+#$%+"4@(F1"(+23."-()*(.)E"'(-"H2%-"4(%'($'(*)&&)7'I

<(C3$&&('/$&"(4"6"&)53"+#'('1)2&4(%+/&24"($#(&"$'#(J(32&#%</1$3."-(.)E"'()-(.-%/0'(5"-

47"&&%+,D

<(K"4%23('/$&"(4"6"&)53"+#'('1)2&4(%+/&24"($#(&"$'#(L(32&#%</1$3."-(.)E"'()-(.-%/0($/-)''

#1"("'#$#"(.2%&4%+,'D

<(K$M)-(4"6"&)53"+#'('1)2&4(%+/)-5)-$#"($#(&"$'#(JB(32&#%</1$3."-(.-%/0'()-(.)E"'($/-)''(#1"

"'#$#"(.2%&4%+,'@

F1"(+"'#%+,(.-%/0'('1$&&(."(%+'#$&&"4('#-%/#&8(%+($//)-4$+/"(7%#1(#1"(4"#$%&'(')($55-)6"4($+4

'1$&&(."(5"-3$+"+#&8(3$%+#$%+"4(%+(,))4(7)-0%+,(/)+4%#%)+($'('2/1(#1"-"$*#"-@

N"$')+I(F)("+'2-"(#1"(4"6"&)53"+#(5-)6%4"'(#1"(3$E%323(5)''%.&"(5-)6%'%)+(#)7$-4'

/-"$#%)+()*(1$.%#$#'($+4(6$&2$.&"($-"$'(*)-(.%)4%6"-'%#8(%+($//)-4$+/"(7%#1(;-2+(9)/$&(:&$+

5)&%/%"'(OAP(C:J($+4(OAP(!KL@

JQ :-%)-(#)($+8(4"6"&)53"+#($.)6"(4$35<5-))*(/)2-'"(=!:>?(&"6"&D($(R%)4%6"-'%#8(O+1$+/"3"+#

9$8)2#D(5-)6%4%+,(#1"(*%+$&%'"4(4"#$%&'($+4(&)/$#%)+'()*(#1"("+1$+/"3"+#(3"$'2-"'(/)+#$%+"4

7%#1%+(#1"(&$+4'/$5"(5-)5)'$&'D(RAS(3"#-%/($+4(OT;D('1$&&(."('2.3%##"4(#)($+4($55-)6"4(%+

7-%#%+,(.8(#1"(9)/$&(:&$++%+,(;2#1)-%#8@

F1"("+1$+/"3"+#(3"$'2-"'('1$&&(."(%35&"3"+#"4(%+($//)-4$+/"(7%#1(#1"($55-)6"4(4"#$%&'

5-%)-(#)(*%-'#()//25$#%)+()*($+8(5$-#()*(#1"(4"6"&)53"+#($+4($&&(*"$#2-"'('1$&&(."(-"#$%+"4(%+(#1$#

3$++"-(#1"-"$*#"-@

N"$')+I(F)("+1$+/"(5-)#"/#"4($+4(:-%)-%#8('5"/%"'(U(1$.%#$#'(%+($//)-4$+/"(7%#1(;-2+(9)/$&

:&$+(5)&%/%"'I(OAP(C:J($+4(OAP(!KL($+4($&&)7(#1"(9)/$&(:&$++%+,(;2#1)-%#8(#)(4%'/1$-,"(%#'

42#%"'(2+4"-(#1"(A::V(BQBW($+4('XQ()*(#1"(A$#2-$&(O+6%-)+3"+#($+4(N2-$&(>)332+%#%"'(;/#

BQQY(=:-%)-%#8(1$.%#$#'(U('5"/%"'?@

JJ !"6"&)53"+#('1$&&(+)#(/)33"+/"D()#1"-(#1$+(7)-0'()*('%#"('2-6"8($+4(%+6"'#%,$#%)+D(2+#%&(*2&&

4"#$%&'()*(#1"(5-)5)'"4('2-*$/"(7$#"-(4-$%+$,"('/1"3"(1$6"(.""+('2.3%##"4(#)($+4($55-)6"4

%+(7-%#%+,(.8(#1"(9)/$&(:&$++%+,(;2#1)-%#8@(F1"(4"'%,+('1)2&4(*)&&)7(#1"(1%"-$-/18()*(5-"*"-"+/"

*)-(4%**"-"+#(#85"'()*('2-*$/"(7$#"-(4-$%+$,"(4%'5)'$&('8'#"3'($'('"#()2#(%+(;55-)6"4

!)/23"+#(Z()*(#1"(R2%&4%+,(N",2&$#%)+'D($+4(#1"(-"/)33"+4$#%)+'()*(#1"(C2!C(K$+2$&

5-)42/"4(.8(>TNT;@(!"'%,+(/)+'%4"-$#%)+'(32'#(#$0"(*2&&($//)2+#()*(#1"([C255&"3"+#$-8

N"H2%-"3"+#'(*)-(C2-*$/"(\$#"-(!-$%+$,"(:-)5)'$&'[(5-)42/"4(.8(;-2+(!%'#-%/#(>)2+/%&D($+4

$-"($+()6"--%4%+,(*$/#)-(%+(#"-3'()*(-"H2%-"3"+#'@(\%+#"-(,-)2+47$#"-(3)+%#)-%+,(#)("'#$.&%'1

1%,1"'#($++2$&(,-)2+4(7$#"-(&"6"&'($+4(7%+#"-(5"-/)&$#%)+(#"'#%+,(#)(RNO(WYLD()-('%3%&$-

$55-)6"4D(7%&&(."(-"H2%-"4(#)('255)-#(#1"(4"'%,+()*($+8(%+*%&#-$#%)+(4-$%+$,"@(A)(.2%&4%+,(G(A)

5$-#()*(#1"("E#"+4"4(.2%&4%+,('1$&&(."()//25%"4(2+#%&(#1"(/)35&"#"('2-*$/"(7$#"-(4-$%+$,"

'8'#"3('"-6%+,(#1"(5-)5"-#8(1$'(.""+(%35&"3"+#"4(%+($//)-4$+/"(7%#1(#1"($,-""4(4"#$%&'($+4

#1"(4"#$%&'(')($,-""4('1$&&(."(3$%+#$%+"4(%+(,))4(7)-0%+,()-4"-(%+(5"-5"#2%#8@

N"$')+I(F)("+'2-"(#1$#(#1"(5-)5)'"4(4"6"&)53"+#(%'('$#%'*$/#)-%&8(4-$%+"4(%+($//)-4$+/"(7%#1

5)&%/%"'(\(C:JD(\(!KJD(\(!KB($+4(\(!KW()*(#1"(;-2+(9)/$&(:&$+@(F1%'(%'(-"H2%-"4(#)(."($

5-"</)33"+/"3"+#(/)+4%#%)+(."/$2'"(%#(%'(+"/"''$-8(#)(%35&"3"+#(#1"('2-*$/"(7$#"-

Page 88



 !"#$"%&'()(*&+',!#-!'*-'.-++&$.#$%'"$)'/0#1 #$%'2-!3(4

56 7&8&1-,+&$*'(9"11'$-*'.-++&$.&'0$*#1':011' &*"#1('-:'*9&'+"#$*&$"$.&'"$ '+"$"%&+&$*'-:'*9&

(0!:".&'2"*&!' !"#$"%&'()(*&+'#('(&*'-0*'#$'"'(#*&;(,&.#:#.'+"#$*&$"$.&'+"$0"1'"$ '(0/+#**& 

*-<'"$ '",,!-8& '#$'2!#*#$%<'/)'*9&'=-."1'>1"$$#$%'?0*9-!#*)4'@9&'+"$0"1'#('*-'#$.10 &' &*"#1('-:

:#$"$.#"1'+"$"%&+&$*'"$ '"!!"$%&+&$*(':-!'*9&'!&,1".&+&$*'-:'+"A-!'.-+,-$&$*('"*'*9&'&$ 

-:'*9&'+"$0:".*0!&!B('!&.-++&$ & ' &(#%$'1#:&4'C,-$'.-+,1&*& '.-$(*!0.*#-$'-:'*9&'(0!:".&

2"*&!' !"#$"%&'()(*&+<'*9&'-2$&!'-!'+"$"%&+&$*'.-+,"$)'(9"11'(*!#.*1)'" 9&!&'*-'"$ 

#+,1&+&$*'*9&'!&.-++&$ "*#-$('.-$*"#$& '2#*9#$'*9&'+"$0"14

D&"(-$E'@-'&$(0!&'*9"*'*9&',!-,-(& ' &8&1-,+&$*'#('("*#(:".*-!#1)' !"#$& '#$'"..-! "$.&'2#*9

,-1#.&('F'7G5<'F'7G6'"$ 'F'7GH'-:'*9&'?!0$'=-."1'>1"$4'I*'#('.-$(# &!& '$&.&(("!)':-!'*9#(

*-'/&'"',!&;.-++&$.&+&$*'.-$ #*#-$'*-'&$(0!&'*9"*'*9&':0*0!&'+"#$*&$"$.&'"$ ':0$ #$%

"!!"$%&+&$*(':-!'*9&'(0!:".&'2"*&!' #(,-("1'(.9&+&'"!&'"%!&& '/&:-!&'.-$(*!0.*#-$

.-++&$.&(4

5H @9&'",,!-8& ' &8&1-,+&$*'(9"11'#$.10 &'&$&!%)'&::#.#&$.)'+&"(0!&('*9"*'!&:1&.*'*9&'.0!!&$*

(*"$ "! ('",,1#."/1&'"*'*9&'*#+&'-:'(0/+#((#-$'"$ ' &.&$*!"1#(& <'!&$&2"/1&'-!'1-2'."!/-$

&$&!%)'(0,,1)'()(*&+(4'?$)',9)(#."1':&"*0!&('*9"*'"!&'!&J0#!& '"(',"!*'-:'*9&'2-!3('+0(*'/&

#$(*"11& ',!#-!'*-'*9&'-..0,"*#-$'-:'&".9' 2&11#$%K*9&'/0#1 #$%'"$ '(9"11'/&'*9&!&":*&!

,&!+"$&$*1)'+"#$*"#$& '#$'%-- '2-!3#$%'.-$ #*#-$4

D&"(-$E'I$'-! &!'*-'(&.0!&'"'!& 0.*#-$'#$'*9&'0(&'-:'&$&!%)'"*'*9&'(#*&'#$'"..-! "$.&'2#*9

$"*#-$"1',1"$$#$%',-1#.)'"$ ',-1#.)'LMM'N>6'-:'*9&'?!0$'=-."1'>1"$4

5O P-'#$ #8# 0"1' 2&11#$%'9&!&/)'",,!-8& '(9"11'/&'-..0,#& '0$*#1'*9&'-,*#-$"1'!&J0#!&+&$*':-!

!&(*!#.*& '2"*&!'.-$(0+,*#-$'#$'>"!*'Q'-:'*9&'R0#1 #$%'D&%01"*#-$('"(' &+-$(*!"*& '*9!-0%9

@9&'F"*&!'L::#.#&$.)'M"1.01"*-!':-!'P&2'72&11#$%('9"('/&&$'.-+,1#& '2#*9':-!'*9"*' 2&11#$%4

D&"(-$E'@-'#+,!-8&'*9&'(0(*"#$"/#1#*)'-:'*9&' 2&11#$%('#$'"..-! "$.&'2#*9'?!0$'=-."1'>1"$

,-1#.#&('LMM'N>5'"$ 'F'7G54

5S I:' 0!#$%' &8&1-,+&$*<'"$)'8#(#/1&'.-$*"+#$"*& '-!'- -!-0('+"*&!#"1<'T:-!'&U"+,1&<'"(/&(*-(

.-$*"#$#$%'+"*&!#"1<'(*"#$& '(-#1<',&*!-1'K' #&(&1'K'(-18&$*'- -0!<'0$ &!%!-0$ '*"$3('-!

"((-.#"*& ',#,&2-!3V'$-*',!&8#-0(1)'# &$*#:#& <'#(':-0$ '*-'/&',!&(&$*'"*'*9&'(#*&<'$-':0!*9&!

 &8&1-,+&$*'T0$1&(('-*9&!2#(&'&U,!&((1)'"%!&& '#$'2!#*#$%'2#*9'*9&'=-."1'>1"$$#$%'?0*9-!#*)V

(9"11'/&'."!!#& '-0*'0$*#1'#*'9"('/&&$':011)'#$8&(*#%"*& '0(#$%'(0#*"/1)'J0"1#:#& '#$ &,&$ &$*

.-$(01*"$*T(V4'@9&'=-."1'>1"$$#$%'?0*9-!#*)'+0(*'/&'#$:-!+& '#++& #"*&1)'-:'*9&'$"*0!&'"$ 

 &%!&&'-:'*9&'.-$*"+#$"*#-$',!&(&$*'"$ '"'+&*9- '(*"*&+&$*' &*"#1#$%'9-2'*9&'0$(0(,&.*& 

.-$*"+#$"*#-$'(9"11'/&' &"1*'2#*9'+0(*'/&',!&,"!& '"$ '(0/+#**& '*-'*9&'=-."1'>1"$$#$%

?0*9-!#*)':-!'",,!-8"1'#$'2!#*#$%'/&:-!&'/&#$%'#+,1&+&$*& 4'I:'$-'(0.9'.-$*"+#$"*& '+"*&!#"1'#(

# &$*#:#& ' 0!#$%'*9&' &8&1-,+&$*<'"'(*"*&+&$*'*-'*9#('&::&.*'+0(*'/&'(0/+#**& '#$'2!#*#$%'*-'*9&

=-."1'>1"$$#$%'?0*9-!#*)4

D&"(-$E'@-'&$(0!&'*9"*'*9&' &8&1-,+&$*'.-+,1#&('2#*9'",,!-8& ' &*"#1('#$'*9&'#$*&!&(*('-:

,!-*&.*#-$'-:'*9&'&$8#!-$+&$*'"$ ',!&8&$*#-$'-:'9"!+'*-'90+"$'9&"1*9'#$'"..-! "$.&'2#*9

?!0$'=-."1'>1"$',-1#.#&('WL'N>5'"$ 'WL'7GO4

5X IPYZDG?@I[LE'N*"*&+&$*',0!(0"$*'*-'?!*#.1&'HS'-:'*9&'@-2$'"$ 'M-0$*!)'>1"$$#$%

T7&8&1-,+&$*'G"$"%&+&$*'>!-.& 0!&V'TL$%1"$ V'Z! &!'6\5S'T"('"+&$ & V4'@9&'=-."1

>1"$$#$%'?0*9-!#*)'9"('".*& ',-(#*#8&1)'"$ ',!-".*#8&1)'#$' &*&!+#$#$%'*9#('",,1#."*#-$'/)

# &$*#:)#$%'+"**&!('-:'.-$.&!$'2#*9#$'*9&'",,1#."*#-$'T"('-!#%#$"11)'(0/+#**& V'"$ '$&%-*#"*#$%<

2#*9'*9&'?,,1#."$*<'"..&,*"/1&'"+&$ +&$*('*-'*9&',!-,-("1'*-'"  !&(('*9-(&'.-$.&!$(4'?('"

!&(01*<'*9&'=-."1'>1"$$#$%'?0*9-!#*)'9"('/&&$'"/1&'*-'%!"$*',1"$$#$%',&!+#((#-$':-!'"$

"..&,*"/1&',!-,-("1<'#$'"..-! "$.&'2#*9'*9&',!&(0+,*#-$'#$':"8-0!'-:'(0(*"#$"/1&

Page 89



 

 

!"#"$%&'"()* +, ,") %-) ./)0/( )0" 1+)/%(+$ 2$+((/(3 2%$/45 67+'".%789

:; <16=>?@A<BCD <(E/$)7+)/%( 7+)", E%7 ,%+8+3" ,)7-4)-7", +7" )% F" F+,"! %( &"74%$+)/%( )",),

-(!"7)+8"( /( )0" ./()"7 &"7/%! +(! +) )0" $%4+)/%( +(! !"&)0 %E )0" &7%&%,"! ,)7-4)-7",9 A0"

/(E/$)7+)/%( )",), '-,) F" 4+77/"! %-) /( +44%7!+(4" ./)0 G>CHIJ* K<><@ >:JI %7 + ,/'/$+7

+&&7%#"! '")0%!9 @$$ !",/3( ,)%7', '-,) /(4$-!" + 4$/'+)" 40+(3" +$$%.+(4"* +, &"7

0))&,DLL...93%#9-8L3-/!+(4"LE$%%!M7/,8M+,,",,'"(),M4$/'+)"M40+(3"M+$$%.+(4",* %( ,)%7"!

#%$-'", %7 7+/(E+$$ /()"(,/)59 <(E/$)7+)/%( ,)7-4)-7", '-,) 4+)"7 E%7 )0" 47/)/4+$ : /( :N 5"+7 ,)%7'

"#"()* O&$-,PNQR F").""( )0" /(#"7) %E )0" "()75 &/&" )% )0" ,%+8+.+5 +(! )0" F+," %E )0"

,)7-4)-7"9 @$$ ,-7E+4" .+)"7 !7+/(+3" !",/3(, '-,) +$,% 0+#" &7%#/,/%( )% "(,-7" )0"7" /,

4+&+4/)5 /( )0" ,5,)"' )% 4%()+/( )0" 47/)/4+$ : /( :NN 5"+7 ,)%7' "#"() O&$-, PJQR9

67""F%+7! /, )% F" &7%#/!"! F").""( )0" F+," %E )0" /(E/$)7+)/%( ,)7-4)-7" +(! )0" 0/30",)

7"4%7!"! 37%-(!.+)"7 $"#"$ /!"()/E/"! /( )0+) $%4+)/%(9 <!"+$$5 )0/, ,0%-$! F" : '")7" .0"7"

&%,,/F$"* +, ,)+)"! /( )0" K<><@ S-!, ?+(-+$  3-/!+(4"9 T%."#"7* %( )0" 4%+,)+$ &$+/( /(

&+7)/4-$+7* .0"7" 3"%$%35 !/4)+)", +(! .0"7" ,0+$$%. &"740"!L)/!+$$5 /(E$-"(4"! .+)"7 )+F$",

+7" %E)"( &7","()* )0/, /, -($/8"$5 )% F" +40/"#+F$" /77",&"4)/#" %E )0/,* /(E/$)7+)/%( '-,) ,)/$$ F"

E-$$5 4%(,/!"7"!9 A0"7"E%7"* )% '+U/'/," )0/, &%)"()/+$ +(! +#%/! -)/$/,/(3 %)0"7 $",, E+#%-7+F$"

'")0%!, %E ,-7E+4" .+)"7 !/,&%,+$* )0" F+,", %E /(E/$)7+)/%( ,)7-4)-7", +7" &"7'/))"! )% F"

/''"!/+)"$5 +F%#" )0" &"+8 7"4%7!"! 37%-(!.+)"7 $"#"$, .0"7" /) /, !""'"! ("4",,+759

<( +7"+, .0"7" +( +V-/E"7 /, )% F" &7%)"4)"! O,-FW"4) )% 3-/!+(4" E7%' )0" C(#/7%('"()

@3"(45R )0"( + '/(/'-' : '")7" E7""F%+7! '-,) F" &7%#/!"!9 S-/)+F$" .+)"7 )7"+)'"() /,

7"V-/7"! -&,)7"+' )% )0" &%/() %E !/,40+73" /( +$$ 4/74-',)+(4", )% '/(/'/," +(5 37%-(!.+)"7

&%$$-)/%( 7/,8 %7 !")7/'"() )% )0" !7+/(+3" (").%789 @(5 S-XS %7 ,%+8+.+5 !",/3( '-,)

/(4$-!" +!"V-+)" 37%-(!.+)"7 '%(/)%7/(3 !+)+ )% !")"7'/(" )0" 0/30",) 37%-(!.+)"7 )+F$" /(

,-&&%7) %E )0" !",/3(9 A0" +&&$/4+() /, +!#/,"! )% !/,4-,, )0" "U)"(! %E 37%-(! .+)"7

'%(/)%7/(3 ./)0 )0" 4%-(4/$Y, "(3/(""7,9

S-&&$"'"()+75 3-/!+(4" (%)", 7"3+7!/(3 ,-7E+4" .+)"7 !7+/(+3" +7" $%4+)"! +)

0))&,DLL...9+7-(93%#9-8L!7+/(+3"M&$+((/(3M4%(,-$)+)/%(, %( @7-( X/,)7/4) K%-(4/$Y, ."F,/)"9 @

,-7E+4" .+)"7 !7+/(+3" 40"48$/,) /, +#+/$+F$" %( @7-( X/,)7/4) K%-(4/$Y, ."F,/)"* )0/, ,0%-$! F"

,-F'/))"! ./)0 + X/,40+73" %E K%(!/)/%(, @&&$/4+)/%(9 >"E"7"(4" ,0%-$! +$,% F" '+!" )% )0"

YZ",) S-,,"U [[6@ 2%$/45 E%7 )0" ?+(+3"'"() %E S-7E+4" Z+)"7Y9

:\ <16=>?@A<BCD ](!"7 S"4)/%( ̂H %E )0" [+(! X7+/(+3" @4) :__: [+(! X7+/(+3" K%(,"()

'-,) F" ,%-30) E7%' )0" ["+! [%4+$ 6$%%! @-)0%7/)5 OZ",) S-,,"U K%-()5 K%-(4/$R* %7 /),

+3"() O@7-( X/,)7/4) K%-(4/$* $+(!9!7+/(+3"̀ +7-(93%#9-8R* &7/%7 )% ,)+7)/(3 +(5 .%78,

O)"'&%7+75 %7 &"7'+("()R )0+) +EE"4) )0" E$%. %E .+)"7 /( +( %7!/(+75 .+)"74%-7,"9 S-40 .%78,

'+5 /(4$-!" 4-$#"7)/(3* 40+(("$ !/#"7,/%(* !/,40+73" %E E$%.,* 4%(("4)/%(,* 0"+!.+$$, +(! )0"

/(,)+$$+)/%( %E )7+,0 ,47""(,9

A0" !"#"$%&'"() $+5%-) '-,) )+8" +44%-() %E +(5 "U/,)/(3 .+)"74%-7,", O%&"( %7 4-$#"7)"!R )%

"(,-7" )0+) E-)-7" +44",, E%7 '+/()"(+(4" /, (%) 7",)7/4)"!9 1% !"#"$%&'"() /, &"7'/))"!

./)0/( H' %E )0" F+(8 %E +( %7!/(+75 .+)"74%-7,"* %7 H' %E + 4-$#"7)"! %7!/(+75 .+)"74%-7,"9

A0" !%4-'"(), 7"$+)/(3 )% )0/, +&&$/4+)/%( 4+( F" #/"."! %( )0" @7-( X/,)7/4) K%-(4/$ ."F,/)"  F5 3%/(3

)%  0))&,DLL...9+7-(93%#9-8L.""8$5M$/,), +(! "()"7/(3 )0" +&&$/4+)/%( 7"E"7"(4" %7 !/7"4)$5 F5 4$/48/(3 %(

)0/, $/(89

Page 90



 

 

!"#$% &' ()$ *+%'"',$ -.+/$0 1"223'4 53() 2$+13##3&' &6 ()$ 7&'(+&88$+ &6 9$+ :";$#(0<# -("(3&'$+0 *663,$ = 7+&5' 7&20+34)(>

?'".()&+3#$% +$2+&%.,(3&' 3'6+3'4$# 7+&5' 7&20+34)( "'% 1"0 8$"% (& 2+&#$,.(3&' &+ ,3/38 2+&,$$%3'4#>  @+.' A3#(+3,( 7&.',38

BCCCBDEDF> GCBH

Page 91



This page is intentionally left blank



 
Arun District Council 

 
 

 
REPORT TO: Planning Committee 17 January 2024 

SUBJECT: Rampion 2 Wind Farm – Local Impact Report 

LEAD OFFICER: Neil Crowther 

LEAD MEMBER: Cllr Hamilton 

WARDS: All 
CORPORATE PRIORITY / POLICY CONTEXT / CORPORATE VISION:  
 
• Maximise opportunities to improve the energy efficiency of homes in the district. 
• To consider climate change, sustainability, biodiversity and the environment in 

everything the council is responsible for and encourage its community and local 
businesses to do the same. 

• Protect and enhance our natural environment. 
• Increase opportunities for more high-quality, well-paid employment, encouraging 

more people to live, work, study and visit Arun. 
• Make best use of our natural assets to help drive the economy. 
 
DIRECTORATE POLICY CONTEXT: 
 
This report gives an update on the amendments to the Rampion2 Wind Farm 
consultation. 
 
FINANCIAL SUMMARY: 
 
No financial implications. 
 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 To agree to contents of a Local Impact Report (LIR) to submit to the Planning 

Inspectorate for examination as part of the Rampion 2 Wind Farm proposals. This 
will comprise the conclusions of the Council on various technical and subjective 
matters. 

  
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 That Planning Committee resolves to 
 

i. Provide comments on and agree the proposed Local Impact Report, set out in 
Appendix 1 to be submitted to the Planning Inspectorate. 

 
ii. If amendments are sought to the Local Impact Report, then delegated authority 

is granted to the Group Head of Planning to make appropriate amendments and 
submit the LIR. 

 

Page 93

Agenda Item 10



 
 

iii. To agree that written representations based on the contents of the Local Impact 
Report are submitted to the Planning Inspectorate in accordance with the 
timescales confirmed by the Planning Inspectorate. 

 
3. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  
 
3.1 Planning Committee have considered various reports on the Rampion 2 Wind 

Farm proposals through the informal consultation stages. At Planning Committee 
on 8 September 2021, it was resolved to submit a holding objection to the 
proposals. The full response can be found at Appendix 2. 

 
3.2 Rampion Extension Development Ltd (RED) have submitted a ‘Development 

Consent Order’ (DCO) for the Rampion 2 Offshore Wind Farm Scheme. The DCO 
will be formally examined under the ‘Nationally Significant Infrastructure Project’ 
(NSIP) process, managed by the Planning Inspectorate on behalf of the Secretary 
of State.  

 
3.3 As part of that formal process Arun District Council, as a ‘host Local Authority’, is 

invited to submit a ‘Local Impact Report’ (setting out the positive, negative and 
neutral impacts of the proposal) and ‘Written Representations’ (setting out any 
objections, concerns or matters of support).  

 
3.4 This report is for the Council to agree a Local Impact Report as part of this formal 

process leading up to Examination by the determining authority. 
 
3.5 The Written Representations will then be drafted to draw to the key areas of 

objection, concerns and support from the Local Impact report, for submission to 
the Planning Inspectorate. 

 
4. DETAIL 
 
4.1 The current proposal for Rampion 2 would have an installed capacity of up to 1,200 

MW, with the offshore components comprising:  
 

• Up to 90 offshore wind turbine generators (WTGs), associated foundations and 
inter-array cables:  

• Up to three offshore sub-stations;  
• Up to four offshore export cables, each in its own trench.  

 
The key onshore elements of the proposal are:  

 
• A single landfall site at Climping. 
• Buried onshore cables in a single corridor approximately 38.8km in length 

running from Climping to Oakendene, which comprise up to four cable circuits 
in separate trenches – the construction width for which would be a maximum of 
40m; and  

• A new onshore substation near Cowfold (Horsham District) that will connect to 
the existing National Grid Bolney substation (Mid-Sussex), via buried onshore 
cables.  

 
 

Page 94



 
 

4.2 The formal proposals for the Rampion 2 Wind Farm have been accepted by the 
determining authority (The Planning Inspectorate) in September 2023 and the 
Development Consent Order pre-examination process has now commenced. 

 
4.3 The Planning Inspectorate has appointed an independent Examining Authority to 

rigorously examine the application. At the end of the examination, the Independent 
Examining Authority will make a recommendation to the Government’s ‘Secretary 
of State for Business Energy and Industrial Strategy’. The Secretary of State will 
then review the application and decide on whether to grant a Development 
Consent Order. 

 
4.4 As part of the Planning Act 2008 process, the relevant local authorities will be 

invited to submit a Local Impact Report to the Planning Inspectorate by a given 
deadline. Prior to this, the Council has been asked to set out (as a summary) their 
likely headline issues in a ‘relevant representations’ submission. This submission 
was essential a non-binding high-level identification of the main issues (Appendix 
1). The Local Impact Report is the detailed submission for the purposes of the 
examination process. 

 
4.5 The Local Impact Report is defined by the Planning Act as ‘a report in writing giving 

details of the likely impact of the proposed development on the authority’s area (or 
any part of that area)’. The content of the Local Impact Report is a matter for the 
local authority concerned as long as it falls within this statutory definition. The Local 
Impact Report should consist of a statement of positive, neutral and negative local 
impacts. The Local Impact Report should be used by local authorities as the 
means by which their existing body of local knowledge and evidence on local 
issues can be fully and robustly reported to the Examining Authority. 

 
4.6 Once the Local Impact Report has been agreed, Arun District Council will submit 

the Local Impact Report to the Planning Inspectorate in accordance with the 
deadline of 20 February 2024. 

 
4.7 The Examining Authority has now published the Examination Timetable (on 14 

December 2023). Following the submission of the LIR, the first stage of this 
process are preliminary meetings followed by initial hearings in early February 
2024. Further Hearings are scheduled for May/June 2024 if required. Through this 
process, the applicant will seek to conclude Statements of Common Ground with 
the Council as well as other parties such as West Sussex County Council, National 
Highways, Natural England, Historic England and the Environment Agency. 

 
4.8 After the Examination has been concluded, the Examining Authority will make a 

recommendation to the Secretary of State, who will make the decision on whether 
or not to make a development consent order authorising the project. In coming to 
a decision, the Secretary of State must have regard to Local Impact Reports. 

 
4.9 As part of this process, the applicant has carried out extensive formal and informal 

consultation. A number of other local Parish and Town Councils have made their 
own submissions as part of the Relevant Representations stage. These are listed 
below. 

 
 

Page 95



 
 

• Climping Parish Council 
• Aldwick Parish Council 
• Pagham Parish Council 
• Kingston Parish Council 
• Lyminster & Crossbush Parish Meeting 
• Bognor Regis Town Council 
• Littlehampton Town Council 

 
These representations can be found at this webpage. 
 
Relevant Representations | Rampion 2 Offshore Wind Farm 
(planninginspectorate.gov.uk) 

 
5. CONSULTATION 
 
5.1 Significant internal consultation has taken place with technical officers. Further, 

significant consultation has taken place with adjoining authorities through the 
preparation of a draft Local Impact Report. 

 
6. OPTIONS / ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED 
 
6.1 Not to engage in the process or make representations. 
 
7. COMMENTS BY THE GROUP HEAD OF FINANCE/SECTION 151 OFFICER 
 
7.1 Nationally Significant Infrastructure Projects (‘NSIPs’) are dealt with under the 

procedure set out in the Planning Act 2008 and involve an application to the 
Secretary of State for development consent (‘a DCO’). Consultation is the first 
stage in the process, and the Council is a statutory consultee. The Council 
responded to the first consultation following consideration of the proposals by the 
Planning Committee on 8 September 2022. 

 
8. RISK ASSESSMENT CONSIDERATIONS 
 
8.1 N/a 
 
9. COMMENTS OF THE GROUP HEAD OF LAW AND GOVERNANCE & 

MONITORING OFFICER 
 
9.1 N/a. 
 
10. HUMAN RESOURCES IMPACT  
 
10.1 N/a 
 
11. HEALTH & SAFETY IMPACT 
 
11.1 N/a 
 
12. PROPERTY & ESTATES IMPACT 
 

Page 96

https://national-infrastructure-consenting.planninginspectorate.gov.uk/projects/EN010117/representations
https://national-infrastructure-consenting.planninginspectorate.gov.uk/projects/EN010117/representations


 
 

12.1 The Council are in discussion with the applicants regarding land ownership issues 
at Climping where works are proposed for a temporary period. 

 
13. EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT (EIA) / SOCIAL VALUE 
 
13.1 N/a 
 
14. CLIMATE CHANGE & ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT/SOCIAL VALUE 
 
14.1 The proposed Rampion 2 Wind Farm development would provide a significant 

amount of renewable electricity to the grid and provide households and businesses 
across the UK with the opportunities to purchase renewable electricity. It would 
help ensure the transition away from the fossil fuel generation of electricity which 
has a large impact on the environment, through the direct burning of the fuels 
themselves and the impact to the surrounding environment during the harvesting 
of the fuels. 

  
14.2 In support of fighting climate change and reducing the Council’s impact on the 

environment the Council declared a climate emergency in January 2020 and 
pledged to become carbon neutral by 2030. Since this date the Carbon Neutral 
Strategy and Climate action and biodiversity work plan have both been adopted, 
along with one of the four key pillars in the Council’s vision document being 
‘supporting our environment to support us. 

 
15. CRIME AND DISORDER REDUCTION IMPACT  
 
15.1 N/a 
 
16. HUMAN RIGHTS IMPACT  
 
16.1 N/a 
 
17. FREEDOM OF INFORMATION / DATA PROTECTION CONSIDERATIONS  
 
17.1  N/a 
  
 
CONTACT OFFICER:     
Name:  Neil Crowther 
Job Title:  Group Head of Planning 
Contact Number:  01903 737500 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 97



 
 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: 
 
- Appendix 1 – Draft Local Impact Report 
- Appendix 2 - Arun District Council Relevant Representations submission 

November 2023. 
- Appendix 3 – Copy of Arun District Council response to informal consultation. 
 
- Reports to Planning Committee 
 8 September 2021 
 30 November 2022 
 
- Members may wish to view the South Downs National Park Local Impact Report. 
 
https://www.southdowns.gov.uk/meeting/national-park-authority-meeting-12-
december-2023/ 
 
- Full details of the application proposals can be found here. 
 
Rampion 2 Offshore Wind Farm - Project Information (planninginspectorate.gov.uk) 

Page 98

https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fwww.southdowns.gov.uk%2fmeeting%2fnational-park-authority-meeting-12-december-2023%2f&c=E,1,ODQYU_wITlRx5u-Tb_o0nMxIIrH1OJCMN7ZTjs759sH1U2mFythnI-E8HwcZsSDj2wuIQHUB94DKa1l7NS4ux-nwUbKVwn0ziHcEFmcIgrDdTBhNqAF5BgM,&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fwww.southdowns.gov.uk%2fmeeting%2fnational-park-authority-meeting-12-december-2023%2f&c=E,1,ODQYU_wITlRx5u-Tb_o0nMxIIrH1OJCMN7ZTjs759sH1U2mFythnI-E8HwcZsSDj2wuIQHUB94DKa1l7NS4ux-nwUbKVwn0ziHcEFmcIgrDdTBhNqAF5BgM,&typo=1
https://national-infrastructure-consenting.planninginspectorate.gov.uk/projects/EN010117


 

0 
 

 

Arun District Council - Local 
Impact Report 

      

  
 

 

 

 

 

EN010117: Rampion 2 Offshore Wind Farm 

 

 

  

 

December 2023 

Page 99



 

1 
 

CONTENTS 

 INTRODUCTION ......................................................................................................... 2 

 OVERVIEW OF THE DISTRICT ................................................................................. 5 

 LOCAL POLICY ........................................................................................................ 12 

 GENERAL ................................................................................................................. 14 

 SOCIO-ECONOMICS, ECONOMICS AND TOURISM ............................................. 17 

 LANDSCAPE, VISUAL AND SEASCAPE ................................................................. 27 

 TERRESTRIAL AND MARINE ECOLOGY ............................................................... 31 

 NOISE AND VIBRATION .......................................................................................... 38 

 HISTORICAL ENVIRONMENT ................................................................................. 44 

 SUMMARY OF MITIGATION, COMPENSATION AND 

REQUIREMENTS ............................................................................................................. 50 

 SUMMARY ................................................................................................................ 53 

SOURCES OF INFORMATION FOR FIGURES .............................................................. 54 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 100



 

2 
 

 INTRODUCTION  

Background  

1.1 Rampion Extension Development Limited (the ‘Applicant’) has submitted an application for a 

Development Consent Order (DCO) to construct, operate (including maintenance) and 

decommission an offshore wind farm, located approximately 13km off the Sussex Coast. This is 

known as Rampion 2 Offshore Wind Farm and herein referred to as the ‘Project’. 

1.2 This is the Local Impact Report from Arun District Council (ADC), which sets out the likely impacts 

of the Project within the administrative area of ADC, beyond the South Downs National Park. ADC 

is a host authority for the Project, with landfall within the parish of Climping (also known as Clymping) 

and buried onshore cables proposed north and east through the District.  

Purpose, Scope and Terms of Reference of the Local Impact Report  

1.3 This Local Impact Report has been prepared with due consideration of Advice Note 11 from the 

Planning Inspectorate. This Advice Note refers to the Planning Act 2008 and states that: 

‘The sole definition of an LIR is given in s60(3) of the Act as ‘a report in writing giving details of the 

likely impact of the proposed development on the authority’s area (or any part of that area)’. The 

content of the LIR is a matter for the local authority concerned as long as it falls within this statutory 

definition’. 

1.4 ADC is the planning authority for Arun, apart from the area of Arun within the South Downs National 

Park, which falls under the planning responsibility of the South Downs National Park Authority 

(SDNPA). However, the SDNPA refer to advice from the Environmental Health Department at ADC. 

The SDNPA has a duty to work in partnership with all local authorities and, as such, with ADC. In 

addition, West Sussex County Council is the highways authority, education authority and Lead Local 

Flood Authority that covers Arun. This Local Impact Report therefore focuses on subject and 

geographical areas which ADC has primary planning responsibility.  

  

 

1 Planning Inspectorate (2012) “Advice Note One: Local Impact Reports”. Available at 

[https://infrastructure.planninginspectorate.gov.uk/legislation-and-advice/advice-notes/advice-note-one-local-impact-reports/] 

Accessed 4 December 2023 

Page 101



 

3 
 

1.5 This Local Impact Report does not replicate the Environmental Statement (ES) submitted with the 

application for the Project, but instead seeks to draw together local knowledge and evidence of issues 

within the administrative area of Arun beyond the South Downs National Park that can be robustly 

reported to the Examining Authority. The likely impacts are presented as either positive, neutral or 

negative effects during construction and operation, where relevant. However, as set out in the Advice 

Note, it is for the Examining Authority to conduct a balancing exercise of the likely impacts. 

1.6 Having reviewed the documentation submitted with the application for the DCO, ADC broadly agrees 

with the results of the assessments and the adequacy of mitigation for the archaeological, 

geoarchaeological and palaeo-environmental potential within the District beyond the South Downs 

National Park. Given this, archaeology is not considered further in this Local Impact Report.  

1.7 In addition to identifying key local issues and impacts, this Local Impact Report provides ADC’s 

appraisal of the Projects compliance with local policy. However, in line with Advice Note 1, an 

appraisal has not been undertaken in relation to National Policy Statements (NPS). 

1.8 This Local Impact Report builds upon the Relevant Representation and the initial Principal Areas of 

Disagreement Statement submitted by ADC to the Examining Authority in November 2023.  

Overview of the Project 

1.9 The key offshore elements of the Project will be as follows:  

• up to 90 offshore wind turbine generators and associated foundations;  

• blade tip of the wind turbine generators (WTG) will be up to 325m above Lowest Astronomical 

Tide and will have a 22m minimum air gap above Mean High Water Springs;    

• inter-array cables connecting the WTG to up to three offshore substations;  

• up to two offshore interconnector export cables between the offshore substations;   

• up to four offshore export cables each in its own trench, will be buried under the seabed within 

the final cable corridor; and  

• the export cable circuits will be High Voltage Alternating Current, with a voltage of up to 275kV.    

  

Page 102



 

4 
 

1.10 The key onshore elements of the Project will be as follows:  

• a single landfall site near Climping, Arun District, connecting offshore and onshore cables using 

Horizontal Directional Drilling (HDD) installation techniques;  

o buried onshore cables in a single corridor for the maximum route length of up to 38.8km 

using:  

o trenching and backfilling installation techniques; and  

o trenchless and open cut crossings.   

• a new onshore substation, proposed near Cowfold, Horsham District, which will connect to an 

extension to the existing National Grid Bolney substation, Mid Sussex, via buried onshore cables; 

and  

• extension to and additional infrastructure at the existing National Grid Bolney substation, Mid 

Sussex District to connect Rampion 2 to the national grid electrical network.  

Page 103



 

5 
 

 OVERVIEW OF THE DISTRICT 

Description of the District and Key Challenges 

2.1 The District is located on the South Coast and approximately half of the former Arun planning 

authority area is now within the South Downs National Park. 

2.2 The main urban areas are on the coast, with centres of population in Littlehampton, Bognor Regis 

and Arundel. The coastal towns are also the main employment and service areas, with Bognor Regis 

also supporting a campus of the University of Chichester. Beyond these towns is largely rural with 

scattered villages and hamlets. 

2.3 The key environmental sensitivities within and immediately surrounding the DCO Limits of the Project 

within the District are shown in Figures 1a, 1b and 2. Notably this includes: 

• Scheduled monuments: Littlehampton Fort and Medieval Earthworks E and SE of St Mary’s 

Church, listed buildings and Conservation Areas; 

• Site of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI): Climping Beach; 

• Local Wildlife Sites: Littlehampton Golf Course and Atherington Beach; and 

• Local Nature Reserve: West Beach. 

2.4 The key challenges currently facing the District include:  

• Housing: as with many local authorities, Arun faces challenges in housing supply and 

deliverable housing sites;  

• Education: educational achievement in the District is relatively low. The 2021 Census indicates 

that 25.4% of the District’s population has achieved tertiary qualifications, compared to a national 

average of 33.9%2; 

  

 

2 Office for National Statistics (2022) “2021 Census data”. (Edition: June 2022). UK Data Service. Available at 

[https://www.ons.gov.uk/census] Accessed 4 December 2023 

Page 104



 

6 
 

• Employment: Arun’s Economic Profile 2020-2025 found that in 2019, employment rates were 

generally lower (74.5%) than the West Sussex County average (80.4%). The employment rate 

is variable indicating a high level of insecure employment in Arun, most likely associated with the 

seasonal tourism industry. The occupational profile indicates to a low skill, low wage labour 

market profile within Arun3; 

• Deprivation: 2021 Census data indicate that Arun is the second most deprived area in Sussex4. 

Specifically, deprivation is associated with education and barriers to housing. Arun is the 66th 

most deprived local authority in England for barriers to housing and 89th for education5; and 

• Biodiversity: preserving and enhancing biodiversity is a key focus within Arun. Within the 

Biodiversity Net Gain Evidence Study6, several priority habitats are considered to be at risk by 

the Sussex Local Nature Partnership due to declines in extent, condition and distribution. These 

include: coastal vegetated shingle; lowland fen; reedbed; lowland heathland; intertidal mudflats; 

lowland meadows; and lowland calcareous grassland. 

Strategic Site Allocations  

2.5 The adopted Local Plan7 sets out the requirement for at least 20,000 new homes over the plan period 

to 2031; an equivalent of 1,000 dwellings per annum. A significant proportion of the housing land 

supply is proposed from strategic site allocations.  

2.6 As shown on Figures 1a and 2, strategic site allocations within the vicinity of the Project include 

Climping and Littlehampton – West Bank for approximately 300 and 1,000 dwellings, respectively, 

as set out in Policy H SP1 of the adopted Local Plan. 

 

3 Arun District Council (2019) “Arun Economic Profile 2020-2025”. Available at [https://www.arun.gov.uk/economic-strategy/] 

Accessed 30 November 2023 

4 Office for National Statistics (2022) “2021 Census data”. (Edition: June 2022). UK Data Service. Available at 

[https://www.ons.gov.uk/census] Accessed 30 November 2023 

5 UK Government (2019) “English Indices of Deprivation”. Available at [https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/english-

indices-of-deprivation-2019] Accessed 30 November 2023 

6 Arun District Council (2022) “Arun District Council Biodiversity Net Gain (BNG) Evidence Study”. Available at 

[https://www.arun.gov.uk/download.cfm?doc=docm93jijm4n19224.pdf&ver=24187] Accessed 1 December 2023 

7 Arun District Council (2018) “Arun Local Plan 2011-2031”. Available at [arun.gov.uk/adopted-local-plan/] Accessed 4 

December 2023 

Page 105



 

7 
 

2.7 A reserved matters application (CM/48/21/RES) has been submitted for Climping (at Land to the 

West of Church Lane South of Horsemere Green Lane) and a decision is currently awaited at the 

time this report was prepared. This is for: 

‘Approval of reserved matters following the grant of CM/1/17/OUT for the erection of 300 No dwellings 

& a building within use class E, together with public open space, LAPs, LEAP & ancillary works, 

including car parking & drainage arrangements, with access off Church Lane & Horsemere Green 

Lane’. 

2.8 The DCO Limits of the Project extend along the eastern boundary of Land to the West of Church 

Lane South of Horsemere Green Lane, with Work No. 13 relating to temporary construction access 

extending marginally onto the edge of this site.  

2.9 Whilst at this stage, no planning application has been submitted for Littlehampton - West Bank, this 

site forms a significant part of the regeneration plans for Littlehampton. As shown in Figure 1, the 

DCO Limits for the onshore cable corridor extends through the western part of the Littlehampton – 

West Bank strategic allocation, which is discussed in Section 5. 

Climate Change and Renewable Energy  

2.10 On 15 January 2020, ADC declared a ‘Climate Emergency’ and pledged to be carbon neutral by 

20308. Since this was declared, ADC has implemented a range of strategies and produced a Carbon 

Neutral Strategy9, which details carbon reduction targets, sets out emissions baselines and high-

level actions.  

2.11 In addition, in the adopted Local Plan, there is specific reference to renewable energy within Policy 

ECC DM1. This policy states that ADC will support renewable energy development, subject to policy-

specific criteria. Furthermore, this policy states that ADC expects renewable development schemes 

within the District to contribute positively to the social, economic and environmental development 

and the overall regeneration of Arun.  

 

8 Arun District Council (2023) “Climate Change”. Available at [https://www.arun.gov.uk/climate-change]. Accessed on 30 

November 2023. 

9 Arun District Council (2023) “Carbon neutral strategy”. Available at [https://www.arun.gov.uk/carbon-neutral-strategy]. 

Accessed on 30 November 2023. 

Page 106



 

8 
 

2.12 Given the above, ADC acknowledges the benefits of the renewable energy in contributing to the UK’s 

national target of net zero by 2050 and to responding to climate change. Energy from the Project 

would, however, be to the national grid, rather than for local use within Arun.   

Page 107



 

9 
 

Figure 1a: Approximate Extent of DCO Limits and Surrounding Environmental Sensitivities (Part 1) 

 

P
age 108



 

10 
 

Figure 1b: Approximate Extent of DCO Limits and Surrounding Environmental Sensitivities (Part 2) 

 

P
age 109



 

11 
 

Figure 2: Climping Compound (Inset of Figure 1a)

 

P
age 110



 

12 
 

 LOCAL POLICY  

3.1 ADC’s statutory development plan comprises a suite of documents, including: 

• the Arun Local Plan 2011 – 2031; 

• ‘made’ Neighbourhood Plans; 

• the West Sussex Waste Local Plan 201410; and  

• the Joint Minerals Local Plan 2018 and the Soft Sand Review11. 

Arun Local Plan 2011 – 2031  

3.2 The Local Plan, which was adopted in 2018, covers the period 2011-2031 for the area of Arun. A 

summary of the key adopted policies that are considered relevant to the subject areas within Arun 

beyond the South Downs National Park and under the primary planning responsibility of ADC are 

summarised in Sections 5 to 9. 

Made Neighbourhood Plans  

3.3 Beyond the South Downs National Park, the DCO Limits of the Project extends through four different 

areas where Neighbourhood Plans have been ‘made’. These include: 

• Clymping Neighbourhood Plan 2015 - 2030 (2016)12; 

• Littlehampton Neighbourhood Plan 2014 – 2029 (2014)13; 

 

10 West Sussex Council (2021) “Waste Local Plan”. Available at [https://www.westsussex.gov.uk/about-the-council/policies-

and-reports/environment-planning-and-waste-policy-and-reports/minerals-and-waste-policy/waste-local-plan/] Accessed 4 

December 2023 

11  West Sussex Council (2023) “Joint Minerals Local Plan 2018” and “Soft Sand Review”. Available at 

[https://www.westsussex.gov.uk/about-the-council/policies-and-reports/environment-planning-and-waste-policy-and-

reports/minerals-and-waste-policy/joint-minerals-local-plan/] Accessed 4 December 2023 

12 Clymping Parish Council (2015) “Clymping Neighbourhood Plan 2015-2030”. Available at [arun.gov.uk/made-plans] 

Accessed 4 December 2023 

13 Littlehampton Town Council (2014) “Littlehampton Neighbourhood Plan 2014-2029”. Available at [arun.gov.uk/made-plans] 

Accessed 4 December 2023 

Page 111



 

13 
 

• Lynmister & Crossbush Neighbourhood Plan 2020 – 2031 (2022)14; and  

• Angmering Neighbourhood Plan 2014 – 2029 (2015)15. 

3.4 Where District-wide impacts are discussed in this Local Impact Report such as in relation to 

landscape, biodiversity and socio-economic considerations, reference is made to the policies within 

the adopted Local Plan rather than in relation to policies of the ‘made’ Neighbourhood Plans. 

However, policies of the ‘made’ Neighbourhood Plans are referenced where they are considered 

specifically relevant to Climping Compound or locally important non-designated heritage assets that 

could be significantly affected by the Project. 

Arun Local Plan Update 2023 - 2041 

3.5 The adopted Local Plan is currently being updated as it is more than 5 years old. Prior to commencing 

Regulation 18 Issues & Options in Spring 2024, a Direction of Travel (2023)16 has been published. 

This sets out ADC’s vision and objectives, together with the direction of travel for emerging new 

policy options under the following themes: 

• Climate Change; 

• Environmental Life Support Network; 

• Homes in the Right Places; 

• Economy, Health & Wellbeing and Telecommunications & Digital; 

• Infrastructure;  

• Placemaking, Heritage and Culture; and 

• Infrastructure to Support Our Needs. 

 

14 Lyminster and Crossbush Parish Council (2022) “Lyminster and Crossbush Neighbourhood Development Plan 2020-2031”. 

Available at [arun.gov.uk/made-plans] Accessed 4 December 2023 

15 Angmering Parish Council (2015) “Angmering Neighbourhood Plan 2014-2029”. Available at [arun.gov.uk/made-plans] 

Accessed 4 December 2023 

16 Arun District Council (2023) “Draft Direction of Travel Document”. Available at [https://www.arun.gov.uk/arun-local-plan-

update-2023-2041] Accessed 4 December 2023 

Page 112



 

14 
 

 GENERAL  

Alternatives 

4.1 As part of the statutory consultation process, ADC advised that it needs to be satisfied that the 

chosen route is the most favourable based on evidence and justification. In particular, ADC noted 

that this would need to include, but not be limited to, consideration of ecological designated sites.  

4.2 Chapter 3 of the ES details the alternatives considered by the Applicant. The Infrastructure Planning 

(Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017 (the ‘EIA Regulations 2017’) require the ES 

to include a ‘a description of the reasonable alternatives studied by the applicant, which are relevant 

to the proposed development and its specific characteristics, and an indication of the main reasons 

for the option chosen, taking into account the effects of the development on the environment” 

(regulation 14(2)(d))’ (ADC emphasis).  

4.3 In addition, the NPS for Energy (EN-1) (2011a) and the revisions to the NPS due to come into force 

in early 2024) require an Applicant to ‘present the main alternatives considered as part of the 

Proposed Development and to demonstrate consideration of environmental, social and economic 

effects including, where relevant, technical and commercial feasibility’ (ADC emphasis). 

Route Options and Selection 
4.4 The assessment of alternatives identifies that the landfall at Climping was selected prior to the 

scoping exercise undertaken, however, did not consider the impact on the Climping Beach SSSI in 

its decision for selecting it ahead of the five alternatives (paragraph 3.4.23 of Chapter 3 of the ES).  

4.5 Within the examples of what constitutes a ‘soft’ constraint as part of the Applicant’s constraints 

mapping exercise, the following is noted: ‘some designated sites for biodiversity such as Ancient 

Woodland and National Nature Reserves’. SSSI are not specifically identified as a ‘soft’ constraint, 

nor is it evidenced that the Climping Beach SSSI was considered at this stage. Despite this, Chapter 

3 of the ES states that Climping was chosen, in part, due to ‘the limited number of statutory 

designations at the coast and immediately inland in association with the Climping landfall’. 

4.6 Only subsequent to the above it is apparent that consideration was given to ‘avoidance of the 

Climping Beach SSSI at the eastern part of the landfall’ ahead of the first statutory consultation 

exercise (paragraph 3.5.8 of Chapter 3 of the ES), when a decision had already been made to locate 

the onshore cable corridor within its vicinity. ADC do not consider the justification and evidence for 

choosing Climping as the landfall location sufficient with regard to environmental impacts.   

Page 113



 

15 
 

Construction Compound  
4.7 Insufficient evidence of reasonable alternative locations (taking account environmental effects) has 

been given for Climping Compound. Main reasons for the selection of this location next to a 

residential area and tourist/community assets have also not been given. Further details on the likely 

effects are outlined below.  

Adequacy of the DCO Application, Actions and Commitments 
4.8 Given the above, it is considered that the Applicant has not sufficiently justified the location of the 

landfall at Climping. ADC subsequently request further information be provided regarding the 

justification to choosing Climping as the landfall location. Notwithstanding this, it is acknowledged 

that C-112 within the Commitments Register is as follows: 

‘No ground-breaking activity or use of wheeled or tracked vehicles will take place south of the seawall 

(above mean high water springs) within Climping Beach Site of Special Scientific interest (SSSI) or 

Littlehampton Golf Course and Atherington Beach Local Wildlife Site (LWS) unless remedial action 

is required. Any predicted activity will be restricted to foot access for the purpose of surveying and 

monitoring of the progress of the horizontal directional drill (HDD).’ 

4.9 Whilst this is welcomed as a commitment, consideration should be given to the mitigation hierarchy 

and avoidance of HDD beneath the western part of Climping Beach SSSI. Furthermore, Section 7 

below identifies that further information needed so that the effects can be fully understood.  

Climping Construction Compound 

4.10 A temporary construction compound (Work No.10) and a temporary soil storage area (Work No. 11) 

are proposed near the small village of Climping, as illustrated on Figure 2. This, together with 

associated construction traffic would be close to residential areas, community facilities (school and 

village hall), tourist assets, listed buildings and scheduled monuments, which are discussed further 

in the sections below.  

4.11 Climping Compound is also located immediately adjoining a strategic housing allocation, where a 

reserved matters application is currently being considered by ADC. Should this be approved, it is of 

the view of ADC that the residential development is likely to coincide with the use of Climping 

Compound given that should the Project be granted consent, the Project would commence later in 

2025 and the compound likely to be in use for approximately 3.5 years. 

4.12 Whilst Climping Compound is referenced in the draft DCO only as a ‘temporary construction 

compounds’, Chapter 4 of the ES refers to Climping Compound as approximately covering 6.13ha 

and Chapter 18 of the ES indicates Climping Compound as containing welfare facilities/offices, 

parking, construction plant and storage of materials and equipment (up to 7m high) and a concrete 

Page 114



 

16 
 

batching plant up to 20m high. For greater certainty of the use of Climping Compound, a description 

(comparable detail to other Work No. descriptions in the draft DCO) of its use is sought in the draft 

DCO or another document so that there is a commitment to comply with the description. Furthermore, 

approval should be sought from ADC for the exact positioning of the concrete batching plant and 

soil/aggregate stockpiles and be placed as far away as possible from residents/other sensitive 

receptors. Whilst temporary concrete batching plants do not fall under the environmental permitting 

regulations, good practice should follow all applicable sections of the Process Guidance Note PG 

3/01(12). 

4.13 ADC has raised concerns and sought justification regarding the size and location of Climping 

Compound given the likely effects, as set out be below. Firmer commitments to mitigation measures 

specific to Climping Compound are also sought, including appropriate landscaping/boundary 

treatments, a Communications Construction Plan, a Dust Management Plan and stage specific 

management plans, particularly given the potential for dust, noise and visual effects. The Dust 

Management Plan should take into account emissions of off-road construction vehicles, NOx and 

particulate matter.  

4.14 Finally, it is not clear under what powers the applicant can require landowners to give up their land 

at Climping for a temporary use, with only compensation as a remedy. Confirmation is requested, 

with consideration to any further mitigation also being given.  

Private Water Supplies 

4.15 ADC consider that the Applicant has reasonably taken the public register of private water supplies 

and has identified wells that have the potential to be detrimentally affected by the onshore cable 

corridor and compounds. However, it is possible that not all private water supplies are listed in the 

public register and therefore further consideration should be given to investigating potential locations. 

4.16 Although a setback area has been provided around each of these wells, some supplies are very 

close, within 300m of the works. The Applicant has highlighted monitoring (C-253 of the 

Commitments Register) to be carried out in each case. This should be for both microbiological and 

chemical parameters. The Environmental Health Department at ADC seeks the proposed long-term 

monitoring of these sites, which should be agreed with the Department. 

Page 115



 

17 
 

 SOCIO-ECONOMICS, ECONOMICS AND TOURISM  

Local Planning Policies 

5.1 The following policies within the adopted Local Plan are considered relevant to the socio-economic 

aspects of the Project within the District (beyond the South Downs National Park): 

• Policy SKILLS SP1 encourages proposals that raise skills levels and employability;   

• Policy ECC DM1 supports renewable energy development provided that schemes contribute to 

the social, economic and environmental development and overall regeneration of the District;  

• Policy TOU SP1 encourages sustainable tourism development providing it protects as well as 

promotes the District’s main tourism assets including the coast, rivers and estuaries; and  

• Policy H SP1 states the aim to deliver 20,000 new homes in the District within the plan period 

(2011-2031). The Local Plan allocates a number of Strategic Site Allocations which will provide 

an “important contribution” to meeting this housing need including Policy H SP2b, SD4. 

5.2 The policy within the following ‘made’ Neighbourhood Plan is considered relevant to Climping 

Compound: 

• Policy CPN 1 of the Clymping Neighbourhood Plan seeks to protect community facilities.  

Proposals that will result in the loss or significant reduction in the scale and value of a community 

facility will not normally be permitted. 

5.3 The Project has the potential to align with the adopted policies around skills and employability. It is 

likely to be at odds in terms of protecting tourism assets including the coast. 

Key Local Issues and Likely Impacts  

Skills and Employment 
5.4 Arun’s Economic Profile 2020-2025 found that in 2019, employment rates were generally lower 

(74.5%) than the West Sussex County average (80.4%)17. The Project has the potential to support 

jobs in Arun during both the construction, operation and maintenance phases.  

 

17 Arun District Council (2019) “Arun Economic Profile 2020-2025”. Available at [https://www.arun.gov.uk/economic-strategy/] 

Accessed 30 November 2023 

Page 116



 

18 
 

Construction  

5.5 In Chapter 17 of the ES (at paragraph 17.9.4) estimates that the Project will support a total of 80 FTE 

jobs per annum18 within the Sussex study area19. This estimate is derived using the anticipated 

proportion of supply chain expenditure retained by businesses located within Sussex – this is 

estimated at 1.0% of total construction costs. The low levels of retained expenditure in Sussex are 

attributed to the fact that there are no Tier-1 major plant suppliers (e.g. WTG or foundations) nor an 

established supply chain cluster in Sussex.  

5.6 The ES does not attempt to estimate construction employment effects at the District level. This 

means that no estimation of the impact of the Project on employment in the District has been 

undertaken.  

5.7 It is estimated herein that the Project would support 5 FTE jobs per annum within the District during 

the construction period (6% of the Sussex employment impact). This estimate is calculated based 

on the proportion of employment in the manufacturing, construction, transportation and professional 

services industries in Arun compared to the Sussex study area20. This represents a 0.01% increase 

in overall employment in Arun over the four-year construction period, thus is deemed a neutral effect.   

Operation and Maintenance  

5.8 In Chapter 17 of the ES (at paragraph 17.10.4) estimates that the Project will support a total of 100-

110 FTE jobs21 per annum within the Sussex study area. This is based on estimates of the anticipated 

number of FTEs required to operate and maintain the wind farm.  

5.9 As per the construction phase, the ES does not attempt to estimate employment effects at the District 

level. It is estimated herein that the Project would support 7-8 FTE jobs in the District based on the 

proportion of total employment in Arun compared to the Sussex study area. This is considered a 

generous assessment given that no operational activity is anticipated in Arun. This represents a 

neutral effect (0.02% increase) on total employment for the District.  

 

18 Including Direct, Tier 1 and Indirect FTEs 

19 Defined within the ES as the county of East Sussex, county of West Sussex and the Brighton and Hove Unitary Authority.  

20 Sussex defined as per the ES as the county of West Sussex, county of East Sussex and the Brighton and Hove Unitary 

Authority.  

21 Including Direct and Indirect/Supply Chain FTEs  

Page 117



 

19 
 

Tourism and Tourism Assets  
5.10 Tourism and the visitor economy is important to the Arun District being one of its major industries. 

The District sees 3.9m annual visits, generating £374m and supporting over 5,000 FTE jobs22. In 

2019, Arun was the fifth largest visitor economy in Sussex and had the highest proportion of tourism 

employment of all Sussex districts23. The market town of Arundel and the seaside towns of Bognor 

Regis and Littlehampton provide a variety of coastal and rural tourist attractions.  

5.11 ADC has concerns regarding negative effects from the construction and operation of the Project on 

the tourism economy and tourism assets, including displaced tourism from Arun, as explored below.  

Construction 

5.12 Construction of the Project will directly impact Arun. Offshore construction will create visual effects, 

as described in Section 6. Landfall is located on Climping beach, west of Littlehampton. The onshore 

cable route connecting the windfarm to the national grid will then travel from Climping north-

eastwards through Arun to Bolney substation.  

5.13 Chapter 17 of the ES (at paragraphs 17.9.35, 17.9.39, 17.9.42) states that there will be a negligible 

effect on the volume and value of tourism at the Sussex level, for specific coastal towns, and along 

the onshore cable corridor.  The evidence base used to inform the ES conclusions was primarily 

formed of a literature review on the impact of wind farms on tourism. The majority of studies are ex-

ante which the ES (Appendix 17.3, paragraph 1.4.4) acknowledges ‘lead to a high level of uncertainty 

about the scale of potential impacts, particularly as the evidence base is mixed and findings vary 

across studies’.  

5.14 Furthermore, Chapter 17 of the ES states that ‘ex-post research suggests that even where there 

have been negative effects, these often occur in the form of displaced tourism with visitors diverting 

to neighbouring areas instead’. Whilst this may suggest a neutral effect at the Sussex level, it 

suggests that areas directly affected by construction such as Arun will at least experience temporary 

negative effects.  

  

 

22 Economic Impact of Tourism in the Arun District (2022), Destination Research 

23 Economic Impact of Tourism in the Arun District (2019), Destination Research  

Page 118



 

20 
 

5.15 The ES identifies 28 tourism assets close (500m) to the onshore cable corridor which it acknowledges 

may potentially be impacted by the construction works. A large proportion of these tourism assets 

are located in Arun24 (11 out of the 28 identified or approximately 40%), meaning a substantial 

number of the negative impacts are concentrated within the District, despite the ES identifying a 

negligible effect at the Sussex level. The 11 tourism assets located within the District are: 

• Climping beach and car park; 

• Climping Beach Café; 

• The cheese making workshop 

• Brookside caravan park; 

• Cuckoo Camp; 

• Loanian villas; 

• Lyminster nursery caravans;  

• 2 Radar Cottages; 

• Amanda Hopkinson Wedding planner;  

• Decoy Ponds / Let’s Retreat; and 

• Norfolk House. 

5.16 In addition to the tourism assets listed above, a large number of Public Right of Ways (PRoW) and 

cycle routes will be impacted during the construction period which could reduce visitor numbers 

further. The ES states that the landfall, onshore cable corridor and substation (the latter beyond the 

District) will potentially impact up to 154 PRoW. Of these, 37 PRoW were identified as highly sensitive 

“key PRoW” due to attributes such as high levels of usage25. 28 of the 37 key PRoW are located 

within Arun District (inclusive of those located within the South Downs National Park) reflecting the 

disproportionate impact that Arun will experience.   

5.17 Beyond this, other tourism assets have not been included within the list identified in the ES. These 

include: 

• Bailiffscourt Hotel, Restaurant & Spa; 

• The Black Horse Climping - Opening Spring 2024; 

 

24 Arun District, inclusive of assets located within the SDNP  

25 Rampion 2 Wind Farm ES Volume 4, Appendix 17.3: Socio-economic technical baseline, Aug 2023, Table 1-19 

Page 119



 

21 
 

• The Barn by the Beach, Climping; 

• The Captain’s Cottage Climping; 

• The Arundel Gardener, including Coffee Stop; 

• Woodpecker Camping Field and The Piglets Holiday Accommodation; 

• The Oystercatcher Pub & Restaurant; 

• Jaybelle Grange Holiday Lodges; 

• Shots – Target Range;  

• Ryebank Corner Glamping Campsite; 

• Leeside B&B; 

• Amberley Court B&B; 

• Church Farm Hub (Cuckoo Farm), Climping; 

• Climping Historic Church; 

• The Flying Fortress, Children’s Activity Centre; 

• Ford Airfield Car Boot and Sunday Market; 

• Serving Thyme, Horticultural Nursery; 

• Edgecumbes Tea & Coffee Roastery; 

• Ship & Anchor Marina Campsite and Pub / Restaurant; 

• Brooklands Barn Retreat; 

• Six Bells Pub; 

• Littlehampton Caravan Club site; 

• Stable Cottage Holiday Let, Lyminster; 

• Lyminster historic church; 

• Fox Wood Campsite; 

Page 120



 

22 
 

• Selden Barns; 

• Long Furlong Barn Wedding Venue; 

• Wild Heart Hill Campsite; and 

• Other local tourist accommodation such as Airbnb and Vrbo lets.  

5.18 Despite not being located within the 500m buffer it is possible that these assets will be negatively 

impacted by lower footfall within the District.   

5.19 ADC is of the view that the volume and value of tourism within the District would be reduced during 

the construction period – a negative effect for the local economy. Tourism assets within the District 

would see significant negative visual and landscape effects (see Section 6), which are highly likely 

to deter visitors during the construction period. One of the main attractions of the area is its natural 

beauty, for example, the undeveloped Climping beach and rural stretch of land between 

Littlehampton and Middleton-on-Sea. The quiet, undeveloped character of the Climping area makes 

the tourism industry particularly sensitive to negative impacts to views or landscapes.  

5.20  Negative local noise effects (see Section 8) will also contribute to the deterrence of visitors during 

the construction period who are attracted to the area by its peaceful, rural setting. 

5.21 Increased traffic as a result of construction in the local area may also cause disruption to the visitor 

experience or deter visitors from particular visitor assets which are heavily impacted by congestion. 

Operation and maintenance  

5.22 During operation, the Project is considered to have negative visual impacts on the views from a 

number of locations in Arun most notably along the coastline at Bognor Regis seafront promenade, 

Climping beach and Littlehampton seafront promenade, as reported in Chapter 15 of the ES. These 

locations, which are identified in Chapter 15 of the ES as having a medium to high sensitivity, are 

important visitor/tourist locations for Arun as well as having resident amenity. The detrimental impact 

of the WTGs on seascape in the District is likely to reduce the volume and value of tourism within 

Arun throughout the operational period, thus having the potential for a long-term negative effect on 

the local economy. Whilst it is recognised that the evidence is mixed in terms of ex-post evaluation 

for other areas (as per the ES), the scale of the WTGs and the acknowledged negative visual impact 

is considered to be particularly prominent in Arun and likely to have a more discernible negative 

effect..   

Page 121



 

23 
 

Community Disruption 
5.23 A number of the tourism assets listed above are equally assets to the local community, for example 

Climping beach and Climping Beach Café. Furthermore, Climping Village Hall and playing fields and 

Clymping Church of England Primary School would be near Climping Compound. This means that 

the negative effects to these assets during the construction period would also affect the local 

community, reducing amenity for residents in the area.  

5.24 In addition, temporary road closures and/or diversions during the construction period would cause 

further disruption for residents of Arun.  

5.25 It is ADC’s view that the construction of the Project will cause localised negative effects in terms of 

disruption to local communities such as Climping.  

Strategic Housing Allocation 
5.26 The onshore cable corridor transects through one of the strategic housing allocations (Policy H SP2b, 

SD4: Littlehampton – West Bank) identified in the adopted Local Plan. The allocation is for circa 

1,000 residential dwellings that will be key to supporting future regeneration of the town and the 

Littlehampton Economic Growth Area. 

5.27 ADC has significant concerns that the onshore cable corridor would sterilise the western part of the 

allocation and impede the ability to bring forward this site for housing. 

5.28 Arun faces a significant challenge in ensuring there is enough good quality and affordable housing 

available for its residents and is required to meet its housing needs targets. Should allocation SD 4, 

or part thereof, become sterilised as a result of the Project and thus no longer be able to be brought 

forward for circa 1,000 residential dwellings, this will further increase pressures on housing supply in 

the District. Alternative housing sites would need to be identified and allocated. This presents a 

potential negative effect on Arun.  

Fishing Industry  
5.29 Arun has a small but locally significant fishing industry. Littlehampton, located at the mouth of the 

River Arun, has a harbour with small-scale fishing operations.  

5.30 Sussex Inshore Fisheries and Conservation Authority’s (IFCA) states26 that ‘developments such as 

offshore wind farms, should not compromise the Authority’s ability to maintain and promote 

sustainable fisheries and protection of the marine environment’. 

 

26 https://secure.toolkitfiles.co.uk/clients/34087/sitedata/files/Authority_Reports/Planning-Policy-Statements.pdf  

Page 122

https://secure.toolkitfiles.co.uk/clients/34087/sitedata/files/Authority_Reports/Planning-Policy-Statements.pdf


 

24 
 

5.31 The ES provides an assessment of the potential impacts to the fishing industry. This assesses a 

range of potential impacts during the construction and operational and maintenance phases such as 

reductions in access to established fishing grounds, increased pressure on adjacent grounds and 

disturbance of commercially important fish and shellfish resources.  

  

Page 123



 

25 
 

5.32 The ES assesses the impact at the fisheries level, identifying UK and international fleet impacts. It is 

likely that Arun-based fisheries would be amongst those impacted. ADC welcome the Applicant’s 

commitment to ongoing liaison with fishing fleets and issue of notifications to the fishing community 

to provide advanced warning of Project’s activities and associated Safety Zones (Commitments C-

47, C-92, C-93 in the Commitments Register).   

Adequacy of the DCO Application, Actions and Commitments  

5.33 Whilst a Sussex level estimate of job creation has been undertaken in the ES, it has not been 

assessed at the District level within the administrative area of Arun. An indicative estimate of the 

proportion of job creation likely to take place in Arun has been provided above, however, the 

Applicant should undertake a full assessment of employment effects at the District level to inform 

developing skills and employment opportunities within the District.  

5.34 Low levels of supply chain expenditure are expected to be retained within Sussex. This contributes 

to concerns regarding the Outline Skills and Employment Strategy which provides very limited detail 

and does not list ADC as a consultee. More detail should be provided on the strategy and benefits 

for ADC, including linking to apprenticeships and local education institutes in Arun such as the 

University of Chichester Bognor Regis Campus. Objectives need to include support for local Small 

Medium Enterprises (SMEs) and opportunities for SMEs to access the supply chain including 

potentially supply chain managers. Measures should be secured through the Outline Code of 

Construction Practice (CoCP). In addition, ADC should be sought as a consultee for the development 

of the Skills and Employment Strategy. The Supply Chain Plan similarly requires definition and 

commitment. ADC expect this Plan to be secured through the CoCP.  

5.35 ADC has concerns regarding adverse effects on tourism and tourism assets, including displacement 

of tourism from Arun. The current list of tourism assets is not considered complete. It is acknowledged 

that C-33 in the Commitments Register seeks to minimise impact but does not necessarily mean that 

negative impacts will not occur.  

5.36 ADC request further information on what impact the Project is likely to have on the strategic housing 

allocation at Littlehampton – West Bank, including any sterilisation of land and the effect on housing 

delivery within Arun.  

5.37 Overall, ADC is of the opinion that the District will not significantly benefit from the Project, rather the 

area will experience disruption and negative or neutral effects. Job creation is likely to be neutral 

based on current estimates and any benefit likely to be outweighed by harm to the local tourism 

industry, impact to housing supply and local community disruption.  

Page 124



 

26 
 

5.38 ADC request further information on the Community Benefits Package and commitments to be made 

to ADC for the Community Benefits Package to adequately compensate and offset adverse effects 

within the District that cannot be otherwise mitigated.  There are concerns regarding the mechanism 

by which the Community Benefits Package is secured and the criteria/funds involved which are not 

referenced within the draft DCO. There are a range of potentially suitable tourism partnership 

mechanisms for distributing funds from the Community Benefits Package such as Experience West 

Sussex and Sussex by the Sea.  

Page 125



 

27 
 

 LANDSCAPE, VISUAL AND SEASCAPE  

Local Planning Policies 

6.1 The following policies within the adopted Local Plan are considered relevant to the landscape and 

visual aspects of the Project within the District (beyond the South Downs National Park): 

• Policy LAN DM1 seeks development to respect the particular characteristics and natural features 

of the landscape character areas and, wherever possible, to reinforce or repair the character of 

those areas;  

• Policy C SP1 relating to where new development in the countryside, early consideration will need 

to be given to landscape enhancement; and 

• Policy ECC DM1 relating to renewable energy development seeks the location and design to 

minimise adverse impacts on the landscape and to take into account ADC’s landscape 

assessment and sensitivity studies. 

6.2 Once the vegetation and landscape elements have re-established, the Project is considered over the 

long term to be compliant with Policy LAN DM1. However, owing to the lack of commitment to 

landscape enhancement within the District and the effects of the WTG on the coastline, the Project 

does not accord with the overall aims of the other policies identified above.  

Key Local Issues and Likely Impacts  

6.3 As set out in the adopted Local Plan, the landscape character of the area within Arun varies between 

the low coastline, open agricultural landscape and the backdrop provided by the scarp slope of the 

South Downs National Park. Approximately 50% of Arun is within the South Downs National Park, 

which is a statutorily protected landscape, recognised by Government to be of the very highest 

quality. 

6.4 The area within Arun beyond the South Downs National Park is generally low lying with views across 

a flat open landscape. The countryside between urban settlements and villages are valued parts of 

the landscape with ‘Climping Gap’ one of the few remaining stretches of open, undeveloped 

coastline. The coastal plain exhibits a high level of landscape and visual sensitivity. Climping Gap, 

whilst not a nationally designated landscape, is a protected landscape within the adopted Local Plan. 

Page 126



 

28 
 

Landscape and Visual  
6.5 Owing to the prevailing landscape character and the topography being flat with no significant 

changes in elevation, together with the proximity of the Project to residential areas, the principal 

concerns and effects are considered to relate to the construction activities, as follows: 

• significant negative visual (amenity) effects on residents and settlements (such as on Climping 

village and Climping Caravan Park; the latter a semi-retirement park for over 50’s), together with 

from transport routes and visitor attractions (Climping beach, Climping Camp Site, PRoW and 

Sustrans Cycle Route) in relation to the landfall construction compound (Work No. 8), cable 

installation works (Work No.9) and Climping Compound (Work No.10);  

• significant negative landscape and character effects, such as on the Climping Lower Coastal 

Plain, Lower Arun and Middle Valley Floors and Lyminster-Angmering Coastal Plain from the 

construction works, as acknowledged as in Chapter 18; and 

• negative effects on landscape elements from the loss and disturbance of vegetation (such as 

trees, scrub and hedgerows) during and beyond the construction works for a significant duration, 

until the vegetation thrives and becomes established. All restoration of land to its prior use, 

former condition and same habitat type (principally agricultural) would have a neutral effect in 

the long-term. However, there is an opportunity for a positive effect in the long term if the 

reinstatement enhances habitat.  

6.6 Given the location and substantial size of the Climping Compound in proximity to the village of 

Climping, individual properties and the village hall and playing field, together with the likely nature of 

the uses within the compound (such as welfare cabins, a concrete batching plant up to 20m in height 

and materials and equipment up to 7m high, it is of the view that the visual effects would be 

significant. ADC concerns relate to the spatial presence as the compound would be visible from 

different vantage points and the visual dimension of openness as it is not only people in the 

immediate surroundings that might see but also the wider environ.   

6.7 It is noted that the level of effect reported in Chapter 18 of the ES on settlements of Climping and 

Atherington, Littlehampton, Lyminster and Poling is identified as ‘Moderate to Minor’ during 

construction works, which are identified in the assessment as not significant. Based on the 

information provided, ADC disagrees that it can be concluded that there will be ‘no significant effects 

on the views and visual amenity of settlements’ during the construction, which is reported in Chapter 

18 of the ES.   

  

Page 127



 

29 
 

Seascape  
6.8 ADC recognise that the WTG would inevitably result in changes to seascape character and views.  

Nevertheless, owing to the height, extent and relative proximity to the coastline, the principal 

concerns and effects are considered to relate to the operational of the Project, as follows:  

• significant negative effects on views along the coastline at Bognor Regis seafront promenade, 

Climping beach and Littlehampton seafront promenade during operation, as acknowledged in 

Chapter 15 of the ES.     

6.9 It is acknowledged that the spatial extent of the WTG has been reduced during consultation and the 

design process. However, the extent and scale would be much greater than Rampion 1. The Non-

Technical Summary for the ES reports that for the 116 WTG of Rampion 1, the WTG have a 140m 

blade tip height, whilst the WTG for the Project are up to a height of 325m when measured from 

Lowest Astronomical Tide to the tip of the vertical blade. This is a considerable difference in height. 

These WTG would have significant visual effects on the views from the coastline at Bognor Regis 

seafront promenade, Climping beach and Littlehampton seafront promenade, as reported in Chapter 

15 of the ES. These locations, which are identified in Chapter 15 of the ES as having a medium to 

high sensitivity, are visitor/tourist locations.   

Adequacy of the DCO Application, Actions and Commitments  

6.10 Whilst some of the viewpoints for the landscape and visual assessment were agreed with ADC, this 

was prior to details being available for the landfall construction compound (Work No.8), trenchless 

crossing compounds as part of the cable installation (Work No. 9) and Climping Compound (Work 

No.10). The coverage of viewpoints and photomontages within these areas is not considered to be 

sufficient given the scale, nature and potential for significant visual effects of the Project. ADC 

therefore seeks additional viewpoints (locations to be agreed with ADC) to be assessed. This would 

enable the likely significance and extent of effects, including on settlements, to be fully understood 

and, where necessary, adequately mitigated for the duration of the construction works. 

6.11 In Chapter 18 of the ES, reference is made to a temporary onshore cable corridor up to 40m in width 

and a permanent infrastructure corridor width up to 25m (or wider at trenchless crossing locations).  

It is unclear what the surface treatment requirements would within the permanent infrastructure 

corridor and any requirements for easements in these areas. Details are therefore sought to 

understand the impact on reinstatement. 

6.12 It is acknowledged that in C-196 of the Commitments Register that a stage specific Landscape and 

Ecological Management Plan (LEMP) would be developed. This would be secured through 

Requirement 12 of the DCO, which would require submission of a stage specific LEMP to, and 

approval by, the relevant planning authority in advance of that stage commencing. It is therefore 

important that the programme of works secured through Requirement 10 of the DCO clearly defines 

Page 128



 

30 
 

the stages, phasing and associated timings of works within the District. With regard to reinstatement, 

the stages and, thus stage specific LEMP should include covering the landfall construction compound 

(Work No.8), the onshore cable corridor (Work No. 9) and Climping Compound (Work No.10). 

6.13 Commitment C-196 of the Commitments Register refers to ‘attention will also be given to maintaining 

levels and types of vegetation and landscape patterns’, however, ADC seeks that the commitment 

to the staged reinstatement also includes for enhancement to a higher quality and species diversity, 

particularly in relation to trees and hedgerows of boundary/field treatments. As well as species 

selection and reinstatement taking account of climate resilience, there should also be a commitment 

to the selection of species diversity in consideration of emerging threats from pests and diseases, 

such as Ash die-back which is prevalent in the District.  

6.14 Given the likely significant landscape and visual effects within the District, it is requested that the 

details of the boundary treatment and programme of landscaping works of the construction 

compounds; particularly the landfall construction compound (Work No.8) and Climping Compound 

(Work No.10) are submitted to and agreed with ADC. A mechanism for securing this is sought. 

Boundary treatment should include maximising opportunities for advanced planting of new native 

trees (feathered trees rather than whips) to soften and filter views, as well as for biodiversity 

enhancement.  

6.15 ADC encourages a phased approach is taken to the restoration to enable land to be reinstated at the 

earliest possible opportunity. Commitment C-19 in the Commitments Register suggests that the 

onshore cable corridor would be constructed in sections at regular intervals (typically 600m to 

1,000m) and the reinstatement process commenced as soon as practicable. However, there is 

currently no mechanism to guarantee that this would be achievable based on the information 

provided. Furthermore, C-103 refers to ‘areas of temporary habitat loss will begin reinstatement 

within 2 years of the loss, other than at the temporary construction compounds, cable joint bays, 

some haul roads, some construction access roads, landfall and substation location where activities 

may take longer to complete’. However, ADC request that there is the commitment and an 

appropriate securing mechanism for reinstatement within the first planting season following 

completion of the construction works and backfilling within the section, rather than within two years, 

as currently defined within C-103.  

6.16 ADC would welcome further engagement with the Applicant on the layout of the WTG and the 

development of design principles (C-61 of the Commitments Register), which is currently not defined. 

However, ADC is of the opinion that the significant effects of the WTG, as identified in the ES, cannot 

be mitigated for and are of such a significance that warrants compensation in the form of a 

Community Benefits Package, as discussed in Section 5. 

Page 129



 

31 
 

 TERRESTRIAL AND MARINE ECOLOGY 

Local Planning Policies 

7.1 The following policies within the adopted Local Plan are considered relevant to the biodiversity 

aspects of the Project within the District (beyond the South Downs National Park). 

7.2 The adopted Local Plan seeks the protection and enhancement of biodiversity and the protection of 

trees. The policies also include protection of designated European, national and local status sites. 

The relevant policies include: 

• Policy ENV SP1, which seeks the preservation, restoration and enhancement of biodiversity and 

the natural environment through the development process and particularly through policies for 

the protection of both designated and non-designated sites. Where possible, new areas for 

habitats and species are encouraged. The Project is on or within proximity to several sites listed 

in Policy ENV SP1, including:  

o Special Area of Conservation (SAC): Arun Valley (Site Code UK0030366); 

o SSSI: Climping Beach (Site Code 1000225); 

o Special Protection Area (SPA) Arun Valley (Site Code UK9020281); and 

o Local Nature Reserves: Littlehampton Golf Course and Atherington Beach, 

Littlehampton. 

• Policy ENV DM3 covers Biodiversity Opportunity Areas (BOA). Much of the onshore cable 

corridor within Arun fall within existing BOA. Within BOA, development shall minimise 

disturbance, retain and sympathetically incorporate locally valued and important habitats. Where 

there is a habitat loss, mitigation measures shall be agreed with ADC; and 

• Policy ENV DM5 seeks biodiversity net gain as part of the development process. Due regard for 

protected species is required and consideration of any impacts that will affect the species directly 

or indirectly, whether within the site or in an area outside of the site. 

7.3 The protected species surveys and mitigation proposed is compliant with the policies above. Whilst 

biodiversity net gain is proposed for the Project as a whole, biodiversity net gain has not been 

demonstrated within the District. Given this, the Project is not considered compliant with Policy ENV 

DM5. 

Page 130



 

32 
 

Key Local Issues and Likely Impacts  

Climping Site of Scientific Interest and Arun Valley Special Protection Area Impact Risk Zone  
7.4 Climping Beach is home to rare habitats and species. The SSSI is a stretch of coast with a vegetated 

shingle beach, behind which is a sand dune system. The intertidal zone supports important 

populations of wintering birds. The numbers of wintering sanderling are of European significance. 

7.5 Vegetated shingle beaches are a nationally uncommon habitat. The beach at Climping is broad in 

the west but narrows to the east. Plant communities are mainly restricted to sheltered areas behind 

the main shingle bank and include yellow horned poppy Gaucium flavum, sea dale Crambe maritima, 

sea beet Beta vulgaris, curled dock Rumex crispus and sea holly Eryngium maritimum. Scrub of 

tamarisk Tamarix gallica and hawthorn Crataegus monogyna has developed in a few places behind 

the shingle. 

7.6 Notable and rare invertebrates include Large sharp-tailed bee - Coelioxys conidia, Coast leaf-cutter 

bee - Megachile maritima, Red banded-sand wasp - Ammophila sabulosa, Grey bush cricket - 

Platycleis albopunctatabut, and the moth Platytes alpinella. 

7.7 Sand dunes are fragile systems, susceptible to erosion and often unstable. Stabilised parts of these 

dunes are dominated by marram-grass Ammophila arenaria. Other plants which are present include 

dune fescue grass Vulpia membranacea, red fescue grass Festuca rubra, sand catchfly Silene 

conica, sand sedge Carex arenaria, viper’s bugloss Echium vulgare and a locally uncommon plant, 

Nottingham catchfly Silene nutans. 

7.8 The intertidal zone consists of soft muds and sands which support large populations of marine 

invertebrates. The invertebrates are an important food source for wintering birds. Up to 300 

Sanderling have been recorded from this site in winter; a figure which represents 1% of the West 

European population of this bird which breeds in the high Arctic but flies south to winter on sandy 

coasts and estuaries. Other wintering birds include grey plover and oystercatcher. 

7.9 The adopted Local Plan reports that the Impact Risk Zone for the Arun Valley SPA covers areas in 

the foraging distance of Bewick's Swans, which include a wide area within the District, as shown in 

Figure 3.  

Page 131



 

33 
 

Figure 3: Impact Risk Zone of Arun Valley Special Protection Area  

 

7.10 The following construction activities of the Project have the potential to affect ecological sites and 

Impact Risk Zone identified above:  

• landfall and onshore cable route – damage and disturbance of Climping Beach SSSI potentially 

because of indirect effects of HDD under the beach; and  

• onshore cable route and compounds – damage and disturbance to habitats from construction 

activities associated with the onshore cable route and compounds (Climping Compound and 

landfall compounds) within the Impact Risk Zone of the Arun Valley SPA that is used by foraging 

Bewick's Swans. Loss of habitat within the Impact Risk Zone, which is regularly used by foraging 

Bewick's Swans (i.e. is functionally linked to the SPA), could have a significant effect on the SPA. 

Terrestrial Biodiversity Net Gain 
7.11 The onshore cable corridor runs through BOA and part of the Arun River Valley which contains 

priority habitats including coastal flood plain and grazing Marsh, mudflats, deciduous woodland and 

good quality semi-improved grassland. As a result of construction activities, areas of habitats would 

be temporarily lost or degraded, leading to habitat fragmentation.  

7.12 A number of important species are present including Bewick Swans, bats, hazel dormice, water 

voles, badgers, reptiles and a variety of coastal and woodland birds. 

  

Page 132



 

34 
 

7.13 Owing to the terrestrial ecology on or within proximity to the Project, the following principal concerns 

and effects relate to construction activities and once operational: 

• risk to protected species such as dormice and commuting/foraging bats from habitat 

fragmentation and disturbance from noise, vibration and lighting; and 

• lack of biodiversity net gain and habitat enhancement within the District (see below).  

7.14 The effects on badgers, great crested newts, water vole and reptiles have been rated as low and not 

significant. Great crested newts and water voles are recorded around Climping and Atherington area. 

Licences may be required if the works impact on ponds and ditches in this area. 

7.15 As reported in Chapter 22 of the ES, the Project in its entirety would deliver terrestrial biodiversity 

net gain of at least 10% to offset land cover change (habitat loss) and fragmentation (reduction of 

connectivity). ADC is supportive of achieving net gain for the Project and this is a policy requirement 

of the adopted Local Plan. However, ADC has concerns regarding the proposals and details provided 

for terrestrial biodiversity net gain, including the lack of ecological enhancements and net gain 

specifically in the District, which are outlined below. 

Marine Biodiversity Net Gain 
7.16 Marine net gain has not been considered. The Environment Act 2021 recommends that marine net 

gain to be assessed as part of national infrastructure projects, although it is acknowledged that this 

is not mandatory. Recent Government consultation in response to marine net gain was undertaken 

and the results published showed broad support for marine net gain. 

7.17 The Project could provide marine net gain via a contribution to the Sussex Kelp Recovery Project 

(Help Our Kelp). This restoration project was formed in 2021 after the Sussex Nearshore Trawling 

Byelaw was introduced. This protects the seabed from fishing activities and stretches from Brighton 

towards Selsey. The project is a collaboration of local and national organisations to provide protection 

for and help regenerate the kelp beds in the Sussex bay. ADC is actively engaging with the project 

to help restore these kelp beds off our coast. 

7.18 The offshore cable route avoids the marine Conservation Areas and the most valuable marine 

habitats. This may reduce potential impacts to marine ecosystems.  

Adequacy of the DCO Application, Actions and Commitments  

7.19 Whilst surveys of habitats and species have been provided with regard to terrestrial habitats and 

species, the results have not been summarised at District level. The local effects on terrestrial 

ecology specifically within the District are therefore difficult to ascertain. It is, however, welcomed 

Page 133



 

35 
 

that an Ecological Clerk of Works will work in conjunction with the contractors to ensure compliance 

with relevant wildlife legislation, agreed mitigation and best practice. 

7.20 Pre-construction surveys for protected species are committed to within the Commitments Register 

and Outline CoCP. Further details on the timing these surveys are requested to be provided to ADC. 

The presence of any European protected species will require a licence from Natural England to 

disturb them or their habitat. This will also require approval by ADC.  

7.21 Whilst a biodiversity net gain assessment has been completed for the Project as a whole, there is a 

lack of biodiversity net gain assessment at the District level. Biodiversity net gain should be delivered 

within the District. It is also integral that this is then secured through appropriate means directly with 

ADC.   

7.22 Chapter 22 of the ES states that biodiversity net gain will be delivered on and off-site, with the focus 

of habitat creation around the proposed substation at Oakendene, which is outside of the District. 

The remainder of the habitats are proposed to be reinstated to current condition only. There is also 

a reliance of delivery of net gain off-site. As a result, the Project is currently not proposing new or 

enhanced habitat creation within the District.  

7.23 ADC seeks the delivery of biodiversity net gain and ecological enhancements within the District in 

accordance with the biodiversity gain hierarchy where on site biodiversity gains should be considered 

first followed by registered offsite biodiversity gains and – as a last resort – biodiversity credits. 

Without biodiversity net gain, the Project is not compliant with ADC’s policies.  

7.24 There is an assumption in the ES that destroyed, damaged or disturbed hedgerows will be 

ecologically functioning features again in a period of three to seven years from the start of 

construction. This is considered to be optimistic and is dependent on good growing conditions in all 

years. Given the varying ‘quality’ of growing seasons experienced in West Sussex in recent years a 

longer period to achieve ecological functionality may well be required. Owing to this, ADC seeks 

advanced planting. Furthermore, as above in Section 6, ADC seeks a commitment for reinstatement 

of the temporary habitat loss within the first planting season rather than within two years of the loss.  

7.25 Stage specific LEMP will be developed to ensure all reinstated habitats are effectively established 

(C-199 of the Commitments Register). For effective restoration, habitats will be subject to appropriate 

maintenance, management (including adaptive management) and monitoring for ten years 

(measured from the time of planting/seeding in each discrete location). Further details on the 

monitoring plan and reporting mechanisms are required for biodiversity net gain. Where habitats are 

included in the biodiversity net gain commitments for ADC, a maintenance and monitoring plan for 

30 years and a legal agreement with ADC is required. 

Page 134



 

36 
 

  

Page 135



 

37 
 

7.26 The following actions are sought: 

• invertebrate survey of Climping Beach SSSI and an assessment of indirect effects (e.g. 

noise/vibration) owing to the presence of rare species and potential HDD beneath; 

• assessment of biodiversity net gain at District level, including a metric assessment and net gain 

plan;  

• consideration of marine biodiversity net gain; and 

• a maintenance and monitoring plan of biodiversity net gain within the District to be agreed and 

secured with ADC through appropriate means.  

 

 

Page 136



 

38 
 

 NOISE AND VIBRATION 

Local Planning Policies 

8.1 The following policies within the adopted Local Plan are considered relevant to the noise and 

vibration aspects of the Project within the District (beyond the South Downs National Park): 

• Policy QE DM1 seeks developers proposing new noise generating development to gain advice 

to determine the level of noise assessment required and for the proposals to be supported by 

evidence that there are no suitable alternative locations for the development;   

• Policy QE SP1 require that developments do not have a significantly negative impact upon 

residential amenity, the natural environment or upon leisure and recreational activities enjoyed 

by residents and visitors to the District; 

• Policy ECC DM1 relating to renewable energy development seeks the location and design to 

minimise adverse impacts, including on noise; and 

• Policy D DM1 seeks proposals to have a minimal impact to users and occupiers of nearby 

property and land, including avoiding unacceptable noise and disturbance.  

8.2 The following is also of relevance to noise and vibration: 

• Planning Noise Advice Document: Sussex (2023)27. 

8.3 On review of Chapter 21 of the ES, it is demonstrated that the Project would be in accordance with 

the above-mentioned policy requirements. 

Key Local Issues and Likely Impacts  

8.4 It is recognised that noise exposure can impact upon quality of life and give rise to adverse health 

effects. Tranquil spaces, often located within the more rural parts of the District play a multi-functional 

role as part of the District's green infrastructure network. One of the most common causes of noise 

pollution is from traffic. 

 

27 Planning Noise Advice Document: Sussex (November 2023): https://www.adur-

worthing.gov.uk/media/Media,121802,smxx.pdf (various authors).  

Page 137

https://www.adur-worthing.gov.uk/media/Media,121802,smxx.pdf
https://www.adur-worthing.gov.uk/media/Media,121802,smxx.pdf


 

39 
 

Noise  
8.5 Significant levels of construction noise and vibration are likely to occur at some sensitive receptors 

during the construction period. The construction period is noted to be approximately 3.5 to four years, 

with construction works delivered in stages. It is noted from Chapter 21 of the ES that with respect 

to HDD, in particular, there is potential for prolonged exposure of sensitive receptors to noisy drilling 

and ancillary works, 24 hours per day over consecutive, often multiple days. Robust control 

measures will need to be secured to minimise the effects on residents/communities.  

8.6 BS 5228-1:2009 + A1:2014 and “the ABC method” seek to protect sensitive receptors whilst 

acknowledging the inherent noise associated with construction activities. The trigger values set out 

in Chapter 21 of the ES replicate Table E.2 of BS5228, in particular, for the 08:00 – 18:00 time period. 

However, the proposed construction hours are stated as 07:00 – 19:00 hours where for the shoulder 

hours are (07:00 – 08:00 and 18:00 – 19:00) Table E.2 BS 5228-1:2009 + A1:2014 suggests a trigger 

value of 70dB LAeq, T therefore the trigger values do not fully accord with this guidance. 

8.7 There are certain points along the onshore cable corridor and, in particular, trenchless crossings that 

are very close to noise sensitive receptors. Due to the proximity of works, duration of works and/or 

type of works (which include significant noise sources such as HDD which may necessitate 24-hour 

operation) there are likely to be periods when construction noise levels could cause significant 

disturbance and exceed “Category A” threshold values during the nighttime period. These include 

locations near Decoy Wood, Poling, Lyminster, Littlehampton and Climping beach (TC01, TCO1A, 

TCO2, TC03, TC03a, TCO5, TC06, TCO7a, TC08, TC09, TC10, TC10A, TC11, TC16, TC17, TC17a, 

TC19a, TC20, TC21, TC22, TC22a, TC23 and TC24 as set out in Chapter 21 (Table 21-30) of the 

ES and  as shown in the Figures of Chapter 4 of the ES). It is therefore considered that enhanced 

mitigation may need to be employed to adequately protect residents close to these locations. This 

will need to be addressed in the CoCP along with C-26 of the Commitment Register.  

8.8 ADC Environmental Health Department has not previously been consulted on the proposed final 

location and use of Climping Compound. As described in Section 4, there are concerns regarding 

the substantial size of Climping Compound, covering 6.13ha and limited detailed provided on its use. 

The draft DCO refers to Work No.10 only as a ‘temporary construction compound’. Whilst 

appreciated a degree of flexibility is required, further detail of Climping Compound, including 

justification for the substantial size, is sought. 

  

Page 138



 

40 
 

8.9 There are concerns regarding the lack of representative baseline noise monitoring in the ES for noise 

sensitive locations in the vicinity of the Climping Compound (Work No.10). Only data for a single 

location to the south-east of the compound has been presented and these data do not accurately 

characterise existing baseline noise conditions at nearby noise sensitive receptors, in particular, at: 

• Climping village; 

• Climping Caravan Park immediately east of Climping Compound;  

• Climping C of E Primary School;  

• Climping Village Hall and playing field; 

• glamping site at Cuckoo Farm; and 

• land to the West of Church Lane South of Horsemere Green Lane (proposed residential 

development (Ref CM/48/21/RES) immediately adjacent to the western boundary of Climping 

Compound). Whilst Chapter 21 of the ES suggests a low certainty of construction overlap, it is 

of the view of ADC that the residential development is likely to coincide with the use of Climping 

Compound, should the reserved matters application be approved.  

8.10 There are concerns regarding the potential effect of Heavy Good Vehicle (HGV) movements on 

existing quiet residential roads, particularly access to the onshore cable corridor west of Benjamin 

Gray Drive. Chapter 21 of the ES states that the vehicular numbers for operational and maintenance 

traffic will be minimal and below threshold values for a change in traffic noise. The concerns raised 

are not solely related to increases in traffic flows but also the change in composition of traffic and 

magnitude of noise on dwellings along quiet access roads. 

8.11 The construction works are considered to result in negative local effects, however, to reduce the 

negative local effects resulting from noise, embedded mitigation measures are proposed within the 

Commitments Register, which are discussed in the subsequent section. Subject to the further 

detailed design and appropriate insertion loss performance of any noise mitigation, which will need 

to be included within a stage specific CoCP and, subject to other regulatory controls (prior consent 

under Section 61 of the Control Pollution Act 1974) at the most noise sensitive locations, construction 

works could be reduced to a neutral local effect. 

8.12 Once the construction works are completed and the Project operational, the likely effects within the 

District would be limited to offshore wind turbine noise. A number of other aspects, such as 

operational traffic was agreed to be scoped out of the ES by the Planning Inspectorate.  

  

Page 139



 

41 
 

8.13 Appendix 21.3 of the ES provides preliminary wind turbine noise predictions based on several 

‘candidate’ turbines including the cumulative impact of Rampion 1. Given that the design and layout 

of the WTG is not known at this stage, a number of scenarios are modelled. These are considered 

to represent worst case noise emissions, with receptor locations modelled at the shoreline. A 

statement is also made that ‘the final design of the wind farm is substantially smaller than the 

scenarios modelled’. The resultant modelling outputs demonstrate that based on the information 

available at the time of the modelling, operational noise levels are considered to achieve the 35 dB 

LA90 lower limit, as set out in ETSU-R-97 The Assessment and Rating of Noise from Wind Farms 

(The Working Group on Noise from Wind Turbines, 1996). However, ADC request that noise 

modelling is re-run once the Project has progressed to the final turbine types and layout as this may 

influence the worst case predicted noise levels. 

8.14 In light of the above and, considering a number of worse case assumptions in the modelling 

scenarios, the operational noise and vibration effects are considered to be neutral. 

Vibration  
8.15 Potential perceptible vibration effects are predicted at properties close to a number of HDD crossings 

(HDD05-N, HDD05-SW, HDD07-N, HDD07-S, HDD10-S, HDD10-W and HDD11-S in Lyminster, 

Poling, Hammerpot and Angmering Park, as identified in Chapter 21 (Table 21.36) of the ES) where 

the Peak Particle Velocity (PPV) threshold for low impact is exceeded by over double at some 

locations. Whilst only receptors within 100m were assessed, it’s likely that properties beyond 100m 

may also be subject to such effects. Reference is made to C-33 (outline CoCP) of the Commitments 

Register, however, no further detail has been provided to justify reducing magnitude of change from 

medium to low. 

8.16 High risk impacts are identified at a number of locations (Michaelgrove Lane, North Lodge and 

residence to the north, Spearfield Stud and Livery) from the vibration effects from construction road 

traffic (note earlier concerns regarding traffic composition on Benjamin Gray Drive). It is noted that 

any residence within 2m of the irregularity would experience an impact of high magnitude and any 

residence within 5m of an HGV travelling over an irregularity at 50mph would experience a high 

impact. 

8.17 The construction works are considered to result in negative local effects. Subject to the further 

detailed design and appropriate insertion loss performance of any proposed mitigation (commitment 

C-26 and C-160 of the Commitments Register), which will need to be included within a stage specific 

CoCP, and where appropriate, subject to other regulatory controls (prior consent under Section 61 

of the Control Pollution Act 1974) at the most vibration sensitive locations, construction works could 

be reduced to a neutral local effect. 

Page 140



 

42 
 

Adequacy of the DCO Application, Actions and Commitments  

8.18 There is an expectation that the principles and requirements of BS 5228-1:2009+A1:2014 ‘Code of 

practice for noise and vibration control on construction and open sites’ – Part 1: Noise and BS 5228- 

2:2009+A1:2014 ‘Code of practice for noise and vibration control on construction and open sites’ – 

Part 2: ‘Vibration’ be implemented in full to reduce the impact on sensitive receptors and this has 

broadly been adopted within the measures set out in the ES.  

8.19 The preliminary construction noise assessments may require further refinement for the stage specific 

CoCP in terms of the finalised construction plant and machinery, location and on-times, as set out in 

the Commitment Register (C-263). 

8.20 The Commitment Register sets out embedded mitigation measures, principally through commitments 

C-22 (core working hours), C-26 (best practicable means), C-263 (and revision of construction noise 

assessments at design stage). The adequacy of such measures is unclear until further refinement of 

the construction noise predictions is undertaken.  Commitment C-263 suggests that the adequacy of 

the construction noise assessments will be reviewed by contractors to ascertain if there is ‘any 

significant deviation’ from the initial sound level predictions. The competency of the contractor to 

review sound level predictions is questioned and the term ‘significant deviation’ should be quantified. 

8.21 The absence of proposed noise and vibration monitoring from the Commitment Register is noted and 

it is anticipated that for the worst-case locations (i.e. close to HDD crossings) that continuous noise 

and vibration monitoring should be undertaken and secured through the stage specific CoCP. 

8.22 In terms of construction noise, ADC request that the Outline CoCP is updated to include: 

• commitment to augment the existing baseline noise surveys to include those areas identified 

where representative baseline noise levels are not provided (Climping village, Climping Caravan 

Park, Climping C of E Primary School, Climping Village Hall and play area and the glamping site 

at Cuckoo Farm), together with at the location of the proposed residential development 

(CM/48/21/RES). Additional locations would need to be agreed with ADC and included in an 

updated construction noise assessment for stage specific CoCP; 

• commitment that the stage specific CoCP will be informed by an updated assessment of 

construction noise effects as and when they are available, to include provide noise modelling 

inputs for construction compound predictions (including concrete batching plant), revised trigger 

levels for shoulder hours, corrections for uncertainty; 

• commitment construction noise and vibration monitoring will be included in the stage specific 

CoCP and would be agreed with ADC; 

Page 141



 

43 
 

• where despite mitigation measures are implemented and residual noise and/or vibration effects 

are predicted to arise, consideration should be given to the temporary relocation of residents 

affected by 24-hour drilling as a method of mitigation where HDD (or other noisy working) is 

scheduled to proceed for 24 hours per day for longer than 48 consecutive hours;   

• commitment that prior to undertaking any essential night-time working, the timing and duration 

of such works will be approved with ADC through an agreed process to be included in the CoCP 

i.e. application to ADC for prior approval under Section 61 of the Control of Pollution Act 1974; 

and  

• commitment that core working hours for Climping Compound to be restricted to Monday to Friday 

08:00 to 19:00 hours and Saturday 09:00 to 13:00 hours due to longevity of construction period 

and proximity of sensitive receptors. 

8.23 As detailed in Appendix 21.3 of the ES, further noise modelling of WTG noise is required once the 

Project has advanced to the finalised wind turbine selection and layout, so that likely noise effects at 

the shoreline and residential locations can be re-evaluated. Updated noise predictions and 

assessment of wind farm noise to be submitted and agreed with ADC. 

 

 

Page 142



 

44 
 

 HISTORICAL ENVIRONMENT 

Local Planning Policies 

9.1 The following policies within the adopted Local Plan are considered relevant to the historical 

environment aspects of the Project within the District (beyond the South Downs National Park). 

• Policy HER SP1 seeks to conserve or enhance the historic environment. Designated heritage 

assets will be given the highest level of protection and should be conserved and enhanced in a 

manner appropriate to their significance. Non-designated heritage assets and their settings will 

also need to be conserved and enhanced appropriate to their significance and contribution to the 

historic environment; 

• Policy HER DM1 seeks that development affecting statutory listed buildings will be required to 

preserve or enhance the historic character, qualities and special interest of the buildings and 

their settings; 

• Policy HER DM2 regarding the alteration or extension of buildings on the Local list will be 

expected to relate sensitively to the building or structure and its setting and respect its 

architectural, landscape or historic interest. Demolition will only be consented where it can be 

demonstrated that the building or structure cannot be put to a beneficial use or re-use. 

Replacement structures will need to be of a high-quality design; and 

• Policy HER DM3 seeks to preserve or enhance the character or appearance of the conservation 

area. Planning permission or relevant consent will normally be granted for proposals within or 

affecting the setting of a conservation area, provided that the proposals do not cause harm. 

9.2 The policy within the following ‘made’ Neighbourhood Plan is considered relevant to identifying non-

designated heritage assets that could be significantly affected by the Project: 

• Policy 17 of the Littlehampton Neighbourhood Plan identifies properties in Appendix 4 as locally 

important heritage assets, which of relevance to this Project are 16 Granville Road, 48 - 95 South 

Terrace. The effects on the significance of these non-designated heritage assets will be taken 

into account to avoid or minimise conflict with the heritage asset. 

  

Page 143



 

45 
 

9.3 The following is also of relevance to the historical environment: 

• Conservation Areas Management Plan (2014)28; and 

• Conservation Areas Supplementary Planning Guidance (2000)29. 

9.4 The negative effects of the compounds (landfall compounds near Climping beach (Work No.8), the 

trenchless crossing compounds within Work No.9 and Climping Compound (Work No.10)) during the 

construction works would not accord with the above policies with regard to the setting of the affected 

heritage assets, especially the Grade II listed buildings: Climping Mill, St John’s Cottage (NHLE 

1027590), Decoy Cottage and Newplace Farmhouse (NHLE 1232882), Church Farmhouse East and 

Church Farmhouse West (NHLE 1027643), Old Vicarage; and also the Grade I listed St Marys 

Church, together with the setting of Lyminster Conservation Area.  

9.5 However, when the construction works are completed and the Project operational, the Project would 

generally comply with the overall aims of the policies in terms of the impact of the significance of the 

heritage assets and their setting.  

Key Local Issues and Likely Impacts  

Listed Buildings and Locally Listed Buildings 
9.6 There are numerous listed buildings and locally listed buildings within and immediately adjacent to 

the DCO Limits of the Project, particularly around Climping, Littlehampton and Lyminster. Owing to 

the heritage assets on or within proximity to the Project, the principal concerns and effects are 

considered to be in relation to construction activities as set out below. 

  

 

28 Arun District Council (2014) “Conservation Areas Management Plan Consultation”. Available at 

[https://www.arun.gov.uk/conservation-areas/] Accessed 4 December 2023 

29 Arun District Council (2000) “Conservation Areas Supplementary Planning Guidance”. Available at 

[https://www.arun.gov.uk/supplementary-planning-documents-spds/] Accessed 4 December 2023 

Page 144



 

46 
 

9.7 ADC has concerns regarding the visual effects associated with the temporary trenchless crossing 

compounds and the landfall compounds near Climping beach. As noted for the Grade II listed 

Climping Mill, the landfall compound (Work No. 8) near Climping beach will be clearly visible from 

the asset, as reported in Chapter 25 of the ES. This compound is also close to other listed buildings, 

such as the Grade II listed buildings at Kent’s Farm (NHLE 1027674, NHLE 1233446, NHLE 

1233447), Brookpit Manor and Brookpit Cottage. It is also noted that a trenchless crossing compound 

within the onshore cable corridor (Work No.9) is close to the following Grade II listed buildings: St 

John’s Cottage (NHLE 1027590), Decoy Cottage and Newplace Farmhouse (NHLE 1232882).  

9.8 The location and size of Climping Compound (Work No.10) is such that it would be close to the part 

of the historic core of Climping, listed buildings and Scheduled Monument. This together with the 

likely nature of the uses within the compound (such as welfare cabins, a concrete batching plant up 

to 20m in height) would impact upon the wider setting of the assets and historic core of Climping. 

9.9 As a result, the construction works would alter the setting of heritage asset, but not the operational 

stage i.e. this will not harm the understanding of its historic and architectural interests. The 

construction works would introduce what is identified within Chapter 25 of the ES as ‘new visual and 

audible elements to the asset’s setting via the presence of trenchless crossing compounds’. It is 

acknowledged that these works would be ‘temporary’ or ‘short term’ but that for the duration of these 

works, the effect upon the setting of the heritage assets would be negative.  

Conservation Areas and Area of Character 
9.10 Conservation Areas of relevance to this Project have been identified within the District (beyond the 

South Downs National Park), as follows: 

• Aldwick Bay Conservation Area; 

• Craigweil House, Aldwick Conservation Area; 

• Aldwick Road, Bognor Conservation Area; 

• The Steyne, Bognor Conservation Area; 

• Littlehampton (River Road) Conservation Area; 

• Littlehampton (Sea Front) Conservation Area; 

• Lyminster Conservation Area; and  

• Poling Conservation Area. 

Page 145



 

47 
 

9.11 Both Aldwick Bay and Craigweil House Conservation Areas were developed in the early 20th century 

as planned estates where the setting includes the coast. The special character derives from the low 

density layout, the high quality of the buildings in materials and style, and landscaped gardens and 

verges. It is a very good example of a 1920 —1930’s planned Estate. 

9.12 The Aldwick Road Conservation Area is characterised by early 19th century Victorian and Edwardian 

terraces that were developed as part of a westward expansion of Bognor Regis. Again, the coast to 

the south of the Conservation Area forms part of its setting.  

9.13 The Steyne, Bognor Conservation Area is located immediately west of the town centre and is centred 

on an area developed in the late 18/19th century. It is illustrative of the development of the town as a 

seaside resort by its founder, Sir Richard Hotham. Within the Conservation Area, there are two areas 

of open space, each with terraces that front on to them. The terraces are predominantly two/three 

storeys in height and rendered. Of note is the imposing Royal Norfolk Hotel, dating from the 1840’s, 

which is set back diagonally across the corner of Aldwick Road and West Street, which faces out to 

the sea. The seascape is a major contributor to the areas setting.  

9.14 The Littlehampton (River Road) Conservation Area is west of Littlehampton town centre and runs 

parallel to the River Arun. The area covered by the designation was developed in stages during the 

first half of the 19th century. Buildings were originally occupied by town dignitaries and those who 

had an interest in the sea and seafaring. Where there were wharfs are now modern buildings, which 

somewhat separate the Conservation Area from the river, although views are possible from the river 

front walk. 

9.15 The Littlehampton (Sea Front) Conservation Area contains terraces from a range of periods. Of note 

are the oldest buildings along South Terrace, which consist of three storey Georgian and Regency 

properties built in pairs and short rows as part of a longer terrace. These are domestic in scale and 

as each pair or group was built individually, there is a variety of detail but without the loss of harmony. 

The Greensward (an area of open space) immediately south of the Conservation Area affords views 

towards the sea/beach from the majority of the buildings along South Terrace. The regular building 

line and design represent the architectural intentions of the architects/builders to incorporate visual 

links of the seascape.  

9.16 Lyminster Conservation Area is a small, attractive rural settlement between Littlehampton and 

Arundel. It is characterised by buildings of various scale, style, date and materials. There is an 

informality of layout enhanced by mature landscaping and verges. Flint walling is also an important 

feature of the area, including substantial high walling at the eastern end of Church Lane. The setting 

of the Conservation Area consists of the surrounding rural landscape. 

Page 146



 

48 
 

9.17 Poling Conservation Area is split into two distinct parts, separated by more recent development. The 

eastern part comprises the medieval core of Poling with the Grade I listed church and the western 

part consists of an informal arrangement of houses of a traditional appearance set within a lane. The 

setting of the Conservation Area consists of the surrounding rural landscape.  

9.18 Within the Conservation Areas described above are listed (designated heritage assets) and locally 

listed buildings (non-designated heritage assets). The Conservation Areas, except for Lyminster, 

Poling and Littlehampton (River Road), are located on or close to the coast. 

9.19 Construction works would result in a temporary change to the setting of Lyminster Conservation 

Area. As described in Chapter 25 of the ES, the construction works would introduce ‘new visible and 

audible elements to the immediate proximity of the conservation area, in contrast with the general 

sense of a rural, agricultural basis for the settlement and individual buildings’. The result would be a 

negative effect. The construction works would also potentially have a negative effect on the wider 

setting of the Poling Conservation Area, including the approach from the north, which would pass 

the construction works.  It is acknowledged that the negative effects would be temporary and, as a 

result, would not permanently harm the setting of the Conservation Area. Consideration should, 

however, be afforded to the access points and trenchless crossing compounds.  

9.20 As evidenced in Viewpoint 12 from Bognor Regis promenade (Figure 15.37 of the ES), the WTG of 

the Project from this viewpoint appear more visible and prominent compared to Rampion 1 WTG. It 

is clear that for both Bognor Regis and Littlehampton (which includes the Aldwick Road, Bognor 

Conservation Area, The Steyne, Bognor Conservation Area, the Littlehampton (Sea Front) 

Conservation Area and the South Terrace Area of Character) the WTG would be visible in sea views. 

This is described in Chapter 25 of the ES as the ‘presence of new, clearly modern visual elements 

in long distance views’ or contributing a ‘framing to seaward views rather than interruption’. The 

seascape setting contributes to the interests of these Conservation Areas; this is agreed within the 

heritage baseline assessment. Of note is the fact that for the Bognor Regis (The Steyne) 

Conservation Area ‘The visual relationship between the seascape to much of the southern extent of 

the conservation area is the primary contribution of its setting to the area’s interests’. Additionally, for 

Littlehampton (Seafront) Conservation Area, it is thought that ‘The seascape setting contributes to 

the interests of the conservation area’. Having reviewed Chapter 25 of the ES, ADC disagree that 

the WTG would contribute to the framing a view (of the Littlehampton (Seafront) Conservation Area), 

but rather result in an interruption, especially when the structures would be permanently on view from 

the Conservation Areas in views towards the seascape. The WTG, as described above in Section 6 

above and in Chapter 15 of the ES, would result in significant negative visual effects on the coastline 

of the District. 

Page 147



 

49 
 

Adequacy of the DCO Application, Actions and Commitments  

9.21 Chapter 25 of the ES identifies listed buildings where the settings could be affected by the Project. 

However, the ES fails to consider the likely effects of the Project on the setting of the following 

designated heritage and non-designated heritage assets: 

• listed buildings at No. 45 – 47 South Terrace; 

• locally listed buildings at No. 4, 8 – 95 South Terrace and 16 Granville Road; and  

• South Terrace Area of Character. 

9.22 An assessment of the likely effects of the Project on the above heritage assets should be undertaken 

to make sure all the effects on the historic environment are fully understood and mitigated for, where 

possible.  

9.23 As the duration of Climping Compound, landfall compound and trenchless crossing compounds are 

expected to be in use for some time, appropriate landscaping/boundary treatments should be 

implemented to mitigate the effects of the construction activities on the setting of heritage assets 

(see Section 6 for further details). 

Page 148



 

50 
 

 SUMMARY OF MITIGATION, COMPENSATION AND 
REQUIREMENTS 

Mitigation, Monitoring and Compensation 

10.1 ADC has concerns regarding the lack of commitment and certainty to some mitigation, monitoring 

and compensation, together with the mechanisms for securing. An overarching concern is that owing 

to the wording of some mitigation measures in the Commitment Register, it is not definite or certain 

that the measures would be implemented to mitigate or compensate effects. Firmer commitment is 

therefore sought to delivering these mitigation measures, such as a Supply Chain Plan and 

Community Benefits Package. ADC will continue to engage with the Application to make sure 

appropriate mitigation is provided. 

10.2 As described above, ADC is of the opinion that the District will not significantly benefit from the 

Project, rather the area and local communities will experience disruption and significant negative 

effects, some of which are unlikely to be mitigated. Where mitigation is not possible, ADC seeks 

appropriate compensation though a Community Benefits Package (see below).  

10.3 The adequacy of mitigation, compensation and commitments are described above in Section 4 to 

Section 9, with a summary of the key points provided below:  

• owing to very limited detail given within the Outline Skills and Employment Strategy, ADC seeks 

the strategy to be developed further in consultation with ADC to develop opportunities for 

apprenticeships and local education institutes in Arun, together with measures to support local 

SMEs and opportunities for SMEs to access the supply chain;   

• the Outline Skills and Employment Strategy refers to a Community Benefits Package, although 

no details are provided. ADC seeks a firmer commitment to delivering a Community Benefits 

Package such as that provided for Rampion 1 that includes benefits specific to the local 

community in Arun. A Community Benefits Package is considered appropriate to adequately 

compensate for adverse effects that cannot be otherwise mitigated for.  Discussions are sought 

with the Applicant to agree the Community Benefits Package (including the criteria and funding). 

It is requested that this is secured through the DCO; 

• owing to concerns that there is a lack of detail within the Outline CoCP, which would be used to 

inform the detailed staged CoCP, ADC seek an updated Outline CoCP as the control document. 

This Outline CoCP should include firmer commitments for supply chain opportunities for local 

SMEs (see below), baseline noise surveys, updated noise assessments, noise and vibration 

Page 149



 

51 
 

monitoring and core working hours specific to the use of Climping Compound. Such noise 

surveys, assessment, mitigation and monitoring should be agreed with ADC;  

• a firmer commitment to developing a Supply Chain Plan, as whilst this is referred to in C-34 of 

the Commitments Register as exploring opportunities for companies to access the supply chain, 

this should be secured through the CoCP; 

• commitment to preparing and summiting to ADC for approval a Construction Communications 

Plan for Climping Compound. Whilst Construction Communication Plans are referenced in the 

Outline CoCP and Chapter 19 of the ES, it is not referenced specifically in relation to Climping 

Compound, although other locations are suggested as ‘applicable’. ADC request a greater 

commitment for a Construction Communication Plan to be submitted to ADC for approval prior 

to the commencement of works associated with Climping Compound; 

• approval should be sought from ADC for the exact positioning of the concrete batching plant and 

soil/aggregate stockpiles and be placed as far away as possible from residents/other sensitive 

receptors; 

• owing to concerns regarding the lack of biodiversity enhancement within the District, a firmer 

commitment to delivering biodiversity net gain specifically within Arun and for this to be 

demonstrated through a biodiversity net gain assessment at the District level and a maintenance 

and monitoring plan of biodiversity net gain (to be agreed and secured with ADC via appropriate 

means). Net gain should be delivered in accordance with the biodiversity hierarchy. ADC also 

has suggested a contribution to the Sussex Kelp Recovery Project to support marine biodiversity 

net gain; and    

• greater commitment to advanced tree/habitat planting, particularly along boundary/field 

treatments, and for the staged reinstatement of habitats within the first planting season following 

completion of the construction works and backfilling within the section, rather than within two 

years, as currently defined within C-103 of the Commitments Register. 

DCO and Requirements  

10.4 In addition to the above, discussions are sought with the Applicant regarding some of the wording 

within Schedule 1 and the Requirements of the draft DCO to account for the following: 

• to provide a description for Work No.10 in Schedule 1 (comparable detail to other Work No. 

descriptions) of the use of ‘temporary construction compounds’ or provide in another document 

where there is a commitment to comply with the description. This would provide greater clarity 

and certainty of the uses proposed within Climping Compound; 

Page 150



 

52 
 

• it is not clear under what powers the applicant can require landowners to give up their land at 

Climping for a temporary use;  

• with regard to Requirement 10, it will be important that the programme of works secured clearly 

defines the stages, phasing and associated timings of works within the District so that it is clear 

to ADC when Requirements will need to be discharged for the stage specific documents, such 

as the LEMP (Requirement 13) and CoCP (Requirement 22); 

• with regard to Requirement 14, the wording is amended so that the biodiversity net gain strategy 

for stages that relate to areas within Arun is also submitted to and approved by ADC. ADC also 

requires that this is secured by legal agreement if appropriate;  

• with regard to Requirement 33, the wording is amended so that the skills and employment 

strategy is 'agreed with and provided to' the relevant planning authority, which will include ADC; 

and  

• a commitment and a mechanism to secure a Community Benefits Package, which is currently 

not secured.  

10.5 Discussions are sought to agree the role of ADC in the discharge of Requirements that relate to the 

District (beyond the SDNPA), in particular, with regard to stage specific LEMP, detailed/stage specific 

CoCP, biodiversity net gain and skills and employment strategy. With regard to these stage specific 

management plans and strategies, ADC request to be a consultee and for ADC to approve these 

where they relate to the District (beyond the SDNPA) alongside other relevant consultees.  

10.6 Owing to the additional expenditure to ADC in relation to the discharging relevant Requirements and 

S61 applications, ADC seeks to recover the associated costs. ADC would welcome discussions with 

the Applicant on the recovery of costs.  

Page 151



 

53 
 

 SUMMARY 

11.1 The purpose of this Local Impact Report has been to outline the likely effects of Rampion 2 Wind 

Farm at local level on the residents, businesses and the environment within the District of Arun and 

to briefly evaluate these effects in the context of local planning policy.  

11.2 ADC supports renewable energy generation and carbon reduction objectives to meet climate change 

commitments, whilst also promoting economic development and locally skilled jobs. ADC has some 

concerns regarding the negative effects to residents, communities, the local economy and the 

environment. ADC is of the opinion that the District will not significantly benefit from the Project, 

rather the area and local communities will experience disruption and significant negative effects, 

some of which are unlikely to be mitigated. ADC has highlighted where the effects are not considered 

to be compliant with local policy; these are notably in relation to biodiversity, tourism, historic 

environment and visual effects within the District during construction and a lesser extent once 

operational. 

11.3 ADC has sought to identify where further work is considered necessary so that the likely effects can 

be fully understood at local level. ADC has also requested firmer commitments and appropriate 

mitigation and compensation to delivering social, economic and environmental benefits that are 

specific to the District, particularly with regard to biodiversity, education, tourism, employment and 

skills. Where mitigation is not possible, ADC seeks appropriate compensation though a Community 

Benefits Package. ADC will continue to engage with the Applicant to secure the actions and 

commitments required during the Examination period and beyond.  

Page 152



 

54 
 

SOURCES OF INFORMATION FOR FIGURES  

• Landstack, 2023. Available at [https://app.landstack.co.uk/login] 

• DEFRA, 2023. ‘Magic Map’, available at [https://magic.defra.gov.uk/] 

• Historic England, 2023. ‘Search the List’, available at [https://historicengland.org.uk/listing/the-

list/] 

• Arun District Council, 2018. ‘Adopted Local Plan 2011-2031’, available at 

[https://www.arun.gov.uk/adopted-local-plan/] 

 

 

 

 

Page 153



This page is intentionally left blank



 

   N:\_SecureFolders\Group Head of Planning Secure\Rampion Wind Farm 2\Relevant Reps Nov 2023.docx Page 1 of 4 

Arun District Council 

 Civic Centre 

 Maltravers Road 

 Littlehampton 

 West Sussex BN17 5LF 

 

 Tel: 01903 737500 

email: neil.crowther@arun.gov.uk 

www.arun.gov.uk 
 
 

6 November 2023 
 

Please ask for: 

Your Ref: . EN010117 Neil Crowther 

  Planning 

Our Ref:   Direct Line: 01903 737839 

 
Dear Planning Inspectorate 
 
Relevant Representations on behalf of Arun District Council 
 
This letter is Arun District Council’s (ADC) Relevant Representation for Rampion 2 Offshore 
Wind Farm (hereafter referred to as the Project).  
 
ADC supports renewable energy generation and carbon reduction objectives to meet climate 
change commitments, whilst also promoting economic development and locally skilled jobs. 
However, as a host authority of the Project, ADC has some concerns regarding disruption and 
impacts to residents, businesses, the local economy and the environment. The benefits of the 
Project as a whole or beyond Arun will be of limited value to residents and local businesses 
who face disruption during construction. We will continue to engage with the Applicant to make 
sure that should the Project be granted, the Project delivers social, economic and 
environmental benefits to Arun that outweighs the disruption.  
 
ADC is the planning authority for Arun, with the exception of the area of Arun within the South 
Downs National Park. West Sussex County Council is the highways authority, education 
authority and Lead Local Flood Authority that covers Arun. The initial principal areas of concern 
set out below therefore relate largely to subject and geographical areas which ADC has 
primary responsibility.  
 
1. General 

• There is considered to be insufficient evidence and justification for selection of some 
aspects of the Project and the alternatives studied by the Applicant, taking into account 
environmental effects. 

• ADC has concerns about the location, substantial size and the likely effects of Climping 
Compound during the construction period.  

• ADC has concerns of the lack of commitment and securing mechanism of mitigation, 
monitoring and compensation. It is not always clear mitigation/compensation is followed 
though to a securing mechanism and the Commitments Register appears more 
aspirational rather than embedded environmental measures.  

 
 
 

 
By email only 
rampion2@planninginspectorate.gov.uk 

Page 155

mailto:rampion2@planninginspectorate.gov.uk


 

   N:\_SecureFolders\Group Head of Planning Secure\Rampion Wind Farm 2\Relevant Reps Nov 2023.docx Page 2 of 4 

2. Socio-economics/Economics/Tourism  

• Outline Skills and Employment Strategy – limited detail is outlined within the Outline 
Skills and Employment Strategy and ADC is not listed as a consultee to this document. 
This is a concern given the adverse effects the District will experience during 
construction. ADC is expecting to be a recipient and consultee regarding benefits – 
being particularly interested in learning related opportunities at all levels including 
apprenticeships and universities. The Strategy is very high-level and it is not clear how 
different elements inter relate, for example, para. 2.3.3 refers to “Encouraging and 
supporting growth and employment in local supply chain companies… Increasing 
visibility of local SMEs” whereas supporting local business is not included as an 
objective in para 5.1.2. Further to this, the Environmental Statement (ES) (Chapter 17, 
Table 17.19) cites “RED will identify opportunities for companies based or operating in 
the region to access supply chain for the Proposed Development” as being secured 
through measure C-34 in the Outline Code of Construction Practice (OCCP). This 
measure, however, is not within the OCCP.   

• Community Benefits Package - ADC has concerns about securing benefits from this 
package. Reference is made to the Community Benefits Package in the Outline Skills 
and Employment Strategy. Due to adverse effects identified (below) the Community 
Benefits Package is necessary to assist in mitigation.  

• Jobs – ADC has concerns that there will be a low number of locally skilled jobs created 
in Arun from the Project. The construction benefits are described in the ES as being 80 
jobs across Sussex and operational benefits as being 100-110 jobs across Sussex 
(Chapter 17, Tables 17.25 and 17.32). The potential for employment by location may 
be influenced by the Skills and Employment Strategy in terms of preparing and 
informing local business. Details on this are therefore important.  

• Tourism – ADC has concerns regarding displaced tourism from Arun. The ES (Chapter 
17) notes that regarding construction effects of wind farms ‘the research typically 
focusses on measuring opinions of what the impacts on the visitor economy could be 
prior to implementation of the scheme. However, ex-post research suggests that even 
where there have been negative effects, these often occur in the form of displaced 
tourism with visitors diverting to neighbouring areas instead’. Whilst this may be 
considered a neutral effect at the wider area level, it suggests areas directly affected by 
construction such as Arun will experience at least temporary adverse effects.  

• Tourism Assets – ADC has concerns regarding the adverse effects on tourist assets 
within Arun. Chapter 17 of the ES states that at the local level ‘installation activity along 
the onshore cable corridor may have a negative impact on walking and cycling routes, 
coastal paths, holiday parks and other tourism-related assets that are located in close 
proximity to onshore construction works… the assessment concludes that during the 
construction phase there would be major / moderate, and therefore significant effects 
on a limited number of tourist destinations. These locations are Climping Beach, 
Climping Camp Site, Climping Caravan Park and Washington Caravan Park’. Many of 
these locations are in Arun and there are more in the vicinity of Climping Compound. 
Whilst at County level, it may be a negligible effect, however for Arun, the effect on 
residents and local businesses will be significant in some instances and this should be 
identified and mitigated.  

• Amenity – concerns regarding the significant effects on public rights of way within Arun, 
some of which are heavily used.  

• Strategic Housing Allocation - the cable route crosses the housing allocation ‘Strategic 
Housing Allocation SD4 Littlehampton – West Bank’ as identified in the Arun Local Plan 
(adopted 2018). No assessment has been identified which considers the effect on the 
strategic housing allocation and cable route in terms of the implications and any 
sterilisation of land.  

Page 156



 

   N:\_SecureFolders\Group Head of Planning Secure\Rampion Wind Farm 2\Relevant Reps Nov 2023.docx Page 3 of 4 

 
3. Seascape, Landscape and Visual  

• ADC acknowledge that the spatial extent of the offshore array area and quantity of wind 
turbine generators has been reduced. However, ADC continues to have significant 
concerns regarding the scale relative to the proximity to the coastline and the resulting 
significant visual effects.  

• ADC has significant concerns regarding the visual effects associated with the temporary 
(approximately 3 years and 5 months) construction horizontal directional (HDD) 
compound and Climping Compound, which is of a significant size and duration.  

• ADC also has concerns regarding onshore landscape scarring and the effects on 
landscape landform and visual character. Reference is made to restatement of 
construction compounds and onshore cable corridors. We expect reinstatement to be 
an appropriate like for like replacement, taking into account new/emerging threats from 
diseases and biodiversity enhancements. 

• ADC note that the onshore cable route has been refined to approximately 40m in width 
with permanent infrastructure corridor width up to 25m (or wider at trenchless crossing 
locations). We seek clarification and detail on the surface treatments within these 
permanent infrastructure corridors, any requirements for easements in these areas and 
whether this impacts reinstatement.  

• We note that the landscape reinstatement will be subject to an on-going minimum 10-
year monitoring programme. The maintenance programme will need to align and 
comply with the requirements of the biodiversity net gain for Nationally Significant 
Infrastructure Projects, which is expected to come into force in 2025; the same year the 
Project is planned to commence construction. 
 

4. Terrestrial and Marine Ecology  

• ADC has significant concerns regarding the cable route passing beneath and near to 
the Climping Site of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI) and ecological sensitive areas. 
Nationally scarce invertebrates have been identified on the sand dunes of Climping 
beach. We note access would be restricted in the SSSI and no groundbreaking activity. 
However, the potential for indirect effects is unclear and unplanned events could lead 
to localised degradation of habitat within the SSSI, which is of a concern.  

• We note that the Applicant seeks to achieve biodiversity net gain of at least ten percent 
onshore for the Project. Biodiversity net gain has not been assessed at the district level. 
We would expect biodiversity net gain to be achieved within the administrative area of 
Arun. 

• We acknowledge that marine biodiversity is not yet mandatory and the Applicant is 
exploring opportunities for marine benefits. ADC would expect marine benefits and 
contribution to marine restoration projects such as Help the Kelp. Consideration should 
be given to a marine biodiversity net gain assessment.  
 

5. Noise  

• There are concerns regarding the adequacy of the noise assessment which in ADC’s 
view may underestimate the construction and operation noise effects (of the proposed 
Climping Compound). ADC has concerns regarding the modelling of the noise sources, 
adequacy of the assessment of background noise levels (in relation to the Climping 
Compound), omissions from the assessment and validity of the assessment method. 
Further information is required before ADC can determine whether the assessment is a 
representative assessment of construction noise and vibration. 

 
 
 

Page 157



 

   N:\_SecureFolders\Group Head of Planning Secure\Rampion Wind Farm 2\Relevant Reps Nov 2023.docx Page 4 of 4 

6. Historic Environment  

• ADC has identified and prepared a list buildings and areas of character which are non-
designated heritage assets. There are two associated Local Plan policies (HER DM2 
and HER DM4). In terms areas of character, some adjoin conservation areas in 
Littlehampton. The most relevant is the South Terrace Area of Character adjoining the 
Littlehampton Seafront Conservation Area. Within the historic environment assessment 
(Chapter 25 of the ES), it states that ‘Assessment of effects on Locally Listed Buildings 
or Structures of Character and Areas of Character, as identified by Arun District Council, 
is presented in Sections 25.9 to 25.11’. An assessment has not been undertaken for 
non-designated heritage assets, even though some are within the 1km study area. In 
Appendix 25.7 of the ES, Table 5.1 consists of the Step 1 Assessment which fails to 
identify No’s 45-47 South Terrace, which are listed buildings. It also fails to identify any 
of the locally listed buildings or Area of Character.  

 
7. Human Health and Population 

• Within the population and human health assessment (Chapter 28 of the ES), we seek 

clarification as to why a determination for sensitivity and magnitude can produce two 

different outcomes. A low sensitivity and a high magnitude of impact can deliver a minor 

or moderate effect. This ambiguity could lead to a misunderstanding as to whether the 

Project leads to a non-significant or significant effect on a particular receptor.  

• The Equalities Impact Assessment (Appendix 28.3 of the ES) is based on the Equalities 

Act and makes specific reference to ‘protected characteristics’ as defined in Section 4 

of the Equalities Act. However, the assessment (Tables 1.4, 1.5 and 1.6) is not limited 

to the protected characteristics (i.e. age, sex, race, religion etc.). Clarification is 

therefore required to assess the protected characteristics as per the Equalities Act. 

 

If you wish to discuss the contents of this letter, or if there is anything you do not understand, 

please contact me. 

Yours sincerely 
 

 
Neil Crowther  
Group Head of Planning 
Arun District Council 

Page 158



 

 

Arun District Council 

Arun Civic Centre 

Maltravers Road 

Littlehampton 

West Sussex, BN17 5LF 

 

Tel: 01903 737500 

          Fax: 01903 730442 

           DX: 57406 Littlehampton 

           Minicom: 01903 732765 

           e-mail: neil.crowther@arun.gov.uk 

 
 

          Date 14 September 2021 

 

  

 

Please ask for: 

Your Ref:   Neil Crowther 

           Group Head of Planning  

Our Ref: NC Direct Dial:  01903 737839 

 

By email only to: Rampion2@rwe.com 
 

Dear Eleri 
 
Consultation response into Rampion 2 Consultation 
 
I write in response to your letter dated 13 July 2021 inviting Arun District Council (ADC) to 
comment in response to the Section 42 Notice and the proposals for Rampion 2 Wind 
Farm. 
 
ADC considered their response to the Consultation at the Planning Committee on 8 
September 2021. A copy of the report to the Committee can be found at; 
 
www.democracy.arun.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=137&MId=1508&Ver=4 
 
ADC welcomes the opportunity to comment on the Preliminary Environmental Impact 
Report (PEIR) provided by RWE. Based on the information available to date, Arun is not 
yet in a position to support the proposals and therefore wishes to subject a holding 
objection to the proposals for the following reasons. 
 

• Site selection/Alternatives. It is considered that the site selection and consideration 

of alternative is essential if there is to be a very large-scale and visually dominant 

offshore wind farm. 

• The Council has significant concerns regarding the scale of the proposals relative to 

their proximity to the coastline. It is noted that the proposed turbines are 

substantially larger than the existing Rampion 1 turbines and the visual impacts of 

the proposals will be enormous. The combination of the size of the turbines and the 

quantity of them lead ADC to conclude that the proposals are an overdevelopment 

in this location. 

• ADC concludes that the larger turbines should be located further offshore or 

elsewhere. 

 

 

Page 159

http://www.democracy.arun.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=137&MId=1508&Ver=4


 

 

• ADC would expect that specific visual impact assessment work was carried out for 

sensitive locations such as Conservation Areas, coastline open spaces and tourism 

locations. 

• ADC recognises that the views to the sea are one of the prime attractions for 

residents and visitors to the District. The potential impact on economy and tourism 

is unknown. More information and assessment is required. ADC would like to 

understand what the impact of such large proposals has been on the economy of 

other coastal towns as a result of similar proposals.  

• It is noted that the economic benefits during the construction period are forecast to 

exceptionally low within West Sussex as a whole. The economic benefits of the 

proposals appear to be very limited. The Council wishes to secure training 

programmes for locals as part of the construction and maintenance of a wind farm. 

It would also wish to secure much greater economic benefits and mitigation through 

things such as development funds and tourism funds. 

• The full Environmental Impact Assessment should consider the impact on 

designated and non-designated heritage assets. If works are consented any impact 

upon a heritage asset should be mitigated appropriately. 

• Biodiversity Net Gain should be secured through the works required in the re-

instatement programme following the installation of the underground cables and a 

long-term management plan should be included. 

• Impact on habitat loss and disturbance. ADC would expect that these impacts can 

be fully mitigated. 

• Any intrusions into the landscape or installations (i.e. fencing, maintenance 

requirements etc) should include appropriate landscape remediation and mitigation 

works to ensure that there is no detrimental impact to landscape character. 

Mitigation through landscaping schemes should be undertaken in accordance with 

abroricultural guidelines and should both inform, and respond to, the results of the 

Landscape Visual Impact Assessment. 

• Highways impacts from construction phase will be critical in terms of where 

construction compounds will be located and where construction traffic will be 

routed.  

• ADC would expect the applicant to go above and beyond its statutory duty to 

engage on a meaningful basis with the public and key stakeholders within the 

District. Any reasonable consultation response should be demonstrably entertained 

and considered in the formulation of the final proposals. ADC would also expect the 

applicant to liaise with local residents and ADC throughout the period of 

construction to minimise disruption and to ensure that tourism opportunities are not 

hindered. 

ADC will be instructing a Local Impact Report to consider in more detail many of these 
issues and intend to submit this, when it is available, in response to the formal proposals 
and to the Examination. 
 
Appended to this letter are full consultation responses received from ADC internal 
consultees. 
 

Page 160



 

 

Yours sincerely 

 

 
 
Neil Crowther 
Group Head of Planning 
 

Page 161



 

 

Environmental Health 
 
Chapter 22: Noise and Vibration. 
Base line survey and Table 22-25. I note that a baseline noise survey is intended now that Step 4 
COVID easing has been applied.  Arun EHD would be pleased to consult on these findings (page 
21). In the first instance however, I would recommend close liaison with Arun Planning Department 
to inform the careful selection of any survey position based around existing and proposed sites for 
noise sensitive development within and around the 5 years Rampion 2 development framework.  
Paragraph 22.8.25. typing error SOAEL +10dB? 
Paragraph 22.9.42. The degree and extent to which residential sensitive receptors (within 20m, or 
even 10m) may be exposed to unsatisfactory levels of noise will need careful evaluation, 
particularly in consideration of any evening or night-time working, or where evening/night-time 
working is continuous with day-time working and where noise screening has been evaluated as 
impractical for the works (paragraph 22.9.43) 
Paragraph 22.9.44 and 22.16.3. Selected roads/lanes may be unsuitable for HGV traffic, not only 
from the point of view of noise exposure to gardens and habitable rooms but given that 
houses/gardens may exit directly onto currently quiet roads, with no provision for pavements and 
pedestrian safety.  
Crossbush and Warningcamp: Night-time noise exposure should also be considered.  
depending on the decided route of cable laying and required access to project sites, by vehicles, 
including HGV’s. 
 
General:  
i. it would be useful if a map, demonstrating the route of the proposed works in relation to the 
location of stated sensitive receptors was provided in this section. 
ii. Table 22-22. Please provide the current levels of noise experienced on relevant roads and for 
example, bearing in mind that the Lyminster By-Pass is now under construction. 
iii. Table 22-28 - I trust (as above) that further consultation will take place to inform a decision as to 
the final location of the proposed 4 construction compounds, vehicle access and use of minor 
roads. 
*although the document refers to many work items as ‘temporary’ this may be for a period of 
months or even years and is unlikely to be viewed as acceptable by noise sensitive receptors. 
*please could a link be added to describe stated C22, C-26, C-33 etc, for example - Appendix A:- 
 
https://infrastructure.planninginspectorate.gov.uk/wp-
content/ipc/uploads/projects/EN010117/EN010117-000006-EN010117%20-
%20Scoping%20Report.pdf  
 
Air Quality 
In 20.3.10 MSDC suggested that RED should consider providing charging points for electric 
vehicles at the onshore substation – Arun supports this suggestion and would expand to suggest 
that any permanent sites which will be visited during the operation phase should have EV charge 
points and as part of a construction management plan as many vehicles as possible used at the 
sites should be low emission vehicles.  
 
Modelling  
The report states in 20.4.8 that the peak of construction road traffic is taken to occur in 2026 for the 
purpose of determining vehicle emission factors however in 20.8.2 it states that the Road traffic for 
the construction phase has been modelled as part of the transport assessment for three scenarios: 
a 2019 baseline; a 2024 without the Proposed Development; and a 2024 with the Proposed 
Development. Please explain why the peak of construction road traffic is taken to occur in 2026 and 
emission factors for this year have been used in the model which would assume lower emissions 
from newer vehicles but the completed scenarios are based on 2024. Why have corresponding 
years not been used and why is construction assumed to be in 2026 in one section but completion 
prior to this in 2024 in another section?   
 
 
 

Page 162

https://infrastructure.planninginspectorate.gov.uk/wp-content/ipc/uploads/projects/EN010117/EN010117-000006-EN010117%20-%20Scoping%20Report.pdf
https://infrastructure.planninginspectorate.gov.uk/wp-content/ipc/uploads/projects/EN010117/EN010117-000006-EN010117%20-%20Scoping%20Report.pdf
https://infrastructure.planninginspectorate.gov.uk/wp-content/ipc/uploads/projects/EN010117/EN010117-000006-EN010117%20-%20Scoping%20Report.pdf


 

 

Baseline Data Gathering 20.5 
Please note that Table 20-9 Data sources used to inform the air quality PEIR assessment indicates 
that monitoring data from ADC has been used. It should be noted for the future that a number of 
sites in Arun were discontinued and new monitoring sites were set up in 2020 but due to Covid 
restrictions results across the district show a 20-30% reduction in No2 levels. Any comparison 
should therefore use data from 2019, pre Covid and any new monitoring data should be used with 
caution as we don’t yet know the full impact of Covid 19 restrictions and changes to travel patterns 
going forwards. 
 
20.6 – there is no discussion of monitoring or base line levels in Arun, only the AQMA’s in Horsham 
and Worthing. I appreciate these are the areas of most concern but feel there should be some 
discussion of baseline levels in Arun. 
 
Preliminary assessment: Construction Phase 
20.9.1 - construction traffic on roads Appendix 20.1 referred to here sets out in Table 1-1 the details 
of the receptors where impacts have been modelled. None of these are within Arun district, all are 
within Horsham and Worthing, mostly within the AQMA’s but not all. Coupled with the fact that there 
is no discussion of baseline levels in Arun it seems that Arun has been excluded from the 
assessment and I cannot see any discussion or justification for this in the report. 
 
20.9.19 - construction equipment on site – One site at Crossbush Lodge has “moderate adverse” 
and three other sites have “slight adverse” impacts of No2 from construction equipment but the 
overall conclusion in 20.9.34 is not significant due to the conservative way in which emissions and 
concentrations were estimated. However, given that this is estimated it would be useful for those 
sites with predicted adverse impacts to be subject to increased attention or monitoring during works 
to ensure the impacts here are as expected and not significant.  
 
20.9.42 - Emissions of Dust from Construction – All measures described in Table 20-22 Specific 
environmental measures to be applied for construction dust management (from IAQM guidance) 
must be required as part of a dust management plan at all construction and decommissioning sites. 
The dust management plan must be approved by the Local Authorities. Please clarify whether the 
information comes from 2014 or 2016 IAQM guidance as both are referred to in respect of these 
measures in the construction and decommissioning sections of the report.    
 
Contaminated Land 
From a potentially contaminated land perspective, it is recommended that the applicant or their 
agent provides EH with a copy of the confirmed cable route so that the relevant areas of PCL can 
be identified. It is possible to work with the scoping area, however as this is a large swathe of the 
district, this will be a significant project. It would be anticipated that any areas highlighted as PCL 
will require, as a minimum, a risk assessment with regard to the proposed land use. It is also likely 
that a planning condition regarding contamination discovered during this project is appropriately 
quantified and managed. 
 
Noise 
Preliminary Environmental Information Report.  
Chapter 4. The Proposed Development. 
Infrastructure: Note that a Construction Compound is to be formed to the west of Arun River, as 
well as a Transition Joint Bay in the field behind Climping Beach. Please inform this Department, as 
soon as possible, re the proposed position of infrastructure such other construction compounds 
within the Arun area. 
4.5.2 - Construction Programme - Timing.  
Would request that where development takes place close to one or more sensitive receptor/s then 
any noisy operation does not take place before 08:00 hours and after 18:00 hours Monday to 
Friday (and as per stated hours of operation for any Saturday, public or bank holiday.) 
 
4.5.3 - Construction Programme - Extended Hours of Working 
Furthermore, that this paragraph be amended so that the Local Planning 
Department/Environmental Health Department (and any sensitive receptor) as well as West Sussex 

Page 163



 

 

County Council and the South Downs National Park will be notified at least 72 hours before any 
‘required’ continuous periods of construction work, any abnormal loads delivery, or works to the 
foreshore, or any other noisy activity outside the agreed hours of working (paragraph 4.5.2). 
This will allow the Council’s Out of Hours Service to be suitably forewarned of possible noise 
complaints. I trust that the relevant Environmental Health Department will be advised of a 
‘Rampion’ contact number which will deal with complaints concerning this development, closer to 
the time. 
  
The applicant is requested to contact the Local Planning and Environmental Health Departments 
well in advance for determination of any s61 application (Control of pollution Act 1974). 
Note (2) that the operation of ‘louder’ HDD equipment is also exempted here, with 24-hour 
operation possible. Understand that this machinery cannot easily be switched on and off. Would 
request that the operative seeks to ensure that such works begin early in the day-time period 
(07:00 to 23:00 hours) in order to avoid night working whenever possible. 
An ‘early start’ should also be put in place for off and on-shore piling (paragraph 22.8.7) particularly 
when ‘pushing through’ particularly dense rock strata (see 40 complaints to Adur-Worthing Council 
re night time off shore piling - Rampion 1). 
Generator noise was also identified as problematic at Brooklands Reservoir site, during 
Construction of Rampion 1. Please would the applicant ensure the use of quiet 
equipment/necessary mitigation, where sensitive receptors may be adversely affected. 
 
Lighting 
Thank you for due consideration of this matter. 
 
Conservation & Heritage 
 
Chapter 16 Seascape, Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment 
 
Table 16-11 Viewpoints included in the SLVIA fails to consider or identify that there is a 
conservation area fronting on to the sea, with a second one close by. This is disappointing as the 
same table identifies the conservation areas in Bognor Regis and other LPA areas. This issue had 
to be raised at one of the online meetings, and it would appear that this issues still has not been 
properly addressed.  
 
There is also an Area of character in South Terrace which has not been identified (non-designated 
heritage asset). 
 
Chapter 26 Historic Environment 
 
Both the proposed cable corridor and the WRG themselves has the potential to affect heritage 
assets, both designated and non-designated. Whilst an extensive amount of work has been 
prepared as part of the assessment of the impact of the proposal, I do have the following 
comments. 
 
The Climping Coastal defence features from the Second World War, whilst identified as being of 
archaeological interest, are also non-designated heritage structures. Would expect some care to be 
taken so as to ensure that their significance is not harmed as part of the Horizontal Directional Drill 
(HDD) technique that will be used at the landfall location. 
 
Table 26.2 – whilst the table identifies potential receptors such as designated heritage assets 
including listed buildings, it fails to include all of the non-designated heritage assets in the Arun 
LPAA. The Arun LPAA have identified both buildings and areas of character which are non-
designated heritage assets. The LPAA has prepared a Local List of Non-designated Heritage 
assets and there are two Local Plan policies associated with them (HER DM2 and HER DM4. As a 
result, it would appear that the South Terrace Area of Character is not to be considered, even 
though it adjoins the South Terrace Conservation Area. 
 
Table 26-9 – only refers to Buildings or Structures of Character and not Areas of Character. 

Page 164

https://rampion2.com/formal-consultation-detailed-documents/


 

 

 
Table 26-31 ‘Offshore substation and wind turbine generators – Potential effects arising through 
change to setting of heritage assets during the operation and maintenance phase - Paragraph 
26.4.17 of the PIER states that the identification of heritage assets to be included within the settings 
assessment is based on stage 1 of GPA 3. This followed a two-stage process which included 
identifying those assets where the coastal setting, including views out to sea, contributes in a 
notable and substantial way to the heritage significance of an asset. It is therefore not clear why 
some assets have been included in this table (and table 26-12) and others haven’t. For instance, all 
of the Conservation Areas in Bognor Regis are included, but none in Littlehampton. Likewise, other 
piers have been included whereas the one in Bognor, even though it is located within one for the 
aforementioned conservation areas is not. It is also not clear why only a limited number of listed 
buildings are included, when there is a significant number in the Littlehampton Seafront 
Conservation Area that have a relationship with the sea. This table needs to be updated to reflect 
all of the assets along the Arun coast.  
 
Table 26-37 Further consultation and engagement – it is positive to note that there will be further 
engagement. It is not clear what form this will take. It is suggested that smaller meetings taken 
place with individual or neighbouring authorities.  
 
LANDSCAPE 
 
The WTG will be clearly visible from the seafronts of both of the coastal towns. For instance, in 
Littlehampton, the report states that Seafront views, including those from the sea-front promenade 
will be defined by open, direct views of the offshore elements (Viewpoint 11), where they will be a 
prominent element in good visibility of the offshore field of view. This will result in a high magnitude 
of change and significant (major) effect on views experienced by residents and users of 
Littlehampton seafront. However, the failure to include the Littlehampton conservation areas in the 
heritage assessment (table 26-31) means that this impact has not been fully assessed on the 
heritage assets.  
  
The landscape study identifies that the Bognor Regis Seafront Promenade (which includes the 
conservation are) has a medium-high sensitivity to change, a medium high magnitude of change, 
resulting in the significance of residual effect being significant (major/moderate). However, the 
heritage report then identifies that the impact on the conservation area would be minor (in terms of 
the significance of the effect. Is this correct? 
 
Coastal Engineers 

 
Expect Natural England and the MMO will be commenting in relation to the Marine Plan area. The 
IFCA will be best placed to respond re fishing. 
 
Bird strike – Have no evidence and would leave it to the likes of Natural England and RSPB to 
evidence a case one way or the other. 
 
Assume it is not for us to comment on civil or military aviation/radar impacts.  
 
The onshore feed cable will coming ashore at Climping but it will be buried, with little to show that it 
is there – there will obviously be disruption during installation and a wayleave corridor afterwards - 
this may get close to potential LEGA developments on it route to Bolney. 
 
Aware form the A27 Focus Group that Highways England are aware of the project and have been 
in discussion regarding the routing at Arundel. 
 
People have concerns about construction effects (i.e. piling noise/vibration) – know that there was 
some disturbance from Phase 1. Whether the noise was airborne or somehow related to geology 
might be worth a bit of investigation. Know from piling for timber groynes there can be effects felt 
inland (50 – 100m) when there is no perceivable vibration right beside the works – bulbs of 
influence and stratification of the geology. 

Page 165



 

 

 
Have already made the RWE Team aware of the wave buoy and tide monitoring station off 
Rustington. 
 
Environmental Assessment Officer 
 
We are glad to see that all the designations for the landfall site have been recognised.  It is noted 
that more work is being done on further mitigation to reduce any impacts on Kingsmere MCZ.  As 
such we would wish to be kept informed about these as they develop, particularly to ensure 
consistency with other projects in the vicinity (i.e. Help Our Kelp Restoration Project).   
 
Due to the recent release of the peak river flow allowances incorporating climate change from the 
2018 projections, it is advised that 40% should be used in the modelling, especially due to the 
landfall location being within flood zone 3a and the significant inland incursion affected. 
 
Landscape Officer 
 
The proposed onshore cable corridor will impact on a large swathe of countryside and 
communities in the Arun District and the bordering South Downs National Park.  
 
Landfall indicated at Climping Beach has the potential to impact on the Climping Beach SSSI and 
West Beach LNR. Methodology suggests that Horizontal Directional Drilling installation, will be 
used in these areas. The further onshore cable route is detailed to be laid within a corridor, the 
majority of which to have a temporary working width of up to 50m. 
 
The proposed route will directly affect many Parishes from the south west to the north east 
with environmental impact on residents and unspoiled countryside, with the proposed route cutting 
through ancient habitats and heritage sites on the South Downs. The proposals will inevitably come 
at some environmental cost, which Arun will be looking for assurances to be addressed. 
 

• Habitat protection particularly any interface with Ancient Woodland. Appreciation of the 

legacy of any physical attributes ie Trees/ancient hedgerows. 

• Mitigation for landscape/habitat loss. Net gain or betterment in the proposed finished 

scheme. Unavoidable tree loss, ground formation, grassland habitat, to be addressed with 

new planting which over time will be required to improve the diversity and resilience of the 

local tree, fauna and flora population. Considering climate change and new and emerging 

threats from pests and diseases impacting these. The opportunity to introduce genetic 

diversity within the mitigation plans, which may help to increase climate resilience in the 

long term. 

• An on-going minimum 10-year monitoring programme to ensure the reinstatement of above 

within the full cable route. 

• Visual impact to the wider surrounds, landform and visual character. Impact on the SDNP to 

the north and impact on local areas of special landscape character. Impact on existing 

settlements and the necessary mitigation, to also include visual impact of mitigation 

associated with reinstatement of the cable runs in these areas. 

• The effect of the proposals on Arun’s evolving landscape and the interface with planned and 

known upcoming development in this area. 

• Impacts on the landscape - sensitivity of the South Downs National Park as well as its 

setting. 

• Timescale of works indicated as likely to take many months/years during which time 

residents may face disruption and which will involve the digging of trenches to site the 

Page 166



 

 

cables, resulting in damage to natural habitats. The impact of light and noise pollution, as 

well as increase in construction traffic. 

• Rights of way, severance of communities and wildlife and Green Infrastructure 

networks/corridors which will require reinstatement. 

 
 

 

Page 167



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

!"# $##%"#&' ()#*# +,-&# ./00#)& 1/2# 3245#)624

7#8-&#9 .#:#4/*#9

;<=>>=?@ AB*#2&6,2 ,8 #B6&*624 9C#::624 D()#*# +,-&#E /29 #)#%*6,2 ,8 *C,

9#*/%"#9 9C#::624& ,2 F/%/2* 0:,* *, *"# &,-*"' *,4#*"#) C6*" 2#C &"/)#9

/%%#&&' %/) 0/)G624 /29 :/29&%/0624HD7#&-I56&&6,2 ,8 3J?<<J?>JK1EH

!"6& /00:6%/*6,2 6& 62 (L1 M,2# ? /29 6& (L1 :6/I:# /& 2#C 9C#::624&H

 3KKJ(@N>;JOJ?@J@@???<?

169&#P Q/)5 +,-&# 169&#P 7,/9  $,42,) 7#46&

7#8-&#9 .#:#4/*#9

?@=>>=?@ A)#%*6,2 ,8 >2, 9C#::624 *, )#0:/%# "6&*,)6% %/)/F/2 /29 9#*/%"#9

4/)/4#H !"6& /00:6%/*6,2 5/P /88#%* *"# &#**624 ,8 / 16&*#9 $-6:9624' 6& /

9#0/)*-)# 8),5 *"# 9#F#:,05#2* 0:/2' 6& 62 (L1 M,2# @ /29 (L1 16/I:# /&

2#C 9C#::624H D7#&-I56&&6,2 ,8 31J><RJ??JK1EH

 3KKJ(@N>;JOJ?@J@@?NSTU

1/29 /9V/%#2* *, +64"86#:9 +,-&# W/0*,2 7,/9 $/)2"/5

7#8-&#9 .#:#4/*#9

?U=;N=?@ X-*:62# /00:6%/*6,2 C6*" /:: 5/**#)& )#&#)F#9' #B%#0* /%%#&&' 8,) >U Y,

9C#::624& 8,) 0#)&,2& ,F#) TT C6*" /&&,%6/*#9 %/) 0/)G624' :/29&%/0624'

9)/62/4# /29 ,0#2 &0/%#H !"6& /00:6%/*6,2 5/P /88#%* *"# &#**624 ,8

:6&*#9 I-6:9624& /29 6& / .#0/)*-)# 8),5 *"# .#F#:,05#2* K:/2H

 3KKJ(@N>;JOJ?@J@@?RN<R

T> O/))#2 O/P $/)2"/5

7#8-&#9 .#:#4/*#9

>S=>>=?@ (,2&*)-%*6,2 ,8 > Y,H #29 ,8 *#))/%# *C, &*,)#P 9C#::624 C6*" /&&,%6/*#9

F#"6%-:/) %),&&,F#)H

 3KKJ(@N>;JOJ?@J@@?S;@?

S !"# X)%"/)9 (:,&# $,42,) 7#46&

7#8-&#9 .#:#4/*#9

;?=;N=?? Q#:: > Y,H ZP%/5,)# *)## 62 )#/) I/%G 4/)9#2 @5 8),5 ",-&# /29

)#0:/%# C6*" #6*"#) O6::,C ,) Z6:F#) $6)%" /& 96)#%*#9H

Page 169

Agenda Annex



 !""#$"%#&'()*#(+,-

./)* $01 2344156 788 9:1186;3< =>?8>5 @1?A6

@1B:61C D1E1?341C

)(/*-/.' ' 64>51< :F;35C 1G4186A>8 38C 51C1H1E>FI184 >B 401 1GA64A8? )64 38C

.8C BE>>5 C1EAH15A8? -' 8> BE346J $0A6 3FFEAK34A>8 I3< 3BB1K4 401 6144A8? >B

EA641C L:AECA8?6M 3BB1K46 401 K0353K415 38C 3FF13538K1 >B $01 N41<81

&>8615H34A>8 !513 38C A6 A8 &7O P>81 - QP15> @341CR 36 BE346J

 !""#&'()*#S#..#''*((,+

. $01 N45114 T364 "5164>8

@1B:61C D1E1?341C

)*/)*/.. &038?1 >B :61 >B 41IF>535< >:46AC1 6134A8? 3513 4> 401 5135 >B 401

51643:5384 4> L1 3 F15I38184 6134A8? 3513 B>5 401 K>86:IF4A>8 >B B>>C

38C L1H153?16 B>5 >:5 K:64>I156 4> :61 3EE <135 5>:8CJ $0A6 3FFEAK34A>8

A6 A8 &7O P>81 - QP15> @341CR 36 >4015 C1H1E>FI184J

 !""#&'()*#U#..#''*+--)

O38C L14;118 ))3 $01 V5>H1 38C '* =5>>W O381 X155A8?

@1B:61C D1E1?341C

),/))/.' ) Y> )/L1C5>>I 0>:61 3E>8? ;A40 366>KA341C F35WA8? Z F5AH341 >:4C>>5

3I18A4< 6F3K1 Q516:LIA66A>8 B>EE>;A8? XV#-[#.)#"ORJ $0A6 3FFEAK34A>8 A6

A8 &7O P>81 - 38C A6 &7O OA3LE1 36 3 81; C;1EEA8?J

 !""#&'()*#S#.'#''.',*'

\36IA81 &>:54 N13 O381 V35C186  X155A8?

@1B:61C D1E1?341C

*./)*/.' T51K4A>8 >B 38 1G4186A>8 4> F5>HAC1 3443K01C 6A8?E1 64>51< C;1EEA8?

4>?14015 ;A40 F35WA8? B>EE>;A8? C1I>EA4A>8 >B 1GA64A8? ?353?1J $0A6 6A41 A6

A8 &7O P>81 - 38C A6 &7O OA3LE1 36 81; C;1EEA8?J

 !""#&'()*#S#.'#''.**.[

O38C 4> @135 >B )*+ X1EF03I S3< X1EF03I

@1B:61C D1E1?341C

)*/)*/.' &>8645:K4A>8 >B 3 C143K01C ) Y> . L1C C;1EEA8? ;A40 1E1K45AK I>LAEA4<

6K>>415#K<KE1 Z 51B:61 64>53?1 B3KAEA4A16 Q516:LIA66A>8 B>EE>;A8?

X"#')#..#"ORJ $0A6 3FFEAK34A>8 A6 A8 &7O P>81 - 38C &7O OA3LE1 36 3 81;

C;1EEA8?J

Page 170



 

 !""#$%&'(#)#*%#%%*+(,%

-./.0123 !/.34. 510..1 )2067 8.9:;<=

>?@.A1B23 C.9.D<1.E

*,F''F*% "0B20 <::02/<9 43E.0 5A;.E49. *G "<01 'HG $9<77 ! I20 :02:27.E +J

1.9.A2=7 B371<99<1B23G K%J '+= 710..1 :29. <3E <EEB1B23<9 .L4B:=.31

A<?B3.17M

 !""#$%&'(#)#*%#%%*%*+H

N0226IB.9E 8<0= O<71.0D<1. -<3.  )<9?.0123

P.I47.E C.9.D<1.E

'%F(QF*% * R E.1<A;.E S ?.E022= ET.99B3D7

 !""#$%&'(#)#*%#%%'&QS%

N0226/B.T U407.0V O<71.0D<1. -<3. )<9?.0123

P.I47.E C.9.D<1.E

',F(QF*% P.=2/<9 2I 241E220 7120<D.G B3A94EB3D A<0</<3 <3E :29V1433.97 <3E 1;.

.0.A1B23 2I Q U2 I9.RB?9. O WDX I9.RB?9. 43B17 A2=:0B7B3D 2I 2IIBA.7 <3E

T2067;2:7G <772AB<1.E :<06B3DG E0<B3<D. <3E 1403B3D 7:<A.7

W0.74?=B77B23 I2992TB3D )!#,&#*'#"-XM Y;B7 7B1. B7 B3 $Z- [23. % W[.02

P<1.EX <7 21;.0 E./.92:=.31M

 !""#$%&'(#)#*%#%%'HH%&

Y;. >9E $2<9 \<0E U201; O3E -<3. \<:123

P.I47.E C.9.D<1.E

(+F'*F*% O0.A1B23 2I S U2 ET.99B3D7 TB1; <772AB<1.E 9<3E7A<:B3DG <AA.77 <3E

:<06B3DM Y;B7 <::9BA<1B23 B7 < C.:<0140. I02= 1;. C./.92:=.31 "9<3 <3E

B7 B3 $Z- ]23. % <3E B7 $Z- -B<?9. <7 3.T ET.99B3D7M

 !""#$%&'(#)#*%#%%*,%HQ

PBED.T<V "<06 P2<E N<03;<= ).71 5477.R

 !""#$%&'(#$#*%#%%'HH,H

'+ 5241; Y.00<A. -B119.;<=:123 ).71 5477.R

Page 171



 !""#$%&'(#)#*%#%%**+&,

Page 172


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	Apologies were received from Councillors Bower and Woodman.
	The minutes of the previous meeting held on 15 November 2023 were approved and signed by the Chair.
	There were no urgent items for this meeting.
	No Public Speakers.
	Approval of reserved matters following the grant of CM/1/17/OUT for the erection of 300 No dwellings & a building within use class E, together with public open space, LAPs, LEAP & ancillary works, including car parking & drainage arrangements, with access off Church Lane & Horsemere Green Lane. This application may affect the setting of listed buildings & is in CIL Zone 4 (HSP2) & is not CIL Liable.
	The Strategic Development Team Leader presented the report with updates.
	1 Public Speaker
	2 Public Speakers
	Minutes of Previous Meeting
	Apologies were received from Councillors Bower, Blanchard-Cooper, Patel and Woodman.
	There were no urgent items to be discussed at the meeting.
	3 Public Speakers
	Members noted the appeals list.
	The Group Head of Planning presented the report, he outlined that the changes detailed in the report were a ‘tidying up’ process that would impact a small number of applications, which would no longer be required to be brought before Committee.
	The Group Head of Planning presented the report, where he outlined that there was a need for members to consider the additional wording that had been detailed in the report in order to strengthen their refusal reasoning for the application in order to ensure the decision of the committee could be defended should the applicant appeal the decision of the committee.
	The Group Head of Planning asked members if given the current time members would be minded for items 10 and 11 to be taken together as they were the same decision. Members were in agreement, so he then presented the reports this item and the University of Chichester.
	The Group Head of Planning presented the report.


	6 P/139/22/RES Church Barton House, Horns Lane, Pagham
	7 P/153/21/RES Land South of Summer Lane and West of Pagham Road, Pagham
	8 LU/278/23/HH 19 Davits Drive, Littlehampton BN17 6RU
	9 WA/111/23/PL Brookfield Farm, Eastergate Lane, Walberton BN18 0BA
	10 Committee Report Rampion 2 January 2024
	10.1 Rampion_2_LIR_Committee_Draft 2
	1. INTRODUCTION
	Background
	Purpose, Scope and Terms of Reference of the Local Impact Report
	Overview of the Project

	2. Overview of the District
	Description of the District and Key Challenges
	Strategic Site Allocations
	Climate Change and Renewable Energy
	Figure 1a: Approximate Extent of DCO Limits and Surrounding Environmental Sensitivities (Part 1)
	Figure 1b: Approximate Extent of DCO Limits and Surrounding Environmental Sensitivities (Part 2)
	Figure 2: Climping Compound (Inset of Figure 1a)


	3. Local policy
	Arun Local Plan 2011 – 2031
	Made Neighbourhood Plans
	Arun Local Plan Update 2023 - 2041

	4. General
	Alternatives
	Route Options and Selection
	Construction Compound
	Adequacy of the DCO Application, Actions and Commitments

	Climping Construction Compound
	Private Water Supplies

	5. Socio-economics, Economics and tourism
	Local Planning Policies
	Key Local Issues and Likely Impacts
	Skills and Employment
	Tourism and Tourism Assets
	Community Disruption
	Strategic Housing Allocation
	Fishing Industry

	Adequacy of the DCO Application, Actions and Commitments

	6. landscape, visual and seascape
	Local Planning Policies
	Key Local Issues and Likely Impacts
	Landscape and Visual
	Seascape

	Adequacy of the DCO Application, Actions and Commitments

	7. terrestrial and marine ecology
	Local Planning Policies
	Key Local Issues and Likely Impacts
	Climping Site of Scientific Interest and Arun Valley Special Protection Area Impact Risk Zone
	Figure 3: Impact Risk Zone of Arun Valley Special Protection Area
	Terrestrial Biodiversity Net Gain
	Marine Biodiversity Net Gain

	Adequacy of the DCO Application, Actions and Commitments

	8. NOISE AND VIBRATION
	Local Planning Policies
	Key Local Issues and Likely Impacts
	Noise
	Vibration

	Adequacy of the DCO Application, Actions and Commitments

	9. historical environment
	Local Planning Policies
	Key Local Issues and Likely Impacts
	Listed Buildings and Locally Listed Buildings
	Conservation Areas and Area of Character

	Adequacy of the DCO Application, Actions and Commitments

	10. summary of mitigation, compensation and requirements
	Mitigation, Monitoring and Compensation
	DCO and Requirements

	11. Summary
	Sources of information for figures

	10.2 Relevant Reps Nov 2023 3
	10.3 ADC Consultation Response Sept 2021 4

	 Planning Appeals

